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Standing Committee on Government 
Operations and Accountability 

Hearings on the 2007 Report of the 
Auditor General to the Legislative 

Assembly of Nunavut on the Nunavut 
Business Credit Corporation 

Iqaluit, Nunavut 
February 7, 2008 

 
Members Present: 
Hunter Tootoo, Chair 
Keith Peterson, Co-Chair 
Tagak Curley, C.M. 
David Alagalak 
 
Staff Members: 
Nancy Tupik 
Alex Baldwin 
Susan Cooper 
 
Interpreters: 
Mary Nashook 
Blandina Tulugarjuk 
Veronica Dewar 
 
Witnesses: 
Rosemary Keenainak, Deputy Minister of 

Economic Development and 
Transportation 

Peter Ma, Deputy Minister of Finance 
Gerry O’Donnell, Comptroller General of 

Nunavut 
Phillip Bhagoutie, Chief Executive Officer 

of NBCC 
Brock Junkin 
 
>>Committee commenced at 9:12 
 
Chairman (Mr. Tootoo): Good morning 
everyone and welcome. Before we get 
started, I would like to ask Mr. Curley if he 
could start us off with a prayer, please.  
 
>>Prayer 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Item 2 

ᒐᕙᒪᐃᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑭᐅᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 

ᑐᓵᑎᑦᑎᓂᖏᑦ 2007-ᒥ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᒻᒪᕆᐅᑉ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖓᓐᓂᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᕕᒻᒧᑦ ᓄᓇᕘᒧᑦ 

ᐱᔾᔪᑎᓖᑦ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᒃ 

ᐃᖃᓗᐃᑦ, ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᕕᕗᐊᕆ 7, 2008 

 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᖅᑏᑦ ᐅᐸᒃᑐᑦ: 
Hᐊᓐᑕ ᑐᑐ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ 
ᑮᑦ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᖅ 
ᑕᒑᖅ ᑰᓕ, ᑲᓇᑕᒥ ᐃᑲᔪᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᓕᑕᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᑕᐃᕕᑦ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ: 
ᓈᓐᓯ ᑐᐱᖅ 
ᐋᓕᒃᔅ ᐹᓪᑐᐃᓐ 
ᓲᓴᓐ ᑰᐸ 
 
ᑐᓵᔩᑦ: 
ᒥᐊᓕ ᓇᓱᒃ 
ᐸᓚᓐᑏᓇ ᑐᓗᒑᕐᔪᒃ 
ᕗᕌᓂᑲ ᑑᐊ 
 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ: 
ᕉᔅᒥᐊᓕ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᓪᓕᐊ 

ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᓗ 

ᐲᑕ ᒫ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᓪᓕᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᔨᐅᕆ ᐆᑖᓄᓪ, ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᖅ ᓄᓇᕗᒥ 
ᐱᓕᐴᓯ ᐸᑰᑎ, ᖁᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒥᒃ 

ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ, ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᒃᑯᑦ 

ᐳᕌᒃ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ 
 
>>ᑲᑎᒪᓂᖅ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑐᖅ 9:12 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᑐ)(ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐅᓪᓛᒃᑯᑦ, 
ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒋᑦᓯ. ᐱᒋᐊᓚᐅᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ 
ᑐᒃᓯᐊᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᒪᑐᐃᖅᓯᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᓐ. 
 
>>ᑐᒃᓯᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
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is the Review and Adoption of the Agenda. 
Agreed? 
 
Some Members: Agreed. 
 
Chairman: Item 3. I would like to this 
morning welcome Mr. Junkin to the 
hearings. First off, I’ll ask all of the other 
office holders that were here if they would 
prefer to swear on the Bible or affirm to tell 
the truth. What would you prefer, Mr. 
Junkin?  
 
Mr. Junkin: I’ll swear on the Bible. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Please 
rise and take the Bible in your right hand. 
Do you swear that the evidence to be given 
by you in these proceedings shall be the 
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 
truth so help you God? 
 
Mr. Junkin: I swear.  
 
Chairman: Thank you. Please be seated. 
Because there’s such a fresh bunch of 
witnesses here, and I know some of you 
have been here before and that, but just as 
these hearings are being transcribed, I’ll 
please ask that you go through the 
chairperson. It just helps when they’re 
typing out, who’s saying what and they 
know who is actually saying it. And also, it 
is sometimes difficult to hear across the 
room, you see the headsets are there and 
it’ll just help in being able to hear what’s 
being said.  
 
With that, I would just like to open the 
floor if there are any questions from any 
members. Sorry, before we go on to that, I 
will just ask the lead witnesses for the 
Government of Nunavut if they have any 
opening comments. I understand, Ms. 
Keenainak, you have some.  
 

ᓈᒻᒪᒋᔭᐅᓂᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᔅᓴᐃᑦ, ᐊᖏᖅᐱᓯᐅᒃ? 
 
 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ: ᐊᖏᖅᑐᒍᑦ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒃᑎᑦᑎᔪᒪᔪᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ. ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥᒃ ᑖᓐᓇ ᓱᓕᓂᕋᕈᒻᒧᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ. ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᓱᓕᓂᕋᐅᒻᒥᒃ 
ᐊᖏᕈᑎᖃᕈᒪᕖᓐ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐊᖏᕈᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᒥᒃ 
ᐅᖃᕈᒪᕕᓐ. ᓇᓕᐊᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᕈᒪᕕᓐ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ? 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᓂᒃ ᐸᑎᒻᒥᑦᓯᔪᒪᔪᖓ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᐊᑏ ᓂᑯᕕᓪᓗᑎᓐ. ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᑦ ᑎᒍᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑕᓕᖅᐱᓐᓄᑦ. ᐊᖏᖅᐲᓐ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᑎᑦ 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᓂᖃᑦᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᓱᓕᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ, 
ᒥᔅᓯᐊᕐᓂᖃᖏᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᒎᑏ ᐃᑲᔪᕐᓛᑏᑦ? 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐊᖏᖅᐳᖓ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐊᑏ, 
ᑲᔪᓯᒋᐊᓕᖅᑕ, ᐃᒃᓯᕚᓕᕆᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᑖᖑᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒋᐊᖅᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᓵᑦᑎᓐᓂ. 
ᓵᑦᑎᓐᓄᐊᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᓯᕗᓂᒃᑎᓐᓂ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᑎᒪᓃᑦ ᓈᓪᓚᒃᑎᐅᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ. ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ 
ᐊᖅᑯᑎᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᐳᖅ ᓇᕿᑦᑕᖅᑕᐅᓕᖅᐸᑕ ᑭᓇ 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᓂᕐᒪᖔᓐ ᓇᓗᓇᔾᔮᖏᒻᒪᓐ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᔭᓐᓂᖃᑦᑕᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᑐᓵᑦᑎᐊᕐᕆᐊᔅᓴᖅ 
ᒪᑯᐊ ᑐᓵᔾᔪᑏᓐ ᐊᑐᕈᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᑕᓯ, 
ᑐᓵᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᕋᑦᓯ ᐅᖃᐅᑕᐅᔪᓂᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᐅᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᒪᑐᐃᓐᓂᐊᕐᓕᖅᐸᕋ ᓇᑎᖅ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖅᑕᖃᒻᒪᖔᓐ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓃᖔᖅᑐᓂᒃ. ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅ. ᐱᒋᐊᓚᐅᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᓄᑖᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓄᓇᕘᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓃᖔᖅᑐᖅ 
ᒪᑐᐃᕆᐊᕈᑎᖃᒻᒪᖔᑕ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
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Ms. Keenainak (interpretation): Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) 
Yes, I do.  
 
Once again, I am pleased to appear before 
you to represent the Department of 
Economic Development and 
Transportation, and to have the opportunity 
to report to you on our activities since the 
appearance of the Auditor General of 
Canada at Standing Committee last 
November. 
 
Also with me today, as you have requested, 
is Gerry O’Donnell, the Comptroller 
General of Nunavut, Peter Ma, in his 
capacity as Interim Chair of the Board of 
Directors for the Nunavut Business Credit 
Corporation, and Phillip Bhagoutie, the 
new Chief Executive Officer for the 
Corporation. I’m still getting used to his 
last name.  
 
Our activities in November 2007 have been 
directed toward three general objectives. 
  
First, the department and NBCC have been 
working together to implement the Action 
Plan. The Board of Directors for NBCC 
approved the Action Plan during their 
January 15, 2008 board meeting. As you 
know, this Action Plan was prepared to 
ensure that each of the recommendations in 
the Auditor General’s report on the 
Nunavut Business Credit Corporation 
receives an appropriate response. A copy of 
the Action Plan was provided to members 
of the Committee last November, and today 
I have brought with me an updated version. 
 
Secondly, the department has been working 
to ensure the continuation of regular 
operations at the Nunavut Business Credit 
Corporation. This work has included 
assisting Phillip Bhagoutie to get 
established in his new role as the 

ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ) ᐄ, 
ᒪᑐᐃᕆᐊᕈᑎᖃᖅᑐᖓ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
ᓱᓖᓛᒃ ᖁᕕᐊᓱᒃᑐᖓ ᓵᑦᓯᓐᓄᐊᕈᓐᓇᕋᒪ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒋᔭᖓ ᓄᑦᑎᖅᖢᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᓕᒃᓯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᕈᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔭᖓ 
ᓵᖓᓃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑲᓇᑕᒥ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕌᓛᑦ ᓄᕖᐲᕇᒥ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐅᓪᓗᒥ ᐱᖃᑎᒋᓂᐊᕐᒥᔭᕋ ᔨᐅᕆ ᐅᑖᓄ, ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐲᑕ ᒫ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓕᑉ 
ᐸᑰᑎ, ᑖᓐᓇ ᓄᑖᖅ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔨᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᑯᓐᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᑎᓯᐱᕆ 2007-ᒥ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑎᓕᓯᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐱᖓᓲᓕᖅᑲᖓᔪᓂᒃ ᑐᕌᒐᔅᓴᓂᒃ.  
 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒌᑦᓯᒪᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᓇᓱᒃᖢᑎᒃ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᒋᐊᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᐅᔪᒧᑦ. ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓪᓕ 
NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᓯᓚᐅᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᔮᓄᐊᕆ 15, 2008 ᑲᑎᒪᓂᖏᓐᓂ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᔅᓴᐅᔪᑎᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑏᑦ ᓴᓇᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐊᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖓᓄᑦ. NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᑦ ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ 
ᓄᕖᐱᕆᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐅᓪᓗᒥ ᓇᔅᓴᕐᒥᔭᒃᑲ 
ᓄᑖᕈᕆᐊᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑐᒡᓕᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᖓᓂᒃ NBCC-
ᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᖓᓗ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑐᐃᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᑉ 
ᐸᑰᑎᒥᒃ ᓴᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᓄᑖᒥᒃ 
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corporation’s Chief Executive Officer, and 
we have been providing support to the 
board of directors and to the chair, as 
requested.  
 
Thirdly, we have been moving ahead with 
work on options for the future of the two 
territorial corporations for which the 
Minister of Economic Development and 
Transportation is responsible: The Nunavut 
Business Credit Corporation, and the 
Nunavut Development Corporation. A 
report has been prepared and a number of 
options will be submitted by the minister to 
his Cabinet colleagues for the 
government’s consideration.  
 
Minister Netser has provided me with a 
copy of the letter written to him and to 
Minister Tapardjuk by you, Mr. Chairman, 
on January 28, 2008. In response, I would 
like to provide you with more detailed 
information on the specific matters raised 
in this letter.  
 
The first of these concerns the status of the 
implementation of the Action Plan. As you 
know, the Plan makes a number of short-
term and medium-term commitments to act 
on the recommendations of the Auditor 
General.  
 
I am confident that these commitments can 
be met on deadline, working together with 
the Nunavut Business Credit Corporation 
Board of Directors and the new Chief 
Executive Officer.  
 
Our accomplishments to date include:  
 

• Reinstitution of the Operational 
Procedures Manual as approved 
by the board in 2000. 

 
• Awarding of a contract for the 

preparation of the new 

ᐱᓕᕆᐊᔅᓴᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓᓂᒃ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᑯᑦ, ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᓂᐊᕐᓗᓂᔾᔪᒃ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖃᑦᑕᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᓕᕌᖓᑕ. 
 
ᐱᖓᔪᖓᓐᓂ, ᒫᓐᓇ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᒍᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᕆᓪᓗᑎᒍ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎᔅᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕘᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᖁᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᖏᓐ. ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᒃ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᒃᑯᓐ ᐅᓄᑲᓪᓚᒃᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑏᓐ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᓪᓗ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. 
 
 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓇᑦᑎᖅ ᑐᓂᓯᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑦᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᔮᓂᐊᓕ 28, 2008, ᑕᐹᕐᔪᒨᖓᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᒨᖓᐅᔪᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓗᓕᑯᓘᔭᖏᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᒃᑲᓂᕐᓂᐊᐸᒃᑲ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᔭᐃᒋᐊᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᔅᓴᐅᒐᑦᓯ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑕᐅᔪᖅ ᐅᓄᑲᓪᓚᒃᑐᒥᒃ ᓯᕕᑭᑦᑐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᑯᓐᓂᓱᖅᑐᑯᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᒻᒪᑕ. 
 
ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᒃᑐᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᕈᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᒍᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑭᓪᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᐃᓱᓕᒃᕕᒃᓴᖓᓄᑦ. 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ 
ᓄᑖᖑᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖓᑦ. 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᔪᒪᓂᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐅᑯᓂᖓ:  
 

• ᐅᑎᖅᑎᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔾᔪᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
2000-ᒥ. 

 
 

• ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᑳᑦᑐᓛᕆᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᒃᑕᐅᓗᓂ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔪᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓᓄᑦ 



 5 

Operational Procedures 
Manual and Board Orientation 
Manual. The first draft will be 
completed by March 31, 2008.  

 
• Testing of the computer systems 

at the Corporation, including a 
secure and functional backup 
system. 

 
• Preparation and implementation 

of a training plan for employees 
in the use of the Corporation’s 
computerized information 
system. 

 
• Implementation of the work 

plan to devolve responsibility 
for the Kitikmeot Business 
Development Centre. 

 
• Initiation of a training plan for 

the board. 
 

• Assisting the board to adopt a 
new minute policy.  

 
In addition, a number of actions have been 
taken to improve recordkeeping and file 
management of the corporation’s offices in 
Cape Dorset as recommended by the 
Auditor General.  
 
I would also like to advise the Standing 
Committee that the 2006-07 Financial 
Statements have been prepared and will be 
presented to the NBCC Board for approval 
in the coming weeks.  
 
You have also requested, Mr. Chairman, an 
update on the status of the government’s 
response to questions and requests for 
information posed by Members of the 
Standing Committee during its November 
2007 hearings.  
 

ᐆᑦᑑᑎᒋᔭᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑕᐅᓂᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓯᒨᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕈᑎᔅᓴᐃᑦ ᒫᑦᓯ 31, 2008-
ᖑᓕᖅᐸᑦ. 

 
• ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ 

ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᔾᔪᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔪᑎᖏᑦ 
ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ. 

 
 

• ᐸᕐᓇᐃᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᓗᑎᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕈᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ 
ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᒋᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓᓄᑦ. 

 
 
 

• ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂ ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᑦ Business 
Development Corporation-ᖓᓄᑦ. 

 
• ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᓗᑎᒃ 

ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕈᑎᔅᓴᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᒧᑦ.  
 

• ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑐᐃᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᓄᑖᓂᒃ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᕕᓂᕐᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ.  

 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐅᓄᒃᑲᓐᓂᑲᓪᓚᒃᑐᓂᒃ ᐱᐅᓯᒋᐊᖅᑎᔅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᖓᓂ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓂ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ 
ᒪᓕᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔨᒋᐊᕈᒪᔪᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓂᒃ 
2006-07-ᒥ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᐅᔪᑦ ᓴᓇᔭᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᓚᐅᕐᒥᒐᑦᓯ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᒥᒃ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᓄᕕᐱᕆ 2007-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ. 
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Following publication of the record of 
these meetings, departmental staff 
reviewed these questions and our responses 
and have collected the information 
required, including copies of specific 
documentation that had been requested. 
This information was provided to you 
earlier this week, and while I believe it is 
complete, we will make every effort to 
provide you with any additional 
information you believe may be 
outstanding.  
 
You have also asked about the status of any 
recent developments in the RCMP’s 
investigation. At the time the RCMP was 
provided extensive documentation on the 
corporation’s financial and banking 
records, and on loans that have been 
approved, those that have been defaulted, 
and on loan payment information.  
 
The RCMP did ask for contact information 
of previous employees of the Nunavut 
Business Credit Corporation and this was 
provided the week of January 25, and also 
other information.  
 
The fourth area you asked to be updated on 
concerns the “Crown Agency Assessment” 
conducted last year.  
 
As you point out in your letter, a contract 
was awarded to RT Associates Ltd. for this 
work, and a final report was submitted by 
the contractor in May of 2007. The report 
has been helpful, and provides some insight 
into the current operations and options with 
future roles and responsibilities for the 
Nunavut Business Credit Corporation and 
the Nunavut Development Corporation.  
 
Some questions about the future of the 
corporations remained unanswered, 
however, and, in particular, the question of 
amalgamation of the corporations. As you 

ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᓈᓚᒃᑎᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᓄᐊᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᐅᔪᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᓐ. 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᒃᑐᖓ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᒪᑕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᖄᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᒎᖅᑐᓐ ᐃᓕᒃᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓐ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᐱᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒥᒐᑦᑕ ᖃᓄᐃᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐸᓖᓯᒃᑯᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓂᕆᔭᖏᑦ. ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ ᐸᓖᓯᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓐ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒻᒥᓗ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᓐ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᑎᐅᔪᓪᓗ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐲᔭᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᕕᓃᑦ 
ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᐃᑦ ᐱᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ.  
 
 
ᐸᓖᓯᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᐱᕆᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᓂᒃ ᐱᔪᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ NBCC-ᑯᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᖓᓐᓂ ᔮᓄᐊᓕ 25, 
2008-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
ᑎᓴᒪᖓᓐ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᓯ 
ᐱᑦᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᓯᐅᒃ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᒥᖁᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓐᓂᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᕐᕌᓂ.  
 
ᑎᑎᕋᓚᐅᕋᑦᓯ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑳᑦᑐᓛᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ RT 
Associates Limited-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᐊᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᓴᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅᓯᐅᑎᓂᒃ ᑳᑦᑐᓛᒃᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᒪᐃ 2007. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕈᑏᓐ ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ ᐃᑲᔫᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᑐᑭᓯᕚᓪᓕᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓᓂᒃ 
ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᒥ ᑲᒪᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓᓂᒃ NBCC-ᑯᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᖏᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᒥ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ.  
 
 
 
ᓱᓕ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᑭᐅᔭᐅᓯᒪᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑎᒃ 
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may know, on April 1, 2005 the 
Government of the Northwest Territories 
brought into force the Northwest 
Territories Business Development and 
Investment Corporation Act. This 
legislation created a new territorial 
corporation by merging the former 
Northwest Territories Business Credit 
Corporation and the Northwest Territories 
Development Corporation. The report by 
RT Associates Ltd. did not report 
adequately on this option for the future of 
the two territorial corporations in Nunavut.  
 
In October 2007 the department received 
approval to establish an interdepartmental 
working group, including representatives 
from the corporations, to research and 
report on the amalgamation option. The 
working group has completed its report and 
made a number of recommendations, which 
have been submitted to Minister Netser. 
With his approval, the report and 
recommendations then will be submitted to 
Cabinet for a Request for Decision on 
which options, if any, the department will 
take going forward.  
 
An update has been requested on the 
employment status of the former acting 
Chief Executive Officer. Following the 
decision of the court last week, the former 
acting Chief Executive Officer resigned his 
position, and is no longer with the 
corporation. 
 
Finally, Mr. Chairperson, you have 
requested details on the process used by 
Crown agencies – the territorial 
corporations – to conduct background 
checks, employment references and 
criminal records checks from applicants for 
senior management and executive-level 
positions.  
 
In the case of agencies whose employees 

ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᐅᔫᒃ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᔅᓴᐅᒐᕕᓐ ᐃᐳᕈ 1, 2005-
ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥ Business Development-ᖑᔪᖅ 
Investment Corporation-ᖓᓄᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᖏᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᖁᔭᖏᑦ ᓄᑖᖑᓪᓗᑎᒃ, ᑲᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᒃ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᖓᓐ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ RT Associates-ᑯᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᓚᐅᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎᔅᓴᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒃᑑᕙ 2007-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᖃᑎᒌᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᑭᓪᓕᑎᑦᑎᔨᖏᓐᓂ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᔾᔨᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑭᒡᒐᖅᑐᐃᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᐃᓐ. ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕐᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᑲᑎᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑲᑎᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᓂᒃ. 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᑭᓪᓕᑎᑦᑎᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ 
ᐅᓄᑲᓪᓚᒃᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᖅᑐᑎᒃ ᓇᓕᐊᒃ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᓐ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓇᑦᑎᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒍ. ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᔪᕐᓗ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᔪᖅ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᒍᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᓐ.  
 
ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑦᑎᓯᒪᓕᕐᒥᔪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓕᕐᒪᖔᓐ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᑦᑐᐃᕕᒻᒥ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᖄᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᓄᖅᑲᑦᖢᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕈᓐᓃᕐᒪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᑐᒃᓯᕋᓚᐅᕐᕋᑦᓯ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᐅᔪᖅ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓕᕐᒪᖔᓐ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑎᒥᖁᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ, ᓄᓇᕗᓪᓗ ᑎᒥᖁᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᖁᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕆᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓐ 
ᐱᕋᔭᒃᓯᒪᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᒃ ᐱᑖᕋᓱᒃᑐᑦ. 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
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are members of the public service, like the 
Nunavut Business Credit Corporation, the 
processes are established by the 
Department of Human Resources, and are 
implemented by their staff. Reference 
checks and criminal record checks are 
defined in the process to be used to 
complete them is online in the Department 
of Human Resources staffing manual, 
section 9. It is this process that was used in 
the staffing of the comptroller position in 
the Nunavut Business Credit Corporation 
in 2006. It is relevant to add that the 
candidate is required to apply to the RCMP 
for a criminal record check, but this check 
will not report current police investigations 
or criminal charges.  
 
Employees of a territorial corporation like 
the Nunavut Development Corporation are 
not members of the public service, and use 
their own process for conducting reference 
checks and criminal records checks. The 
Nunavut Development Corporation 
conducts criminal reference checks for all 
candidates for head office and subsidiary 
company management positions, in 
addition to the usual reference checks.  
 
This concludes my opening comments, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
I have attempted to respond fully to the 
information requests you made in your 
recent letter to Minister Netser and 
Tapardjuk. If Members of the Standing 
Committee require additional information 
on some of these matters, I will try to 
answer those questions at this time, and if I 
do not have the information, I will ensure 
that every effort is made to obtain it for 
you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. I’ll 
open the floor now for any questions or 
comments from the members. Mr. 

ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒋᔭᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐊᖅᑯᑎᖃᑦᖢᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ. ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᕙᑦᖢᑎᓪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕈᑎᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐱᕋᔭᒃᓯᒪᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᓕᖅᑐᓐ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᑕ ᒪᓕᒐᖓᓂ ᓇᐃᓴᐅᑎᖓ 9-ᒥ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᓕᖅᑐᖅ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒥᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᒃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 2006-
ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ. ᐊᑑᑎᖃᑦᑐᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑖᕈᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᒃᑐᓂᓛᑦ ᐸᓖᓯᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐱᔭᕋᔭᒃᓯᒪᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᔪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᐅᔪᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᔭᐅᓯᒪᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑕ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒥᔪᑦ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᔾᔪᑎᖃᑦᑐᓐ ᐱᕋᔭᒃᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ. ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᕋᔭᒃᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓐ.  
 
 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᐃᓱᓕᓐᓂᐊᓕᖅᐳᓐ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᔅᓴᕆᔭᒃᑲ 
ᒪᑐᐃᕆᐊᕈᑎᓐᓄᑦ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᐃᑦ ᐱᔪᒪᔭᓯ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᒥᔪᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓇᑦᑎᒧᑦ, ᑕᐹᕐᔪᒧᓪᓗ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖑᔪᑦ 
ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᑲᓐᓂᕐᓂᒃ ᐱᔪᒪᓐᓂᖅᐸᑕ 
ᑭᐅᓇᓱᐊᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᐸᒃᑲ. ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᐃᑦ ᐱᓯᒪᖏᑯᒃᑭᓐ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᖓ ᐃᓕᒃᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᒐᓱᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᑕᒃᑲ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
ᒪᑐᐃᕐᓂᐊᕐᓕᖅᐸᕋ ᓇᑎᖅ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖅᑕᖃᒻᒪᖔᓐ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓂᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
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Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
welcome the witnesses to the hearing today 
and I welcome Mr. Junkin. I would like to 
ask Mr. Junkin some questions. Mr. Junkin, 
your employment at the NBCC was 
between October 14, 2003 and July 12, 
2004. So it wasn’t actually that long, 
probably less than ten months. So I would 
like to ask you: what was your role as the 
Acting CEO between those dates? Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. I 
was in a dual role. I wasn’t employed by 
the NBCC per se. I continued to be in 
employment of the Government of 
Nunavut at the same time I was also as 
Regional Director for the then Department 
of Sustainable Development in Rankin 
Inlet for the Kivalliq region. So I 
performed a dual role and I travelled back 
and forth between Cape Dorset and Rankin 
Inlet in attending to both of those roles.  
 
As far as my particular role is concerned, it 
was out of the job description of the CEO 
basically to oversee the strategic hiring 
process which was already in place, put in 
place a business plan, which was 
accomplished during the period and liaise 
with the Office of the Auditor General in 
conjunction with my staff at the time and 
bring in the audits which were outstanding 
at the time.  
 
The audits included the March 31, 2002 
and March 31, 2003, both of which were 
clean audits and were brought in during 
that particular time. We also, as a result of 
the audit, received a management letter 
from the Office of the Auditor General and 

 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑐᓐᖓᓱᓪᓕᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᒫᓃᑦᑐᓐ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐳᕋᒃ ᔭᓐᑭᓐᓗ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ 
ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᒐᒃᑯ. ᒪᒥᐊᓇᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ. ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖄᔾᔪᒃᑲᒪ 
ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒧᖓ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ, ᑎᒃᑯᐊᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᕕᓐ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒃᑑᕙ 14, 2003-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᔪᓚᐃ 
12, 2004-ᒧᑦ, ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ 10-ᔭᐃᓐᓇᕐᓄᑦ. 
ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑭᓱᓕᕆᔨᐅᓚᐅᖅᐱᓐ, ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᖢᑎᓐ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖏᑦᑐᖓ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ ᓄᓇᕘᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓄᑦ, ᐊᑕᐅᑦᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒡᒍᑐᖅᓯᒪᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᑐᑭᒧᐊᑦᑎᑦᑎᔨᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ 
ᐃᑯᐱᕝᕕᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓᓐᓂ ᑲᖏᖅᖠᓂᕐᒥ. 
ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥᐅᓄᑦ ᒪᕐᕉᓕᖅᑲᖓᔫᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᔅᓴᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ ᐅᑎᖅᑕᕋᑦᖢᖓ 
ᑭᓐᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑲᖏᖅᖠᓂᕐᒧᑦ. ᐅᐸᒍᑎᑦᖤᑐᒋᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᕕᒋᔭᒃᑲ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᔅᓴᒃᑲ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲ 
ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᖢᖓ ᑲᒪᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᖏᑦ ᐊᑕᑦᑎᐊᕐᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᖅᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᒋᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᐊᓪᓚᕕᖓ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᒍ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᓇᐃᓴᐃᔾᔪᑎᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᒋᑦ.  
 
 
ᒫᑦᓯ 2002, ᒫᑦᓯ 31, 2003-ᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓚᐅᖏᑎᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᐅᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᓐ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖓᓐᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᐅᓯᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒥᔪᒍᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
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that was responded to, to both my 
department at the time and the board of 
directors, with strategies and procedures, 
etcetera, to address the concerns of the 
Auditor General at that time.  
 
And again, it was the first time there was 
really a business plan that I could 
determine. It was a comprehensive 
business plan and had all of the elements of 
a business plan, including our goals, 
objectives, and strategies for accomplishing 
the aims of the corporation or review the 
strategic plan, the financial plan, as well as 
an implementation plan on how to move 
forward with the business plan itself as 
well as the recommendations of the 
Auditor General.  
 
This was followed by a significant beefing 
up, if you will, of the policies of the 
corporation. There were several significant 
policies which were really absent; things 
like terms of reference for various 
committees, the Jurisprudence Committee, 
the Financial Audit Committee, the Policy 
and Planning Committee, etcetera, all of 
these terms of references were beefed up. 
Terms of references were provided to the 
board and they were passed by the board.  
 
This is in addition with sufficient other 
policies that we attended to during that 
period of time. As well I was involved with 
the long search for a CEO and my original 
plan was to be over there for three months 
in the caretaking capacity and that 
stretched, as you already indicated, to ten 
months before we were finally able to 
locate a suitable or apparently suitable 
candidate to replace me at that time. In fact, 
in the business plan, it was noted that one 
of our difficulties that we would encounter 
in terms of risk analysis for NBCC was just 
locating staff in the location that the 
operation was situated in.  

ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᔭᐅᑎᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓂᒃ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᖓᓐᓂ.  
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᑦ ᐃᓗᐃᑦᑑᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᓴᓇᔭᐅᔭᕆᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᔾᔨᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑐᕌᒑᔅᓴᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᐸᓗᖓᐃᔭᐅᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑎᑦᑎᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐅᓴᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᒍᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᕝᕙ ᐱᐅᓯᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᖤᖅᐳᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᒧᑦ. ᐅᓄᑲᓪᓚᑐᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓃᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᓈᓴᖅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᓪᓗ 
ᐱᐅᓯᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎ ᒪᓕᒐᕆᔭᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖓᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᓪᓗ ᐊᓯᖏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᓚᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᕿᓂᑲᑕᑦᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐊᓗᒃ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓂᐊᖅᑐᒥ. 
ᐸᕐᓇᒃᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑦᑐᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ 
ᐱᖓᓱᓄᑦ. ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ 10-ᓄᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖔᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒍ. 
ᕿᓂᓐᓂᑎᓐᓂ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓂᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ, 
ᑭᖑᕝᕕᖅᓯᓂᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ ᐅᕙᓐᓂᒃ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᔅᓴᓂᒃ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒥᔪᖅ ᐊᒃᓱᕉᓴᓐᓇᕆᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓐᓂ 
ᑖᕋᓱᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑐᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᓄᓇᒥ 
ᐅᐸᒍᑎᔪᒪᔪᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᓐ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔨᕕᒋᔭᑦᑎᓐᓂ.  
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So that basically sums it up. There was the 
usual administrative stuff, which is in the 
job description of the CEO, evaluations and 
so forth for staff, procedural changes. One 
additional item was, it was raised by the 
Auditor General, was the, how would I put 
it, the creative set of books, and I don’t 
mean that in a pejorative sense, that were 
being kept. It was basically a set of 
spreadsheets, which any corporation would 
be uncomfortable with.  
 
During that period of time, I put in place a 
new accounting system and set the books 
up under that accounting system. That was 
to run parallel with the existing set of 
books, which was operated by Mr. Jhaveri 
and Lucie Ottokie, who was the 
receptionist at the time who had agreed to 
undertake some preliminary training in that 
accounting system under the mentorship of 
Mr. Jhaveri. I don’t know if any of that was 
followed up on.  
 
I think that answers your question, Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. That’s very detailed 
information and I appreciate that.  
 
When we had some of your successors here 
before us yesterday, they gave their version 
of events as they occurred at the NBCC 
and I was questioning your immediate 
successor, Mr. Orecklin, about some 
comments he made in the management’s 
response to MacKay Landau’s letter of 
April 11.  
 
MacKay Landau had been contracted by 
the NBCC to go in and do some accounting 

 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᐃᓱᓕᑉᐳᑦ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᐱᐅᓯᕆᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᖓ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᓯᖓ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖓᑕ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖓᑕ ᑲᒪᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᖏᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᐃᓚᖓᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓴᓇᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᓐ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᒍᒪᓗᐊᓲᖑᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑎᑎᑯᑖᒃᓯᒪᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓐ. ᓄᑖᒥᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᒥᒃ 
ᐃᓕᓯᓪᓗᑕ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᐅᑉ ᐊᑖᒍᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᓕᒃᓴᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᖓᓂᒃ. ᓘᓯ 
ᐅᑦᑐᕿ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑭᐅᔨᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᖃᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᑎᑦᑕᐅᔪᒪᒐᒥ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᕼᕙᕆᒧᑦ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᑦᑕᐅᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᑭᐅᖅᑰᐸᒃᑲ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᑎᓐ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᐊᓐᑭᔅ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᒪᑦᓯᐊᕐᑐᓂᒃ ᖁᕕᐊᒋᕙᒃᑲ ᐅᖃᕋᕕᑦ.  
 
 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓇᖏᕐᑎᑎᑦ 
ᐃᑉᐸᒃᓴᖅ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ, ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᓂᐅᔪᓂ, 
NBCCᑯᓐᓂ. ᐅᓇ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐃᓇᖏᕐᑎᒋᓚᐅᕐᑕᐃᑦ 
ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐ, ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᕐᑕᕐᓂᑦ ᒪᑲᐃ ᓛᓐᑕᐅᒃᑯᓐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᑲᐃ ᓛᓐᑕᐅ ᑳᓐᑐᓛᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
NBCCᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ 
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but while they were in there, they made 
some other observations that Mr. Orecklin 
took exception to, and in fact, he stated that 
they, therefore, overstepped their 
boundaries defined in the service contract.  
 
One of the management responses to the 
letter were under prior conditions. He says 
when, and this is Mr. Orecklin, these are 
his words, “When the previous Comptroller 
left NBCC, there was effectively no 
accounting system. The bank recollections 
and work papers were missing, and his 
filing system abysmal. The files were in 
shambles and invoices were simply 
missing. We also found complete loan 
application files missing. There was no 
reconciliation of travel, wages or 
honouraria.” But just said that when he 
went in there, you implemented a new 
system and you had Mr. Jhaveri training 
people.  
 
I asked the Auditor General yesterday and 
they indicated that they had gone in and 
they had done a couple of audits, you know 
the usual stuff, they said there was an 
accounting system in place but your 
immediate successor was saying that there 
was no accounting system. How do you 
respond to that, for his comments? These 
are comments that he put in writing to 
MacKay Landau and they also went to the 
board of directors. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again, I think it’s clear that there was an 
accounting system in place because we 
brought two clean audits in for March 31, 
2002 and March 31, 2003. So it was 
certainly up until March 31, 2003 that there 
was an effective accounting system in 

ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕆᐊᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖓᑕᐅᔾᔨᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᑕ ᑳᓐᑐᓛᖏᑦᑕ 
ᐱᓕᕆᓚᐅᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔩᑦ ᑭᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᓯᕗᓪᓖᑦ 
ᐃᓕᖓᓂᕆᓚᐅᕐᑕᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖏᑦ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᒃ 
NBCCᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᓐᓂ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᕐᑕᖃᓚᐅᓐᖏᒪᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᒃᓴᓂᒃ. CIBCᑯᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑭᓕᐅᑐᒃᓴᓄᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓚᐅᕐᒥᒐᑦᑕ ᓇᓂᓯᓪᓗᑕ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᓂᖏᑦ ᓇᓕᒧᑦᑕᐅᓂᖏᓐᓄᓪᓗ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᓚᐅᕋᕕᒡᒎᖅ ᓄᑖᓂᒃ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᒃᓴᓂᑦ, 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ, ᔭᕕᐅᕆᓗ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᖢᓂ ᐊᐱᕆᓚᐅᕋᒃᑯ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᕐᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑕᐃᑯᓐᖓᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕᒎᖅ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᕐᑐᖢᑎᒃ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᕋᔪᒃᑕᖏᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᖔᖓᑕ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐃᓇᖏᕐᑎᕆᓚᐅᕐᑕᐃᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᓂᒡᒎᖅ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᐃᓕᖓᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᐱᑕᖃᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ, 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᕐᒪᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᑦᓱᒪ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᖢᓂᒋᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑎᓯᒪᔭᖏᑦ ᒪᑲᐃ ᓛᓐᑕᐅᒃᑯᑦ. ᑲᑎᒪᔪᓄᓪᓗ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᖓᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ,  
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᓱᓕ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᕐᑐᖅ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓕᖓᔪᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ, ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᕐᑏᓐᓂᒃ ᒫᑦᓯ 31ᒥ, 2003ᒥ 
ᑎᑭᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ. ᒫᑦᓯ 31, 2003ᒥ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑦᓯᐊᕐᑐᓂᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᑕᖃᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ.  
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place.  
 
Again, to reiterate my remark earlier that it 
was not the usual type of accounting 
system, it produced the reports that were 
required, but it was housed on a single 
computer and it was really a collection of 
spreadsheets more than a typical 
accounting system that you might find in a 
typical business. However, it was certainly 
adequate to get these two audits out of the 
way and it was still in place when Mr. 
Orecklin took over in August or July, in the 
summer anyways, of 2004. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin for that explanation. Mr. 
Orecklin also, in his opening comments the 
other day, stated, “It is my opinion that had 
the Auditor General undertaken a similar 
audit at any point in the Corporation’s 
history that their results would have been 
significantly more damning. During my 
tenure, we spent significant time reviewing 
the files, working with our lawyer and 
resurrecting previous work. What was 
found lacking would have been much 
worse had this work not been carried out.” 
 
With a public statement like that in his 
opening comments in front of standing 
committee and the Auditor General the 
other day, he would seem to be pointing the 
finger at his predecessors, which would be 
you and Mr. Sanagan, who was the original 
chief executive officer for what looks like a 
little more than three years. How do you 
respond to those opening comments by Mr. 
Orecklin in his statement? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 

 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓱᓕ ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᕐᑕᒃᑲ ᓱᓕ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᒃᑲ. ᐊᔾᔨᐅᖏᑦᑑᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᕆᐊᖃᕐᑕᕗᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᖅᖢᒋᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᖃᕆᑕᐅᔭᒥ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒥᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓈᓴᐅᓯᕆᔾᔪᓯᕗᓪᓗ ᐃᓕᖓᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔾᔪᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᔾᔪᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᑑᒃ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᐃᓕᖓᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕋᒃᓕᓐ ᐃᓇᖐᒻᒪᓐ, ᐋᒐᔅ ᔪᓚᐃᒥᓘᓐᓃᑦ 2004-
ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᒋᐊᓕᕐᑎᓪᓗᒍ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᕐᓗ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕋᕕᑦ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕋᒃᓕᓐ 
ᐅᒃᑯᐃᕈᑎᖏᓐᓂ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ, ᐃᓱᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᕐᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᕐᓚᐅᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓕᖓᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᖓ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᑐᖅᑯᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓪᓗ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ. 
ᐱᐅᓐᖏᓐᓂᕐᓴᐅᓇᔭᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᑲᔪᓯᔾᔪᑕᐅᒐᔭᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕ, ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᖃᖅᑐᖃᕐᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᒫᓂ ᑭᒃᑯᓕᒫᑦ 
ᑐᓵᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᕐᑏᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. 
ᑎᒃᑯᐊᕐᑐᐃᔫᔭᕐᖢᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐃᓇᖏᕐᑕᒥᓐᓂᒃ, 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᓵᓂᒐᓐᒥᒡᓗ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᐅᑭᐅᓂᒃ ᐱᖓᓱᓂᒃ. ᖃᓄᕐᓕ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑭᐅᓇᔭᕐᐱᐅᖅ, ᐅᒃᑯᐃᕈᑎᒋᓚᐅᕐᑕᖏᓐᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐅᕆᒃᓕᓐ ᐅᖃᕐᑕᖏᓐᓂᒡᓗ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ 
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Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again, we have to bear in mind that Mr. 
Orecklin didn’t have the benefit of a 
comptroller for a significant period of time. 
This is hearsay but I understand it was 
approximately eight months, and I dare say 
he said that the records would fall into 
disarray in the absence of somebody to 
help him for a period of eight months.  
 
In the record it’s clear. We brought in two 
clean audits for 2002 and 2003, and they 
were audited by the Office of the Auditor 
General. The Office of the Auditor General 
did raise some questions and made some 
comments on the procedures that could be 
improved, and those were addressed in 
writing to both the board and to the 
shareholders of Department of Sustainable 
Development at that time.  
 
In further responding to these unusual 
recordkeeping of... again, I’m not trying to 
throw any barbs at Mr. Jhaveri. He had his 
way of doing things and they accomplished 
things. I’m just saying that there are more 
conventional ways in doing things and it is 
for this reason that I installed this other 
accounting system... whether it was Mr. 
Orecklin’s decision to carry on with that, 
and with the mentoring program that I had 
set up with Lucie Ottokie, and that was his 
decision and not mine.  
 
My decision was to put in a more 
conventional accounting system and it 
wasn’t followed up on. That would be the 
responsibility of my successor. I don’t 
think I’ll be getting into any finger pointing 
with respect to my predecessors or my 
successors. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  

ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ.  
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪᓱᓕ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᒃᓕᓐ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐊᑯᓂ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑐᑭᓯᐅᒪᓂᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑕᖅᑭᓂᑦ 8-ᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖃᕐᓗᖓ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓈᒻᒪᖏᑦᑐᓕᕆᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᓂᖓ 
ᐱᑦᑎᐊᖏᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ. ᐊᑯᓂ ᑕᖅᑭᓂᑦ 8-ᓂᑦ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᒍ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕈᑎᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑦ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂ 
ᒪᕐᕈᐃᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᑦ 
ᐱᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᓪᓚᕕᖓᓐᓂ ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᑐᑎᓪᓗ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᓂᑦ. 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒃᓴᖃᖅᕕᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖓᓂᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒧᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑭᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᒍᓗ ᐊᔾᔨᐅᖏᑦᑐᓂ 
ᑐᖅᑯᐃᔾᔪᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᒪᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᓂᑦ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᕼᐅᕗ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᖃᑦᑕᒪᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᓂᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᕋᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᑐᕋᔭᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᒃᓕᓐ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑐᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᑕᐅᖁᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲᓂᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᓪᓗᑎᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲᓕ ᑖᐅᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᑦ 
ᑭᖑᓂᐊᒍᓪᓗ ᑕᑯᓂᐊᖅᐸᑦᑐᒋᑦ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᒃᑲ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐃᓇᖏᖅᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᓇᖏᖅᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
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Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin for the answer. You may 
not want to get into finger pointing but 
your successor didn’t seem to have a 
problem because he’s clearly made a 
couple of veiled comments about the 
people that came before him.  
 
You mentioned Mr. Jhaveri a couple of 
times already and you were there for ten 
months while he was there. What was your 
working relationship with him? He was 
obviously the comptroller and you’re the 
CEO. The way of thinking that I have 
about financial people is that they’re 
essentially the people that say, “The buck 
stops here.” They have to advice the CEOs 
or other staff that this is allowed under 
accounting policies or any other policy.  
 
Did Mr. Jhaveri have good command of the 
policies? Was he able to offer you good 
advice, and then if he didn’t, was it 
something that he should have done for 
you? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again, when I first attended the board 
meeting in October 2003, there was 
voluminous information provided and 
sometimes you can baffle people by 
providing them with too much information. 
I think that might have been one of Mr. 
Jhaveri’s problems.  
 
I know that during the process of the board 
meeting, the people were flipping through 
their binders and none of the pages were 
numbered. We spent more time trying to 
find the page that was being referred to 
than we did talking about the actual 
information that was contained on the page. 

 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᑭᐅᒐᕕᑦ. ᐃᒻᒪᖃ 
ᑎᒃᑯᐊᖅᑐᐃᔪᒪᒐᔭᖏᑐᒃᓴᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅᑐᑎᑦ 
ᐃᓇᖏᖅᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᓐᓂᑦ ᕿᓯᐊᓂ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᕐᖓᑕ 
ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᐅᓗᐊᖅᑑᓐᓂ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᒪᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᒪᐅᖅᑐᒡᒎᖅ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐅᖃᒪᐅᕋᕕᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ ᒪᕐᕈᐃᑕᖅᖢᓂ ᑕᖅᑭᓂᑦ 
ᖁᓕᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᒪᐅᕐᒪᑦ. ᖃᓄᕐᓕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᐱᐅᒃ? ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᒋᔭᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔩᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᓄᖅᑲᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᑦ 
ᐊᑖᓂ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᓪᓗ.  
 
 
 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓂᖃᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓂᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᓂᓪᓗ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓂᕐᐸᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓐᓂᖏᑉᐸᓘᓐᓃᑦ? ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓘᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᖅᐸ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᓱᓕ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᐊᑦᑑᕙ 2003-ᒥᑦ ᑕᐃᑯᖓᕆᐅᕋᒪ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᓴᕈᑎᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᕐᖢᑎ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ, ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᓇᓗᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᓲᖑᒐᑦᑕ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓗ ᐊᒥᓲᔭᕌᖓᑕ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓ.  
 
 
 
 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᓚᐅᕋᒃᑯ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᓵᖏᓐᓃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐊᓕᓪᓚᔪᓂᑦ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᓂᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓪᓗᐊᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᕿᓂᕐᓂᕆᔭᕗ 
ᐊᓕᓚᔪᓂᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
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So one of the things that I advised Mr. 
Jhaveri to do was to cut the level of 
information he was providing in terms of 
detail and stick to the more essential items; 
little things like indexing information 
behind tabs, numbering pages and that sort 
of stuff. As simple as it sounds, it would 
have helped significantly in terms of 
information output that he provided.  
 
In terms of our relationship, our 
relationship was that of 
employer/employee. I did have some 
concerns with respect to Mr. Jhaveri and 
the matter in which he was conducting his 
business, his accounting system and so on 
and so forth.  
 
This was communicated to him in writing 
in an evaluation process, so that stands in 
the files. This was shared with Mr. 
Orecklin, my successor, of my concerns. In 
fact, Mr. Orecklin participated in an 
evaluation, my last evaluation of Mr. 
Jhaveri, in the summer of 2004. So Mr. 
Orecklin was abundantly familiar with my 
concerns with respect to Mr. Jhaveri’s 
performance. The evaluation report was an 
extensive report and it was a no holds 
barred report. I acknowledged his strengths 
but I also pointed out the shortcomings and 
suggested areas in which he could improve. 
 
We had a good working relationship but 
sometimes I had to shoehorn the 
information out of Mr. Jhaveri. He could be 
a little bit reticent to come forward with 
information. But in the end, I was always 
able to get the information I needed. 
Sometimes I had to at least state that in 
little simpler terms for my board but other 
than that, I managed to get the job done 
with his assistance. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 

 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᓚᖓᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᑎᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᒥᒃᓕᒋᐊᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᖁᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓴᐃᔭᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᐃᒻᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᖁᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᓈᓴᐅᓯᖅᓱᕐᓗᒋᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᖃᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᓂ ᐃᑲᔫᑕᐅᒐᔭᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᑐᓴᕈᑎᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᖅᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ  
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓪᓗᒍᓗᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᒌᓐᓂᕗᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᕐᓗ ᐃᓚᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᕐᕕᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖓ 
ᐱᓪᓗᒍ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᔾᔪᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᖓᓂᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᖅᑯᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐᓗ, ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓂᖏᖅᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐ 
ᐃᓚᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖓᓂ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ 2004 ᐊᐅᔭᖓᓂ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᒃᑲᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ 
ᐊᖏᔫᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖑᔪᖅ 
ᐃᓗᐃᒃᑲᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᐃᓕᑕᖅᓯᔾᔪᑎᖃᑦᖢᑎᒃ ᓱᓕᔫᔪᓂᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᓚᖏᓪᓗ ᐋᖅᑭᐹᓪᓕᕈᑎᒋᔭᕆᐊᖃᑦᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒌᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᓂᒃ ᐱᕕᒋᓇᓱᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ 
ᖃᐃᖁᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑐᓴᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᒃ ᐱᓇᓱᒃᕕᒋᕙᑦᖢᒍ 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᑦᑕᒃᑲᓂᒃ. ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᑎᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᖁᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒪ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᒥᓂ ᐱᐊᓂᒃᓯᔪᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin for that answer. 
Yesterday, we heard from Mr. Jhaveri that 
I’ll read the statement of his comments. He 
said, “Miles knew that I was pretty 
uncomfortable with the working style, 
knowledge and judgment that Miles 
exhibited,” Miles was the investment 
manager, “I didn’t agree with the way 
things were going. It would wipe out years 
of hard work and it would put NBCC back 
into deficit.  
 
Before these two joined, NBCC had wiped 
out a $1 million deficit and reduced non-
performing loans to a trickle. I was getting 
into conflicts with what was being done 
and what was proposed to be done. Both of 
them felt like being kept in line by me 
which I knew I had to do in order to 
continue the progress of the NBCC. What a 
terrible waste of time and resource it is if 
we all had to do was keep a few people in 
check and not being able to focus our skills 
and energies on sustainable growth, 
progress, and development.”  
 
With that type of statement, it seemed like 
there was a real combative relationship and 
Mr. Jhaveri’s the comptroller. He feels like 
he was trying to, having to keep the 
investment manager and the CEO in line, 
and they were working at odds with him 
and not respecting his role as comptroller.  
 
When you were CEO for that period of 
time, did you feel like Mr. Jhaveri was 
trying to keep you in line from doing what 
your job was as the Acting CEO and to 
keep the NBCC from delivering their loan 
programs to Nunavummiut? Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ ᑭᐅᒐᕕᓐ. ᐃᑉᐸᔅᓴᖅ ᑐᓴᓚᐅᕐᕋᑦᑕ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᕚᕆᒥᒃ, ᐅᖃᓕᒫᓐᓂᐊᕐᐸᒃᑲ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖏᑦ, 
“ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓕᓚᐅᕐᕋᒪ ᑐᓐᖓᓱᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖏᓐᓇᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᒻᒥᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐲᖅᑕᐅᒐᔭᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕉᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᔪᑦ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓂ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᓚᐅᖏᓐᓂᑎᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐲᔭᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
$1,000,000-ᓂᒃ ᐊᑭᓕᒃᓴᒥᒃ ᐲᖅᓰᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᑦᖢᓂ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔾᔪᑎᔅᓴᓂᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕝᕕᒋᓕᓚᐅᕐᕋᒃᑭᓐ ᐱᐊᓂᒐᓱᒃᖢᒋᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᖁᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᑉᐱᒍᓱᓕᓚᐅᕐᕋᒪ ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᓐ ᐃᖢᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓲᕐᓗ ᓱᕙᓕᑭᐊᓪᓚᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐱᐅᖏᑦᖢᑎᒃ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓚᖏᓪᓗ ᐱᑕᖃᕆᐊᓖᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᑎᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᖃᑦᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᑐᓗᖅᑕᕈᑎᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑎᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆᐅᑉ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᓴᓪᓗᔪᖅ ᖃᐅᔨᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒪᒍ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒌᑦᑐᑎᒃ 
ᑐᓗᖅᑕᕈᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ.  
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᑲᐃᓐᓇᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᐃᑉᐱᒍᓱᓚᐅᖅᐲᓐ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ 
ᓄᖅᑲᑦᑎᓯᒪᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᐱᓯᐅᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᑦᑲᖏᓐᓃᒃ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᖁᓐᖏᑦᖢᒍ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᓄᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We never had a combative relationship, 
Mr. Jhaveri and me and if I had concerns 
with Mr. Jhaveri, I expressed them to him. 
So as I’ve already indicated, I expressed 
that to him in writing and also in the 
presence of Mr. Orecklin. 
 
Sometimes as I’ve said before, I had to 
work that out a little harder perhaps than I 
felt I needed to get the information out of 
Mr. Jhaveri. But in the end, I was always 
able to get the information that I needed. 
We parted in spite of my rather pointed 
criticisms in the evaluation report but that 
we parted good friends. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. I think we’ve all been in 
a situation where we disagree with our 
accountants. That’s no puns intended, but 
that’s our role and I understand that. They 
play a valuable role in our daily and 
professional lives.  
 
In your opinion, Mr. Jhaveri was a 
qualified accountant. After all, he went 
through two audits. You were able to 
understand the financial system but in a 
normal course of business, you 
communicated to him about the kind of 
information that you needed to do your job 
and the kind of information that the NBCC 
required to do their job. He was also able to 
put the information together and allow the 
Auditor General of Canada to come in and 
complete their audits, the audits that 
ultimately come to the Legislative 
Assembly. Could you comment on that? 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑐᓗᖅᑕᕈᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒌᑦᑎᓪᓗᑕ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᕈᒪᓕ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆᒥᒃ 
ᐅᖃᐅᑎᓇᔭᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᖢᓂ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᒍ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ ᐊᒃᓱᕈᓐᓂᖅᓴᐅᓗᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᑐᓴᖅᕕᒋᓇᓱᒃᖢᒍᓗ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕉᑎᒋᓪᓗ ᐱᕕᒋᓇᓱᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᕋᒃᑯ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᑦᑕᒃᑲ ᐲᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᒃᑲ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓲᕐᓗ ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔪᕐᓗᒍ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒌᖏᑦᑑᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑕ ᓲᖃᐃᒻᒪ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒌᑦᑑᓪᓗᑕ. 
ᐃᔪᓐᓇᕋᓱᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᕐᒪᑦ ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒌᑦᑎᐊᙱᕈᖢᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᒡᓗᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒌᒃᖢᓂ ᖃᐅᑕᒫᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ.  
 
ᐃᕕᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᑦᑎᐊᖑᓐᓂᕐᐹ? ᒪᕐᕈᐊᖅᑕᕐᖢᓂ 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᕐᓂᖅᑕᖃᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᖕᒪ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᖢᓂ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᔪᒪᔭᑎᑦ ᐱᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᐱᒌᑦ? ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑐᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᒥ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ 
ᑲᑎᕐᓱᐃᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᖅᑎ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑎᑭᓐᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, 
ᑕᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᖓᑕ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᒋᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᓐᓇᕐᐱᐅᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Just as you were speaking, Mr. Peterson, I 
didn’t quite finish, quite answer the 
previous question which was: did I feel I 
was under watch, if you will, by Mr. 
Jhaveri? The answer is no, I never felt as if 
I was being monitored or any of that sort of 
thing.  
 
Perhaps, it might be a little clearer in terms 
of your current question to recognize that I, 
myself, am an accountant, so therefore or 
perhaps, communication between me and 
Mr. Jhaveri would be better than it might 
be for somebody that wasn’t an accountant. 
So I was able to claw through some of Mr. 
Jhaveri’s information and make sense of it, 
whereas somebody that didn’t have the 
same professional background might have 
had difficulty.  
 
I might go on to say that for my 
background as a professional accountant, I 
would naturally know some of the dos and 
don’ts with respect to what I should be 
doing in terms of a CEO, or as an 
employee of a company, and so on and so 
forth. So it would be less likely that Mr. 
Jhaveri would have to bring me to task, if 
you will, for defending various run-of-the-
mill rules of accounting or the Financial 
Administration Act and so forth.  
 
So in that term, as I have already said and 
this is a qualified comment, I’m qualified 
again, Mr. Jhaveri’s accounting system was 
basically a group of spreadsheets and the 
spreadsheets did do the job but they 
weren’t the type of accounting system that 
I felt comfortable with. They did the job 
because we did get two clean audits during 
that period of time.  

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔮᓐᑲᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ 
ᑭᐅᓪᓚᕆᖅᑲᐅᙱᓐᓇᒃᑯ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᐸᖅ. 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᕐᓱᖅᑕᐅᖅᑰᔨᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒐᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕘᓕᒧᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᓚᐅᖅᑐ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᖅᑎᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᖅᑕᕋ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ. ᐅᕙᖓᓗ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᖕᒥᒐᒪ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐅᕙᖓᓗ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᕼᐅᕗᕆᓗ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᖃᑎᒌᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᕐᓴᐅᒍᑦᑕ 
ᐱᐅᓂᕐᓴᐅᒐᔭᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓐᓂᕈᒪ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᕘᕆᐅᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᙱᓪᓗᓂ 
ᐊᔪᕐᓇᕐᓂᖅᓴᐅᓇᔭᖅᑐᒃᓴᐅᔪᕕᓂᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᙱᑐᓪᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒐᔭᕋᒃᑭᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᑎᓪᓗᖓ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᓄᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕘᕆ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐊᑐᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᐃᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ, 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐅᖃᕆᐊᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᖏᑦ ᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑕᑭᔪᑯᑖᕈᓗᖕᓂ 
ᐊᑐᖅᓱᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. ᐊᑲᐅᒋᔭᖕᓂᒡᓗ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑰᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᖢᒍ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᒥᓂᐅᕗᖅ ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᒐᒥ 
ᒪᕐᕈᐊᖅᑕᕐᖢᓂ ᑲᔪᓯᓂᖃᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᖕᒪᑦ. 
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The system could be improved upon and I 
did note that this was a difficult area, and I 
did put into place in tandem with the 
existing accounting system another 
electronic system which I suggested would 
be more appropriate. It was up to my 
successor to either go with that accounting 
system or to carry with Mr. Jhaveri’s 
accounting system. I hope that answers the 
question, Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. I think you’re providing 
us with some very good information. Mr. 
Orecklin did make a statement in his 
opening comments about the Auditor 
General would have found things to be in 
worse conditions had they done it at any 
other point in time. He also commented 
that and he said in the management 
response to MacKay Landau that the 
accounting system was in shambles which, 
clearly, they weren’t.  
 
So it’s important for us to identify a period 
of time where things were relatively safely 
and adequately run. I mean there’s always 
room for improvement in any organization. 
I’ve never met an auditor, though I’ve been 
through quite a few audits over my career, 
who couldn’t find something to 
recommend improving. Even if they had 
been there three years before and done the 
three audits, they always used to find 
something in the current year that they 
could have recommended two years earlier, 
which they didn’t. It’s just the nature of the 
profession, I think.  
 
That’s good that you made some 
recommendations on improving and the 
system was working well when you left 

 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᐃᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᖓ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᐊᓯᐊᒍᑦ ᐊᓯᐊᒎᖓᔪᓂᒃ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑰᖅᑎᓂᒃ 
ᓈᒻᒪᖕᓂᕐᓴᐅᔪᒥᓇᖅᑐᓂᒃ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑭᖑᕝᕕᖅᑎᕋ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐊᑐᕈᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᕼᐅᕗᕆ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᑐᓴᕈᒥᓇᕈᓘᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᒪᑐᐃᕐᓯᒋᐊᓕᕐᖢᓂ 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᓇᓂᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᑦ 
ᐱᐅᙱᓐᓂᕐᓴᑦᑎᐊᒻᒪᕆᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᕋᕐᖢᓂᒋᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, 
ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᓚᐅᕆᓪᓗᓂ ᒪᑲᐃ ᓛᓐᑕᐅᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᖏᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᓛ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᓚᐅᙱᒻᒪᑖ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᑕᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᔪᐊᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕᒎᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᖑᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᐃᓛ ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᐱᕈᓐᓇᖅᐹᓪᓕᕈᓐᓇᕐᕕᖃᖅᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖕᒪᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᒐᒪ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᖏᑦᑐᓂ ᑭᓱᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕈᑎᒃᓴᐅᔭᐃᓐᓇᕐᒪᑕ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐱᖓᓱᓄᑦ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᓄᑦ ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᒐᒥ ᓇᓂᒃᖤᕋᒥᐅᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᒃᖤᕋᒥᐅᒃ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᕐᖢᓂᐅᒃ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᐊᕐᕌᒍ 
ᓯᕗᓂᐊᓂ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐄ, ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᔪᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᖀᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᓰᑦ 
ᓄᖅᑲᓕᕈᕕᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᕐᓃᑦ 
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and well enough for the Auditor General to 
do her work.  
 
I wanted to ask you about your relationship 
to the chairperson of the board and the 
board of directors. You had mentioned that 
you put in place a strategic plan and you 
worked on policies. How was your 
relationship during those ten months with 
the chairperson and the board of directors? 
How did you interact on a daily basis? 
How did you present information to their 
board meetings? How did you carry out 
their decisions of the board of directors and 
the chairperson? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
had a good relationship with my board. I 
went in and I saw the types of information 
that they were receiving. I think I improved 
the level and quality of the information that 
was moving forward and I brought the 
information out to them in a sufficient time 
for them to make appropriate decisions 
based on the information.  
 
They were supportive of me in my work. 
When I brought items forward, they 
discussed them in a fulsome fashion. They 
sometimes had recommendations for 
changes, but by in large, they were happy 
with the work that I was doing in terms of 
the way they communicated it to me.  
 
I did not do a strategic plan per se as there 
was already a strategic plan in place. What 
I did provide was a business plan to 
implement the broad outline of the strategic 
plan, together with an implementation plan 
to go with that business plan.  
 
So I actually had a supportive board and I 

ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᖢᑎᒡᓗ. 
 
 
 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᔪᒪᖅᑲᐅᔭᕋᓕᐅᓇ, ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑎᐊᖃᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᕐᐱᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᒥᓐ, 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓᓐᓂᖕ? ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᑭᒧᐊᒍᑏᑦ ᐸᕐᖕᓇᐅᑎᖏᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓪᓗ ᖁᓕᓂᒃ 
ᑕᖅᑭᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᒃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒋᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᐱᐅᖕ? ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᐅᑕᒫᑦ 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᖃᑎᒋᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᐱᐅᒃ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᖃᑦᑕᓕᕐᐱᓪᓕ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᑲᒪᒋᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᐱᒋᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ ᐊᖅᑯᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ, 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒋᑦᓯᐊᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔭᒃᑲ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔭᖏᑦ ᑕᑯᓚᐅᕐᖢᒋᑦ 
ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᕐᑎᑦᓚᐅᕐᖢᒋᓪᓗ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᕕᖃᕐᑎᒋᐊᕐᖢᒋᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᑐᓂᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔭᒃᑲ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᓱᐃᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ ᐅᕙᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᓂᖔᒐᒃᑭᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ, 
ᑕᐃᒪᑦᑎᐊᖑᓚᐅᕐᑐᓐ. ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᒐᐃᓪᓗ ᒪᑯᐊ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕆᐊᕈᑏᑦ ᐱᐅᓯᕚᓪᓕᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᑦᑎᐊᖃᑎᒋᓚᐅᕐᖢᒋᑦ 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᖃᑎᒌᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕋᓐᓄᖕ.  
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᒍᑏᑦ ᐸᕐᖕᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᖔᓚᐅᕋᒪ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᓂᐊᕐᑐᓐ ᐸᕐᖕᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ, 
ᐊᑐᓕᕐᑎᑕᐅᔪᒃᓴᓂᒃ, ᐃᓗᓕᖃᐅᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᒍᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑐᓕᕐᑎᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᖕᓇᐅᑎᓂᖕ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᓯᒪᒋᓪᓗᖓ.  
 
ᐄ, ᐃᑲᔪᕐᓱᐃᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ, 
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worked well with Mr. Hanson, who was the 
chair at the time, and I can’t have any 
complaints about the board whatsoever. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin for that answer. The 
Auditor General’s Report indicated that 
board skills and training were lacking. 
Could you perhaps, give us an insight into 
the kinds of skills you think that the NBCC 
Board of Directors required to effectively 
perform their duties? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Boards of directors can always use 
additional development. This is true of the 
NBCC Board, my own board, and the 
boards of Fortune 500 companies. 
 
As far as the NBCC Board is concerned, 
any board has really only three duties. 
Number one is set the strategic plan, which 
had already been done. As I said, I wrote 
the business plan to underline the strategic 
plan but the board had already done the 
strategic planning itself.  
 
Their second duty is to hire/fire, evaluate, 
and compensate the CEO, who is then 
responsible for bringing the strategic plan 
into fruition. Both of those duties are pretty 
straightforward and were performed well 
by my board. I should point out that they 
didn’t have full control over hiring/firing 
and compensating the evaluations of the 
CEO because of the structure of Crown 
corporations that the shareholders 
sometimes has some say in that area.  

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒋᑦᓯᐊᓚᐅᕐᖢᒍᓗ ᒥᔅᑕ ᕼᐊᓐᓴᓐ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᐅᒃ 
ᐅᖃᐱᓘᑎᒃᓴᖃᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖔᕐᒃᑐᓄᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ. 
  
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᕐᖢᒍ ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ ᑭᐅᓵᕐᒪᓐ. 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᕐᑏᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓯᒪᑦᓯᐊᓐᖏᓗᐊᕐᓂᕋᕐᖢᓂᒋᑦ ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᕐᐱᐅᒃ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᓪᓗᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᖏᓐᓄᑦ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ, 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖁᑎᒃᑲ ᐊᒻᒪ 
500-ᓄᑦ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᓄᑦ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᑐᐃᓐᓇᐃᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᕈᑏᑦ 
ᐸᕐᖕᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᖤᖅᐳᑦ. 
ᐱᔭᕇᕇᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᔪᒃᓴᐃᓪᓗ 
ᐸᕐᖕᓇᐅᑎᖏᑦ, ᑐᑭᒧᐊᒍᑏᓪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᐱᔭᕇᕐᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ.  
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑎᑖᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᓂᒃᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒡᓗ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᑐᒥᒃ 
ᑕᕝᕗᖓ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᒧᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᕐᑎᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᕈᑏᑦ. ᐄ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᔪᒪᕗᖓ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑎᑖᕐᑎᑦᓯᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐊᓂᑦᑎᓂᕐᒥᒡᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓴᑎᑦᓯᓂᕐᒥᒡᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓪᓗᐊᕈᓐᓇᓚᕆᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓐ.  
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The area where this board and other boards 
really need their further input, further 
development, as well as their third duty 
which is in monitoring what is going on, 
and part of that monitoring process 
involves the financial acumen, if you will. I 
don’t mean that people need to be 
accountants or anything of that nature, but 
little things like ratio analysis on both 
income statements and balance sheets are 
very productive things for the board of 
directors to understand. I could certainly 
see some need for improvement in this 
particular area.  
 
In our February 2004 meeting, we began 
the process of bringing the board up to 
speed or more so up to speed in terms of 
the financial monitoring duties. I think we 
spent half a day, or perhaps, a full day, I’m 
not sure how long it was, on just basically 
reading financial statements in terms of 
what does this ratio means, or what does 
that ratio mean, or what does this signal in 
terms of an unhealthy trend or a healthy 
trend for that matter.  
 
Yes, they required some additional work in 
terms of that third duty that I mentioned 
and that work had begun in February of 
2004 when I was there. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. When you mention the 
third duty, monitoring, and in particular, an 
emphasis on reading financial statements, 
was that necessary to read the financial 
statements of the NBCC or to read 
financial statements for loan applicants 
when they were submitted to the board for 
review and consideration? Thank you, Mr. 

 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᓯᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ 
ᐃᓚᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᓪᓗᐊᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᐱᖓᔪᒋᔭᖓᓂ 
ᓇᐅᑦᓯᕐᑎᐅᓂᕐᒥᓐ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᐅᑦᓯᕐᑐᖅᑎᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᖏᑦ, ᐃᓛᒃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓪᓚᕆᐊᓗᒋᐊᑐᓐᖏᑦᑑᓐ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᑲᒪᓂᐊᕈᑎᖕ. ᓲᕐᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐃᓯᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐋᖅᑭᐅᒪᔾᔪᑎᖏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᐅᒪᔭᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᐅᓗᐊᓲᖑᒻᒪᓐ. ᐄ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᐅᑉ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕈᒥᓇᕐᑐᓐ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᕕᕝᕗᐊᕆ 2004-ᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᑕ, ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᓇᐅᑦᓯᕐᑐᖅᑎᐅᓂᕐᒧᓐ 
ᑲᒪᑎᒃᑲᓐᓂᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔭᒃᑲ ᐅᓪᓘᑉ ᓇᑉᐸᒐᓂ, 
ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒫᕐᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᒪᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ. 
ᐅᖃᓕᒫᖅᖢᑎᒃᑯ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂ, 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᑦ. ᖃᓄᕐᓗ ᐅᓇ ᑐᑭᖃᒻᒪᖔ 
ᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᑎᓪᓗᒍ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᕈᓘᔭᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᑲᑕᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑑᒻᒪᖔ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᐱᖓᔪᒋᓪᓗᓂᐅᒃ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᕆᔭᐅᒻᒪᑦ. ᕖᕗᐊᕆ 2004-ᒥ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᖅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐᓗ. ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᓐ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐱᖓᔪᖓᓐ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖓᓐ ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖅ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ 
ᐅᖃᓕᒫᕈᓐᓇᓂᕐᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᑯᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐅᖃᓕᒫᕈᓐᓇᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᑉᐲᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᖅᑖᕈᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑕᑕᑎᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐅᖃᓕᒫᕈᓐᓇᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᑐᑭᖃᑉᐸ? 
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Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It 
was there for both reasons. First of all, the 
primary responsibilities were in monitoring 
the financial health of the company, along 
with the implementation of the business 
plan. So they needed to be able to read the 
financial statements of the NBCC and feel 
comfortable that it was heading in the right 
direction in terms of its financial health.  
 
Furthermore, because they did receive 
recommendations for loan applications and 
they needed to be able to look with a 
jaundice eye, if you will, at the 
recommendations, and they needed to be 
able to look at the financial data that a 
company did these loan applications, and 
say, “Yes, I can agree with the 
recommendation,” or “No, I have some 
concerns.”  
 
For example, a simple calculation of the 
number of days of accounts receivable and 
in the accounts receivable is a very simple 
way of determining the financial health of a 
corporation. If it’s 45 or 60 days in the 
accounts receivable, then that’s probably 
healthy. But if it’s 120 or 150 days tied up 
in accounts receivable, then you know 
there’s cash flow problems some place.  
 
So we’re not talking about rocket science 
here; we’re talking very simple calculations 
which can be done to determine both the 
health of NBCC, and more importantly, the 
advisability of investing money in some of 
the loans that would be recommended by 
staff. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  

ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᒪᒃᑮᓐᓄ. ᓯᕗᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᓪᓗᐊᑕᖓ 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᐃᓂᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᑯᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖏᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᑦ 
ᐅᖃᓕᒫᕈᓐᓇᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖁᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐊᑮᑦᑐᑖᕈᒪᔪᑦ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒍᓐᓇᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓂᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔪᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑉᐸᓂᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖁᑎᖏᑕ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᐄ, ᑕᒪᒃᑮᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᐊᕌᓪᓚᓚᐅᖅᑐᓂᔾᔪᒃ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕋᔭᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐊᖏᓪᓗᓂᐅᒃ ᐋᒡᒑᕐᓗᓂᐅᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐃᓯᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓴᐃᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓕᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑲᑉᐸᓂᐅᔪᓄᑦ. 
45-ᓄᑦ 60-ᓄᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐅᓪᓗᓄᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᒪᔪᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᐅᔪᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 120 150 ᐅᓪᓗᓄᑦ ᑭᖑᕙᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᐸᑦ 
ᐊᑭᓕᒃᓴᐃᔭᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓃᕋᔭᖅᑐᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᓛᒃ ᓯᓚᑐᔪᖅᔪᐊᕐᒪᕆᐊᓘᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᕐᓗᓂ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᑐᑭᓯᔪᓐᓇᕆᐊᓖᑦ. ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᓪᓗ ᐱᕈᔅᓴᐃᔪᓐᓇᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᑎᒍᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐊᑮᑦᑐᖅᑖᕈᒪᔪᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
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Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. When you were a lawyer 
at NBCC, how many employees were 
working there, and specifically, did they 
have an investment manager that was 
overseeing the loan portfolio? Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We had a staff of three, including myself. 
There was myself, Raj Jhaveri, who was 
the comptroller, and then we had Lucie 
Ottokie, who was the new receptionist. 
There was no investment manager at that 
particular time. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. Who was working with 
the clients? How did you deliver the NBCC 
loan program across Nunavut if you only 
had three staff; one was a comptroller of 
the organization, one would be the CEO, 
yourself, and then Lucie, who was more 
like an administrative individual? How did 
you receive loan applications and do the 
necessary due diligence to present them to 
the board of directors for their 
consideration? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Certainly, even with the full complement of 
staff to deliver the program, it would be a 
challenge. I’ll just give you a quick 
example. In order to do a day’s work of 
business, say in Cambridge Bay, you 
would leave Cape Dorset on a Sunday, 

 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔨᓐᑭᓐᓗ. ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓂ ᓄᓇᕘᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᖏᓐᓃᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᖃᑦᓯᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸᓐ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ. 
ᕿᑐᓐᖏᐅᑎᑦᑎᔨᒦᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒥᒃ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑦᑐᖃᓚᐅᖅᐹ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᕆᔭᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᑲᒪᔨᐅᔪᒥᒃ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᐱᖓᓲᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ, ᐅᕙᖓᓗ. ᐅᕙᖓ, ᕌᔾ, ᔭᕚᕆ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒋᔭᐅᑦᖤᐳᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓘᓯ ᐅᑦᑐᕿ, 
ᑭᐅᔨᐅᑦᖤᖅᐳᖅ, ᕿᑐᓐᖏᐅᑎᑦᑎᔨᒥᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒥᒃ 
ᐱᑕᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. ᑭᓇ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᐸ, ᑭᓇ 
ᑲᒪᔨᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᐸ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᖅᑖᕈᒪᔪᓂᒃ? 
ᐱᖓᓱᐃᓐᓇᑯᓘᑎᓪᓗᓯ ᐃᓚᖓᓪᓗ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᓚᖓᓗ ᐃᕝᕕᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ, ᓘᓯᓗ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥᖃᐃ ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔨᐅᓪᓗᓂ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᖅᑖᕈᒪᔪᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖏᑦ 
ᑭᐊᑉ ᑲᒪᒋᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᐸᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑭᓇᒧᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᐸᓐ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᖃᑦᑕᑲᓚᐅᖅᐸ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᖏᓐ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᕗᑦ ᓈᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᕋᓗᐊᖅᐸᑕ 
ᐊᔪᓐᓇᖅᑑᒐᓚᒐᔭᖅᑐᖅ. ᓲᕐᓗ ᐆᑦᑑᑎᖃᓪᓗᖓ, 
ᐅᓪᓗᓕᒫᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᐊᕐᕈᑦᑕ ᐃᖃᓗᒃᑑᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥ 
ᓲᕐᓗ ᐊᐅᓚᕆᐊᖃᕋᔭᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓂ ᓈᑦᑎᐅᖑᔭᕐᒥ, 
ᓯᓂᒃᑕᖤᖅᐳᑎᑦ ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓂ, ᓇᒡᒐᔾᔭᐅᒥ 



 26 

overnight in Iqaluit, on Monday over to 
Yellowknife, you overnight in 
Yellowknife, on Tuesday you would go up 
to Cambridge Bay, do your business on 
Wednesday, back to Yellowknife on the 
Thursday, overnight in Yellowknife, back 
to Iqaluit on Friday, overnight in Iqaluit; 
there’s no plane on Saturday and the next 
plane is on Sunday; and then you’re back 
home.  
 
So eight days, given the current location of 
the facility, eight days to do one day’s 
worth of business. There’s no question that 
there’s a significant, unequivocal and 
categorical logistics challenge to delivering 
the program across Nunavut. Having said 
that, and against those difficulties with 
even under a full staff that you’re going to 
run into.  
 
The loan applications continue to come in. 
I think there’s lot of room for expansion of 
the loan portfolio at NBCC. You can just 
witness Atuqtuarvik Corporation as an 
example because they started after NBCC 
and they have a loan portfolio of between 
$60 million and $80 million. The need is 
certainly there and they’re restricted in 
terms of who they can lend money to as 
well, which NBCC doesn’t have the same 
restrictions. 
 
I didn’t do very much marketing. I still 
didn’t have the time the marketing in 
between my other duties carrying on as 
director in the Kivalliq region. The loan 
applications still came through because 
there is a need in Nunavut for the type of 
service that NBCC provides, and I don’t 
want the committee to be left with any 
doubt about that. Some improvement to 
NBCC is certainly required. 
 
I had the advantage that, perhaps, others 
didn’t of having a strong accounting 

ᔭᓗᓇᐃᕝᒨᓐᖓᐅᖤᐳᑎᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᓯᓂᒃᑕᕐᖤᕐᐳᑎᓐ, 
ᐊᐃᑉᐹᓂ ᐃᖃᓗᒃᑑᑦᑎᐊᕐᒨᕐᓗᑎ, ᐱᖓᔪᐊᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑕᕐᖤᕐᐳᑎᑦ ᔭᓗᓇᐃᕝᒧᑦ ᐅᑎᑦᖤᐳᑎᑦ 
ᑎᓴᒻᒥᕐᒥ ᓯᓂᒃᑕᓚᐅᕐᓗᑎᓐ ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓄᐊᖤᕐᐳᑎᑦ 
ᐅᓪᓗᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᓕᕐᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᓯᓂᒃᑕᕐᖤᕆᕗᑎᓐ 
ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓂ, ᖃᖓᑕᓲᖃᖃᑦᑕᓐᖏᒻᒪᓐ ᓇᒡᒐᔾᔭᐅᒥ, 
ᓯᕙᑖᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᖃᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᐃᓛᖕ, ᓴᓇᑦᑕᐃᓕᐅᓕᕐᐸᑦ 
ᖃᖓᑕᓲᖅᑕᖃᖅᖤᖅᐳᖅ ᐊᖏᕐᕋᖤᖅᐳᑎᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
8 ᐅᓪᓗᓄᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓇᕐᑐᖅ 
ᐅᓪᓗᐃᓐᓇᑯᓗᖕᒥᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᐊᕐᓗᓂ ᑕᐅᕙᓂ. ᐄ, 
ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᑐᓚᐅᕐᑐᖕ, ᓄᓇᕘᓕᒫᒥ 
ᑲᒪᔨᐅᓇᓱᒃᖢᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖅᑲᐅᑎᓪᓗᖓ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᖑᒐᓗᐊᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑏᑦ 
ᓈᒪᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᐸᑕ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᖅᑖᕈᒪᔪᑦ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᕈᔪᖏᑦ 
ᑎᑭᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᓐᓇᓗ 
ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖅ $60 ᒥᓕᐊᑦ $80 ᒥᓕᐊᓂᑦ 
ᑲᒪᒐᔭᕐᑐᓐ. ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᑏᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᑭᒡᓕᓕᐅᕐᑕᐅᓯᒪᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᖅᑖᕈᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᕿᓂᓗᐊᕌᓗᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐱᓕᕆᓪᓗᖓ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔨᐅᓂᕐᓂ. 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓱᓕ ᑕᑕᑎᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑎᑭᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑐᓐ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᑕᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᓐ ᓄᓇᕘᑉ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ. ᐱᔨᒃᓯᕐᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᖢᑕᓗ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᑕᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᓪᓚᕆᒃᑐᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓪᓗᖓ, ᐱᓯᓂᔅᓕᕆᔨᐅᓂᕐᒥᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᖅᓯᒪᓪᓚᕆᒋᐊᓕᑦ, ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓪᓗᖓᓗ ᑭᓱᓂᒃ 
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background and a strong business 
background. I certainly dealt with bankers 
many times from sitting on the other side 
of the fence, and I knew what to expect 
from clients who were looking for money 
and what to look for. 
 
So we did continue to increase our 
portfolio during that period of time, I think 
probably 10 to 15 percent. I don’t have the 
exact figures but I’m sure that the exact 
figures were available. It would bear me 
out that we increased our portfolio by 10 to 
15 percent. I don’t pretend to have done a 
lot of work tracking that extra business 
down as the extra business came to me. We 
did a little work with trade shows and so on 
and so forth, but that was really the extent 
of the marketing. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin for that answer. When 
you were describing how to get back and 
forth between Iqaluit and Cambridge Bay, 
it is certainly a challenge and I can attest to 
the lengthy travel. You have to be 
depending on the airplanes working and the 
weather cooperating, so your eight days 
could turn into 16 days, depending on the 
circumstance. So I can certainly see that 
would be a challenge for someone in Cape 
Dorset to serve all of Nunavut. You’re only 
talking about one community and there are 
25 communities in Nunavut. 
 
Having said that, Mr. Chairman, the 
Auditor General noted in her report on 
paragraph 20 that the “NBCC does not 
have a comprehensive set of policies, 
procedures, and guidelines to guide its 
operations.” We have to bear in mind that 
this audit occurred during a specific period 

ᓂᕆᐅᒋᔭᖃᕐᒪᖔᕐᒥᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐄ, ᐅᓄᕐᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑕᕗᑦ 10-15 
ᐳᓴᓐᑎᓂᒃ ᐃᓚᕙᓪᓕᐊᓪᓗᑎᒃ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᐸᐸᓐᖏᓐᓇᒃᑭᓐ. 10-15 ᐳᓴᓐᑎᒥᒃ 
ᐊᖏᓪᓕᕚᓪᓕᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑐᒍᑦ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑕᒫᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑐᕐᔪᐊᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᖢᑕᓗ. 
ᖃᐃᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑲᑎᓐᖓᔪᓄᑦ 
ᐅᐸᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᖢᑕ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑐᒍᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 

 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑕᐅᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ ᑭᐅᒐᕕᓐ. 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᕋᑖᕋᕕᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐃᖃᓗᒃᑑᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥᓐ 
ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓅᓐᖓᐅᓇᓱᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᕐᐱᓐ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᕐᓇᕐᒪᑦ. ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔪᓐᓇᕐᒥᔭᕋ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓐᓂᖓᓂᖕ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᖃᖓᑕᓲᖅ 
ᓱᕋᓐᓂᕌᖓᑦ ᑖᕗᓐᖓᕈᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᓇᕐᒪᑦ, 
ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐅᒡᓗᓄᑦ 16ᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐅᕗᓐᖓᐅᓇᓱᒃᐸᒃᖢᑕ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓃᓪᓗᓂ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᕐᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ. ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑐᖓᓕ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᑯᓗᖕᒥᒃ ᓄᓇᒥᒃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᑐᑎᑦ, 25-ᖑᒻᒪᑕ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒥ ᓄᓇᓖᑦ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᓚᐅᕐᑎᓪᓗᖓ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᐅᕐᑎᑯᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 20-ᒥᒃ 
ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖃᕐᑐᓂ. ᓄᓇᕗᒥᒎᖅ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᖓᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖃᐅᑦᓯᐊᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᒍᑎᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂᖕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᕐᖢᑎᒍ ᐊᕐᕌᒍ ᐊᓂᒍᓯᒪᓕᕐᑎᓪᓗᒍ, 
ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᐊᒡᓚᕝᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᑎᓐ, 
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of time after your departure a year or so 
later that this is in reference. During your 
tenure as a CEO, did you have operating 
procedures, guidelines, and policies to 
guide your operations and then help assist 
the board of directors to perform their 
duties? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
There wasn’t a great deal of policies and 
procedures when I arrived there, at least 
that I could uncover. You must remember 
that the office had been moved over to 
Cape Dorset. I had been sitting on 
somebody’s desk before then, maybe a 
couple of years or so, and previous to that, 
I had come over from the NWT Credit 
Corporation. So it could be that some of 
these policies and procedures went adrift 
during that move.  
 
In any event, I certainly recognize that 
there were difficulties in terms of 
procedures in many simple and also 
complex areas, and so I began to put into 
place procedures that would help guide my 
staff and also subsequent staff. These 
procedures included something as simple 
as a standardized agenda.  
 
I’ll just go back to my remarks on the third 
duties of directors which is the monitoring. 
In order to monitor properly, they have to 
know what goes on an agenda in order for 
them to fulfill the responsibilities for 
monitoring. So that was one policy I 
brought in. 
 
Another was on the engagement of outside 
consultants. I recognize there was a certain 
amount of weakness in terms of our 
potential weakness for both staff and board 
to analyze some of the important issues that 

ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᖃᓚᐅᖅᐱᓯ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᕐᓂᒡᓗ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᖓᓄᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᑲᔪᕐᑐᐃᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.   
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ.  
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᕐᑐᖃᐅᓗᐊᕌᓗᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᑯᓐᖓᕐᑎᓪᓗᖓ 
ᓇᓂᔪᓐᓇᕐᑕᓐᓂᒃ, ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᐸᒃᑐᓐ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᓪᓚᒡᕕᒃ ᓅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓄᑦ. ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒎᓐᓄᑦ, ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᐃᓛᒃ ᓄᓇᑦᓯᐊᕐᒥᙶᕐᓂᑯᒡᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᒃ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᖓᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᓄᒃᑎᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓐᓂᖏᒻᒪᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ, ᐃᓕᓴᖅᓯᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ 
ᐱᔭᕐᓂᖏᑦᑐᑰᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᒪᓕᒐᖏᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦᓕᕆᓂᕐᓗ ᐱᔭᕐᓂᖏᑦᑐᐊᓘᓪᓗᓂ ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ, 
ᐃᓕᓯᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᕐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒃᑲᓄᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑭᖑᕐᖓᒍᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᓕᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᐃᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᖃᓯᐅᔾᔨᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ. ᓲᕐᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑕᐃᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ.  
 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᒃᑲ ᐱᖓᔪᖓᑦ ᑖᔅᓱᒪ 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᕐᓱᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᓂ ᓇᐅᑦᑎᕐᓱᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑭᓱᓂᒡᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᐃᑉᒪᖔᑕ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐃᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᓯᓚᑎᑦᑎᓂᖔᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑎᑕᑖᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒐᑦᑕ 
ᓴᙲᓐᓂᖃᐅᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᓚᐅᕋᑦᑎᒍ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒍᓐᓇᕐᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᑎᔪᓂᒃ.  
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they had to work with.  
 
Another simple policy was on passwords. 
When I arrived there, everybody had a 
secret password, so I couldn’t access the 
books. There were spreadsheets going 
around the office that were password 
protected, so I introduced the policy that 
said that nobody has passwords within the 
operations unless they were also shared 
with the CEO and the chair of the board so 
that if people left precipitously, we still 
would have access to the computer records. 
 
There was no real procedure on approval of 
loans, for example, so I introduced, with 
the help of the board, the approval of loans. 
There were no procedures on reporting on 
bid bonds and potential losses for that, so I 
introduced that. Setting of interest rate 
policies, that was another thing. That was a 
very arcane and complex system, so I 
simplified that and presented to my board a 
procedure by which interest rates were set.  
 
Some of the loans were outside of the 
confines of the Interest Act Canada, for 
example, interest on a real estate loan needs 
to be accrued every six months and not 
monthly. If you take out a car loan, it is 
accrued monthly, and you can deal with it 
according to the Interest Rate Act. If you 
do it on a piece of real estate, it needs to be 
accrued every six months. That wasn’t 
being done, so I brought in what’s not 
really a policy but that is really obeying the 
law, in fact. So we introduced the policy on 
interest rates and the difference between 
real estate loans and ordinary consumer 
loans within the confines of the business 
and consumption.  
 
Accounting for impaired loans, this was 
another policy that wasn’t there and we 
introduced that with the board of directors. 
Financial reporting procedures, again, 

 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓯᕈᑎᐅᔪᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ ᐃᓘᖕᓇᖏᑦ 
ᐅᖃᓕᒫᒐᖏᓐᓄᒡᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᓯᒪᔪᖁᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓯᕈᓐᓇᓚᐅᙱᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐃᓯᕈᓐᓇᐅᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᑎᓕᐅᕐᓯᒪᓗᑎᒃ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᓂᒎᖅ ᐃᓯᕈᓐᓇᐅᑎᖃᓚᐅᙱᒪᑕ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᒍᕕᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᖕᒥ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᒍᕕᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᕿᒪᐃᔭᕌᖓᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖏᓐᓂ ᖃᕆᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑕᕕᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑎᒍᓯᒍᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ.  
 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᙱᑦᑐᖅ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓐᓄᒡᓗ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᙱᑦᑐᖅ ᐅᓂᑳᓕᐅᕐᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᓇᓪᓕᐅᒃᑯᒫᖃᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᓇᓚᐅᑦᑖᕈᑎᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᒃᑎᒡᓗᖓᓗ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᔭᕐᓂᖏᑦᑐᕈᓘᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᒃᑲᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᒡᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᓯᓚᑖᓃᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᑲᓇᑕᐅᑉ ᕿᑐᕐᖏᐅᕈᑎᖏᑕ ᓲᕐᓗ ᐃᒡᓗᕐᔪᐊᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᑎᐅᔪᑦ ᕿᑐᕐᖏᐅᕈᑎᖏᑦ ᑕᖅᑭᑦ 6-ᑖᒪᑦ 
ᐱᔭᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᓲᖑᖕᒪ, ᑕᖅᑭᑕᒫᖑᙱᑦᑐᖅ. 
ᕿᑐᕐᖏᐅᕈᑎᖏᑕ ᐊᑭᖏᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᖓᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐃᒡᓗᕐᔪᐊᓄᑦ ᕿᑐᕐᖏᐅᕈᑎᖏᑦ ᑕᖅᑭᑦ 6-ᑕᒫᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᖢᑎᒃ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᖅᑕᐅᓐᓂᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐅᑎᖅᑎᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ. ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᓂ ᒪᓕᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖅ ᓴᖅᑭᖢᑎᒍ ᕿᑐᕐᖏᐅᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᑭᖏᑦ 
ᐊᑭᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᑭᓕᕐᓱᐃᑎᑦᑎᓂᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᕕᓂᕐᓂᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᖅ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᑕᐅᖏᓲᔭᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᕕᓂᕐᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᙱᒻᒪᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑭᓪᓗᑎᒍ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᐅᓂᑳᓕᐅᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
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harping back on what we were talking 
about earlier, the sort of complex reporting 
that was going on to the board, I felt it 
necessary that there actually be a procedure 
in place that would simplify accounting 
procedures and also ensure that when 
accounting information came to the board, 
it was the right type of information. For 
example, balance sheets, income 
statements, and also cheque registers for 
the period involved.  
 
So we introduced the financial reporting 
procedures so my board knew what was 
going on, but more importantly, that my 
successors would also have these 
procedures to work with. Briefing notes, 
how they’re to be made and how we’re to 
report back to a shareholder was another 
procedure.  
 
Administrative and approval of bid bonds 
being another procedure that was absent 
and which we formulated and put into 
place during those tenures; and there is also 
the terms of reference for the three 
committees, policy and planning, finance 
and audit and finally jurisprudence which 
were also set up during that period of time 
to guide the board and future people. 
 
So yes, the corporation was a little thin on 
policies and procedures and there were 
some significant attempts within the time 
provided to address that situation. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman 
and I thank Mr. Junkin. It’s interesting that 
the Auditor General made that statement on 
Paragraph 20, then further on in Paragraph 
22 they stated that ‘We found that, 
although the corporation had inherited 

ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᐱᔭᕐᓂᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᙵᐅᔪᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑕᖃᖁᔨᒡᓗᑕ 
ᐱᔭᕐᓂᕐᓯᓯᒪᓗᑎᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᐅᔪᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᔭᕌᖓᑕ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐅᒃᑑᑏᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓯᕐᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓵᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐅᑎᒋᔪᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᖕᒪᖔᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖁᑎᒃᑲᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒡᓗᑎᒃ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᓕᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᑦᑎᐊᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᒃᑎᑦᑎᑦᑎᐊᕐᓯᒪᓂᕆᔭᒃᑲ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᑎᑦᑎᒋᐊᕈᑎᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑎᒍᒥᐊᖅᑎᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᒡᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᖕᒧᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᑦᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᕐᓯᔾᔪᑎᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓇᓚᐅᑦᑖᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᓇᓪᓕᐅᒃᑯᒫᖏᖕᓂᒃ 
ᓇᓪᓕᐅᒃᑯᒫᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᐊᖅᑭᒃᓱᕐᖢᑎᒍ. ᑕᕙ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐱᖓᔪᓄᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐃᔪᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐃᔨᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᑎᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᑭᒧᐊᒃᑎᒃᑎᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐ.  
 
 
ᐄ, ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᑭᒃᓴᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᒪᓕᒐᑭᒃᓴᕐᖢᓂᓗ. ᐅᓄᖅᑐᐃᖅᑐᕐᓱᕐᖢᑕ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑭᐅᓂ ᐋᖅᑭᒐᓱᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. ᑐᓴᕈᒥᓇᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑐᑦ 20-ᖓᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᑕᐅᓇᓂ 
22-ᒥᑦ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᐅᔪᖅ ᐱᓚᐅᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
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procedures from the Government of the 
Northwest Territories that existed upon 
division and that were still valid, in the 
period covered by our audit the corporation 
operated without regard to written 
procedures and guidelines.’  
 
So, the Auditor General is saying that 
NBCC didn’t use the guidelines that it 
inherited, but it also seems like that they 
didn’t use the guidelines and policies and 
procedures that you instituted while you 
were the CEO in that ten months. When 
you got there you found it a little thin, but 
then you went to implement some 
standards, but then during the period of this 
audit, the Auditor General finds that not 
only did you not follow the guidelines you 
inherited that apparently didn’t follow the 
guidelines that you as the interim CEO put 
in place.  
 
I’m wondering, Mr. Junkin, when you 
worked for the board of directors, were 
they were aware of how important it is to 
follow policy and guidelines and 
procedures and then ensure that their CEO 
and staff followed it? You mentioned that 
the third duty of the board of directors was 
monitoring, so it’s very important that 
someone is monitoring the operations. So, 
when you left, were you confident that 
regardless of what was there before, what 
was there after you left would be sufficient 
to guide NBCC and their future goal for 
direction? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
should caution the Standing Committee 
that I really only had two meetings with the 
board of directors, one in October and one 
in February. There was a third meeting in 
May of that year, but there was not a 

ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥᐅᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᕗᑎᒐᒥᒃ. ᓱᓕ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐊᑑᑎᖃᑦᖢᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᓕᒐᖏᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖃᖏᑦᖢᑎᒃ, ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖃᖏᑦᖢᑎᓪᓗ 
ᐊᐅᓚᓐᓂᕐᒪᑕ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᖓᓐ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᐱᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᒎᖅ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓂᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓪᓗ. ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᖓᓐᓂ. ᑕᐃᑯᖓᕋᕕᓐ ᒪᓕᒐᑭᔅᓴᖅᑐᓐ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒋᕕᒋᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᐅᕋᐃᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐᓂᒃ. 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑲᓇᑕᒥ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑏᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑐᕈᑎᕕᓂᕐᓄᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖃᕋᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᒪᓕᒐᑐᖃᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᓇᔭᑎᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓐᖏᓐᓇᓱᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᑎᒋᕙ ᒪᓕᒐᕐᓂᒃ, ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᒪᓕᑦᑎᐊᕐᕆᐊᔅᓴᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑎᖓ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᓇᑦᑎᓱᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᔪᖅ. ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᐅᓚᓂᕆᔭᖓᓂᒃ. ᕿᒪᐅᒐᕕᓐ ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᓪᓚᕆᓚᐅᖅᐲᓐ 
ᓯᕗᓂᒃᑎᓐᓂ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᕈᕕᓐ 
ᓈᒻᒪᒃᑲᔭᖅᐹᓐ ᒪᓕᒐᖏᑦ ᑐᑭᒧᐊᒍᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᖓᓄᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᑦᔨᖅᓱᖁᔨᕗᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᒪᕐᕈᐃᖅᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᒃᑭᓐ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᒃᑑᕙᒥᓗ, 
ᕖᕗᐊᓕᒥᓗ. ᐱᖓᔪᖓᓐᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᒃᑲ 
ᒪᐃᒥ. ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐊᒥᒐᓗᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
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quorum assembled, so I can’t say that there 
was a great deal of time to bring the board 
of directors up to speed in their duties in 
terms of monitoring the operation.  
 
I can say, however, that these procedures 
and terms of reference which I outlined in 
my previous question were all brought to 
the board and passed to the board and I can 
only assume that the board of directors 
would have recognized that these 
procedures were being put into place to 
allow for better monitoring.  
 
I can’t say that I went out and said to the 
board ‘now this is your job to monitor the 
operations’ and I, perhaps assumed that 
they knew that and I think given the stature 
of the board members I think I was 
probably right in that assumption.  
 
The policies to allow them to monitor were 
sketchy as I have mentioned, and certainly 
in conjunction with my board, my staff put 
into place as many as policies as time 
would allow to assist them in doing a better 
job in monitoring the operations on things 
like a standard agenda, procedures for 
approval of loans and so on and so forth; 
financial reporting procedures and so on 
would’ve have been put there in 
recognition of the fact that they needed 
monitor things more closely. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman 
and thank you Mr. Junkin. When you were 
interim CEO for ten months, you admit you 
were a little thin on staff because there 
were three staff members, including 
yourself. When you received a loan 
application, what was your typical process 
to analyze, evaluate, and then present the 

ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒥᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐱᕕᒃᓴᑭᓗᐊᕐᓚᐅᕐᕋᑦᑕ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᔭᕆᐊᔅᓴᖅ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᔅᓴᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᐃᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒥᒃ 
ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖓᓂᒃ.  
 
 
ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᕐᒥᔪᖓ ᒪᓕᒐᐃᑦ ᑭᖑᓂᓐᓂ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᒃᑰᖅᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ. ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᓴᖅᓯᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᐃᑦ ᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᑦᑕᐅᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᐃᑦᑎᐊᓂᖅᓴᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖏᑦᑐᖓ, ᐅᖃᐅᑎᓚᐅᕐᓂᓐᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᔪᑦ. 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᐃᔭᕆᐊᖃᑉᐳᓯ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖓᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓱᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᒥᓂᐅᔪᖓᖃᐃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓇᓱᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓱᒪᓂᕋ 
ᑕᒻᒪᑐᔅᓴᐅᓂᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ  
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖅ ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᐃᖃᑦᑕᖁᔨᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᒃᑲ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᒃᑲ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒃᑲᓗ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᕐᓂᒃ ᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᐃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑐᐃᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᓇᐅᑦᑎᓱᖅᑎᐊᓂᖅᓴᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᓲᕐᓗ ᐊᖏᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐃᓕᓴᖅᓯᓪᓗᑎ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᓱᐃᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒥᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᑎᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᖁᓕᓄᑦ ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᓐ ᐃᓛᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑭᔅᓴᕐᓂᕋᖅᖢᑎᒃ 
ᐱᖓᓱᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕᒎᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ, 
ᐱᖃᓯᐅᔾᔨᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᑕᑯᔭᕌᖓᕕᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᕆᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓐ ᕿᒥᕈᓇᕐᓗᒋᓪᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓗᒋᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔾᔪᑎᐅᔪᑦ ᑐᓂᓂᐊᕐᓗᒋᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 



 33 

loan application to the board of directors 
for their review and consideration? Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Basically, there were the typical three Cs of 
lending: collateral, capacity, and character. 
What kind of security? I did this with 
conjunction with Mr. Jhaveri. What kind of 
security was I going to receive on behalf of 
the NBCC to secure that loan? What was 
the capacity of the client to service that 
debt? And, in terms of character, what was 
the past experience that this individual 
might have had, or this company might 
have had, in terms of repaying loans, or 
their success in business and that sort of 
thing.  
 
The more detailed elements of that would 
be analyzing past financial statements and 
looking at projections with a jaundiced eye. 
Sometimes they wouldn’t come with 
projections, so we would have to do our 
own projections in-house. When we were 
satisfied that the projections made sense, 
we would then do what you call a 
sensitivity analysis. What happens, for 
example, if a critical perimeter varied 10 
percent? What would be the effect on the 
bottom line and what would be the effect 
on the capacity to pay? As long as we felt 
that the operation wasn’t running too close 
to the margin, it had some room to come to 
go on, we were satisfied that the clients 
were legitimate business people or 
honourable business people and that there 
was a reasonable collateral in place to 
support the loan, and then we would move 
forward and recommend this to the board 
of directors. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 

ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᕙᓚᐅᖅᐸ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐱᖓᓱᐃᑦ ‘C’ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᒐᔪᒃᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᑭᓲᒻᒪᖔᓐ, ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑑᒻᒪᖔ. 
ᖃᓄᕐᓗ ᐊᑭᓖᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᕆᔭᖓ 
ᐊᑦᑕᓇᖅᔭᐃᖅᓯᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᕚᕆᒃᑰᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NBCC-ᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᑦ. 
ᖃᓄᕐᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᖃᓚᐅᕐᐸᑦ? 
ᐊᔪᙱᓐᓂᖃᓚᐅᕐᐸᑦ? ᑖᓐᓇ ᐱᔨᔅᓯᕐᓗᒍ 
ᐱᔨᔅᓯᕋᖅᑕᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ, ᐊᑐᕐᓯᒪᓂᕆᔭᖓ 
ᑭᖑᓂᑦᑎᕐᓂᖅ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑑᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕆᔭᖓ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᖅ 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᐊᑭᓖᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᐹᑦ, ᐊᑭᓖᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᕐᐸᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᑕᒥᖕᓂᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᕈᓘᔭᐃᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᓱᑎᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᓗᓕᑯᓘᔭᖃᕐᓂᓴᐅᔪᖅ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᖢᒋᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᕕᓂᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ, ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᓱᒋᑦ 
ᒥᒃᓴᐅᓯᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᓇᓚᐅᑦᑖᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ. 
ᓇᓚᐅᑦᑖᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᓇᓚᐅᑦᑖᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᒥᒃᓴᐅᓴᒃᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᖃᐃᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᒫᙳᐊᓂᒃ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ, 
ᓈᒻᒪᒋᓕᕌᖓᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᒥᒃᓴᐅᓴᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᓕᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐃᒃᐱᖕᓇᖅᑎᒋᖕᒪᖔᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᖢᑎᒍᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ 10 ᐳᓴᓐᒥᒃ 
ᐊᑭᓖᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᓄᕐᓗ ᐊᔪᙱᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᖔᑕ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᒃᐱᒍᓱᒑᖓᑦᑕ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖓ 
ᐱᐅᓇᓱᒋᔭᕌᖓᑦᑎᒍ ᓈᒻᒪᒋᔭᕌᖓᑦᑎᒍᐃᓛᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᐅᔪᑦ ᐅᐱᒋᔭᕗᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ. 
ᐊᑦᑕᓇᕐᔭᐃᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᐸᑕ ᐊᑭᓖᔾᔪᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᖅᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᓯᕗᒧᐊᓕᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕐᖢᑕ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ. 
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Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. When you presented the 
loans to the Business Credit Corporation 
Board of Directors, in what form did you 
present? I know you’ve talked about what 
you analyzed and evaluated in a loan 
application, or the due diligence process, 
but how did you actually present the 
application to the board of directors for 
their review? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We didn’t get involved with snowing the 
board with information that we, we 
meaning myself and Mr. Jhaveri, had gone 
through. We went through it, if we felt it 
was a viable opportunity, we would 
provide a summary sheet of basically what 
is the background and what is the 
opportunity, what are the expectations and 
what the recommendation of staff was, and 
then we would ask for their approval or 
approbation.  
 
One area where we slipped up on initially, 
and that the Auditor General at the time 
asked us to correct, was we would, at 
times, send out these requests for approval 
of loans by way of fax and we would wait. 
Sometimes not all of the board members 
would reply to the fax, and then we would 
with the majority of whoever replied.  
 
The Auditor General pointed out that we 
should go with the majority of the members 
of the board and not with the majority of 
the people that replied. So we did make 
that correction. As it turns out, any loans 
that we did approve would have had the 
majority of not only those that replied but 
also the majority of the board. So that was 

ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑲᓐ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒡᓗ. ᑐᓂᒑᖓᕕᒋᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐃᓕᖓᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑎᒋᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᐱᒋᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᖏᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓄᑦ? 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖅᑎᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑏᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ):ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᐄᓚᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᙱᓐᓇᑦᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑦᑎ ᑐᓴᕈᑎᓂᒃ ᐅᕗᖓᓗ ᒥᔅᑕ ᕼᐊᕗᕆ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓪᓗᑎᒃᑯᒃ. ᐱᔪᓐᓇᑦᑎᐊᕋᓱᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖅ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓱᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᖅ ᖃᓄᕐᓗ 
ᐱᖃᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᑦ ᑐᓂᓯᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪ, 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᓚᖓ ᐅᓇ ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᐃᔭᕈᑎᒋᒐᓛᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᓱᓕᓐᓂᕈᒪ ᐃᓛᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᓱᑲᔪᒃᑯᑦ.  
ᐃᓪᓛᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓕᒫᑦ ᑭᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᙱᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑦᑎᒐᓗᐊᕌᖔᑦᑕ ᓱᑲᔪᒃᑰᖅᑐᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐆᒃᑐᖅᑐᑦ ᐆᒃᑐᑲᓐᓂᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᒃᑲᓐᓂᕋᓱᒃᑐᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᒥᓲᓂᕐᓴᐃᑦ ᐊᖏᕌᖓᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐆᒃᑐᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᖓᓂᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᔭᕌᖓᑕ 
ᐊᒥᓲᓂᕐᓴᐃᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑭᐅᔪᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᙱᓐᓂᐊᕐᔪᖓ ᐊᖏᓗᐊᓚᐅᙱᑦᑐᖅ ᑖᔅᓱᒧᖓ 
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a little differentiation that the Auditor 
General suggested that we do and we did 
do that.  
 
If the individual board members had 
requested additional information, in terms 
of what the expectations are, or what was 
the risk analysis, or this and that and the 
other thing, those would be entertained and 
replied as required. This is not an unusual 
way of doing business in terms of lending. 
The board generally will receive a 
summary and I’m not talking about this 
board in particular but other boards that are 
in the same type of business. The board 
would receive a summary and a 
recommendation from staff.  
 
There’s always a binder handy for 
questions that might arise from the board, 
but generally, the board is given the big 
picture rather than the details. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Maybe 
before we continue on with Mr. Peterson, 
we would like to take a 15-minute break, 
health break, or a relief break, or whatever 
you want to call it. We’ll resume in 15 
minutes. Thank you. 
 
>>Committee recessed at 10:20 and 
resumed at 10:50 
 
Chairman: Thank you and welcome back. 
We’ll just continue where we left off. Mr. 
Peterson, did you have any more 
questions? Go ahead. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
would like to ask Mr. Junkin, when you 
prepared these summary sheets for the loan 
board, was it a one-page summary, or was 
it multiple pages like 45 pages, or was it, as 
you said, a summary page? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 

ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᑐᖁᔭᖓ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒍ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᐃᓚᖓᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᒃᐸᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑐᐊᑎᑦᑎᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᓪᓗᒍ ᓂᕆᐅᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓱᓇᐅᖕᒪᖔᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓂᖓ ᑐᑭᓕᐊᖓ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᓗᓕᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᖢᑕᓗ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᔾᔨᐅᖏᑦᑑᖏᑦᑑᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᓪᓕ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᓇᐃᒡᓕᑎᖅᓯᒪᔪᒥᒃ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅᓯᔪᒥᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᓯᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᖏᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᕆᔭᐅᔪᒪᔪ ᐊᒡᔨᒋᒃᐸᒍ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑕᐅᓇᔭᖅᑐᑦ 
ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ ᑭᐅᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᓄᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᑕᐅᑐᖅᑰᖅᑎᓕᕐᖢᒋᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᓱᓇᐅᖕᒪᖔᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪ ᑐᑭᐊ. ᖁᔭᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑲᔪᓯᓐᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 15-ᒥᓂᔅ 
ᓄᖅᑲᖓᓚᐅᐱᓪᓚᓐᓂᐊᕐᕋᑦᑕ. ᑕᖄᖅᓯᓚᐅᐱᓪᓛᔪᓪᓗᑕ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 15 ᒥᓂᑦ. 
 
 
>>ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ 10:20ᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐱᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅᑐᑎᒃ 10:50ᒥ 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒋᑦᓯ. 
ᑲᔪᓯᓂᐊᕐᕋᑦᑕ ᕿᒪᖅᑲᐅᔭᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ, 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᐲᓐ, ᐊᑏ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᔭᓐᑭᓐ, 
ᐸᕐᓇᐃᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᓇᐃᓪᓕᑎᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐅᓚᐅᖅᐹ 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖅ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓇᐃᓪᓕᑎᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ, 
ᐊᒥᓲᓚᐅᖅᐸᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖏᑦ, ᑎᓴᒪᑦ, 
ᑕᓪᓕᒪᓪᓘᓐᓂᑦ ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖏᑦ. ᖃᓄᖅ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᕕᑦ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᓇᐃᓪᓕᑎᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᖃᓄᖅ ᑐᑭᖃᑦᑎᑉᐱᐅᒃ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To 
be quite frank with you, I don’t recall the 
exact length of these things but I do know 
that a five-page summary of their own 
application would probably be unusual. 
They’re usually restricted for one to three 
pages, something of that nature, with the 
basic information that would be required, 
along with a recommendation one way or 
the other. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. In the summary of the 
loan, would you list the pros and cons, and 
all of the pertinent information that would 
help the board member to raise questions if 
there were concerns outlined by you?  
 
For example, the NBC is typically referred 
to as a lender of last resort, so you take on 
higher risk loans. So presumably, you 
would have the pros but you might have a 
longer list of cons of what could potentially 
go wrong with the loan to ensure that the 
board of directors are aware of... while it 
looks like a good loan, there are these risks, 
inherent risks, that when you put the 
summary sheet together for the board, did 
you highlight those areas for the board to 
consider? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Certainly, as part of the analysis, we would 
undertake a SWOT analysis I guess, the 
strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and 
threats in our analysis.  

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᓱᓕᓗᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᖓ 
ᑕᓪᓕᒪᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ ᒪᑉᐱᒐᖏᑦ ᓇᐃᓪᓕᑎᖅᓯᒪᔪᓐ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖅᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᑦ ᐊᑦᔨᐅᖏᑦᑑᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐱᖓᓱᓄᑦ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᐱᖓᓱᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓱᓪᓕᓯᒪᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᕈᑎᖏᑦ 
ᐃᓕᖓᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐊᑕᓪᓗᑎᒃ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᓇᐃᓪᓕᑎᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓄᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᖅᓯᒪᕚᓐ ᐱᐅᔪᑦ, 
ᐱᐅᖏᑐᓪᓗ ᓈᒻᒪᖏᑦᑐᑦ, ᓈᒻᒪᑐᓪᓗ, ᐃᓱᐊᖏᑦᑐᑦ, 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᑐᓴᕈᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᕝᕕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓗᓕᖃᖅᓯᒪᕙᑦ? 
 
ᓲᕐᓗ ᐆᑦᑑᑎᒋᓗᒍ, NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᑐᐊᖑᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᑦᑕᓇᖅᑑᒐᔭᖅᑐᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᒧᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᐱᐅᔪᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓱᐊᖅᑐᓪᓗ ᐃᓕᖓᓗᑎᒃ, ᓲᕐᓗ ᐊᑭᐊᓃᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖢᐊᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᓈᒻᒪᖏᖅᑰᔨᑉᐸᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ ᒪᓕᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᐱᓯᐅᒃ. 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓚᐅᖅᐹᓐ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐱᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᓐ, ᐊᑦᑕᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᓇᐃᓪᓕᑎᒑᖓᑦᓯᐅᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᕈᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᐱᒌᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᑦᔨᑐᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐃᓚᖓ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᑦᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᐊᑦᔨᒌᖏᑐᖅᑕᖃᑉᐸᑕ ᐱᕕᒃᓴᐅᔪᓪᓗ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂ.  
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I’ll just give you an example of the 
structure of things it would come to on one 
of these. The applicant details, in other 
words, who exactly are we talking about; 
what activities are they involved in; a bit of 
a background and history of the operation; 
and in fact, who owns the operation; and 
perhaps, more importantly, what is the 
management; who manages the structure. 
Sometimes they’re the same but they’re 
often different.  
 
So that would give the board of directors a 
quick background into exactly what was 
going on, and then a little bit more detail 
on operations and marketing, and then what 
the proposed project was all about; was it a 
building; was it operating capital; whatever 
the case may be; what was the sources of 
financing; how much internal financing 
was going on; and what was the outside 
financing of the operation; and input files 
outside financing, more or less talking 
about owners’ equity, but also the types of 
financing.  
 
There could be highlights of financial 
statements, filing sheets, income 
statements, mainly restricted to ratio 
analysis and some commentary with 
respect to the analysis; this would include 
some forward looking information as well, 
so we would be looking at what was 
currently the case, what kind of experience 
had been, and what the expectations would 
be; an assessment of the risk and a credit 
background check, so, of course, the board 
of directors were always interested as well; 
what kind of credit history do these people 
have and a review of the security that was 
going to come up.  
 
So it more or less covers the three Cs that 
I’ve talked about: the character of the 
people involved, who’s involved; the 

 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐆᑦᑑᑎᒋᓗᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓚᖓᓐ 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᒐᔭᖅᑐᖅ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑭᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᓐ, 
ᑭᓇᒥᒃ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᒻᒪᖔᑦᑕ, ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᑦ ᓱᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᑦ 
ᐃᓚᐅᓂᕆᔭᖏᓪᓗ, ᓱᓇ ᐊᒃᑐᐊᓂᕆᔭᖏᑦ 
ᑭᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᓪᓗ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᖓ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᕆᔭᖓᑕ, 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔾᔪᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᓱᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᑕ, ᑭᓇᓗ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᓐ ᒥᐊᓂᖅᓯᓪᓗᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑎᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᔾᔪᑎᔅᓴᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᖅᓯᒪᒃᑲᓂᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᖏᓐᓄᓪᓗ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑭᓇᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐱᑦᔪᔾᔨᒻᒪᖔᓐ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑏᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᖑᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᓱᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᓐ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔾᔪᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓱᓇ ᖃᓄᕐᓗ 
ᓇᑭᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑖᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᑭᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᓯᓚᑖᓂᒃ. ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᒃᑲ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖓᑕ ᑐᓂᔭᖏᑦ ᐃᓕᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐱᖁᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑎᐊᖅᖢᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᒥ 
ᐱᓗᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓱᓇᓂᒃ ᐃᓗᓕᖃᒻᒪᖔᓐ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᖓᓄᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᒧᑦ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑭᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᖢᓂ. ᐊᒻᒪ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᐅᒃᑰᕐᓯᒪᓂᕆᔭᖓ ᓂᕆᐅᒋᔭᐅᓂᕆᔭᖓᓗ, 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᖢᒍ ᐊᑦᑕᓇᕐᓂᖓ, ᐱᐅᒻᒪᖔᑦ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᒻᒪᖔᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᓂᕆᔭᖓ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᑭᓕᒃᓴᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐊᑭᓕᒃᓴᖃᓐᖏᒻᒪᖔᑦ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᕆᓯᒪᔭᖏᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᑕᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᓴᐳᒻᒥᔾᔪᔾᔨᖃᕐᒪᖔᓪᓘᓐᓃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᖓᓱᑦᓯ ᐃᓄᒃ ᐃᓚᐅᓂᖓ ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᖏᑦ, 
ᐊᑭᓖᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᐹ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᖏᓐᓂ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᑦ 
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capacity to repay as evidenced by the 
financial statements and so forth, in both 
future looking and the current financial 
statements; and finally, the collateral that 
would underwrite the loan. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin for that finely detailed list 
of information. In your time with the 
NBCC, do you recall how many loans you 
presented to the Nunavut Business Credit 
Corporation using the format that you 
described? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: I can’t recall the number of 
loans that I presented. I would suspect it 
would be in the neighbourhood of three: 
one involving real-estate, one involving IT 
services, and quite frankly, I can’t 
remember what the third one was. That was 
in terms of what the presentations were 
with the board. There were other analysis 
going on which never got to the board and 
how many I actually got to the board, I 
believe it was three but I can’t say for sure. 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. Junkin, having 
worked with the board at least on a couple 
of occasions as the chair of the board, you 
presented three loans to the board as you 
recollect. In your opinion, did the board of 
directors have a good overview of their 
roles and responsibilities, and its 
requirement to exercise some fiduciary 

ᑕᐅᑐᑦᖢᒋᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᒧᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᓂᕆᓂᐊᕐᑖ 
ᑕᐅᑐᒃᖢᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
ᐱᖁᑎᖃᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ):ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᐊᓐᑭᓐᔅ 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ. ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑐᕐ ᔨᐊᓐᑭᓐᔅ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᑦᓯᐊᕋᕕᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓃᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᖃᑦᓯᓂᒃ ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᕖᑦ ᖃᑦᓯᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑐᓂᓯᓯᒪᔪᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑦ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓂᑦ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᑎᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᔪᓂᖕ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ, 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᐊᓐᑭᓐᔅ . 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᖃᑉᓯᐅᒻᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓅᕐᑕᐅᔪᑦ. ᐃᒻᒪᖄ 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᐱᖓᓱᑦ ᐃᒡᓗᕐᔪᐊᓕᕐᕆᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ, 
ᖃᕆᑕᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓚᖓ ᐱᖓᔪᖓ 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᓐᖏᑕᕋ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑕᐅᓯᒪᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᖃᑦᓰᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑕ, ᐱᖓᓱᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᔭᑐᐊᒃᑲ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ. 
ᔨᐊᓐᑭᓐ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐃᓱᒪᓐᓂᓖ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᒪᕐᕈᐃᖢᑎᑦ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᔪᕐᓗ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᖓᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ, ᐱᖓᓱᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓂᑦ ᑐᓂᓯᓯᒪᓚᐅᕋᕕᒋᑦ, ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᕖᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖏᑦᑕ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ 
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duty in terms of reviewing, analyzing, and 
recommending on the loans using the 
format that you presented loans to them? 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
can’t honestly say that I engaged in any 
kind of analysis of the boards’ reception of 
my recommendations; how they analyzed it 
on their own and what they did to ensure 
that their fiduciary responsibilities were 
being adhered to. I restricted my analysis to 
the loans themselves and making 
recommendations, and I didn’t actually 
analyze how the board themselves had 
reached their own decisions.  
 
I will refer to an earlier comment that I 
made which was I felt that the board 
needed some additional work on financial 
analysis and that was begun in the February 
meeting. We had a good half day or a day 
of discussions and a presentation on how to 
look at pair of financial statements, and on 
their own, decide whether they were viable 
or not.  
 
Whether they actually fulfilled the 
fiduciary responsibilities, I didn’t get in 
there and actually analyze how they were 
doing that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Junkin, can you tell us, in your years of 
experience in working with NBCC and 
your other organizations that you worked 
with in Nunavut, I’m familiar with a 
couple, would you ever just present an 
application from a client directly to the 
NBCC Board, or any other lending 

ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑎᒥᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᓂᕐᒧᓐ ᑐᓂᓯᔾᔪᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᑐᑦ 
ᑐᓴᕈᑕᐅᑦᓯᐊᓂᐊᕐᑐᓂᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ.  
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒃᑖᕈᓐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᓱᓕᔪᒥᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓚᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᕐᒪ, ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᑕᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᒃᑲ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐃᒻᒥᓂᒃ 
ᑲᒪᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᓯᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᓪᓚᒃᑖᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᒪᓕᒍᓐᓇᖁᓪᓗᒋᓪᓗ ᐊᒻᒪ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑏᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᓪᓚᒃᑖᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᓐᖏᑕᕋᓗᐊᒃᑲ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖅ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ. 
 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᑎᑦ ᐅᑎᕐᕕᒋᓗᒋᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᒃᑲᓐᓂᖁᔨᒃᐸᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖏᑦᑕ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᓂᒃ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ. 
ᕕᕝᕗᐊᕆᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪ ᐅᓪᓗᒥ ᖁᑉᐸᖓᓂᒡᓗ 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᖃᑎᒌᒃᖢᑎᒃ, ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᕕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ, ᐃᒻᒥᓂᓪᓕ 
ᑲᒪᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᖅ.  
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᒥᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᓪᓚᒃᑖᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᐱᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒃᑐᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ.   
 
 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ, ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᐲᑦ ᐅᑭᐅᓂᖕ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᓯᒪᔭᕐᓂᒃ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓃ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅ, ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒋᓯᒪᔭᕐᓂᒃ. ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᕖᑦ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑎᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑐᓂᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᕐᐱᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
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institution, without an evaluation, due 
diligence, or analysis by yourself or your 
staff, with a recommendation to the board?  
 
Have you ever had the occasion of that, or 
have you ever heard of such a thing where 
you simply take the applicant’s proposal 
and present it to the board, and then let the 
board make a decision? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
We have to keep in mind when we’re 
talking about boards is that they have other 
lives and it’s important for staff to present 
the relevant information to the board to 
allow them to make decisions but not 
overwhelm them with an analysis that they 
have to do on their own.  
 
So, certainly, the idea of bringing in an 
application that hadn’t been properly vetted 
by staff, or in the absence of staff, by some 
other competent authority; it would be 
most unusual and wouldn’t respect the time 
constraints that a board has on itself to 
make decisions.  
 
So I would find it most unusual that a raw 
application, if you will, would be presented 
to any board, and certainly, in my 
experience, that hasn’t happened. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. You say “most unusual,” 
but would there ever be an exception to the 
rule? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 

ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᓯᓗ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᐅᔪᓪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ?  
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᒥᒃ ᓴᖅᑯᓯᒪᕖᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑐᓴᖅᓯᒪᕕᓐ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᔭᕌᖓᑕ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᓱᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᓗᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒃᑳᖓᑦᑕ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐱᔭᔅᓴᖃᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᓅᓯᖃᒻᒥᒻᒪᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᕗᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᔅᓴᓂᒃ 
ᑐᓂᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᑦᑕᖏᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᒻᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᑕᐅᔾᔨᓗᐊᖁᓇᒋᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᔾᔪᑎᒋᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᔩᑦ.  
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑏᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᑕᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᔭᐅᖅᑳᓚᐅᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᓯᕗᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᐅᑎᓕᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑦᔨᐅᖏᑦᑑᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᑦ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓄᖅᑲᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᖁᖏᑦᖢᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᒃ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ. 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᑦᔨᐅᖏᔾᔪᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᖅᑕᐅᔫᑦ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᖅᑑᑉ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᐸᑦ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑐᕌᖅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᐊᑦᔨᐅᖏᑦᑑᖏᑦᑐᒥᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. ᐊᑦᔨᐅᖏᓐᓂᕋᐃᕋᑖᕋᕕᓐ ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
ᓱᓇᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
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Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again, I have never experienced that sort of 
situation and I can’t bring to mind a 
situation where that would occur. As a 
board, from their point of view, and this 
isn’t to denigrate boards, their skills do not 
lie in analyzing and doing all of the due 
diligence with respect to loans. So it would 
be inappropriate for a staff person to bring 
in a raw application to the board because 
they simply don’t have the capacity either 
in time and sometimes with respect to their 
own personal skills to arrive at a decision.  
 
So even in an emergency situation, if such 
a thing could occur, it would still be 
inappropriate to bring raw data to the 
board. There is available to staff lots of 
resources and opportunities and people out 
there that can do due diligence quickly, if 
necessary, and you’ll pay the price for it. 
So I can’t think of a situation where raw 
data should come to the board. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. If raw data did come to 
the Board of Directors of NBCC, would it 
be appropriate for them to defer the request 
for a loan or question the CEO as to 
where’s the evaluation analysis? Would 
that be an appropriate course of action? 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Just going back to a second duty of the 
board of direction; hiring/firing, evaluating 
and monitoring, and compensating the 
CEO; no, it wouldn’t be appropriate for a 

ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒫᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐊᑐᖅᓯᒪᖏᑎᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᐃᔪᓐᓇᕐᓇᖓ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᒥᒃ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑐᖃᕋᔪᕐᓂᖓᓂᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᑲᒪᔪᓐᓇᖅᕙᓗᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ. ᓈᒻᒪᒐᔭᒋᑦᖢᓂᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑎᖃᕆᐊᔅᓴᖅ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ. ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐱᕕᖃᓐᓇᑎᓪᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᓐᖏᑦᖢᓂᐅᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑐᐊᕕᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅᑕᖃᕋᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ, 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᓲᖑᒻᒪᑦ ᓈᒻᒪᒐᔭᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᒋᐊᔅᓴᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ.  
ᐅᓄᖅᑐᖅᔪᐊᕐᒪᕆᐊᓗᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᕕᖃᑦᑎᑕᐅᓲᓐ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑐᐊᕕᓐᓇᖅᑑᒑᖓᑖ, 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᖅᓯᓐᓂᕈᑎᒃ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᐸ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖏᒃ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᑐᒡᓕᐊ 
ᐅᑎᖅᕕᒋᒋᐊᕐᓗᒍ ᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓴᖅᓯᐅᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᓂᒃᑎᔨᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
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board to receive raw data of that nature.  
 
The appropriate response, regardless of the 
situation, is “Thank you very much,” 
whether it be the loan officer or the CEO 
bringing to it them but if there isn’t enough 
information here for us to make decision 
and you’ll have to refer that back to staff or 
to appropriate counsel to provide proper 
information.  
 
That would almost be maybe 
Machiavellian in nature if a CEO were to 
bring raw data to the board. The question 
that would arise in my mind would be: why 
are we bringing raw data to the board? Is 
there some hidden agenda here that the 
board wants buffaloed or something, or the 
board is trying to be buffaloed by the CEO 
or whoever is involved for whatever reason 
that might be.  
 
So, certainly an appropriate response for 
the board would be to deny the, I’m not 
going to say the application, but certainly, 
send it back for proper due diligence and 
proper studying. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin for that candid opinion. I 
have a letter here dated May 24, 2005 from 
the Nunavut Business Credit Corporation 
to an individual in Economic Development. 
Your successor, Mr. Orecklin, wrote a 
letter to this individual, and in it he stated, 
“NBCC did not write a separate report of 
due diligence as material in the applications 
is more than adequate substantiation,” and 
then it goes on, he comments that his 
analysis is complete and accurate, and 
wholly satisfactory to the Nunavut 
Business Credit Corporation. This is 
further analysis from the applicant himself 

ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ.  
 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᒥᒃ ᐊᖅᑯᓵᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᕈᑦᑕ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐊᒥᒐᓗᐊᖅᐸᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᓕᕋᔭᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔨᑕᖃᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᓈᒻᒪᑦᑐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᖅᓯᓂᖅᐹᓐ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓇᔭᖅᑕᕋᓕ ᓱᒻᒪᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᖅᓯᕕᑕ. ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᓵᓚᒋᔭᐅᓇᓱᒃᑯᑎᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᓄᑦ. 
ᐋᒡᒑᑎᑦᑎᖁᔨᑉᐸᑕᓘᓐᓂᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐅᑎᖅᑎᑕᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓄᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐᓗ 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᕐᖢᒍ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᒥᒃ ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᖃᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᒪᑦ. 
2005-ᒥ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕗᖕᒥ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑕᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑭᖑᕕᕐᑎ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐅᕋᓐᑲᓚᓐ ᑎᑎᕋᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᓄᖕᒧᑦ ᐅᖃᕐᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᕕᒃᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᐊᕕᒃᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᐃᓛ 
ᐃᒻᒥᒃᑰᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᑎᑎᕋᐅᑎᖃᓚᐅᖏᖕᒪᑦ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᖏᓪᓗ ᓈᖕᒪᖏᒃᖢᑎᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᕌᓪᓚᓚᐅᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
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for two quite significant loans and this was 
sent to the Department of Economic 
Development and Transportation.  
 
So what you’re saying is the board, without 
an evaluation, an analysis, or a 
recommendation, should have kicked those 
two loans back to the CEO or the 
investment manager and told them to do a 
proper review analysis, evaluation, and 
recommendations complete with all of the 
information you mentioned in the summary 
sheet that you would have prepared. With 
what you told me so far, the board was 
familiar with that process because they 
reviewed three loans that you have 
submitted to them under that format.  
 
Now, having said that, this letter did go to 
the Department of Economic Development 
and Transportation, so the CEO is 
admitting, as referred in his letter, that the 
board didn’t do a separate report of due 
diligence. Should the Department of 
Economic Development and 
Transportation’s red flags have been raised 
and they start questioning the CEO and the 
board of directors about what’s going on 
here? Would that be something that you 
think would be appropriate? Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Certainly, relying on due diligence of a 
client is totally out of order. We can look at 
the big boys like Enron and others of that 
nature who have provided their own 
affirmations of their data to analysts and 
investors, and so on and so forth, right 
down to the corner gas store that overstates 
or is over-optimistic of their expectations. I 
mean it’s just a clear conflict of interest to 
be doing your own due diligence on your 

ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᐊᖏᔫᓚᐳᕐᖢᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᕐᓂᒃ ᐱᓚᐅᙱᓐᓂᕐᒥᓂ 
ᐅᑎᖅᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᐊᓚᐅᕐᐹᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖕᒥ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓗᑎᒃ. ᓇᐃᓈᕐᓯᒪᔪᒃᑯᓪᓗ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᒍᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᐱᖓᓱᓂᒃ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖕᓂᕋᓚᐅᕋᕕᒋᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐸᐃᑉᐹᖁᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖅᑲᐅᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᐅᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑦ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔾᔪᑎᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᒡᕕᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᖢᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕋᒃᓚᓐ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᙱᒻᒪᑕᒎᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ. 
ᑐᑭᓯᒋᐊᕐᓂᖃᓕᕋᔭᙱᓚᑏᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᙱᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑎᖃᖅᑲᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐄ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᕈᔪᐃᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᓂᒃ Enron ᐊᓯᖏᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖅᑯᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᕐᑕᕗᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐸᐃᑉᐹᓂᒃ ᐊᖏᕐᓯᓗᑎᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓗᑎᒡᓗ ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ. 
ᓂᕆᐅᖕᓂᕆᔭᒥᓂᒃ ᐅᖓᑕᐅᔾᔨᓗᐊᕐᓯᒪᓂᑰᖕᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖕᒥᒧᑦ ᐊᒡᕕᐊᕈᖕᒥᒃ ᐊᑐᓕᕋᔭᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᓇᖕᒥᓂ 
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own company.  
 
I won’t bore the Standing Committee or the 
Committee of the Whole here with all of 
the examples that I can bring to the table of 
why that’s inappropriate. So at some point, 
certainly, a red flag should have been 
raised if it went to the then Department of 
Economic Development and 
Transportation, I guess it was at that point, 
for some further work, or due diligence, or 
approval. Certainly, that would be a red 
flag that should have been raised.  
 
With my experience with the department, I 
know that there were questions. My work 
would often be questioned whether it was 
with the NBCC in my temporary capacity 
with them, or in my position as regional 
director in the Kivalliq region. So if no red 
flags were raised, it’s a surprise to me. 
Certainly, one would have expected that a 
red flag be raised based on a client having 
done due diligence on their own business. 
Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. 
You mentioned Atuqtuarvik is quite a 
successful lending agency. I think you said 
their portfolio is now $60 million to $70 
million, and I know that NBCC’s portfolio 
is approximately $23 million and they’ve 
been around eight or nine years compared 
to Atuqtuarvik.  
 
My question for you, Mr. Junkin: in your 
view, as having the Nunavut Business 
Credit Corporation’s core function of 
lending loans to companies with debt, do 
you think that function would be best 
delivered through an independent Crown 
agency or through a Government of 
Nunavut department? The Crown agency, 

ᐱᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᒥᓐᓂᒃ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒍᑎᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᖃᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓴᖅᑭᒃᑐᓐᓇᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᓱᖕᒪᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᓈᒪᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᖔᑦ.  
ᐄ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔾᔨᐊᓪᓚᒃᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔾᔪᑎᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᓪᓗ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᑎᒡᓗ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᔪᒃᓴᒫᖑᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᐄ, ᖃᐅᔨᐊᓪᓚᒃᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᐊᑐᕐᓯᒪᔭᕋ 
ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖃᐅᓕᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᑯᓐᓄ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᖓ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᖃᑕᐅᓗᖓᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᔭᐅᙱᑉᐸᑦ 
ᑕᐸᐃᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᐳᖓᓕ. ᐅᔾᔨᕆᐊᓪᓚ ᐃᓛ 
ᖃᐅᔾᔨᐊᓪᓚᒐᔭᖅᑐᕕᓂᐅᔪᒃᓴᐅᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ)ᓐ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ. 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᒐᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᑦᑎᐊᓪᓚᕆᐊᓘᓂᕋᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᒋᑦ ᒫᓂ $60-
$70,000,000-ᓂ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᖏᑦ $23,000,000-ᖏᓐᓃᒻᒪᑕ. 
8/9-ᓄᑦ ᒪᑭᑕᓕᕐᖢᑎᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒐᐅᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐᒧᑦ. ᐃᕝᕕᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᖓᒍᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᖓᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓ ᐱᔅᓂᔅᓯᐅᔪᓄᑦ. ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐃᒻᒥᒃᑰᓕᕐᐸᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᑉᐸᑦ 
ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᓱᒋᕕᐅᖕ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓱᕐᕋᓐᖏᓪᓗᒍ 
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as it exists now, but then there’s the 
government Department of Economic 
Development and Transportation for 
example. Could you offer us some insider 
comments on that? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
First of all, I should underline that I think 
the service that NBCC provides is certainly 
needed. We have a very robust economy. 
Internationally, liquidity is getting tighter 
and that will trickle down and affect our 
own chartered banks, many of whom don’t 
understand how to work in the North.  
 
So I don’t want to leave the committee 
with the impression that the service is not 
required. It is certainly very much required 
and the success at NBCC or Atuqtuarvik 
has achieved with their restrictions is 
certainly an indication that we do need 
institutions like NBCC.  
 
I don’t think it’s a structural problem so 
much with NBCC. There have been some 
difficulties with people who, I’m sure, 
were trying their best within the confines of 
their abilities. There were some difficulties 
in reaching the targets that were set for this 
corporation. That is true and we need a 
little more attention, perhaps, paid to the 
human resources end of things; moreover, 
as I have already illustrated earlier, if we 
are going to service Nunavut, my 
recommendation would be that the Crown 
corporation vehicle is just fine if properly 
staffed and with the support of the board.  
 
The location, I have already mentioned, is 
certainly a difficulty. I would certainly 
consider suggesting a change of location 
and I’m not being parochial here, but 

ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᒪᑭᑕᓂᖓ ᒪᓕᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓗᒍ, 
ᐱᐅᓂᕐᓴᐅᓇᓱᒋᒐᔭᕐᐱᐅᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ. ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕈᑏᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᔮᕆᐊᖃᓪᓚᕆᒃᑐᑦ, NBCC-ᑯᑎᒎᕐᑐᓐ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᐅᕋᓱᐊᕐᓂᖅ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑲᓇᑕᓕᒫᒥ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᒐᒃᓴᑦ 
ᐱᖁᑎᓪᓚᕇᓪᓗ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᕐᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐅᓄᕐᑐᓐ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ ᖃᓪᓗᓈᑦ ᓄᓇᖏᓐᓃᒃᑐᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᐊᓗᐊᕋᑎᖕ ᐅᑭᐅᖅᑕᖅᑐᒥ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᒻᒪᖔᑦᑕ.  
 
 
 
ᐱᑕᖃᕆᐊᖃᓪᓚᕆᒃᑐᑦ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᕕᐅᑉ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᖓᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕖᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᕆᐊᖃᓪᓚᕆᒃᑐᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᐃᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᑎᑦᓯᕙᒃᑐᓐ.  
 
 
 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᓯᒪᓂᖓᓗ ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᐊᓘᖅᑰᖏᑦᑐᖅ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑏᑦ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᕐᑐᒥᓂᐅᔪᒃᓴᐅᒐᓗᐊᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ. ᐄ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᓱᓕᔪᖅ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᓵᓐᖓᓂᕐᓴᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᑐᑎᒃᑰᒐᓗᐊᖅ.  
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖃᖅᑐᖃᖅᑰᕐᓂᕐᒥᒻᒪᑦ ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕐᓂᐊᕈᑦᑕ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᓂᖕ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕈᒪᒐᔭᕐᑐᖓ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ, ᐄ 
ᐱᐅᒐᔭᖅᑐᖅ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᒥᖁᑎᒋᒍᓂᐅᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑎᖃᐅᑦᓯᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᑲᔪᕐᓱᖅᑕᐅᑦᓯᐊᕐᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑮᓐᓄᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᓇᓃᓐᓂᖓ, ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᓪᓚᕆᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑦ, ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᓇᔪᕐᑕᖓᓃᑎᓪᓗᒍ. ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕐᑕᐅᖁᒐᔭᕐᑕᕋ ᐊᓯᐊᓄᖔᖅ 
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certainly, in Rankin Inlet, there is a 
clustering already of financial services 
within that community. Atuqtuarvik is 
located there. There are two chartered 
banks and there is good communication 
between the commercial elements at both 
CIBC and RBC with the people within the 
Kivalliq region, and I said Atuqtuarvik is 
already there. 
 
It’s a common feature of successful 
economic strategy to cluster expertise in 
one particular area, whether that happens to 
be mineral and exploration worldwide, 
which happens to be clustered in 
Vancouver, or wherever the case may be. 
Beyond that, there is also significant 
economic opportunity both in the Kivalliq 
eegion and the Kitikmeot as far as mineral 
exploration is concerned. Probably about 
80 percent of that activity is taking place in 
those two regions. In terms of servicing the 
client, it would also make sense to have the 
operation move further west.  
 
To answer the original question, I think 
that the vehicle is fine. There is one 
potential source of confusion on the vehicle 
of using a Crown corporation and that is 
the CEO, at least when I was there, 
reported to the deputy minister. I don’t 
think that’s appropriate. The CEO should 
report to the board of directors and then the 
board of directors report to the deputy 
minister or the minister as the case may be. 
 
So in terms of structural change, I think 
that the CEO needs to report to the board of 
directors, to use Abbott & Costello’s sketch 
of “Who’s On First,” that that confusion is 
eliminated. I hope that answers your 
question. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 

ᓅᑕᐅᓗᓂ. ᑲᖏᖅᖠᓂᖅ, ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐱᔨᑦᓯᕋᐅᑏᑦ ᑕᒪᔾᔭᐅᓕᕇᕐᒪᑕ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃᑕᖃᐅᕐᖢᓂᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᖃᑎᒌᒍᓐᓇᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᑦ, 
ᕈᐃᔭᓪ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ Royal Bank ᐊᒻᒪ CIBC-ᑯᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓕᕇᖢᓂ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᑲᑎᓐᖓᔪᐃᓐᓇᐅᑉᐸᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ. ᒪᑯᐊ 
ᐅᔭᕋᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᑉᐸᑦ ᕚᓐᑰᕙᒦᒐᔭᕐᖓᑦ, 
ᕚᓐᑰᕙ ᐊᖅᑯᑎᒋᔭᐅᒐᔭᕐᒪᑦ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᐅᕋᓱᐊᕈᑏᑦ ᐅᓄᖅᑐᓪᓚᕆᐅᓪᓗᑎᖕ 
ᑭᕙᓪᓕᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓃᒃᑐᑦ, ᐅᔭᕋᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᖅ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓗᐊᕐᖢᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓄᓇᒥᓐᖔᕐᑐᓂᒃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᐅᕈᑎᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᑕᒪᔾᔭᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᖃᓂᑦᓱᓂᓗ 
ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᓄᑦ ᕿᑭᖅᑖᓗᖕᒧᓪᓗ, ᕿᑎᐊᓃᒻᒪᓐ, 
ᐅᐊᓚᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑕᐅᕗᖓ ᓄᒃᑎᖅᑕᐅᑉᐸᑦ 
ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᒐᔭᕐᑐᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐄ, ᑖᓐᓇ ᖃᓄᐃᓐᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑎᒥᓐᖑᕐᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐅᐃᒻᒪᐅᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᑐᒥᒃ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒥᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᕐᒪᑦ, ᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᓪᓗᓂ, ᐃᓛᒃ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑦᑎᓪᓗᖓᓖ, ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕐᑕᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑦ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑭᐅᑦᑕᓪᓗᐊᕐᑐᖕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑕᐃᑦᓱᒪ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᕐᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕐᑕᐅᖁᒐᔭᕐᑕᕋ, ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕐᑕᖃᑦᑕᓗᓂ 
ᐅᐃᒪᓇᕐᓂᐊᓐᖏᒻᒪᓐ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᓐ. 
ᑭᐅᕗᖓᖃᐃ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
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Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. That’s very good 
information and that’s the kind of 
information the board appreciates hearing 
from former office holders.  
 
Just on your last comment about reporting 
to the deputy minister, yes, it’s very 
confusing to us as well - what is the 
relationship between NBCC and the chair 
to the minister, the CEO to the board of 
directors or to the deputy minister. There 
seemed to be a change somewhere in there 
because there’s a letter recently written by 
the minister or the deputy minister a couple 
of years ago. It’s in my binder somewhere, 
but they specifically told the chair of the 
board that the CEO would be reporting to 
the deputy minister for the foreseeable 
future because they felt that the CEO 
wasn’t providing the information that the 
Auditor General’s Office required for their 
audit.  
 
I’m not sure what was transpiring during 
that time but it was clear that the CEO was 
reporting to the chair and the board, and 
they weren’t able to get the CEO to 
perform the duties that were set out inside 
the letter of expectation. So the department 
felt, “Well, we’ve got to do something or 
we’re going to write a letter to the 
chairperson and tell the chairperson that the 
CEO is now reporting to the deputy 
minister for the foreseeable future.”  
 
So it was during your time when you 
reported to the deputy minister and found 
that problematic. Can you expand on that a 
little bit? From you experience, what were 
the difficulties of reporting to the deputy 
minister as opposed to reporting to the 
chairman of the board? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 

ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃᖢᒍᓗ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᐊᓐᑭᓐ. ᐄ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᕈᒥᓇᕐᑐᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ, ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑐᓴᕈᒪᖃᑦᑕᕐᑐ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑎᒥᓂᕐᓂᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ, ᐄ, ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐅᐃᒪᓇᕐᒥᒻᒪᓐ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖅ 
ᑭᐅᑦᑕᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᖢᓂ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖓᓕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᓪᓗᖅᖢᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ. ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᕙᓗᓐᖏᑐᖅᑕᖃᒻᒪᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑐᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᒐᓴᐅᓕᖅᑑᑦ 
ᐅᕙᓃᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᐃᑦᔪᔪᖁᑎᓐᓂ ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖅ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖅᕕᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᑎᓐᓂ. 
ᐃᓱᒪᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖁᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᕕᓂᐅᒻᒪᖔᓐ ᓇᓗᔪᖓ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᓇᓗᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᑦᑕᒥᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕈᓐᓇᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᒻᒪᓪᓗ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᖅᑕᖃᓕᕐᒪᓐ. 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᓗ ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᔾᔮᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᑎᓐᓂ. 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᓂᒃᑲᐅᑎᒋᒃᑲᓂᐊᕐᔪᒎᖅ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓘᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖅ 
ᐱᑦᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
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Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
When I first took on this temporary 
assignment, I did sit down with my Deputy 
Minister Alex Campbell at the time. I noted 
that the reporting structure had me 
reporting to the deputy minister, but yet, 
there was a board in place.  
 
I suggested that that was fine, I suppose, in 
an emergency situation I needed to report 
to the shareholders if an emergency 
occurred. But otherwise, I would be 
conducting my business with the board 
because that’s more of a traditional 
reporting structure.  
 
So, during my tenure, I reported to the 
board. On occasion, I would also copy my 
Deputy Minister Alex Campbell on things 
that I thought were important, for example, 
when the Office of the Auditor General 
made certain recommendations with 
respect to procedures. I put into place an 
implementation plan to get the concerns of 
the Auditor General taken care of. I also 
cc’d Alex Campbell at the time so that he, 
as the shareholder representative, was 
aware of this problem. 
 
Moving forward to your suggestion that at 
some point the chairperson of the board of 
directors was having difficulty getting 
information out of the CEO, again, that 
might have been because, if you look at the 
staffing request for that position and the job 
description at the time, it said the 
supervising authority was not the board of 
directors, but it was the deputy minister.  
 
So it could be interpreted by a CEO that 
really, the board of directors was a sidebar 
operation and that they reported, in fact, to 
the deputy minister and not to the board. So 
I could see in a worst case scenario where a 

ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᔭᕆᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓕᒃᔅ ᑳᒻᐳᒥᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕚᖃᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ. ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖓ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᖓ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᑕᖃᕋᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᖃᓄᐃᒋᖏᑦᖢᒍ 
ᑐᐊᕕᓐᓇᖅᑐᖃᑦᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕋᓱᒋᓪᓗᖓ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑎᒍᒥᐊᖅᑎᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
ᑐᐊᕕᓐᓇᖅᑐᖃᓕᕌᖓᓐ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᑲ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒋᒐᔭᕋᒃᑭᓐ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐱᐅᓯᑐᖃᕆᒐᒃᑯ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖅ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑎᐅᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᕆᐊᖅᑐᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ ᐃᓛᓐᓂᑯᓪᓗ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᐊᓕᒃᔅ ᑳᒻᐳᒧᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕌᖓᒪ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᖓ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᓂ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᑦᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑐᒋᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑏᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐊᑦᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᐅᓚᖅᑎᑦᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ ᐊᓕᒃᔅ 
ᑳᒻᐳᒻᒧᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᒍᒥᐊᖅᑎᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ ᑲᒪᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᓐᓄᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ 
ᐱᓇᓱᒃᖢᓂ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᐅᑉ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖓᓐᓂᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᖢᑎᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑖᕈᒪᓂᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᐃᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑲᒪᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ  
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᓪᓗ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᑯᔪᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᖓ ᐊᓪᓚᒡᕕᒃ 
ᓲᕐᓗ ᐱᐅᖏᓂᖅᐹᖑᓕᖅᐸᑦ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᖏᓛᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕆᐊᖃᑉᐸᑦ 
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CEO would look at the letter of what was 
on their job description, the letter of the 
staffing requirements, as well, why am I 
bothering with the board of directors? My 
boss is the deputy minister. But in my own 
personal experience, I had very little to do 
with the deputy minister. Thank you very 
much. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. Just for the record, I did 
find that letter in my binder and it’s dated 
November 10, 2006. It was addressed to 
Robert L. Hanson, Chairperson of the 
Nunavut Business Credit Corporation, and 
it was sent from the Honourable Olayuk 
Akesuk, Minister responsible for the 
Nunavut Business Credit Corporation.  
 
In the letter, the minister said to the 
chairperson, “My concern is that you, at 
this point, and the management and the 
board, do not understand the extent of the 
problems or their underlying root causes.” 
And then you said, “Therefore, in 
accordance with subsection 7(2) of the 
Nunavut Business Credit Corporation Act, 
I hereby direct the board to direct the 
manager and the Chief Executive Officer at 
NBCC to report directly the Deputy 
Minister of Economic Development and 
Transportation immediately.” So that 
would tell me that prior to that, the 
manager or CEO was reporting to the board 
and I’m not sure how this relationship with 
the deputy minister remained in place after 
this letter was sent.  
 
Can you explain to me or to the committee 
what difficulties you would see for the 
board and chairperson after this letter was 
sent; what difficulties they would have in 
performing their fiduciary duties of 

ᑕᑯᒍᓂ ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᑯᐊ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐃᑦ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᑦᑎᑕᐅᕙᓐ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᑦᑎᓪᓗᖓ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓂᒃ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ. ᑕᕝᕙ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐱᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᕋᒪ ᐃᑉᐱᒋᓪᓗᒋᓪᓗ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑎᑎᕋᒻᒥ 
ᓇᓂᓯᖅᑲᐅᔪᖓ ᐅᓪᓗᖃᑦᖢᓂ ᓅᕕᕙ 10, 2006-ᒥ, 
ᑐᕌᖓᓪᓗᓂ ᕌᐴᑦ ᕼᐋᓐᓴᓐᒧᑦ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ NBCC-
ᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᐊᐅᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ ᐅᓛᔪᒃ 
ᐊᑭᓱᒻᒧᑦ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᑲᒪᔪᖅ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᖓᓐᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᕋᖅ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒃᑲ 
ᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᒻᒪᑕ ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓪᓗ ᑐᑭᓯᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᖃᓄᑎᒋᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᐱᑦᔪᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᔪᓐ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᒻᒪᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒍ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖓ 
7(2) NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᖓᓐᓄ ᑎᓕᕙᒃᑲ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖓ ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᖕᒥ ᑎᓕᖁᓪᓗᒋ NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖁᓪᓗᒋ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓄᒃᑕᐅᓯᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐃᕐᖐᕐᓂᖅ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᖁᓪᓗᒍ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓯᕗᕐᖓᒍᑦ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖓᑦ ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᖕᒥ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ. ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑕᕙᓃᑦᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᖔᕐᓂᐊᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒥᖓ.  
 
 
 
 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᔪᓐᓇᕐᐲᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᑲᐅᙱᓕᐅᕈᑎᓂᒃ ᑕᑯᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕋᕕᑦ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᙵᓐᓄᒡᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ; ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑲᐅᙱᓕᐅᕈᑎᓂᒃ ᑕᑯᓚᐅᕋᕕᑦ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕉᓴᐅᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ 
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overseeing the Nunavut Business Credit 
Corporation if their CEO or manager is 
reporting to the deputy minister as opposed 
to reporting directly to them? Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Effectively, the board of directors would be 
sidelined at that juncture and if the 
reporting structure, in fact and on paper, 
became directly to the deputy minister, 
then I suppose, from the chairman’s point 
of view, that effectively, they’re out of the 
picture and they would find it difficult to 
fulfill the three functions, including 
fiduciary duties that you have mentioned, if 
any fact that they had been sidelined in the 
reporting structure coming from staff is 
going elsewhere.  
 
Of course, it all depends on the 
personalities involved. In the worse case 
scenario, I think I would see that as 
sidelining the board of directors. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: I could say you could use the 
word “potentially hamstringing” them to it. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Junkin. It’s very clear and 
evident that things fell apart after you left. 
It’s been well documented in the Auditor 
General’s Report, and of course, MacKay 
Landau came along and they did their 
assessment of the situation, which the CEO 
at the time didn’t appreciate.  
 
In fact, they did that in their assessment in 
April of 2006, so that was before this letter 
was sent to the chairperson. The 
chairperson, back in April 2006, had 

ᑲᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᓗᐊᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᖕᒥ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᖄᖓ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑑᑉ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᙱᖔᖅᑐᖅ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᐃᕐᖐᕐᓂᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᓴᓂᕐᕙᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᓴᕐᕈᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓕᕐᓂᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖅ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᒪᓂᖓ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᒃᑯᑦ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᐃᕐᖐᓐᓇᖅ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᓕᕐᖢᑎᒃ 
ᐊᐃᕙᐅᑎᒋᓕᕐᓗᒋ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᒻᒦᖔᕐᓗᖓ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᒡᓗ ᐃᕐᙲᓐᓂᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓚᐅᔪᓐᓃᑲᐅᑎᒋᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐱᔭᕐᓂᖏᑦᑑᒐᔭᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᖓᓱᐃᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᓇᓱᒡᓗᒋᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᕆᔭᖏᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑎᒍᑦ. ᓴᓂᕐᕙᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᒃᐸᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᓐᓂᖔᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᓯᐊᓄᙵᐅᖃᑦᑕᓕᕐᐸᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑑᓂᖓ ᑭᓇᐅᓂᖓᓗ 
ᐃᓅ ᑖᔅᓱᒪ ᒪᓕᒡᓗᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᓂᕐᕙ ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᓴᕐᕈᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᓕᕋᔭᖅᑐ ᐅᓂᐅᕐᓰᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᒃ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ. ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᖅ 
ᓴᖅᑭᔮᕈᑎᖏ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓛ ᐱᐅᔪᓐᓃᕐᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᕐᓂᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᕋᕕᑦ. ᑎᑎᕋᕐᓯᒪᐅᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᕙᓂ 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖓᓂ ᒪᑲᐃ ᓛᓐᑕᐅᒃᑯ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓚᐅᕆᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᓕᕋᒥᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓕᕋᒥ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖁᑎᒋᔭᖏᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓕᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑎᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᖕᒥᓕ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ  
 
 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᖢᑎᒃ ᐄᐳᕈ 2006-ᒥᒃ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᖅᑳᓚᐅᖅᑎᓐᓇᒍ ᓯᕗᕐᖓᒍᑦ. ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐳᑕᕐᒧᑦ 
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discussed the MacKay Landau letter dated 
April 11, 2006 with the deputy minister at 
the time, Deputy Minister Alex Campbell, 
where he says, “I can confirm that we have 
great concerns,” we, I’m thinking “we” as 
in chairperson and the deputy minister, “... 
we have great concerns contrary to your 
ongoing assurances and regular reports 
indicating that the operations are up to 
speed. They are in fact not.” I would think 
at that time, even though Mr. Orecklin 
wasn’t reporting to the deputy minister, the 
deputy minister was quite aware of what 
was transpiring within the organization 
with the CEO and that he directed the 
chairperson to write this personal and 
confidential letter to Mr. Orecklin.  
 
Also, in that letter it says, “Please review 
the letter from MacKay Landau and 
prepare a six-month action plan complete 
with critical reporting dates and milestones, 
and indicate to the NBCC board to take 
corrective actions in the issues raised by 
Mr. Andrew Waywell.” Mr. Waywell is the 
chartered accountant that did the work for 
the NBCC. So I think it would be fair to 
state that the department was well aware of 
the critical issues affecting NBCC earlier 
than this November 10, 2006 letter.  
 
So I’m wondering, Mr. Junkin, in your 
opinion, by asking this CEO to report 
immediately to the deputy minister, was the 
Department Economic Development and 
Transportation telling the chair and the 
board of directors that they lost confidence 
in their ability to oversee the operations of 
the Nunavut Business Credit Corporation? 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again, I have heard of certain clips out of 

ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ ᐊᐃᐳᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ 2006-ᒥ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᖃᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᒪᑲᐃ 
ᓛᓐᑕᐅᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐄᐳᕈ 11, 2006-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᖓᓂ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᐋᓕᒃᔅ ᑳᒻᐳᓪᒥ ᐱᖃᑎᖃᕐᖢᓂ 
ᐅᖃᐅᑎᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ, ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᕋᑦᑕ. ᐃᒫ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓗᑎᖃᕐᓂᕋᕐᖢᓂ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅᑕᕕᑦ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒋᙱᑕᖓᓂᒃ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᖕᒪᑕᒎᖅ, ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᙱᑦᑎᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᕙ. ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕋᒃᓚᓐ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ, 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᖃᓄᐃᑉᐸᓪᓕᐊᓕᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔫᑉ ᑖᔅᓱᒪ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖕᒥ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖁᑎᒋᔭᖓ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ. ᑎᓕᓪᓗᓂᒋᓪᓗ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ ᑎᓕᓪᓗᓂᐅᒃ 
ᑲᙳᓇᖅᑐᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᖢᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕋᒃᓚᓐᒧᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖓᔪᒥᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ, ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᒥᒃ ᐅᖃᕐᓯᒪᖕᒪᑦ, 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᑕᑎ ᒪᑲᐃ ᓛᓐᑐᖑᑦᓱᓂ ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ 6-
ᓄᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕆᔭᐃᑦ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᑯᐊ ᐊᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ. 
ᐋᓐᑐᕉ ᐅᐊᐃᕕᐊᓪ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᒪᑲᐃ ᓛᓐᑕᐅᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ, ᐋ, NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᑲᐱᓪᓚᒃᖢᓂ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓂᕋᕐᖢᓂᐅᒃ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᔪᓂᒃ NBCC-
ᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᓄᕕᐱᕆ 10 2006-ᒥ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᖢᓂ.  
 
 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄᖃᐃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ ᐃᕝᕕᓪᓕ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᖓᒍᑦ 
ᐃᕐᙲᓐᓂᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓴᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓄᒃᑕᐅᓯᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓᑦ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᐹᑦ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᒧᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᓪᓗ, ᐅᑉᐱᕆᔭᐅᔪᓐᓃᕐᒪᑕᒎᖅ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑲᒪᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ, ᐃᓛᖕ 
ᑕᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᐃᓕᓐᓂᕐᒪᑕ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒻᒧᑦ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᖏᓐᓄᑦ? 
ᓇᑯᕐᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᓱᓖᓛᖕ 
ᑐᓴᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᓂᖕ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓂᖕ 
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that piece of correspondence and they seem 
to indicate that there was a certain loss of 
confidence. I’m not sure where the loss of 
confidence was; was it with the CEO, or 
was it with the board itself; because I don’t 
really have the full context.  
 
It would seem to indicate that they still had 
some confidence in the CEO because I 
suspect that there would have been an 
evaluation if they felt that the CEO was not 
performing right up to standard. I think the 
reporting structure may not have been 
changed but there certainly seems to be 
deterioration, I’ll put it that way, of 
confidence in the operations, whether it 
was with the CEO or with the board. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. I’ll just 
follow-up with a few questions. You had 
mentioned earlier when we were talking 
about the policies and the procedures, you 
went through a fairly extensive list of the 
new policies and procedures that you put in 
place during your tenure at the Credit 
Corporation. I’m just wondering about 
those policies and procedures that you 
described: were they brought to the board 
and approved by the board before their 
implementation, or were they just set up 
internally? Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
won’t say that every last one was brought 
to the board for their approval, again, 
because there were just two meetings 
involved plus one in May which didn’t 
have a quorum. Certainly, the bulk of them 
were approved by the board. Whether they 
all got approved, I can’t say for sure but 
they were certainly all brought to the board.
 
In particular, they would have been 
funnelled depending on the type of policy, 
either to the Policy and Planning 

ᑕᐃᑦᓱᒥᓐᖔᕐᑐᒥᖕ. ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᖅᑰᔨᓪᓗᑎᒡᓗ 
ᐅᑉᐱᕆᔭᐅᔪᓐᓃᕐᒪᑕᒎᖅ, ᓇᐅᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᒍᓐᓃᓐᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ, ᑎᑎᕐᕋᕐᕕᒥᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖓᓐᓄᓐ.  
 
 
ᑐᑭᓯᑦᑎᐊᖏᓐᓇᒃᑯ ᐃᓗᐃᒃᑲᐅᓗᒍ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐅᑉᐱᕆᔭᐅᓪᓚᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᑎᖓᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᖅ, ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓗᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᑕᐅᒐᔭᓚᐅᕐᑐᖕ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᑦᓯᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓂᖅᐸᑕ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᖓᑦ ᑭᓇᒥᒃ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕐᑕᐅᒐᔭᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ. 
ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᖓᓄᖅᑲᐃ ᑖᑦᓱᒪ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᐅᔫᑉ, 
ᑕᑎᖃᕈᓐᓃᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᐊᒡᓚᕝᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖓᓐᓄᓐ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.   
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐊᐱᖅᓱᑲᓐᓂᐊᕐᔪᑯᓗᓪᓗᖓ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕋᑖᕐᑐᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᑦ 
ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᖕ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᕐᓂᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ. ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᓪᓗ ᐊᒃᓱᑲᓪᓚᒃ 
ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᓂᖕ ᒪᓕᒐᕐᓂᒃ 
ᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᐃᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᓂᕐᓂᖕ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᓐᓂ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᐅᔫᒻ. ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᓚᐅᕐᑕᑎᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑲᐅᔭᑎᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ, 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕐᐹᑦ, 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᕐᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓂᖏᓐᓃ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ.  
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᓘᓐᓈᓗᖏᓐ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᒃᑰᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ, ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᐅᑭᐊᒃᓵᒃᑯᑦ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᒪᐃᒥ 
ᑲᑎᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐊᒥᒐᓗᐊᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. 
ᐃᓘᓐᓇᑲᓴᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ. 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᔪᐃᓐᓇᐅᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᓯᐊᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ.  
 
 
ᐊᖅᑯᓵᖅᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ ᑕᐃᑰᓇ. ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐅᑉ 
ᑭᓲᓂᖓ ᒪᓕᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᑎᒎᓇ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ 
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Committee, if it was relevant to them, or 
the Finance Committee, if it was relevant 
to them, or things like the terms and 
references of committee would have gone 
through the Jurisprudence Committee if it 
was relevant to them.  
 
So it would have been a two-step process; 
first to the committees, and then at the 
regular board meeting, the committee 
would make a recommendation one way or 
the other to the board. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Again, 
as a result of that, in the minutes 
somewhere, there should be a record of the 
board approving or disapproving any of 
those policies and procedures that were 
brought forward to them. Would that be a 
correct assumption? Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, that would be a correct assumption. In 
fact, the policies that were approved would 
have, at the bottom, inscribed the motion 
number and the date of the board meeting 
where they were approved. So there would 
certainly be a record, yes. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. The 
other thing that I noted in your comments 
with Mr. Peterson, it says and I think it’s in 
the Auditor General’s Report, and I know 
that there was a lot of talk over the 
department or the minister directing the 
board to direct the CEO to report to the 
deputy minister.  
 
You mentioned, although you were just 
supposed to be there for three months in an 
acting capacity, your initial contract, I 
believe that’s what you indicated, was 
worded in a way that said that you reported 
in that capacity as the CEO directly to the 
deputy minister. I’m just wondering: was 

ᐸᕐᓇᐃᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᕆᔩᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᖏᓐ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐊᖅᑯᓴᐅᔾᔭᐅᒐᔭᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓐᓄᓐ 
ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓄᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓪᓚᒃᑖᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᓕᐅᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ, 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᖕ.   
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᐅᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑖᑦᓱᒪᓐᖔᕐᑐᑎᖕ ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᕕᓂᕐᓂ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᑕᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᓐ 
ᓈᒻᒪᒃᓴᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓈᒻᒪᒃᓴᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᕐᓂᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᓂᒡᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓱᓕᓗᖓ ᐃᓱᒪᒐᔭᕐᐳᖔ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᓱᓕᒐᔭᕐᑐᖅ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᐃᑦ, ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᓐ. ᐊᑖᒍᑦ ᐱᖁᔨᕗᖔᖅ 
ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖃᕋᔭᓚᐅᕐᑐᖕ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᕕᓃᑦ ᑭᓱᒥᖕ 
ᐊᖏᖅᓯᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᒪᒐᔭᕐᑐᖅ, 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᓯᒪᔪᒦᒐᔭᕐᑐᓐ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᐅᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐱᖃᑖ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᕐᓂ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐲᑐᓴᓐᒧᓐ. ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕈᓘᔭᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒃ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒥᒡᓗ. ᑎᓕᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓂᖕ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐊᒡᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖓ, ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᕐᓗᓂ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓂᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᑕᒡᕙᓂ, ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ ᐱᖓᓱᓄᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᓂᓛᖕ ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ ᐱᖓᓱᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᕋᕕᑦ ᑳᓐᑐᓛᖅ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᖁᓕᓄᑦ ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓚᐅᕋᕕᑦ. ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖅᑕᖃᖅᖢᓂᓗ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᕐᓂᐊᕋᕕᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖃᓪᓗᑎᓐ. 
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the board aware of the fact that, as part of 
your contract, you were supposed to report 
to the deputy minister rather than the 
board? Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
didn’t actually have a contract to take on 
this temporary assignment. There was 
some kind of a document like an internal 
transfer agreement or something of that 
nature brought forward. I didn’t sign that 
document because it was, although it was 
deemed an internal transfer agreement, I 
wasn’t interested in a permanent position. 
The way it was worded, it seemed to leave 
it at least open to question of whether it 
was permanent or temporary.  
 
So we agreed, between me and Alex 
Campbell, that we wouldn’t engage in an 
internal transfer agreement, which I think 
was some kind of a standard, a boiler plate 
thing that Human Resources came up with. 
So I did not have a contract which dictated 
that I reported to the deputy minister but 
rather I looked at the actual staffing 
requirement or the staffing request and I 
also looked at the job description; both of 
those states that the supervising authority 
was the deputy minister. 
 
That’s where I got the notion that I should 
be reporting to the deputy minister, but as I 
said earlier, I discussed that with the 
deputy minister at the time, noting that, 
from an operating point of view, it didn’t 
make much sense and that he agreed to 
circumstances that I would be reporting to 
the board and following activities of the 
board but while keeping him informed.  
 
Just to quickly, further on your earlier 
question here, I just happened to pull up 
some of the policies, and it is, in fact, 
correct, the motion number is noted on the 
policy itself together with the date that it 

ᐃᓱᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓚᐅᖅᐹᓐ 
ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ. ᑳᑦᑐᓛᕕᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓃᖃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓪᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖔᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᓐ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᖃᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᖏᑦᑐᖅ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑳᑦᑐᓛᖃᓚᐅᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒥᖓ 
ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᒋᑲᐃᓐᓇᑕᓐᓂᒃ ᑎᒍᓯᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᒥᒃ. ᓲᕐᓗ ᐊᓪᓚᒡᕕᐅᑉ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᓄᑦᑎᖅᑕᐅᓂᕐᓂᒃ ᐊᖏᕈᑎ. 
ᐊᑎᓕᐅᓚᐅᖏᑕᕋ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ. ᓄᑦᑎᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐊᖏᕈᑕᐅᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᔫᒐᓗᐊᖅ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᐃᓐᓇᕈᒪᓚᐅᖏᓐᓇᒪ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ. 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᓕᓚᐅᕋᒪ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᖏᓐᓇᓐᓂᐊᕐᓕᖅᐳᖔ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᓚᐅᑲᐱᓪᓚᑉᐳᖓᓘᓐᓂᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐱᑦᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᑎᓕᐅᓚᐅᖏᑕᒃᑲ ᓄᑦᑎᕈᑎᑦ 
ᐊᖏᕈᑎ ᐊᑎᓕᐅᓚᐅᖏᑕᕋ. ᒪᓕᒐᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᒐᔪᒃᑐᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓃᓐᖔᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐱᑦᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᑳᑦᑐᓛᖃᓚᐅᖏᑦᑐᖓ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓂᒃ ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖅᐸᓪᓕᐊᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖅ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓐ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᔾᔪᑎᖏᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ.  
 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᕝᕙ ᐱᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕆᐊᖃᒻᒪᖔᒻᒪ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ. ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪᐃᓛᒃ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕋ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑑᑉ 
ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑕᑯᓐᓇᕐᓗᒍ 
ᑐᑭᖃᓗᐊᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᓐ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᒪᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐊᖏᖃᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐱᓂᐊᕐᓂᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᕿᓚᒻᒥᐅᓗᒍ ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᕐᓄᑦ. 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᐄ, ᑕᒻᒪᖏᑦᑐᖅ. ᐱᖁᔨᕗᖔᕈᑏᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᕐᒥ, ᐅᓪᓗᐊᓗ 
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was passed by the board. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Also, 
one of the things that’s mentioned in the 
Auditor General’s Report; there’s a whole 
section on it that had to do with the fact 
that the corporation failed to administer 
loans on behalf of the Kitikmeot Business 
Development Centre; and it indicates in 
there that that responsibility was 
transferred over to the Business Credit 
Corporation in 2001, and I know this 
carried out as it went from that time.  
 
It was through your tenure there that the 
auditor made numerous observations that 
basically nothing was being done with the 
Kitikmeot Business Development Centre 
portfolio. I’m just wondering if you can 
recall any instructions, or anything, or why, 
during your time there, if anything was 
done with that file or not. Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I’ll just take a moment here. In the business 
plan that was provided to the board of 
directors and the subsequent staff, one of 
the goals was the complete oversight of the 
Community Futures Program, and the 
strategy was giving support to the Kivalliq 
CF program to complete its rehabilitation 
which was completed.  
 
In fact, the strategy supports the Kitikmeot 
Regional CF program in implementing a 
restructuring program similar to the 
Kivalliq’s, with some sub-bullets 
identifying potential strategic linkages 
within the regions, and then find funding 
resources to restart the program, assist in 
developing the required human resources, 
and finally, improve upon a third strategy 
and improve upon support to the Baffin 
Business Development Corporation by 
maintaining communications and 
identifying means to increase available 

ᐊᓂᒍᖅᑎᑕᕕᓂᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓚᖓᓐ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᐅᔪᖅ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂᑦ, ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᐊᓂ ᐱᑦᔪᑎᓕᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᑯᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑐᖓᐅᔾᔨᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖏᑦ ᓄᑦᑎᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᖓᓐᓄᑦ 
2001-ᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᑲᔪᓯᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓐᖓᑦ ᐅᑭᐅᓐᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐃᓂᖃᑦᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᔭᐅᖏᓐᓇᕐᒪᑕ. ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᓪᓗ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᖁᑎᖏᑕ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᖓᓐ. ᐃᓱᒪᒐᒪ 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᔭᖃᕈᕕᓐ ᓲᖅ, ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᑐᖅᑯᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᐱᓪᓗᒍ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐅᕙᓂ 
ᑕᑯᐊᓪᓚᓪᓚᒍᐊᐃ. ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᑦᑎᓐᓂ, ᐱᓕᕆᐊᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᓪᓗ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᔩ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᐱᐊᓂᒃᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑲᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᓂᖅ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑑᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᐊᓂᒃᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᕕᒃ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐱᐊᓂᒃᓯᒪᓪᓗ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᖅ ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᖑᔪᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᓇᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓐ ᐃᓪᓗᕐᔪᐊᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᓕᒃᔅ, 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᓃᖅᑕᖅᖢᑎᑦ 
ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᑦ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᑎᑦᑎᓪᓗᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᓂᑦ ᑲᔪᓯᑎᑦᑎᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᔅᓯᕙᓪᓕᐊᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ.  
ᐊᒻᒪ, ᐱᖓᔪᖓᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᖅ ᕿᑭᖅᑖᓗᒻᒥ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᐅᔪᖅ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᓪᓕᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖏᑦ 
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capital to BBDC.  
 
So it was on the radar screen during my 
tenure and it was in the business plan as a 
goal, and there were specific strategies 
identified to bring those into fruition. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. As you 
mentioned the Kivalliq one, I seem to recall 
that the Kivalliq Business Development 
Centre, I won’t say KBDC because there 
are two of them; Kitikmeot and the 
Kivalliq. The Kivalliq one, I believe it was 
in 2004, was also handed over to be 
administered by the Business Credit 
Corporation. Around that time or at any 
time that you were there in your capacity as 
CEO, were you also required to administer 
the Kivalliq Business Development Centre 
programs as well? Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The date when the handover, or the 
assumption of duties by NDC and NBCC, 
I’m starting to get my acronyms mixed up 
here, the Nunavut Business Credit 
Corporation, the date was in April, 
actually, of 2001, when Minister Olayuk 
then sort of put up a decree that NBCC 
needed to take a greater interest in those 
organizations. 
 
At that juncture, the then CEO appointed 
Norman Lefugey to begin the process of 
rehabilitating that particular KBDC, 
Kivalliq, well, it was actually Keewatin 
Business Development Centre. I also 
participated at that time but not as a 
member of NBCC but as their regional 
director, and all of the bylaws and etcetera 
were gone over. 
 
As the membership was changed, there 
wasn’t really a defined membership. So the 
membership was in consultation with the 

ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ BBDC-ᑯᓐᓂ. 
 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᖓᓕ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᓄᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᐅᔪᓪᓗ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑭᐅᔾᔪᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᔪᓄᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑕᑯᒐᒪ ᐅᖃᕐᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᒐᒪ 
ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥᑦ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᐊᓛᒃ 
ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᓂᓪᓗ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥᓗ. ᑭᕙᓪᓕᒦᑦᑐᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐅᒃᐱᕈᓱᒃᑲᒪ 2004-ᒥ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᐊᓕᖅᖢᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᕕᐅᔪᒥᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᕕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᒥ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑎᒥᖓᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᔭᕐᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᑎᓪᓗᑏ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑎᓕᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᐱᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓂᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᐊᓛᒥ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᓐᓄᓪᓗ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᓂᑦ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᑉᓗᖓ 
ᓄᒃᑎᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓂᖓᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᓂᐊᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
NBC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ, NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᐊᓂ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒧᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ 2001-ᒥ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᐅᓛᔪᖅ ᐃᓕᖓᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᖅ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐱᒋᐊᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒥᖓ KBDC-ᑯᓐᓂ 
ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᐊᓛᖑᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓄᑦ ᐱᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᓚᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ 
ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ NBCC-ᑯᑎᑑᓐᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᒪᓕᒐᐃᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓪᓗᑎᒍ  
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓚᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᖢᑎᒍ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᔭᖅᖢᑎᒍ 
ᑭᓇᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓚᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᒪᐃᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᓪᓗᒍ 
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mayors of the Kivalliq region. The actual 
individual mayors became the members. 
All of the sort of legal hocus-pocus that 
involves the change in bylaws and all of 
that sort of stuff was done. 
 
The operations, I can’t say that they were 
officially turned over by NBCC, or by the 
government to officially turn it over to the 
new membership, but certainly, they were 
up and running at some point. I think that 
certainly by 2004. Yes, they would have 
been on their own by 2004 and I should 
acknowledge as well that it wasn’t just 
myself involved in the reorganization. We 
had a member of the business community 
with the Kivalliq Chamber of Commerce 
and members from the local Inuit 
organizations as well that assisted in the 
rehabilitation of that operation. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. I guess 
what I was looking at was in your capacity 
as CEO and the ten months that you were 
there, it was part of your mandate of 
administering or running the Keewatin 
Business Development Centre. Was it 
during that time when most of that stuff got 
turned back over, or did the position of 
CEO still have responsibility for oversight 
in that organization? Mr. Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Again, the lines were somewhat blurred 
because I was on both sides of the fence on 
that one.  
 
Looking at the business plan, one of the 
strategies of the goal was to complete the 
oversight of the Community Futures 
Program. The first strategy was to support 
the Kivalliq region CF program to 
complete its rehabilitation. Certainly, at the 
date of this business plan, which was 
prepared by me, I saw a continuing role for 

ᐃᓚᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᖅᖢᑎᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᒪᐃᑕ 
ᒪᓕᒐᑎᒍᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓕᖓᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᑐᑦ 
ᐊᓯᒃᔩᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᓂᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᑎᒍ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᕆᔮ ᐅᖃᕈᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ 
ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑕᐅᓚᑦᑖᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐱᐊᓂᒃᓯᒪᓂᖓ 
ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒍ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᓄᑖᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᓂᐊᓕᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓕᖅᖢᑎᑦ 
ᑲᔪᓯᓂᖓ ᐃᒻᒪᖃ 2004-ᖑᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᓱᓕᕋᔭᓕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 2004 ᐱᐊᓂᒃᑎᓪᓗᒍ. 
ᐅᕙᖓᓗ ᐃᓚᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᑦ ᐃᓚᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᑎᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖓᓂᑦ ᒪᑭᑎᑕᐅᓂᖓᓄᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᕿᒥᕐᕈ ᐊᔪᓐᖏ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᑦ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓃᑦ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ 
ᖁᓕᓂᑦ ᑕᖅᑭᓂᑦ ᐃᓚᒋᓚᐅᕐᒪᒍ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖅᐱᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑲᔪᓯᓂᐊ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥᓗ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᕋᓛᖓᓐᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᓄᒃᑎᖅᑕᐅᕌᓂᖅᑎᓪᓗᒌᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓂᕆᔭᐃᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᒋᐊᓕᓚᐅᖅᐲᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᖓᓂ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᑦᑎᐊᖏᓐᓇᒃᑭᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐱᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐅᑐᒃᖢᒍ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑏᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᓐᓂ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ ᑲᔪᓯᓂᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᓪᓗ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥᑦ ᐃᑲᔫᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐱᐊᓂᒃᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑖᓐᓇ ᒪᑭᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐅᓪᓗᖓ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᓂ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᑯᓕᓚᐅᕐᕋᒪ ᑲᔪᓯᔪᖅ ᐃᓚᐅᓗᖓ 
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NBCC in assisting the Keewatin Business 
Development Centre in completing its 
rehabilitation. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
  
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. It 
could have put you potentially in a difficult 
situation where you’re in charge of 
administering an organization that reports 
to the board. Also, I don’t know if it was in 
your capacity but I believe you were still 
the Regional Director of Economic 
Development in Rankin Inlet at the same 
time, wearing that hat back and forth. I 
understand since 2001, you were also on 
the actual board as Chair of the Board for 
the Kivalliq Business Development Centre. 
 
Was that ever raised as an issue by you? In 
those three or four capacities, there could 
have been a potential that you could have 
been put, like you said you were on both 
sides of the fence, into a bit of conflicting 
situation. If something were to arise where, 
on one hand, you’re on the board of the 
regional centre, it makes its decisions and 
that, and your capacity as CEO in 
monitoring that; it just seems like there 
could potentially be some conflict there. 
Maybe if I could just ask you: was that 
something that was ever raised with the 
department or by yourself, or did you ever 
have any concerns with that? Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
My position on the board of that 
organization was, at the time anyways, it’s 
no longer that way; but it was virtually ex-
officio. If you’re a regional director and 
also providing some significant funding to 
the organization, which was the case then 
and continues to be the case, my 
department at the time, the Department of 
Sustainable Development, also felt they 
needed to have a position on the board. The 
long and short of it, I was there in an ex 
officio capacity but I also had voting 

NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᐃᑲᔪᐃᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᒐᓛᖑᔪᖅ ᐱᐊᓂᒐᓱᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᐊᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᒥᒃ 
ᐃᓂᖃᓚᐅᐱᓪᓚᒐᔭᖅᑐᔅᓴᐅᓚᐅᕐᕋᕕᓐ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒥᒃ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᐊᓂᒃ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓱᓕ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑲᖏᓕᓂᕐᒥ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ, ᐃᓚᐅᖃᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐅᑎᖅᖤᑐᑎᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᐊ ᑎᒦᓐᓄᑦ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᖓᓂᒃ 2001-ᒥᑕᐅᖅ ᑲᓇᑕᓕᒫᒥ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᒧᑦ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒥ, ᑐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒥᒃ.  
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᐱᐅᒃ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᓴᒪᓂᒃ, 
ᐱᖓᓱᓂᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐃᓂᖃᓕᓚᐅᕐᕋᕕᓐ. ᐃᒻᒪᖄ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᓃᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖄᔾᔪᓕᕐᓂᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᐱᖅᑲᐃ 
ᓴᖅᑭᒐᔭᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕆᔾᔪᑎᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓃᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᒥᐊᓂᕆᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᖢᒋᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᖅᑰᔨᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕋᔭᕐᓂᖓᓂᒃ ᑐᓗᖅᑕᕈᑎᑐᓂᒃ 
ᑐᓗᖅᑕᕈᑎᓗᑎᒃ. ᑕᕝᕙ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᐅᓯᒪᒐᓚᓐᖏᓛᖅ ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑕᐅᓗᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᓗᓐᓂ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ, 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᖅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᐸᓐ ᑕᒪᑦᓱᒧᖓ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐃᓂᒐ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᓂᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ 
ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓃᓛᒃ ᐊᑯᓂᒐᓛᖑᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᓂᕈᐊᕈᓐᓇᖏᑦᖢᖓ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᓪᓗᖓ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᑦᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᑕᐅᕙᓂ 
ᑲᔪᓯᓪᓗᖓ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒐᓂᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓂᖃᕝᕕᒋᓗᒍ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
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privileges, I must underline.  
 
So that was the background on how it got 
to the board in the first place. Then I was 
asked, it was taken into custody in April of 
2004, or taken into care, I guess would be 
more appropriately termed, in April of 
2004 and it was, at that juncture, NBCC’s 
responsibility to move forward. 
 
Of course, I was still on the board in my ex 
officio capacity and I was in the region. 
The woman who was appointed to conduct 
the rehabilitation on that, Lefugey, came to 
the region in my role again as regional 
director and also as a member of the board. 
I certainly got drawn into the fray, if you 
will, of rehabilitating that area. 
 
More in terms of my role with the 
department, it’s sort of a fiduciary capacity. 
We were putting money into this operation 
to make sure that it’s a functional and a 
viable organization. From my point of view 
as a board member, which I have already 
discussed. By the time that I got to NBCC, 
the strategy, as I said in my strategy here 
with the business plan, it had been largely 
completed. It was really a matter of tidying 
up loose ends when I was with the NBCC 
which was undertaken.  
 
During my period of time, wearing so 
many hats, I don’t recall a period of time 
where I was actually involved with a 
conflict of interest situation. As the Office 
of the Auditor General noted in the 
management letter that came with one of 
my audits that I supervised, not the audit 
itself but the audit work, they did note that 
there was a common difficulty in Nunavut 
and that is to say there are too few people 
that do too much work with particular 
levels of expertise. So it wasn’t unusual for 
me to be wearing several hats.  
 

ᓂᕈᐊᕈᓐᓇᖏᑦᖢᖓ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓚᐅᕋᒪ.  
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᐅᑎᒐᓚᒃᑲ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐊᐱᕆᔭᐅᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᐃᐳᕈ 2004-ᒥ 
ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᓂ, ᐃᐳᕈ 2004-ᒥ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐱᔭᔅᓴᖏᑦ 
ᑲᔪᓯᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᓚᓪᓗᖓᓗ ᓂᕈᐊᕈᓐᓇᖏᑦᖢᖓ 
ᑕᐅᕙᓂ ᓄᓇᓕᒻᒦᑦᑐᖓ ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓᓂ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ. 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑎᒃᑯᐊᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᖓᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕋ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᓪᓗᖓ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ. ᑕᐃᑯᖓ 
ᐃᓕᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᓚᐅᕐᕋᒪ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ. 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᑲ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᓪᓚᑖᒃᑲ 
ᑕᐅᑐᑦᖢᒋᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑕᐅᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᓪᓗ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑦᑎᐊᖁᔭᐅᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᓂᕋ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᓪᓗᖓᓗ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᒃᑲ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓅᕋᒪ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᑐᑭᓕᐅᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐅᕙᓂ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐ 
ᐱᑦᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᕆᐊᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕐᕋᒃᑭᓐ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑎᒍᔭᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂᖓ. 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᐊᒥᓱᓂᒃ ᓇᓴᖅᓯᒪᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᕋᒪ ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᖏᑦᑐᖓᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓂ ᐊᑯᓐᓇᖏᓐᓂ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔪᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ 
ᖃᐃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᓂᒃ.  
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᓯᒪᔪᓪᓗ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᒥᓲᖏᓗᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ 
ᐊᒥᓱᓗᐊᓂᓪᓗ ᑎᒍᒻᒥᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᓂᒃ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᔾᔨᐅᓐᖏᑦᑑᓐᖏᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ, ᐊᒥᓱᓂᒃ 
ᓇᓴᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᑎᓪᓗᖓ.  
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At the same time, it is a concern that I 
have, had then and have now, and in fact, I 
have suggested to my former department 
that they consider taking more active role 
with KBDC and they’ve agreed that that 
would be appropriate. I think they have 
agreed anyways that that would be 
appropriate, that they have a more active 
role in that organization. I hope that 
answers your question.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. One 
other one I forgot to go through before 
when I was talking about the policies and 
procedures, and things like that, Mr. 
Peterson asked you if you thought it was 
appropriate that the recommendation or the 
analysis done by the client was appropriate. 
I’ll just get it formerly on the record: while 
you were in your capacity as the CEO for 
NBCC, did you ensure that due diligence 
reports were done on all loans that were 
brought before the board by staff at the 
department? Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Yes, that would have been a 
standard procedure from my point of view, 
which included taking advice from people 
that were in the areas that were outside of 
my particular level of expertise, that I 
would seek appropriate advice outside of 
the expertise areas that I didn’t possess 
myself. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. The 
other thing and I don’t know if you had 
ever had any occasion to do that, but again, 
according to the Act, any loans over 
$500,000 would get approved by the board 
and go through the next step where they 
have to get approved by the minister as 
well. In your tenure there, did they have 
any loans that went through that process?  
 
Maybe I’ll just ask you what your view of 
how that process was followed once you 

ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋᓕ ᑕᐃᑦᓱᒪᓂ, ᒫᓐᓇᒧᑦ 
ᓱᓕ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕆᓇᓱᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᑐᖓ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᐱᓕᕆᓂᕐᓴᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓂ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒥ ᐊᑲᐅᓇᔭᕐᓂᖓᓂᒃ, 
ᐊᖏᕋᔭᖅᑰᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ ᑕᒪᑦᓱᒧᖓ ᓈᒻᒪᒐᔭᕐᖢᓂᓗ 
ᑕᒪᑦᓱᒧᖓ ᐃᓚᐅᓂᕐᓴᐅᒐᔭᓚᐅᕐᐸᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒧᑦ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑭᐅᔪᒃᓴᐅᒐᓗᐊᕐᐸᕋ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ. ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᐃᓚᖓ ᐳᐃᒍᕐᑕᕋ, ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᕐᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᕆᔭᖏᑦ 
ᑲᔪᓯᓂᕆᔭᖏᑕᓗ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ ᐊᐱᕆᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᓐ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᖕ ᐊᑲᐅᒻᒪᖔᑦ ᓈᒻᒪᒻᒪᖔᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᑐᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᓄᑦ ᓈᒻᒪᖃᑦᑕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ, ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᑕᐅᔪᓂ. ᐱᓪᓗᒍᓕ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᒡᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᐊᓐᓂ, ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᓯᐊᖃᑦᑕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦᓯ ᐱᓕᕆᓂᑦᓯᒍᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᓵᖏᓐᓄᐊᓚᐅᕐᑎᓐᓇᒋᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑎᓄᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐄ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᑕᕘᓐ. 
ᐃᓚᓕᐅᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓯᓚᑖᓃᒃᑐᓐ ᒪᑯᓂᖓᓗ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕈᓐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑕᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᓯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑐᖓ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᓪᓚᕆᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᑕᕗᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.   
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖓ ᖃᓄᑭᐊᖕ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᑦ 
ᒪᓕᓪᓗᒋᑦ $500,000 ᐅᖓᑖᓄᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᓖᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᖁᕝᕙᓯᓐᓂᕐᓴᒧᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᓐ. 
ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᐃᓕᓯᒪᑎᓪᓗᑎᓐ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᒃ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐊᖅᑯᓵᖅᑕᐅᔪᖅᑕᖃᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᕚ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᒐᕐᓂᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓚᐅᖅᖢᒍ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᓕᐅᕐᖤᐳᑎᓐ 
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did your due diligence report and the 
recommendation to the board that 
approved, and then the whole thing got sent 
off to the department for the minister’s 
review. Did you have an overview or an 
understanding of how that process worked 
and what the department went through 
when it did its due diligence reports on it, 
or did they just look at the due diligence 
reports that you provided with those 
applications? Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
think there were two loans that exceeded 
the $500,000 limit which went to the board 
and then onto my department at the time. I 
wasn’t privy to what due diligence they did 
on the report, so I can’t really comment on 
what they did to follow-up on the 
recommendations. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you and welcome to 
Rankin Inlet. I know you had a busy week 
and so on but I just want to go through the 
appointment process a bit. I know you were 
a departmental official but I don’t know 
what mechanism was used; whether you 
were seconded or you were just directed to 
serve as a CEO for NBCC. My question to 
you is very quite clear: why were you 
chosen to act as a CEO all the way from the 
Kivalliq region? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I’m really not sure why I was chosen. That 
was a decision made by the deputy 
minister, I presume, and it wasn’t a 
secondment per se, it was just sort of a 
temporary assignment because I was still 

ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖤᖅᐳᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᑦᖤᕆᕗᓐ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓄ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᕝᕕᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᐊᔭᖓᒍᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑲᐅᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᕐᐱᐅᖕ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᓚᐅᕐᖢᑎᓐ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᑕᕕᓂᑎᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᑎᓪᓗ 
ᑕᐃᑯᐊᑐᐊᖅ ᐊᐅᓪᓚᕐᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᐸᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ? ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒪᕐᕉᖅᑰᓚᐅᕐᑐᓂᒃᑯᐊ $500,000 ᐅᖓᑖᓅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᓚᐅᕐᖢᑎᖕ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓅᑦᑕᐅᑦᓴᖅᐳᓐ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓕᕆᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓇᒪ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒃᑎᑉᐸᒋᑦ 
ᑲᖏᖅᖠᓂᕐᒧᓐ. ᐱᓕᕆᕈᓘᔭᓚᐅᕐᑐᑎᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒐᕕᑦ. 
ᑎᒃᑯᐊᕐᓯᓂᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔪᒪᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯ. ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒻᒧᑦ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑕᐅᖃᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒐᕕᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑦ, ᐃᓛᒃ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᓇᓗᔪᖓ, ᑎᒃᑯᐊᕐᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᕐᐱᑦ 
ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃ ᐊᓯᐊᓄᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᕋᓗᐊᕐᖢᑎᑦ, 
ᑕᕝᕗᖓ ᐃᓕᔭᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᕐᐱᓐ. ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᓐ 
ᓂᕈᐊᕐᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᐱᓐ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ, ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐋᒪᐃ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᖃᓄᖅ ᓂᕈᐊᕐᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᕐᒪ. 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ. 
ᐊᓯᐊᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᕐᖢᖓ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. ᑕᕝᕗᖓ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᑐᖓ, ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ 
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responsible for my duties back in the 
Kivalliq. Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. Yes, that’s 
important to note. Was there a letter sent to 
you; were you given a letter to act as an 
Acting CEO? Was there a term period with 
a specified time or was it open? Did you 
actually receive appointment by way of 
letter? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
don’t recall receiving an actual letter. I 
discussed it, I think I was in Iqaluit at the 
time with a senior management committee 
meeting, and Mr. Campbell asked me if I 
would act in that capacity.  
 
At that juncture, it was verbal and that was 
followed up with this interim boiler plate 
re-assignment document, which appeared 
to be open. The potential appeared that I 
would be ending up in Cape Dorset without 
way back out. No offense to Cape Dorset 
but that wasn’t my in my long-term goal.  
 
So this particular transfer assignment or 
whatever the correct term is for this 
particular internal Human Resource 
paperwork, I didn’t sign that and I told my 
deputy minister at the time why I wasn’t 
going to sign it, because of the wording 
involved. So there was a piece of 
paperwork. I didn’t sign it and then I 
carried on about my business.  
 
The initial representation for this job was 
about three months until they could hire an 
interim CEO or a permanent CEO. The 
process did get started in January but it was 

ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᑐᑦᓴᐅᑕᐅᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᖓ, 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
  
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐄ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓗᒍ 
ᐱᐅᔪᖅ. ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅᑖᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐲᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓴᒪᑲᐃᓐᓇᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓕᓴᒪᓂᐊᖅᑕᐃᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᐹ ᐃᓱᓕᕝᕕᖃᕐᓗᓂ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᒪᑐᐃᖓᑐᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᐸ? ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅᑖᓚᐅᖅᐲᑦ 
ᑎᒃᑯᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᒃᑯᑕᒥ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ.  
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅᑖᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᕐᒪ ᐃᓛ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖔ. ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓃᓚᐅᖅᐸᓪᓚᐃᒐᒪ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑳᒻᐳᓪᓗ 
ᑕᐃᑯᖓ ᐃᓕᔪᒪᒻᒪᖓ.  
 
 
 
ᐊᐱᕆᖅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂᖓ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑭᖑᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᐃᓕᓯᒪᑲᐃᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑕᐃᑯᖓ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᓂᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᓂᑦ 
ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅᑖᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒪᑐᐃᖓᔫᔭᓕ 
ᐃᓱᓕᒃᑕᕐᕕᓴᖃᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓃᑯᑖᑐᔅᓴᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐊᓯᐊᓄᑦ ᓄᒃᑎᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐊᖅᑯᑎᖃᓕᕋᔭᖅᑐᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᑎᓕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕋ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᐅᖃᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖅᑕᑯᓗᖏᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. ᐄ, ᐸᐃᑉᐹᓕᕆᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐊᑎᓕᐅᓚᐅᖅᖢᖓᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᒃᓴᒃᑲ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᓕᖅᖢᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᖓᓱᑦ, ᐃᓛ ᐱᖓᓱᓄᑦ ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᔅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐃᓕᓯᒪᐃᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᑐᒥᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᒥᑦ ᕿᓂᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂ. ᔮᓐᓄᐊᕆᒥᑦ 
ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑕᕐᒪᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
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unfortunately a sterile errand because no 
qualified people applied, or something of 
that nature, so it had to be re-advertised or 
some such.  
 
The long and short of it, my three-month 
assignment, at nobody’s fault, waxed into a 
ten-month assignment, but no particular 
letters or anything were exchanged. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. That’s 
like going to one place for a day or two and 
being stuck there in a blizzard for a week. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Did you understand your role 
to be quite clear? Was it clearly 
communicated to you what your role was 
when you were assigned as Acting CEO by 
the deputy minister? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: I received a copy of the job 
description for the CEO and it was clear 
that I was there not from the job 
description but from my discussions with 
the deputy minister, that this was a 
temporary assignment, and I certainly 
indicated that that was my interest in just a 
temporary assignment and that I was there 
in the caretaking capacity, if you will. So 
by way of the job description, I knew what 
the responsibilities were involved. Thank 
you very much.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. Also, I wanted for 
you to explain whether or not the reporting 
relationship was clearly spelled out. Was it 
clear to you as to whom you were to report 
to from that job description? Thank you. 

ᓇᓂᓯᔪᓐᓇᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᐆᒃᑐᖅᑐᖃᓚᐅᓐᖏᒪᓪᓗ 
ᑲᔪᖏᖅᓴᐅᑎᔪᒍᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᓛᖅᑐᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᖅᑭᓂᑦ ᐱᖓᓱᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑦᑕᕋᒪ ᖁᓕᓄᑦ ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ 
ᑕᑭᓂᖃᓕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᓯᒃᓴᖃᓐᖏᓐᓂᖅ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐅᓪᓗᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᑕᐃᑯᓐᖓᕆᐊᖅᑐᕋᓗᐊᖅᖢᓂ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᓕᒫᖅ 
ᐊᔪᖅᓯᓯᒪᕐᓂᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᓕᖓᒐᔭᖅᑲ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᕆᐊᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᐹ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓕᕆᔨᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᐲᑦ ᑕᐃᑯᖓ 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᕕᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐅᔮᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦᑕ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐱᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᖃᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ 
ᐃᓕᓯᒪᑲᐃᓐᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᖢᖓ. 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑲᐃᓐᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᒪᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᒫ ᑲᒪᓪᓗᖓ 
ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒥᖓ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ 
ᒪᓕᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᒪᐃᓕᒐᓱᒃᑐᖓᐃ. 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖁᖅᑲᐅᔭᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᒧᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᕐᕕᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᐹᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐅᔮᕕᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦᑕ ᐃᓗᓕᖏᑎᒍᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Yes, as I said, the job description had the 
deputy minister as the supervisor, and also, 
the staffing request coming out of Human 
Resources also had the deputy minister as 
the supervisor.  
 
I did discuss the unusual nature of having a 
CEO report to a shareholder, which is, in 
fact, what the deputy minister was and I 
had expressed concern about that. The 
deputy minister agreed to circumstances if I 
found the board was doing things that they 
shouldn’t be doing and I couldn’t convince 
them otherwise, that except in certain 
circumstances like that that I would report 
to the board on all operational issues. My 
only interchange with the shareholder, the 
deputy minister, again, except in agreed to 
circumstances, would be at the annual 
general meeting when we reported the 
results of our financial operations.  
 
So it was clear to me what the paper trail 
was in terms of my reporting relationship 
but we also discussed the problems with 
that relationship at the time I took over the 
operations. We agreed, between Mr. 
Campbell and me, that I would be reporting 
to the board except in exceptional 
circumstances. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. The Auditor 
General has referenced the reporting 
relationship with the board and to the 
department. Her report indicates that there 
was sort of a conflicting situation that 
existed. It was not clear in the opinion of 
the Auditor General that the reporting 

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐄ, ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑎᒍᑦ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᓪᓗᒍ. 
 
 
 
ᐄ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕋ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᑕᑯᓐᓇᒐᔪᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᒪᑯᓄᖓ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᕐᕕᖃᒐᔪᒃᑲᓗᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᑦ 
ᑎᒦᑦ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᒋᓪᓗ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍᓗ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑕᒪᑐᒧᖓ 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ. ᐊᔾᔨᐅᖏᑦᑐᖅᑕᖃᕐᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖃᑦᑕᕋᔭᖅᑐᖓ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᐅᖃᕐᕕᒋᒐᔭᖅᑕᕋ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᑕᒫᖅᓯᐅᑎᓂᑦ ᑲᒪᓕᕈᑦᑕ 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑑᓕᕐᒪᖔᖏᓪᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑲᐅᑎᒋᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᕕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᑎᒎᓐ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᔭᕆᐊᖃᒻᒪᖔᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖅᕕᒋᒐᔭᖅᑕᕋ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ  ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᑕᖃᑉᐸᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒥᖓ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥᒃ. ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᕈᔪᒻᒧᑦ 
ᐊᖅᑯᓵᖅᑕᐅᓐᓂᕈᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᕋᔭᖅᑐᖓ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑏᓐᓇ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑕᕐᓂᖅ ᓲᕐᓗ ᐃᒻᒥᒧᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᒻᒥᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᑎᒻᒪᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᑦᑎᐊᖏᒻᒪᓪᓗ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑕᕐᓂᖅ ᐃᓛᒃ ᑭᓇᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᓐ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᓐ. 
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relationship was not clearly spelled out, 
even after your term, and perhaps, since 
1999 I suppose, or 2000. Do you share the 
view of the Auditor General that the 
reporting relationship with the CEO is not 
clearly spelled out? Would you concur with 
her comments on that? 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I’m not sure of what the exact wording of 
the Auditor General’s comments were. I 
will say that the reporting structure was 
clear from the two sources that I mentioned 
but I thought it was dysfunctional. 
 
In fact, if you look to Canada 
Corporations Act, the responsibility of 
directors, it’s very clear in the Canada 
Corporations Act and in legislation that the 
responsibility of directors is not to the 
shareholders but to the corporation. In a 
situation where the board of directors are... 
it may be difficult for Crown corporations, 
but I rather doubt it; certainly, for private 
corporations, the responsibility of the board 
of directors is to the corporation and not to 
the shareholders. There are reasons for this 
which I won’t get into. 
 
It appeared to me as dysfunctional that if 
board of directors was responsible for the 
corporation and then a senior staff member 
of the corporation was reporting to the 
shareholder, there’s a clear dysfunction 
there. I think that that might be what the 
Auditor General was referring to was it just 
simply contravened the Canada 
Corporations Act. Thank you very much. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. I think the 

ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒧᖓ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 1999-ᒥᓂᒃ 2000-ᒧᑦ. 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᖓ ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒋᕕᐅᒃ. 
ᐃᓛᒃ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒌᕕᐅᒃ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᑦᑎᐊᖏᓐᓂᕋᐃᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓇᒧᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖅᕕᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᖅᐱᓐ? 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓪᓚᕆᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᓐ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᓇᓗᔪᖓᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑕᕐᓂᖅ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖅᕕᖃᕐᓂᖅ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᐸᓐ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ 
ᑕᐃᖃᐅᔮᒃᑲ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᓱᒋᓚᐅᖏᑕᕋ.  
 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᓚᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ. 
ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᖅᑎᒍᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑎᒍᑦ. 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐃᓛᒃ, 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᖑᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᒧᖔᖅ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᓲᓐ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᔾᔪᑎᖃᖏᑦᑐᖔᓄᑦ. ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐱᔭᒃᓴᑖᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᑖᒃᓱᒧᖓ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑕᖅᖢᓂ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᖃᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᒫᑦᑎᐊᖑᓇᓱᒋᓚᐅᖏᑕᒃᑲ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓂᑦ 
ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᕐᒥ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓯᖁᒥᑦᑎᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕋᓱᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕋ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒻᒪᕆᐊᓗᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐊᕐᓇᓂ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
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Auditor General has stated more than once 
in her report that the role of the CEO is not 
clearly defined as to whom they should 
report to in practice. I think the Act is 
really quite clear that the CEO is to be 
directed by the board. 
 
The letter of instruction or whatnot the 
minister issued in May, I believe, of 2003, 
indicated that there is a dotted line. Did you 
understand it to be when you were hired 
that there’s a dotted line in terms of the 
reporting relationship to the deputy 
minister? Did it also indicate that you were 
to report to the chairman of the board? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It 
was clear to me that in fact there wasn’t a 
dotted line but a solid line. It said in non-
equivocal terms that the supervisor of the 
CEO was the deputy minister, and hence 
my discussion with Mr. Campbell, and I 
said that this really, at best, should be a 
dotted line, if it exists at all. We agreed 
that, in fact, I would be reporting to the 
board, regardless of what was in the job 
description, or was in the staffing report, or 
what’s in the legislation.  
 
From a functional point of view and to 
remain within the confines of the Canada 
Business Corporations Act, I should report 
to the board. That’s how I conducted my 
operations and I discussed that with the 
deputy minister at the time. Thank you 
very much. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. Did the board 
ever at all express confusion over that dual 

ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᒥᒍᑦ. 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖏᒻᒪᒡᒎᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖅ 
ᑭᓇᒧᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑦᑕᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᒻᒪᖔᓐ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᕆᐊᖃᒻᒪᖔᓐ. ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᕐᓕ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᓂ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖏᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ.  
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑎᓕᐅᕈᑏᓐ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓐ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒦᖔᖅᑐᓐ ᒪᐃ 2003-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᒪᑐᐃᖓᕕᑦᑕᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ. 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇᑯᓗᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᓚᐅᖅᐱᐅᒃ ᓇᒧᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑦᑕᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᒻᒪᖔᖅᐱᓐ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃ 
ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ. ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᖅᐹ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑦᑕᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᑦᖢᑎᒃ ᑐᕌᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᑦᑐᑎᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓᓐᓅᓐ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᕕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ ᑖᓐᓇ ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᑭᑭᑦᑎᒐᓛᒃᓯᒪᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᓇᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖅᕕᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᓐ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑳᒻᐳᓪ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐅᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑳᒻᐳᒧᑦ ᐅᓇ 
ᑭᑭᑦᑎᒐᓛᒃᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐱᑕᖃᑉᐸᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒌᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓄᓪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒪ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᒃᑯᑕᖏᑦ 
ᐊᓯᐊᒍᖔᖅ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ Business Corporation ᒪᓕᓪᓗᒍ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᖓ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᐅᓯᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ 
ᒪᓕᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᖢᒍᓗ ᑕᐃᒫᑦᓴᐃᓐᓇᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔨᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᕐᕕᒃ 
ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐅᒥᓂᖃᓕᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᕚ ᐅᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ, 
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reporting relationship? I believe that you 
were the second CEO to enjoy that kind of 
dual reporting relationship. Was the board 
clearly, in your opinion, understood that 
the potential conflict or confusion over as 
to whom the CEO should be reporting to? 
In view of the fact that the government had 
already instituted pretty much that the CEO 
was to report to the deputy minister, do you 
feel that the board was fully aware of that 
or were they just ignoring it? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
never had that discussion with my board 
chair. After my discussion with Mr. 
Campbell, I just simply went in there and 
viewed the board as my boss, if you will, 
and they viewed me as their employee and 
we acted in accordance with what one 
would expect according to Canada 
Business Corporation Act. So we didn’t get 
into a discussion as to a confusion of who 
was on first, to again refer to Abbott and 
Costello’s sketch. Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. The reason I’m 
pursuing that is because earlier in May of 
2003, the change of reporting relationship 
was formalized by the government that the 
CEO was to report to the deputy minister 
by way of instruction from the minister of 
the day.  
 
So what I’m trying to get at is: were you at 
all aware whether or not the board was 
consulted on that by the deputy minister 
that the change of reporting relationship 
was now going to be pretty much, in my 
view, a solid line, even though the Auditor 
General says that there’s a dotted line in 

ᐅᐃᒻᒪᐅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᕙ ᓇᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᒪᕐᕈᖕᓄᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅᑕᕈᓐᓇᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᑎᒃ? ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᕕᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᖓᒍᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᐅᒪᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᕚᑦ? ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑲᐅᙱᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓕᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᒪᖔᖓ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐅᒪᐅᑎᒋᔭᐅᓕᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᓪᓗ? ᓇᓗᓇᕐᐸ 
ᓇᓕᐊᖕᓄᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᕐᐱᑦ?  
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᓂ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓚᐅᕐᐸ ᐅᒡᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑭᓲᒋᔭᐅᙱᒧᑦ 
ᐊᓪᓗᖅᑕᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᐸ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ):  
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᙱᑕᕋ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓᓐᓄᑦ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑳᒻᐳᓪ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒋᓚᐅᕐᖢᒍ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᓕᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔭᒃᑲ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᕐᕕᖃᑦᑕᕐᖢᒋᑦ ᐊᐱᕐᓱᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᖓᓗ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᒐᒪ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑲᓇᑕᒥ ᐱᔅᓂᔅᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᖅ 
ᒪᓕᒃᖢᑎᒃᑯ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᐅᓯᖃᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓗᐊᙳᐊᖅᑕᕋ 2003-ᒥ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅᑕᕐᓂᖅ 
ᐊᖅᑭᒃᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᖕᒪᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖅ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᓂ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓇᓕᐸᑭᐊᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒪᐃᓕᒐᓱᒃᑐᖓ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓚᐅᕐᐲᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐊᐱᕆᔭᐅᖅᑳᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᖏᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓐᓄᑦ 
ᓇᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᕐᓃᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᓕᕐᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᑯᖓ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᓪᓗᐊᕋᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
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there? Do you have a feeling that the board 
was fully aware of that change from what 
the NBCC Act actually says? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Again, I didn’t actually 
discuss the subject with them. I, perhaps, 
was delinquent in assuming that they saw 
their role, in a fiduciary sense, as reporting 
to directors, that their role was to 
administer and husband the operations of 
the corporation. I assumed that they 
understood that in order to fulfill their 
function as the monitoring function and 
function two, which is hiring/firings, 
compensating and evaluating the CEO, 
that, therefore, the CEO would report to the 
board.  
 
So I assumed that the board was aware that 
that is just the way things are done out in 
real life and I assumed that that was what 
the board would be operating under, and I 
carried on as if the board was my boss. We 
didn’t actually discuss any sort of 
confusion in terms of who was reporting to 
whom. I reported to them and that was the 
end of it. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Just 
one more question for Mr. Junkin. I’ll ask 
you a few questions that I asked all of the 
witnesses that were here before, all of the 
former office holders and the government 
witnesses in our last round of hearings. Mr. 
Junkin, at any time in your tenure as an 
employee for the Business Credit 
Corporation, were you asked or directed to 
make decisions which you considered to be 
inappropriate, unethical, or illegal? Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
No, at no time was I asked to do any of 

ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ 
ᓴᖑᑎᑕᐅᒐᕕᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒃᑲᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᐹᑦ? ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᐱᕆᔭᐅᓂᖃᓚᐅᕐᐸᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑕᐃᒫᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᙱᑕᕋ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ. ᑲᖐᓱᑦᑐᖓᓕ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᕐᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑲᒪᔨᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑲᙲᓱᑦᑐᖓ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕈᑎᒃ ᓇᐅᑦᑎᕐᓱᖅᑎᐅᓂᐊᕈᑎᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᖅᑎᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᓂᑦᑎᔨᐅᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓴᖅᑎᑦᑎᔨᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅ ᑐᕌᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᐊᖅᑐ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᐅᓴᖃᑉᐸᖕᒪᑕ ᓱᓕᔪᒦᓪᓗᓂ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᓇᓱᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖃᕋᓱᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒫᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐱᐅᓯᖃᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᒃ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᕐᖢᖓ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓂᓪᓕᐅᑎᒋᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᙱᑕᕋ ᓇᓗᓕᐅᒪᐅᑎᒋᔭᐅᖕᒪᖔ 
ᐅᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐᒧᑦ. ᐊᐱᕐᓱᐊᕐᔪᒃᑯᓗᒡᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᐱᕆᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕋᑦᑎᒍ ᐃᓘᓐᓇᑦᑎᐊᖏᑦ 
ᐊᐱᕐᓱᖅᑕᐅᔭᖅᑐᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᒫᓃᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᔪᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ 
ᖃᖓᑐᐃᓐᓇᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᓄᑦ ᖁᓕᓄᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᓛ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᑎᑕᐅᓇᓱᓚᐅᖅᐲᑦ 
ᓯᖁᒥᑦᑎᓯᒪᖅᑰᔨᔪᓂᒃ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᓂᒃ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐋᒃᑲ 
ᖃᖓᑐᐃᓐᓇᑦᑎᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᐱᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᙱᑦᑐᖓ 
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those things that you mentioned.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. At any 
time during your tenure at the Nunavut 
Business Credit Corporation, were you 
contacted by a minister, or a minister’s 
office, in relation to any loan applications 
that were being looked at? Mr. Junkin. 
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
No, I was not contacted in that way.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. At any 
time during your tenure as an employee at 
the Credit Corporation, were you 
approached in any way by persons other 
than the loan applicant with respect to 
considering the approval of a loan 
application for a company or an individual? 
Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: I take it by that you mean by 
a lobbyist, or somebody of that nature, or 
an outsider party, no, I didn’t receive any 
entreaties from that respect. Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. I just 
want to assure you that these questions 
were asked earlier just to clear the air of 
any uncertainty of the speculation. You 
know how Nunavut is a small place and 
people always say different things. This is 
just to have it on the record the clarification 
for that because I think it’s good for 
everyone to hear that.  
 
Does anyone have any more questions for 
Mr. Junkin? Has the committee agreed then 
that Mr. Junkin can be released from the 
hearings?  
 
Some Members: Agreed.  
 
Chairman: Mr. Junkin, by the looks of 
your binder sitting there, you put a lot of 
work and effort into preparing for this and 

ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ. 
ᖃᖓᑐᐃᓐᓇᑦᑎᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑎᐅᑎᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᓛ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖕᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᕖᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐅᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᒃᑐᐊᓂᖃᖅᑐᓂ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᖏᑦ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐋᒡᒐ, 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. ᐋᒡᒐ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᖃᖓᑐᐃᓐᓇᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐅᔭᖅᑎᐅᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐊᕐᕌᒍᓄᑦ ᖁᓕᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐊᐱᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᕖᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᓯᐊᓂ ᐊᖏᖅᓯᖁᔭᐅᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑲᒻᐸᓂᖑᔪᒧᑦ ᐃᓄᒻᒧᓘᓐᓃᑦᒧ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑐᒥᑦ? 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᒪᓐᓇᖃᐃ ᐊᔭᐅᖅᑐᐃᔨᒨᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᒥᑦ ᓯᓚᖅᑲᑎᑦᑎᓃᑦᑐᒥᑦ. ᐋᒃᑲ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᒥᑦ ᐱᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑏᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᑦᑎᐊᕈᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᒻᒪᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓂᐊᖅᐳᑎᑦ ᒥᔅᓴᐅᓴᑐᐃᓐᓇᓂᐊᓐᖏᓇᑦᑕ 
ᑲᖐᓱᑐᐃᓐᓇᔾᔮᖏᓐᓇᑦᑕ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᔾᔪᑏᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᓘᓐᓇᖏᓐᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖅᑕᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓃᕐᒪᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ-ᒧᑦ. 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᐹᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ 
ᓴᒃᑯᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᓯᒻᒪᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᕕᒻᒥᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓐᖓᑦ. 
ᐊᖏᖅᐱᓰ?  
 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ: ᐊᖏᖅᑐᒍᑦ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐊᑕᐅᓯᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᔭᕋ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ ᐃᓕᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᖢᒋᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᓕᒫᒐᖁᑎᑎᑦ ᐊᒃᓱᐋᓗᒃ 
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we appreciate that. I’m just wondering: 
would you mind if we had one like your 
binder of information, or if we had a look 
through it and see if there’s any pertinent 
information that the committee may want, 
and then if there is, and ask you if it would 
be alright if we made copies of it? Mr. 
Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
All of this paperwork probably is the 
property of the NBCC. I’m no longer really 
part of NBCC, so it would probably be 
appropriate to ask the representatives of 
NBCC or the shareholder if it was alright 
to release the information to your 
committee. There’s nothing magic here but 
I would prefer that the information or the 
approval would come from either the 
shareholder or the NBCC themselves. 
Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. Who 
prepared that? Is that all from your own 
records and files where that information 
came from, or was it prepared for you by 
the corporation? Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: These all came from my own 
records. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. I guess 
Mr. Ma is the chairperson or the acting 
chair right now. Would you agree to release 
that information to the committee? Mr. Ma. 
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On the 
surface, I would say I don’t have a problem 
with it but I don’t know what he actually 
has in his binder. So I think, to be fair to 
the corporation, I wouldn’t mind actually 
having a look at what Mr. Brock Junkin has 
before formally answering to the standing 
committee. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᕋᕕᑦ ᑖᔅᓱᒥᖓ ᐸᕐᓇᐃᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᖁᔭᒋᑦᑎᐊᖅᐸᑦᑎᒋᑦ. ᖃᓄᐃᓴᖅᐲᑦ ᐅᖃᓕᒫᒐᑎᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑯᑦᑎᒎ, ᐊᑑᑎᖃᕐᑐᒥᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᒥᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᐱᔪᒪᔭᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᓕᒻᒥᑦ ᐱᖃᕐᓂᕈᕕᑦ 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᐊᔾᔨᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑦᑎᒍ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᓘᓐᓇᖏᑦ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᖁᑎᒋᔭᐅᒻᒪᑕᐅᖂᖅᑐᖅ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓇᓂᓕ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᒍᓐᓃᑦᑎᐊᕋᒪ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓂᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᒍᒥᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒦᖔᑐᓪᓗ ᐊᐱᕆᖔᖁᔪᐃᑦ. ᐅᕙᓐᓂ 
ᐋᓪᓚᐅᔪᒥᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᓐᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᑕᕝᕙᓃᑦᑐᑦ. ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖔᕆᐊᖃᕐᑐᑎᖅᑲᐃ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᑎᒍᒥᐊᖅᑎᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓄᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑭᐊ ᐸᕐᓇᓚᐅᕐᒪᒋᑦ? ᐃᕝᕕᑦ 
ᐱᓯᒪᔪᑐᖃᐃᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᐃ? ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓴᓇᔭᐅᓂᑰᕙᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓄᑦ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓚᐅᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖁᑎᓐᓃᕙᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᐅᒐᕕᑦ, ᐃᓛ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᕋᕕᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᓴᒃᑯᐃᔪᓐᓇᖅᐲᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᑦ? 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑭᓱᓂᑦ ᐱᖁᑎᖃᕐᒪᖔᖅ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᑎᐊᕋᒪ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ 
ᐱᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂ ᑕᑯᖅᑳᕈᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ 
ᓴᒃᑯᑕᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓂᖏᓐᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
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Junkin, I’ll just ask you then if you 
wouldn’t mind leaving that information 
with Mr. Ma. I would also like to remind 
Mr. Ma that the documentation that Mr. 
Junkin brought with him was done under 
the authority that he was compelled to 
provide and bring that information to the 
hearings as well, just to remind you of that. 
It wasn’t that Mr. Junkin was required to 
bring that information or evidence for the 
hearing. So would you be okay with that? 
Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As 
I understand it, I’ll leave it with Mr. Ma 
and then he can take over from there. 
Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. 
Formally, I have to release you from the 
hearing, and with that, we will break for 
lunch and resume at 1:30 with the 
government officials. Thank you very 
much for coming. 
 
Maybe before we go, we have offered 
everyone yesterday the opportunity of any 
closing remarks and I also asked them if 
there was anything else that you would 
think that information that may be useful 
for the committee to hear, or any closing 
comments. Go ahead, Mr. Junkin.  
 
Mr. Junkin: Thank you for the 
opportunity, Mr. Chairman. I think through 
the detailed questionings I have received, I 
think we have covered pretty well all of the 
bases that I had. The corporation itself, in 
spite of its checkered history, I think it’s an 
important organization for Nunavut.  
 
We have international liquidity problems, 
which we’re all aware of, occasioned by 
the sub-prime problem but there are also 
other problems at work there. That makes 
regular chartered banks more reticent to get 

ᔭᓐᑭᓐ ᖃᓄᐃᒃᓴᓐᖏᓚᑏᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᕿᒪᒍᓐᓇᕈᕕᒋᑦ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ-ᒧᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᖅᑲᐃᑎᑦᑎᔪᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫ-ᒧᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ ᐱᓯᒪᔭᖏᑦ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᐃᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᑎᒍᑦ 
ᖃᐃᖅᑯᔭᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᐃᑎᑦᑎᔪᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ 
ᓇᒃᓴᕆᐊᖃᕐᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐱᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂ. ᖃᓄᐃᔅᓴᕋᔭᓐᖏᓚᑏᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᒃᐸᑦ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ. 
 
 
 
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑐᑭᓯᒪᔭᒃᑯᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ-ᒧᑦ ᕿᒪᓐᓂᐊᐸᒃᑲ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ, 
ᓴᒃᑯᐃᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᒃᑭᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓐᖓᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᕐᑕᐅᕕᖕᒥᖕ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᖕ ᖃᐃᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᐊᓂᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐃᓘᓐᓇᖏᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᑉᐸᒃᓴᖅ ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒋᐊᕐᑐᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ 
ᓂᓪᓕᕕᒃᓴᖃᕐᑎᓚᐅᕋᒃᑭᑦ ᒪᑐᒋᐊᕈᑎᒃᓴᓂᖕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᐱᕆᓪᓗᖓ ᑭᓱᒃᑲᓐᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᒥᖕ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᕐᓂᖕ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᐊᑑᑎᖃᕐᑐᓂᒃ ᐱᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᑦ 
ᑐᓴᕆᐊᖃᕐᑐᒋᒃᓯᒻᒪᖔᕐᐱᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᓐ. ᐊᑏ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ.   
 
ᔭᓐᑭᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐱᕝᕕᒃᓴᖃᕐᑎᑕᐅᒐᒪ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖕ. ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᕈᓘᔭᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑎᓪᓗᖓ 
ᐃᓘᓐᓇᖏᓐᓂᖕ ᑐᓴᕈᒪᔭᒃᓯᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᓯᒪᔪᖓ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᒃᑕᐅᑲᑕᓐᓂᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑭᖑᓂᒃᑎᓐᓂ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐊᓗᖕᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᓄᓪᓗ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᓄᓇᕐᔪᐊᕐᒥᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᕋᓱᐊᕐᓂᕐᒧᓐ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᓕᕐᒥᒐᑦᑕ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᑕᖃᐅᕋᓗᐊᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᔾᔪᐊᖑᔪᑦ 
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themselves involved in areas with which 
they are not familiar and we know that they 
are not familiar working in the North. So 
therefore, it’s very important to have the 
three Community Feature Organizations 
working. It’s very important. It is very 
good that the Atuqtuarvik Corporation is 
running, hats off to the NTI for that 
initiative, and it’s also very important for 
this organization to get back on its pins, if 
you will, and continue to contribute to our 
economy.  
 
As you are aware, there’s a significant 
amount of work taking place right across 
Nunavut, but particularly in Kivalliq and 
also in the Kitikmeot. So we can’t move 
forward without financing, and financing is 
the oil and the machinery of the economy, 
if you will. If you don’t have financing, it’s 
the equivalent of throwing sand into the 
gears. So NBCC has a very important role 
to play in that regard.  
 
The two areas that I think need to be 
looked at more carefully is the reporting 
relationship, which we have already 
discussed, so that we can eliminate the 
problem areas there and the physical 
location is another area which is of concern 
to me in terms of its ability to service all of 
Nunavut. That’s all I have to say. Thank 
you very much for that opportunity, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Junkin. The 
committee appreciates your attendance in 
these hearings and we thank you for that. 
With that, we will break for lunch and 
resume at 1:30. 
 
>>Committee recessed at 12:13 and 
resumed at 13:41 
 
Chairman: Welcome back everybody. 
Before we get started, I would like to ask 

ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᓂᕐᓴᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐃᓚᐅᓂᕐᓴᐅᓗᑎᒡᓗ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᓐᖏᑕᒥᓐᓄᑦ, ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓗᐊᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐅᑭᐅᖅᑕᖅᑐᒥ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕆᐊᒃᓴᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᒪᔾᔭ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᒻᒪᑕ ᓄᓇᓖᓪᓗ ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᖏᑦ ᑎᒦᓪᓗ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᔪᑦ, ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᖃᑦᓯᐊᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑎᒥᖁᑎᒋᔭᖓᓂᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᒻᒥᔪᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᑦ ᒪᑭᑦᑎᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᑲᔪᕐᓯᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᓰᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᒐᓱᐊᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂᒃ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐊᓗᖕᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᑭᖑᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ. ᐱᓗᐊᕐᑐᒥᒃ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᓂ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᕝᕙ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᒍᓐᓇᓐᖏᓐᓇᑦᑕ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᕐᑎᑕᐅᓐᖏᓪᓗᑕ, ᓲᕐᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐅᓚᐅᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ, ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔪᑎᑐᐊᖑᓕᕐᒪᓐ.  
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᓐᖏᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᐊᐅᓚᔪᓐᓇᐃᓕᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑕ, 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔪᓐᓇᐃᓕᓪᓗᑕ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ, ᑎᒥᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᖓᑦ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᒻᒪᓐ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᕝᕙ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᓖᑦ. 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᕇᖅᑲᐅᔭᕗᓐ, ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᑕᖃᕐᒪᓐ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᓂᒋᔭᖓ ᓇᓃᓐᓂᕆᔭᖓ ᑖᓐᓇᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᒻᒥᔭᕋ. ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕋᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᓐᖏᒻᒪᓐ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥᐅᓕᒫᓄᑦ, ᑕᕝᕙ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒃᓴᑐᐊᒃᑲ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᔪᓯ. ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ, 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓂᓪᓗ ᖁᔭᒋᔭᐅᑦᓯᐊᕐᑐᑎᓐ ᐅᐸᒍᑎᓯᒪᒐᕕᑦ 
ᑕᒡᕗᖓ ᓈᓚᒃᑎᐅᓪᓗᑕ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᕌᓗᖔ ᑕᐃᒪ. 
ᐅᓪᓗᕈᕐᒥᑕᕆᐊᕐᑐᕐᓂᐊᓕᖅᐳᒍᑦ, 1:30 ᐅᑎᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ.   
 
 
>>ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ 12:13ᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐱᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅᑐᑎᒃ 13:41ᒥ 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑕᐃᒪ ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒋᑦᓯ 
ᐅᑎᕐᒥᒐᑦᑕ. ᐱᒋᐊᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔭᕋ 
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the committee’s assistance in dealing with 
one little procedural matter.  
 
As the members are aware, the standing 
committee recently exercised its authority 
to issue a subpoena with respect to 
obtaining certain records dealing with the 
matter of the former Economic 
Development and Transportation 
Minister’s interest in certain companies. 
Subsequent to issuing of the subpoena, 
materials were provided to the standing 
committee.  
 
I would like to ask that a motion be moved 
to enter these items into the committee’s 
record and to direct that they also be 
formally tabled when the Fourth Session of 
the Second Legislative Assembly 
reconvenes. Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman 
I’ll make that motion.  
 
Chairman: To the motion. All agreed?  
 
Some Members: Agreed.  
 
Chairman: So that’s going to be entered 
into the record. At this point, Ms. 
Keenainak had her opening comments this 
morning, maybe I’ll just open up the floor 
to members if they have any questions for 
any of the witnesses here this afternoon.  
 
Maybe before we get into any questions, I 
would like to just give a newcomer here the 
opportunity to introduce himself and make 
an opening comment if he would like, Mr. 
Philip Bhagoutie, and hopefully, I said that 
right. He’s now the new CEO for the 
Business Credit Corporation. Mr. 
Bhagoutie, please go ahead.  
 
Mr. Bhagoutie: Good afternoon and thank 
you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to 

ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᓂᐊᕐᕋᑦᑎᒍ ᑲᔪᓯᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ.  
 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒐᑦᓯ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᔪᓯ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᐅᑎᖃᑦᑎᑕᐅᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᑦᑐᐃᕕᒻᒧᑦ ᐃᑎᕈᑎᔅᓴᒥᒃ ᖃᐃᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᒥᒃ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓇᓱᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᑐᖅᑯᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᓪᓗᒍ. 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᐃᓚᐅᖃᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᕆᔭᖓ 
ᑲᑉᐸᓂᐅᔪᒧᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᑖᓐᓇ ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑦᑎᔾᔪᑎ 
ᐃᖅᑲᑦᑐᐃᕕᒻᒧᑦ ᐃᑎᕈᑎ, ᖃᐃᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᓄᑦᑎᔪᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᕝᕙᓃᑦᑐᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᑐᖅᑯᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑎᓴᒪᒋᔭᖓᓐᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑐᒡᓕᐊᓂ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐊᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᐱᒋᐊᓕᖅᐸᑕ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑎᑉᐸᕋ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᔪᒧᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑐᑦ?  
 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ: ᐊᖏᖅᑐᒍᑦ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐊᖏᖅᑐᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᕗᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᒫᓐᓇ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᐅᓪᓛᖅ ᐅᒃᑯᐃᕈᑎᒥᓂᒃ ᐅᖃᓕᒫᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᓐ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐅᒃᑯᐃᓐᓂᐊᓕᕋᒃᑯ ᓇᑎᖅ. ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒃᓴᖃᒻᒪᖔᑕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓪᓕᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᖃᐃᖁᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᖃᕈᒪᒍᑦᓯ ᐅᓪᓗᒥ.  
 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᓄᑦ ᐃᑎᓚᐅᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᓄᑖᒥᒃ 
ᖃᐃᔪᖃᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᒻᒥᓂᒃ ᑭᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᓐ 
ᐱᕕᖃᑦᑎᓐᓂᐊᕐᕋᒃᑯ ᐅᖃᑦᑎᓪᓗᒍ, 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᒃᓴᖃᒻᒪᖔᓪᓗ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐱᓕᑉ ᐸᒐᑎ, ᓄᑖᖑᔪᖅ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᑦᑖᖅ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᒻ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᑰᑎ, ᐊᑏ.  
 
 
 
ᐸᑰᑎ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᐱᕕᖃᑦᑎᑕᐅᒐᒪ ᐅᕙᖓ ᑭᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᒻᒪ ᐅᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᕋᒪ 
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formerly introduce myself to the standing 
committee.  
 
I am originally from the twin island 
Republic of Trinidad and Tobago, I am 
married to Wendy, and the proud father of 
four children, Philip Albert, Phoebe, Peter 
and Phaedra. Making the way to Nunavut 
by way of Toronto, Ontario, I am excited 
about the opportunity that this great 
territory presents.  
 
With over 16 years of experience working 
for a few major banks and large dealer 
firms, I have held senior management 
positions in operations, project 
management and strategic development.  
 
I have watched with great interest the 
proceedings of this committee over the past 
two days. I am concerned about the 
challenges ahead but I am also confident 
that I have the leadership strength and the 
experiences to make a difference and help 
set things right. 
 
As I continue to review NBCCs 
governance and operational activities I 
recognize the repeated concerns and 
directives raised and issued. I intend to 
focus on developing a strong infrastructure 
with a stable team of proficient team 
players. A structure that is based clearly on 
defined policies and procedures. It is my 
intention to further develop strategic 
alliances to accomplish the much needed 
mandate of the Nunavut Business Credit 
Corporation. I thank you Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Bhagoutie. I 
think we all agree that you have your work 
cut out for you over the next little while. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I, 
too, would like to welcome you officially 

ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
Twin Island-ᒦᖔᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ, Trinidad, Barbados- ᒥ. 
ᓄᓕᐊᖃᑦᑐᖓ, ᐊᑖᑕᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᖓᓗ ᑎᓴᒪᓄᑦ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐊᑎᓖᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᑦᖢᑕ 
ᑐᕌᓐᑐᒦᖔᖅᖢᖓ ᐊᓐᑎᐅᕆᐅᒥᒃ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᖁᕕᐊᒋᔭᕋ 
ᐱᕕᖃᑦᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᕋᒪ ᓄᓇᑦᓯᐊᕚᓗᒻᒥ ᑕᒫᓂ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐅᑭᐅᓂᒃ 16-ᓂᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓂᖃᑦᑐᖓ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᓄᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᓯᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓂᖃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᖓ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᐅᔪᓂ, ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᓂ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔨᐅᓪᓗᖓ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᑦᔨᑐᖅᑲᐅᒐᒃᑯ ᑲᔪᓯᓂᕆᔭᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ 
ᐅᓪᓘᒃ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᓵᑕᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔾᔭᑦ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᑎᒍᓱᓐᓂᐊᕐᒥᔪᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓂᕋ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒋᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᕋᒃᑯ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑲᔪᓯᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᐃᓕᓴᖅᓯᓯᒪᔪᖓ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑏᑦ ᐱᑦᔪᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᐅᔪᓪᓗ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᐅᓪᓗᑎᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᓂᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓ. 
ᑐᓐᖓᕕᖃᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᒍᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓕᖓᓂᕆᔭᖓ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᒋᑦ, ᑐᑭᖃᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᐃᓪᓗ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓂᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᓴᖅᑭᑎᒃᑲᓂᕐᓗᖓ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓪᓗᑕ ᐊᒻᒪ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒻᒥ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᑰᑎ. 
ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒋᑦ. ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒋᕙᑦᑎᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖃᓪᓚᑦᑖᕐᓂᐊᕋᕕᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒃᑎᑦᑐᒪᔭᕋ ᓱᓕ ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒧᑦ 
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once again to Nunavut and to the NBCC. 
We know that we all share the goal that the 
NBCC plays a very crucial role, as access 
to capital, as you know, is really quite 
complicated up here. I want to go beyond 
that a bit.  
 
I know that the government officials have 
now had a chance fairly to review some of 
the concerns that we raised during the first 
hearings in November, as well, I think I 
know that the Deputy Ministers of Finance 
and ED&T probably have the Auditor 
General’s Report in memory by now, 
including the comptroller general. 
 
What I want to focus on is the dual 
reporting relationship. I feel that since May 
of 2003, it was pretty much in effect that 
the CEO was now reporting to the deputy 
minister. So my question is to the Deputy 
Minister of Finance in this case is because 
it involves finance, it may have to be 
passed on to the deputy but I want to hear 
from both deputy ministers. Why were, for 
instance, the overtimes that were excessive 
allowed? Why were they allowed to occur 
by the deputy minister, and in particular, 
the officials of the NBCC, in one case, that 
exceeded $50,000? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. In terms of the overtime, what I 
have been able to gather is that the CEO 
allowed a particular employee to claim up 
to $50,000 worth of overtime. I know, as a 
department, ED&T had a policy where 
overtime/lieu time banked was limited and 
then anything else would be paid out. So 
that’s what I’m aware of, that the concern 
about the excessive overtime was brought 
to the chairman’s attention and also to the 

ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᖓᓐᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓱᒪᓗᒃᑖᖅᑰᕋᑦᑕ 
ᑐᕌᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐃᓚᐅᓂᖓ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐋᓘᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᑲᓴᒃᑐᒻᒪᕆᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓪᓗᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑕ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑎᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᑎᒍᑦ ᓅᕕᕝᕙᒥ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᓈᓚᒃᑎᑎᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒐᕕᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓂᓪᓗ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᒃᓴᐅᓕᕐᒪᑕ.  
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᐅᖃᕆᐊᖅᑐᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔨᓄᑦ ᐊᑑᑎᖃᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᖅ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᐅᖃᕆᐊᖅᑐᖃᑦᑕᓕᕐᒪᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ. ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒐ ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᒐᒃᑯᑦ. ᓲᖅ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᑦᑎᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᐃᓕᓯᓐᓂ 
ᑐᓴᕈᒪᒐᒪ. ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓂᑦ, ᓲᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᑲᕐᕋᖏᑦᑕ ᐅᖓᑖᓄᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᑯᐃᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒧᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ? ᐱᓗᐊᖅᑐᒥ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᖓᓄᑦ $50,000-ᓂᑦ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᕐᓃᑦ 
ᐅᖓᑕᐅᔾᔨᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐃᑲᕐᕋᖏᑦᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓇᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓪᓗ 
$50,000-ᒥᑦ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᓗᑎᑦ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒐᒪ, 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑎᒥᐅᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐅᖓᑖᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᑲᕐᕋᖏᑕ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᕋ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑐᑭᓯᐅᒪᔭᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᓕᒃ, ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖓᑕᐅᔾᔨᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᐃᑲᕐᕋᖏᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
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CEO, I guess it’s in the letter from the 
chair. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
saw that transmission between the 
chairman and he was concerned about that. 
I also feel that the deputy minister, in view 
of the fact they have chosen that reporting 
relationship now be transferred to DM, the 
deputy minister certainly had, I would 
think, a role in ensuring that if any policy 
for overtime existed, which policy were 
they abiding by. Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I can’t answer that because it 
would have to be asked of the previous 
CEO. I know that when Deputy Minister 
Campbell was the Deputy Minister for 
ED&T, internally, we had a fairly strict 
policy in terms of how much lieu time can 
be banked and then anything above that 
would be paid out. That’s all I can respond 
to. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. So what you’re 
saying to the committee, Ms. Keenainak, is 
that the current practice of the overtime 
policy of the government was not applied 
to the NBCC at that time. The deputy 
minister had no official role in deciding 
whether or not to allow the practice that 
was carried out, nor were they applying the 
GN Overtime Policy. Do I understand that 
to be? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 

ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᐱᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑎᑎᖅᑲ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᒥᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᑦ 
ᐱᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᑦᑎᒍ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐄ, ᑕᑯᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᖅᑲ. 
ᐅᑎᖅᑕᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᒃᐱᒍᓱᒃᑲᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᐊ ᑕᐅᑐᑦᑕᖏᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᑕᐅᑐᑦᑕᑦᑎᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒌᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᑭᓇᒧᑦ ᐅᖃᕆᐊᖅᑐᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖅ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊ ᐃᓱᒪᓇᕐᒪᑦ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖃᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᐅᔾᔨᖅᑐᕐᓗᒍ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ 
ᐅᖓᑖᓄᑦ ᐃᑲᕐᕋᖏᑦᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑦᑕᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖏᑦᑕᕋ ᐊᐱᕆᔾᔪᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᑳᒻᐳᓪ ᑐᖏᓕᐊ. ᓱᑲᖓᔪᓂᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᐅᖓᑕᐅᔾᔨᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐃᑲᕐᕋᖏᑦᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᑦ.  
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑕᒋᑦ. ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐅᖃᖅᑐᑎᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐅᖓᑖᓄᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᕐᓃᑦ 
ᐃᑲᕐᕋᖏᑦᑕ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ NBCC-
ᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓃ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᕆᐅᔭᔪᑦ ᒥᔅᓵᓄᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓇᑎᑦᑎᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᔪᓯᔾᔪᑕᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑎᑕᐅᓇᑎᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒥ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦᑕ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖏᓐᓄᑦ, ᑐᑭᓯᐅᒪᕗᖓ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓈ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑯᓖ, ᒥᔅ 
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Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. As I was not party to that 
correspondence from the chair to the CEO, 
I know the previous deputy was copied on 
that, I can’t answer that. Sorry, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
What I’m trying to get at is if there was an 
official role of the deputy minister in terms 
of providing direction, I believe that’s what 
they wanted to do by changing that direct 
reporting relationship solely from the chair 
of the board and change it effective May 
2003. Do I understand it to be, in terms of 
the overtime policy, that you were relying 
on the NBCC’s practice to continue? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The only thing I can rely on is 
that the GN does have an overtime policy 
and that the NBCC should have been 
following it. It’s apparent from the 
correspondence from the chair to the CEO 
that there was an issue and the 
recommendation from the chair’s letter was 
that they should be taking a look at the 
departmental policy as a guideline. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. The reason I’m 
asking those questions is either the deputy 
minister has a role in providing direction in 
terms of financial management or he 

ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ.    
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓄᑦ ᐃᓚᐅᖃᑕᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓇᒪ 
ᐊᒃᑐᐊᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᕆᓚᐅᕐᑕᖓ ᐊᔾᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ, 
ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑕᕋ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖕ, 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑐᑭᖃᕋᓱᒃᑐᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓪᓚᒃᑖᖏᑦ ᑐᑭᓕᐅᕆᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᑎᓕᓯᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔩᓂᐊᖅᐸᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᔭᑏᑦ 
ᐅᖃᕆᐊᕐᑐᕈᓐᓇᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᒧᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕐᑕᐅᒋᓪᓗᓂ ᒪᐃ ᐊᑐᓕᕆᐊᓕᕐᖢᓂ 2003-ᒥᑦ. 
ᑐᑭᓯᕗᖔ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖓᑖᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᓐᖓᕕᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖃᑦᑕᕐᑕᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑲᔪᓯᖁᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᖕ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖕ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᓇ ᑕᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᕐᑕᕋ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ 
ᐅᖓᑕᐅᔾᔨᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᐃᑲᕐᕋᖏᑦᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒋᐊᕐᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕐᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᐃᑦ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖏᓐᓂ ᐱᓯᒪᔪᑦ, ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᓪᓗ ᐊᒡᓚᕝᕕᒻᒥ.  
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐᓂᒡᓗ 
ᑕᒪᑦᓱᒧᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐅᓇ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓗᐊᕐᑕᕋ, 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖃᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ. 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᑎᑦᑎᓪᓗᓂ ᑐᑭᓕᐅᕆᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
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doesn’t. In this case, it appears that the 
NBCC did not have a clear set of policies 
and guidelines. That particular practice was 
abusive and they could’ve accounted for 
probably much higher overtime if it were 
submitted with a larger amount. It would 
have probably been approved in my 
opinion.  
 
I would like to ask the new CEO a 
question. Who do you report to? Thank 
you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Bhagoutie.  
 
Mr. Bhagoutie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Initially when I accepted the offer, I was 
reporting to the deputy minister but that 
was changed and I’m currently reporting 
directly to the board.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Bhagoutie. Mr. 
Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. That appears to be 
clear that that is based on the current 
NBCC Act, in my opinion, the way it’s 
currently worded.  
 
I also wanted to ask you a question whether 
or not there’s a dotted line to the deputy 
minister in terms of the reporting 
relationship, and if so, what does it mean? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Bhagoutie. 
 
Mr. Bhagoutie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
In my job offer there was no mention of 
any relationship to the minister’s office. 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Bhagoutie. Mr. 
Curley. 

ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃ ᐋᒡᒑ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᓴᖅᑯᒥᔫᔭᕐᒪᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖃᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᓂᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓲᕐᓗ ᖃᓄᖓᓴᕈᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ. 
ᐃᓛᒃ ᖁᑦᓯᓐᓂᕐᓴᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᖏᔪᓂᒃ ᐅᖓᑖᓄᑦ 
ᐃᑲᔪᕐᕋᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᔪᒻᒪᕆᐅᓕᖅᖢᑎᒃ, ᐊᑭᑐᔪᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑭᓕᕐᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ, ᐃᓱᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᕙᖓ.  
 
ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔭᕋ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓄᑖᖅ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓵᓵᖅᑐᖅ ᑭᓇᒧᑦ 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒋᐊᕐᑐᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᐱᑦ, ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕆᐊᕐᑐᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑐᕌᕐᓗᒍ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐸᑰᑎ. 
 
ᐸᑰᑎ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᒥᒃ, 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᑐᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕐᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ, ᑕᐃᒪ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᓕᕐᑐᖓ 
ᑐᕌᕐᓗᒍ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐳᑰᑎ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐄ, ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᖅᓯᕗᖅ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᐱᖁᔭᖏᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᒃᑯᓪᓕ ᐅᕙᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒍ.  
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᖅᑲᐅᔭᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᖅᑐᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᑖᒍᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ, 
ᐅᖃᕐᕕᒋᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᒍ ᑐᕌᕐᓗᒍ, ᖃᓄᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑐᑭᖃᖅᐸ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐸᑰᑎ. 
 
ᐸᑰᑎ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒐᓂᒃ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᒐᒪ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᒃᑐᐊᖃᑎᒌᓐᓂᖏᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᐊᒡᓚᕝᕕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᑐᕌᕐᑐᑦᓴᓂᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᑰᑎ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ.  
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Mr. Curley: Thank you. I appreciate that 
response. I want to ask the deputy minister: 
in your capacity as the deputy minister, 
does the CEO of the NBCC have any 
official connection with the Deputy 
Minister of ED&T? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. As Mr. Bhagoutie has indicated, 
the letter of offer is saying that he is 
reporting to the chair of the board. There is 
some tidying up that we need to do, for 
example, I think it was mentioned this 
morning that the current job description 
does say “to the deputy minister,” but that 
is going to be cleaned up so that it’s 
reporting to the board chair.  
 
Currently, I think ED&T and the Board of 
NBCC will have a closer working 
relationship and that line will not be there. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Anyone else have any questions? Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. I welcome you and wish 
you to have fruitful discussions this 
afternoon. It is much better all around when 
everyone is relaxed.  
 
I think you are all new employees, so I 
know you face the prospect of learning a 
whole variety of tasks and duties with 
NBCC in Cape Dorset, such as preparing 
minutes and other documents for meetings. 
 
I want to mention the fact that some 
individuals who apply for loans and credit 
are unilingual and know very little English. 

 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑭᐅᒐᕕᑦ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖓᓕᐊ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔭᕋ, ᐱᓕᕆᐊᓪᓕ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᕆᑎᓪᓗᓂᑎᑦ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖅ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ, ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᓪᓗ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᑦ 
ᐊᒃᑐᐊᖃᑎᒌᓐᓂᖃᖅᐹᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓂ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᑕᕗᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐳᒎᑎᒧᑦ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖓᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᑐᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ ᓴᓗᒻᒪᖅᓴᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᒻᒥ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐅᑉᓛᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᖏᑦᑕ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕐᓯᒪᓂᖏᑦ ᒫᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ 
ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ ᓴᓗᒻᒪᖅᓴᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ, 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖃᑦᑕᓕᕐᓗᓂᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦᑕ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓᓐᓄᑦ.  
 
 
ᒫᓐᓇ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓪᓗᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒌᓐᓂᖅᓴᐅᓂᐊᓕᕐᒪᖓ 
ᖃᓂᒌᓐᓂᖅᓴᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑕᒡᕙ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᔾᔮᕈᓐᓃᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑦᑐᐊᖃᑎᒌᓪᓚᑦᑖᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᖅᑐᖃᖅᐹ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒋᑦᑎ ᖃᓱᖓᒃᓯᐊᕐᓗᓯ ᐅᖃᓪᓗᕆᔅᓴᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᓐᓄᓴᖅ. ᖃᓄᖅ ᓱᑲᖓᓇᖅᑐᖃᓐᖏᑦᓯᐊᕌᖓ 
ᖁᕕᐊᓇᓐᓂᖅᓴᐅᓲᖑᒻᒪᑦ.  
 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥ ᐊᐱᕆᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓄᑕᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅᑕᖃᓐᖏᒻᒪᓇᐃ ᓄᑖᖏᓐᓇᐅᓕᕋᑦᑕ 
ᓲᕐᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕈᑎᓯ ᓱᓇᒐᓚᓯ NBCC 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᐊᓂ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓂᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᓂᐊᓕᕌᖓᑕᓗ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᒥᓃᓪᓗ ᓱᓇᒐᓚᐃᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ.  
 
 
 
ᓇᓗᓇᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᖃᓪᓗᓈᑎᑐᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓗᐊᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐅᑦᑐᕋᓲᖑᒻᒥᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᑖᕈᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑕᒡᕙᓐᖓᑦ 
ᐊᑮᑦᑐᖅᑖᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᐃᓄᑦᑎᑐᖓᓕᕆᔨᖃᖃᑦᑕᖅᑭᓰ 
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I want to ask if you have access to 
interpreters, either part-time or full-time, or 
some other way to communicate with those 
unilingual applicants. Perhaps, I’ll ask this 
question to the Interim Chairman of the 
NBCC.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Chairman, Mr. Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Since 
taking over as the Interim Chairperson at 
NBCC, I have not encountered a situation 
where we would need translation. 
However, having said that, it has been the 
general policy of the government to 
provide Inuktitut services where it’s 
required, and obviously, if that is the case 
with a particular loan applicant, we would 
ensure that the applicant has the 
appropriate translation or language 
requirements that they would need. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. What happens when 
applications for loan requests are written 
entirely in Inuktitut? If there are incomplete 
applications for loans at NBCC to enhance 
their businesses in the community, or 
businesses that operate solely in Inuktitut 
which are requesting loans from NBCC, 
are they just simply sent back, or are they 
given to someone to be completed? It’s 
obvious that if you don’t read in Inuktitut, 
you can’t read it, so therefore, if the Interim 
Chairman of NBCC could elaborate on 
how that would be dealt with. Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think 

ᐃᓛᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᖃᑎᒌᓐᓂᒃ ᐅᑦᑐᖅᑐᑉ ᐱᔪᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᖃᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᖅᐱᓰ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐊᖅᑯᑎᖃᖅᑐᓯ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᔭᐅᑖ. ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᒨᑦ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᓯᕆᒍᒃᑯᖃᐃ 
ᐱᔪᒫᕐᒪᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᒃᓯᔭᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᕋᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑐᓵᔨᑕᖃᕋᕐᒪᑦ ᐊᖅᑭᒃᓯᒪᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᑎᑦᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᐃᓚᖓᒍᑦ ᑕᒡᕙ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕋᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐃᓄᑦᑎᑐᓕᕆᔨᖃᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᒍ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᕆᐊᖃᖅᐸᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐃᓛᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᑦᑐᕈᑎᒃ 
ᐃᓄᑦᑎᑐᖓᓐᓂᖅᐸᑕ ᐱᑕᖃᖃᑦᑕᑐᖅᓴᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐅᑦᑐᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐋᖅᑭᐊᓂᒃᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᐃᑦ ᐅᑦᑐᕈᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒧᑦ 
ᐊᑮᑦᑐᒧᑦ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᑦᑖᕈᑎᓄᑦ ᐃᓛᒃ ᐊᑮᑭᑦᑐᖅᑖᕈᒪᔪᓄᑦ 
business-ᒥᑦ ᐱᒋᐊᕈᒪᔪᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ business-
ᖃᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᓄᑦᑎᑐᓪᓚᕆᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓄᑦ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓄᑦ ᐅᑎᖅᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᖃᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᓇᒧᑦ ᐊᐃᑦᑐᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᐊᓂᒃᓯᒪᓐᖏᓗᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ ᖃᓪᓗᓈᖏᓐᓇᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
ᑕᑯᒐᔭᔅᓴᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᓲᖃᐃᒻᒪ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᖃᓄᑭᐊᖅ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓲᖑᓪᓚᑦᑖᕐᓂᖓᓂᖃᐃ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓪᓚᕆᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᓐᓇᖅᐸᖓ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
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we would have to be practical and use 
whoever within the government that would 
have the ability to do that. For example, 
within my department, I have somebody 
that works in the Department of Finance. 
So I’ll just clarify roles a little bit here. In 
the Department of Finance, we do have 
somebody that does provide translation 
services to our department, for example, so 
that could be used to provide that particular 
service. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. Before I ask other 
questions, I have two brief questions and I 
would also like to thank you for the 
elaboration.  
 
Since Mel left over a year ago, you’ve had 
casual or temporary people filling in for the 
CEO, and now, you’ve finally hired a 
permanent CEO. Why did it take so long to 
obtain a CEO? Was it because you were 
experiencing problems, or is it due to 
neglect? If they required a permanent CEO, 
why did it take over a year to fill that 
position? If you could elaborate further on 
that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Unfortunately, I can’t really speak to some 
of the history before me because I was only 
interim chair since November. What I can 
tell you is my colleague here, Ms. 
Keenainak, and I were both involved with 
the recruitment process for the current 
CEO, Mr. Bhagoutie. My memory may be 
a bit foggy but we wrapped up the process 
well within a month, if my memory is 
correct.  

ᐊᑐᓪᓚᑦᑖᕐᓗᑎᒍᖅᑲᐃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑭᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᔨᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᑐᕐᓗᑎᒍ ᐅᑦᑐᑎᒋᓗᒍ 
ᐱᓕᕆᒡᕕᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᒡᕕᖓᓐᓂ 
ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓᓐᓂ 
ᐃᓄᑦᑎᑐᓕᕆᔨᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᑦᑕ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐅᑦᑐᑎᒋᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᓐᓇᑦᑕᐅ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕋᕆᐊᖃᕈᑦᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᑦᑎᐊᕌᓐᓂᕋᓂ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖃᒐᓛᒃᑲᓐᓂᓚᐅᐱᓪᓚᓪᓗᖓ 
ᒪᕐᕈᑲᓐᓃᓐᓂᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᑖᔅᓱᒥᖓ ᑐᑭᓯᑎᒃᑲᕕᓐᖓ.  
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᖃᑖ ᐊᐃᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑳᕈᒪᒻᒥᔭᕋ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓱᒪᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔨᑦ field-ᒥᑦ 
ᑕᐃᔭᐅᔪᑦ.  
 
ᑖᕙᓐᖓᓗᒃ ᓲᕐᓗ ᒪᐃᔭ ᓄᖅᑲᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑭᖑᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᐅᑭᐅᖅ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐅᑉ ᐅᖓᑖᓄᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᐊᒐᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᔅᓯ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓐᓇᖏᐅᑎᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓄᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓇᖏᑦᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᒫᓐᓇ ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᐃᓇᓂᖅᑎᑖᑦᑎᐊᓕᑕᐃᓐᓇᕐᒪᑦ ᐱᓕᕇᓐᓇᓚᖓᔪᓂᒃ 
ᓱᒐᒥᑭᐊᖅ ᐊᑯᓂᓗᐊᕌᓗᒃ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸ 
ᓈᒻᒪᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕐᓂᒧᓪᓘᕝᕙ ᓱᓇᒧᑦ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᓐᖏᓐᓂᐅᔮᖅᑐᒥᖅ ᐃᓚᖓᓐᓂ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᒫᒃ ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᓪᓚᕆᓚᖓᔪᒥᑦ 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓱᒐᒥ ᐊᑯᓂᐅᓗᐊᖅᑐᐊᓗᒃ 
ᐅᑭᐅᑉ ᐅᖓᑖᓄᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᖅᑲᐅᒐᒃᓯᐅ? 
ᐅᓂᒃᑲᐅᑎᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᓐᓇᖅᐱᖓᖃᐃ ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᓗᐊᕈᓐᓇᖏᓐᓇᒪ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᑲᐱᓪᓚᒃᑲᒪ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᖓᓐ 
ᓄᕖᐱᕆᒥᒃ. ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔨᔪᓐᓇᖅᑕᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐃᓚᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᒐᑎ ᐱᖃᑎᒋᓪᓕᓂᐅᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒋᒧᑦ. 
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Obviously, your concern is a valid concern. 
For a key position like this, the recruitment 
process should have gone much faster than 
it did, but like I said, I wasn’t involved 
until November so I can’t really speak to 
the history before that. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak (interpretation): Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, the position was 
vacant for quite some time and it was not 
advertised for quite some time.  
 
When I was hired into my deputy minister 
position, I asked Peter Ma if he wanted to 
be part of NBCC and if he wanted to take 
part in the interview. Our first interview 
took place in July and the first one we 
selected declined, and later on, another 
individual was interviewed. We had him 
come here in October, and in December, 
we finally did a selection and he agreed to 
be employed, so he was able to come here 
in January. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. It’s clear that this position 
was vacant since 2005 and that there was 
no permanent CEO since 2006. You had 
difficulty of finding a CEO who was 
capable of doing the job and who was 
willing to move to the community because 
they didn’t really have an idea of what to 
expect.  
 
So what was the reason why you couldn’t 
find an individual to fill that position? Was 
it because of the community, or was it 
because the community was too far away, 

ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᑦᑎᐊᖏᑦᑐᔅᓴᐅᕗᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᖅᑭᓕᒫᒧᖅᑲᐃ 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᒪᑐᒧᖓ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᐅᔪᖅ.  
 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎ ᐱᓪᓚᑦᑖᖑᔪᖅ. ᓲᕐᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᔅᓴᖅ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᕿᓚᒻᒥᐅᓂᖅᓴᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓐᓄᒃᑕᐅᒋᐊᖃᓚᐅᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᒪᒥᐊᓇᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᐃᓐᓄᒃᑕᐅᓇᓱᒃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᓚᐅᔪᓐᓇᓚᐅᖏᓐᓇᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓗᐊᕈᓐᓇᖏᓚᕋ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ.  
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖏᓛᖅ ᐊᑯᓂᕈᓗᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᔮᖅᑎᑕᐅᔪᓐᖏᒻᒪᓐ.  
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᑯᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᕐᒨᖅᑎᑕᐅᒐᒪ Deputy 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ, ᐲᑕ ᒫ ᐊᐱᕆᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᒃᑯ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᒍᒪᒻᒪᖔᓐ. ᐊᖏᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ 
ᔪᓚᐃᒍᕙᓪᓚᐃᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥ, interview-
ᓯᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑐᑕ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᓂᕈᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᖑᔪᖅ ᐋᒡᒑᔪᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᕉᓕᕐᖓᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐱᓕᑉ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᒃᑲᓐᓂᐅᕙᓪᓚᐃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᖃᕗᑦ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᒪᐅᖓᖅᑎᓚᐅᖅᑐᑎᒍ ᐊᒃᑑᕙᒥ. ᑎᓯᕙᒥ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑐᓂᐅᒃ. ᔮᓄᐊᓕᒥᓗ ᒪᐅᖓᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓛᒃ. 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ: ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᐃᓛᒃ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᖓᑦ 2005-ᒥᑦ ᓲᓗ 
ᑕᐅᕙᓐᖓᑦ ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᓪᓚᕆᑦᑐᒥᒃ 2006-ᒦᓛᒃ. 
ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᓪᓚᕆᑦᑐᒥᒃ ᐱᖃᑦᑎᐊᖏᑕᐃᓐᓇᖅᖢᓂ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓇᓂᓯᒍᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᓯᒪᔪᐊᓘᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑑᔭᓚᐅᕐᕋᒃᑭᓐ 
ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᓪᓚᕆᑦᑐᒥᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᖓ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᓅᑦᑐᒪᔪᒥᒃ ᑖᒃᓱᒧᖓ ᓄᓇᓕᒻᒧᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᖃᓄᕆᑦᑑᒻᒪᖔᓐ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᐅᑦᓯᐊᕐᕋᓂ.  
 
ᓱᓇᑭᐊᖅ ᐱᑦᔪᑕᐅᓗᐊᓚᐅᖅᐸ 
ᓇᓂᓯᔪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᑎᓪᓗᓯ ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ ᓄᓇᓕᒡᓗ 
ᐅᕝᕙ ᐃᓛᒃᑰᓗᐊᕐᓂᖓᓄᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓗ 
ᐊᖏᔪᒦᖏᓐᓂᖓᓄᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᖏᒧᑦ 
ᓯᓚᕐᔪᐊᕐᒥ ᓇᓃᒻᒪᖔᓐ. ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓂᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅ 
ᓱᓇᑭᐊᖅ ᐊᖏᕐᕋᓴᐅᑦᓯᐊᕋᔭᖅᑐᖅ ᓄᑕᕋᖃᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
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or was it because they didn’t know where 
that community is in the world, or if the 
salary was too low, or if they had children, 
that they weren’t sure of whether their 
children would be able to attend school? 
What was the reasoning? If you can clarify 
that for me. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak (interpretation): Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. I took over this 
portfolio in July. We had the first 
individual we selected come to Nunavut to 
show him Nunavut, the community of Cape 
Dorset, and the office of NBCC in Cape 
Dorset. He declined the job offer and he 
didn’t indicate why, but he said he was 
concerned that the size of Cape Dorset was 
too small.  
 
Phillip can also talk to you a bit about what 
his concerns were because he also 
mentioned the fact that the community of 
Cape Dorset was too small. He was 
worried about his children and that some 
services are not available in the smaller 
communities. Those are some of the 
concerns that I have noticed. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak: Thank you, Rosemary. 
(interpretation) Thank you very much. 
(interpretation ends) I wonder if Phillip 
could give us a little testimony of what he 
experienced while thinking of coming up to 
Cape Dorset. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Bhagoutie.  
 
Mr. Bhagoutie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᕖᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᔭᐅᓕᓚᐅᖅᑐᓴᐅᒻᒥᒻᒪᑕ ᓄᑕᕋᖃᑦᑐᐃᓐ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕆᐊᖃᐃᓐᓇᕐᒪᑕ? ᓱᓇᓪᓚᕆᒻᒥᒃ 
ᐱᑦᔪᑎᖃᓪᓚᕆᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᓐᓇᖅᑮᓐ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑐᑭᑖᑦᑎᐊᑲᓐᓂᖁᒐᒃᑯ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᔪᓚᐃᖑᕙᓪᓚᐃᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑖᒃᓱᒥᖓ ᑲᒪᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᒪ. 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅ ᓂᕈᐊᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ 
ᒪᐅᖓᖅᑎᓚᐅᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᑕᑯᖁᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑭᓐᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᑯᖓᑎᑦᑐᒍ ᐊᓪᓚᒡᕕᒋᔭᐅᔪᖅ 
ᑕᑯᓂᐊᕐᖓᒍ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇᓕ ᐋᒡᒑᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ 
ᖃᓄᓪᓚᑦᑖᖑᒻᒪᖔᓐ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᖏᑦᑐᖅ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓗᓐᓂᕋᔪᔫᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑭᓐᖓᐃᑦ ᒥᑭᓗᐊᕐᖓᓐ. 
ᒥᑭᓂᖅᓴᐅᒻᒪᓂᓛᒃ ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓂᒃ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓗᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᖓ.  
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐱᓕᑉ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᕈᓐᓇᕐᒥᔫᒐᓗᐊᖅ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓗᒋᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑖᒃᓱᒧᖓᑦᑕᐃᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑯᓪᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᑭᓐᖓᐃᑦ ᒥᑭᓂᖅᓴᐅᒻᒪᑦ, 
ᕿᑐᓐᖓᖏᓪᓗ ᐃᓱᒫᓗᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᓲᑦ 
ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ ᒥᑭᓂᖅᓴᒥᒃ ᐱᑕᖃᖏᓂᖅᓴᐅᒻᒪᓐ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓗᒋᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᖓ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᓯᒪᔭᒃᑲᓕ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓈᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓛᒃ, 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᕉᔅ ᒥᐅᕇ. 
(ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒎᕈᓐᓃᖅᑐᖅ) ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒻᒪᕆᐊᓗᒃ. (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ) 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄ, ᐱᓕᑉ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᒐᓛᒍᓐᓇᖅᐹ ᑭᓱᒥᒃ 
ᑕᑯᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᓐ. ᑭᖓᓄᓐᖓᐅᓇᓱᒃᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑕᑉᐸᐅᖓᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᖑ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᑰᑎ. 
 
ᐸᑰᑎ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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This was a very life changing decision and 
when I came up in October, I had an 
opportunity, this was around the 21st to the 
23rd, to meet with the board of directors 
and we did do a fly-in to Cape Dorset.  
 
During my negotiations on this position, 
there were a couple of things that we 
identified with regards to making the 
decision. One was that the position would 
be re-evaluated as far as its salary range, 
and secondly, that I would have a formal 
three-month review.  
 
I was excited about the opportunities that 
exist here but the challenge, of course, was 
to relocate my family. All of my kids are in 
French immersion and there was no school 
in Cape Dorset that provided that facility. 
Needless to say, I think, in my role as the 
chief executive officer, the challenge that 
we are facing currently is finding proficient 
staff to be able to relocate to Cape Dorset, 
and I think that is going to be a challenge. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Bhagoutie. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
(interpretation) That’s understandable. I 
believe that NBCC faces many challenges 
and that this position requires qualified 
individuals. After hearing yesterday that 
these positions require professional or 
educated individuals to fill the NBCC 
vacancies, these vacancies cannot be filled 
by regular Joes off the street and I know 
that’s one of the reasons why it was 
challenging to fill the position.  
 
Before I go onto the other question, I 
would like to ask the Interim Chair, Mr. 
Ma, a question: when you had a meeting on 
January 17 with this board, was there a 
quorum? According to my knowledge, 

ᐃᓅᓯᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᕐᔪᐊᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ ᑕᒫᓂ ᑎᑭᑎᓪᓗᖓ 21-ᒥ 
23-ᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑎᖃᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ 
ᑎᑭᑦᖢᖓ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓄᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒌᒐᓱᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᔅᓱᒪ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐅ 
ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ ᒪᕐᕉᖕᓂ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᓚᐅᕐᓯᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᒍᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᖃᖅᑑᖕᓂᒃ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᓐᓄᑦ. ᐱᖃᑖ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᖅ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓗᓂ 
ᐊᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓵᕆᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐊᖅᑭᒃᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᑎᓴᒪᓄᑦ ᑕᖅᑭᓄᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓗᖓ.  
 
 
ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᖃᐅᔨᔪᒪᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ ᐱᒡᕕᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐃᖕᓇᐅᖕᒪᑕ ᑕᒫᓂ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᓴᖕᓇᕈᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓ ᓄᒃᑎᕋᓱᒃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᓚᑯᓗᒃᑲ ᕿᑐᕐᖓᕐᒪ ᐃᓚᖓ ᐅᐃᕖᑎᑐᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᕕᖃᙱᓪᖢᓂᓗ ᑭᙵᕐᓂ 
ᐅᐃᕖᑎᑐᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐅᕙᖓ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖕᒥ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕉᓴᐅᑎᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᕿᓂᕐᖢᑕ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔪᓐᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᓄᒃᑎᕈᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᑭᙵᕐᓄᑦ. 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᒃᓱᕉᓴᖕᓇᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒃᓴᐅᔪᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᑰᑎ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ.  
(ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒎᕈᓐᓃᖅᑐᖅ) ᐃᓛ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᑦᓯᐊᒻᒪᕆᒃᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᖅᑐᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᖃᑦᑕᖅᑰᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓯᒪᑦᓯᐊᖅᑐᐊᓗᓐᓄᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓂᒋᔭᖓ ᐱᔭᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᖢᓂ 
ᑐᓴᒐᓚᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᖓ. ᐃᒃᐸᒃᓴᕐᓗ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓂᒋᔭᖏᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᖃᖅᑐᐃᓐᓈᓗᖕᓄᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓂᒋᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᓱᓂ NBCC ᑕᒫᖓᑦ ᓯᓚᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᒥᒃ 
ᓇᑭᙶᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᒧᑦ ᓴᓇᕝᕖᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓂᒋᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑑᔭᕋᑎᒃ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᒃᓱᕈᕐᓇᕐᓂᖓᓂ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒃᑲᓐᓂᕋᒪ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐱᓕᑉ.  
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᓯᒡᓚᑦᑖᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅ ᑎᑭᙱᓐᓂᖓᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᐱᕆᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᒪᖕᒥᒐᒃᑯ, ᐲᑕ 
ᒫ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑲᑎᖕᒪᓂᖃᓚᐅᕋᒃᓯ ᔭᓄᐊᓕ 17-
ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒻᒪᔨᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒻᒪᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. 
ᑕᒪᒃᑭᓚᐅᕐᐱᓯ? ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᑐᖃᐃᑦ 
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there were three individuals that were 
members of the old NBCC and that you 
had new members with NBCC. Did all of 
the members attend this meeting, or were 
there some members that did not attend this 
meeting? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It was 
a bit of a challenge to have the first in-
person board meeting. Because of the 
weather in Kivalliq, we had to 
teleconference with two of our members, 
Mr. Kusugak and Mr. Ugyuk. Mr. Buchan 
made it in from Cambridge Bay, and of 
course, the other deputies were here in 
Iqaluit. So other than some technical 
difficulties to begin the meeting, we 
basically had everybody, although Mr. 
Kusugak wasn’t able to join us later until 
later the meeting. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. It’s evident that the board 
members from the Kitikmeot region and 
the Kivalliq region, with this new board, 
the fraudulent activities that were going on, 
and the resignation of some employees, 
have not had the opportunity to meet as a 
full board to date. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, 
you’re correct. We were not able to get 
everybody here physically. Like I said, it 
was due to the weather in the Kivalliq. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔭᒃᑯᓪᓕ ᐱᖓᓲᕙᓪᓚᐃᖕᒪᑕ ᓱᓕ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᑲᑎᒻᒪᔨᐅᖏᓐᓈᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᑎᒻᒪᔨᑐᖃᐃᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑲᑎᖕᒪᔨᑖᕐᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᖃᓄᑭᐊ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑭᓚᐅᕐᐸᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓗ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒻᒪᖃᑕᐅᓚᐅᙱᑦᑐᑦ ᑲᑎᒻᒪᓂᖃᖅᑎᓪᓗᓯ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᕐᓇᕈᓘᔭᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑭᑎᖕᓇᓱᒃᖢᒋᑦ 
ᑕᐅᑐᖃᑦᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᓯᓚᕐᓗᒃᑐᐊᓘᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑦ 
ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᑎᒃᑰᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑑ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑯᓱᒐᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔫᓐ ᒥᔅᑕ ᕙᑲᓐ. ᐃᖃᓗᒃᑑᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥᖔᕐᖢᓂ 
ᑎᑭᒃᖢᓂ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᓪᓗ ᑐᖏᓕᖏᑦ ᑕᒫᓂᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᔭᖅᑐᓚᐅᕐᖢᑎᒃ. 
ᐱᔭᕐᓂᖏᑦᑑᒐᓚᓚᐅᖅᑑᒐᓗᐊ ᓯᕗᕐᖓᒍᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑯᓱᒐᖅ 
ᐅᐸᒍᑎᔪᓐᓇᒃᑲᐅᑎᒋᓚᐅᙱᑦᑐ ᑭᖑᕐᖓᒍ 
ᐅᐸᒍᑎᓯᒪᓕᓚᐅᖅᑐ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᓯᒃᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᓲᕐᓗ 
ᓇᓗᓇᖅᑑᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒻᒪᔩᓪᓚᕇᑦ ᑕᐅᕙᙵᑦ 
ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᓂᓪᓗ ᑭᕙᓪᓕᕐᒥᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒪ ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕐᓂᖃᐅ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕐᓂᐅᓂᐊᓕᖅᑐᒧᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐱᕋᓪᓚᖕᓂᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᓄᖅᑲᑎᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᓕᓚᐅᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᓗ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐃᒫᒃ 
ᐱᖃᑕᐅᓪᓚᑦᑖᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑕᐅᓪᓚᑦᑖᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᒃᖢᒍ ᐱᖃᑕᐅᓚᐅᙱᓪᓚᕆᑦᑐᑦ ᓱᓖ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐄ, ᐃᓘᓐᓇᖏᑦ 
ᑎᑭᑎᑦᑐᓐᓇᓚᐅᙱᓐᓇᑦᑎᕗᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᓯᓚ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᑦᓯᕙᐅᑕᓖ. 
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. I still have a few more 
questions to either one of the officials here. 
I’m not too sure who can respond to the 
question, perhaps, the new CEO, although I 
know that he is not fully experienced with 
the CEO position but Peter Ma might have 
more knowledge.  
 
In the briefing notes, there are some action 
plans and there are reports on the action 
plans. However, the Auditor General’s 
Report, from paragraph 22 to 24, states that 
there were no policies and procedures in 
place, especially the people who received 
loans and they did not pay their loans back 
and some individuals did not keep up with 
their payments. There were no guidelines 
of foreclosures and sometimes when they 
don’t pay their loans they need to foreclose 
the loans. 
 
All of these policies, guidelines, and 
procedures they say were not available. So 
every time the Auditor General’s Office 
asked questions about policies, guidelines, 
and procedures, they were told that there 
were no policies and guidelines. Why did 
this occur? Why are they finally thinking 
about them now and starting to develop 
their policy and guidelines? I believe that 
Rosemary is the lead in the strategic 
planning, so I would like to ask her that 
question. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak (interpretation): Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. We are currently using 
the NWT guidelines and we are going to be 
making changes so that it is Nunavut-

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓛᒃ. 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᒐᓛᒃᑲᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᓇᓕᐊᖕᓄᓚᕆᒡᓗ ᑭᐅᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔ 
ᑖᑦᓱᒧᖓᐅᒐᔭᖅᑑᓗ.ᐊᖅ ᓴᓇᓕᓵᖅᑐᒧᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᓯᒪᙱᓗᐊᕐᖢᓂ ᓱᓕ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᐲᑕ ᒫ 
ᑐᑭᓯᐅᒪᓂᕐᓴᐅᓚᖓᖅᑰᕐᒪᑦ ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ.  
 
ᐃᓛ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᓯᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑕᑯᔭᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᑎᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᐊᖅᑭᒃᓯᔨᐅᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᕐᐸᓪᓕᐊᔭᐅᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕐᐸᓪᓕᐊᓗᑎᐅᖕᒪᑕ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᒡᕙᓂ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᒃᑯᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ Auditor General 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑕᒡᕙᖓᑦ 22-ᒥᒃ 24-ᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ, ᓱᓇᓗᒃᑖᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐱᑕᖃᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ. ᓱᕐᓗ, ᐱᓗᐊᖅᑐᒥ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑭᓕᒃᓴᖅᑖᖅᑐᕕᓃᑦ ᐊᑭᓖᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖏᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐱᐊᓂᒃᑐᐋᓘᒻᒪᑦ ᐊᖏᔪᐋᓘᓚᐅᖅᑐᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᑐᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᕕᓂᐅᓗᓂᓘᕝᕙ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᕿᒪᑦᑕᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᑐᕕᓂᐅᓗᓂᓘᕝᕙ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᔪᖅᓴᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᑭᓖᕕᔅᓴᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᖓᓂ 
ᑕᖅᑭᒥ ᐅᑉᓗᒥᓪᓗ ᐅᑭᐅᒥᓪᓗ ᓈᒻᒪᐅᑎᒐᓂ ᑕᐃᒫᒃ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᑐᖅᑕᐅᒋᐊᒃᓴᖓᓂᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᖅ 
ᐆᒪᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑐᖅᑯᑐᐃᓐᓇᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᓱᕐᓗ 
ᐅᒃᑯᐊᖅᑕᐅᒋᐊᖃᓕᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑎᑎᖅᑲᐅᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑎᓪᓗ ᐃᓚᖓᓚᓕᖅᖢᓂ.  
 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂ ᒪᓕᒐᕋᓛᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ 
ᐱᑕᖃᖃᑦᑕᖏᑦᑐᐋᓘᓚᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᓱᕐᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᑦ ᐊᐱᕆᒋᐊᕋᓗᐊᕌᖓᑕ 
ᓇᐅᒃᑯᓗᒃᑖᖅ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᓂᓯᓗᒃᑖᓐᓂ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᒃᓴᖅᑕᖃᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐱᑕᖃᕈᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑦ. 
ᓱᒐᒥ ᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓚᐅᖅᐸ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᐅᓯᒪᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᒫᓐᓇᑲᐅᑎᒋ 
ᓴᓇᔭᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᖅᑳᑦ? ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᑖᓐᓇ ᕉᔅᒥᐊᕆᒧᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓚᐅᕐᓚᒍ. ᖃᓂᖅᑲᒐᓚᑉᐸᓚᐃᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐃᓚᖏᓐᓂ ᑖᔅᓱᒥᖓ ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᑎᒃᓴᐅᔪᒥᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊᖏᓛ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᑦ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ NWT-ᑯᓐᓂ 
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friendly. As we stated earlier, the contract 
was awarded and it’s going to be 
completed by March of this year.  
 
In regard to the people with loans, we are 
doing a lot more on those outstanding loans 
and also inputting the data into the 
computer. So everything is getting a little 
bit better than they were before and we 
have a senior compliance officer who is 
responsible for the loans. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak (interpretation): Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. I would like to thank 
Rosemary for her explanation. 
(interpretation ends) I still have a question 
for Rosemary, the Deputy Minister.  
 
(interpretation) The Auditor General stated 
that the computers should be up to date in 
the NBCC office and that they should be 
able to do all of the work that is required at 
the NBCC office. During the Auditor 
General’s audit, they found that they didn’t 
have the proper financial tools and that 
they should be updated and use the same 
program. They don’t have the IT people 
who could work on their computers 
possibly because the community is too far 
or possibly because they don’t have the 
government departments in Cape Dorset.  
 
 
The federal government had $23 million 
available that would be used for computers 
and we’re looking forward to getting the 
computers upgraded or updated as well for 
the government entities and Crown 
corporations. Could the Nunavut Business 
Development Corporation access some of 
that money to upgrade their computers so 
that they’ll be able to use the correct 

ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒫᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓕᕐᖓᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓄᑖᕈᖅᑎᑕᐅᒐᓱᓐᓂᐅᓴᒻᒪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒧᑦ 
ᐊᑦᑐᐊᓂᖃᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᓂ. ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐅᓪᓛᖑᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑳᓐᑐᕌᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᕋᑖᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᒪᑦᓯ 
31-ᒥᑦ ᐱᐊᓂᕝᕕᔅᓴᖃᑦᑕᖅᑯ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓕᖅᑐᖅ 
ᒫᓐᓇ.  
 

ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᖏᓛᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᖅᑐᒥᓃᑦ 
ᐊᑭᓖᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᓂᖅᓴᐅᓕᕐᖓᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᑦ 
computer-ᒥᖅᑲᐃ ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑕᐅᓕᕐᒪᑕ ᖃᖓ 
ᐊᑭᓖᒋᐊᖃᕋᔭᕐᒪᖔᑕ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᓕᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒥᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑦᑎᒐᓱᒻᒪᑕ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
Senior Compliance Officer ᐊᑎᖃᕐᑐᓂᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
Loans-ᓂᑦ ᑲᒪᒐᔭᖅᑐᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 

ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
 

ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᕉᔅᒥᐊᕇ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᖅᓯᕚᓪᓕᕐᒪᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ. (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ) ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᖃᕋᒪ 
ᓱᓕ ᕉᔅᒥᐊᕆᒧᑦ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ.  
 

(ᑐᓵᔨ ᓄᖅᑲᖅᑐᖅ) ᑕᐃᓐᓇ auditor general 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᕐᔪᐊᖅ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᖏᑦ ᖃᕆᑕᐅᔭᐃᑦ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᖃᓪᓚᕆᒋᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓇᖅᓯᓵᖅᑑᔭᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐅᑭᐅᒐᓴᐃᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ NBCC 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒋᔭᐅᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᕆᑕᐅᔭᐃᑦ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᑲᐅᑎᒋᔪᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕈᓐᓇᓯᐊᖅᑐᐋᓘᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖑᓯᒪᓐᖏᑎᐊᕐᒪᑕ. 
ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᖅᔪᐊᖅ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᓕᓵᖅᑑᔭᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᖃᕆᑕᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎ ᐃᓗᐃᑦᑑᓗᒍ 
ᑕᑯᔅᓴᕈᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᖅ ᐊᔪᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᐅᓐᖏᓇᓕᖅᑐᕕᓂᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᐅᓯᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᓯᒪᔪᒧᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᖃᖓᓕᓴᐅᔪᓐᓃᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᖏᑦ ᐃᓕᑕᕐᓇᓂᖅᓴᐅᓕᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᐃᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᓈᒪᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᖅᓯᑎᑕᐅᓇᓱᐊᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂ.  
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂ 
ᓱᕐᓗ ᐅᖓᓯᒋᔭᐅᓕᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᕝᕙ ᓄᓇᓖᑦ 
ᐃᓛᒃᑰᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓄᓇᓖᑦ ᑎᑎᖃᕐᕕᖃᕐᕕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᖃᕐᕕᐅᔪᑦ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓂ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑐᖅᔪᐊᕐᓂ ᖃᕆᑕᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐃᓪᓕᕆᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖏᔾᔪᑎᖃᕐᑑᔭᖅᑐᓂ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑑᓕᓚᐅᕆᓪᓗᓂ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ, ᑐᓴᕐᓂᖅᑐᐋᓗᒻᒥᑦ 
ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᒋᔭᕗᑦ.  
 

ᒐᕙᒪᑐᖃᒃᑯᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑲᓪᓚᓐᓂᒃ $23,000,000-ᓂᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᐅᔪᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᑎᒃᓴᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᓲᖅ 
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programs for their financial activities? 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak (interpretation): Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. I’ll respond in English. 
(interpretation ends) Part of the problem 
that was identified by the Auditor General 
that The Exceptional Assistant, or TEA, 
was not being fully utilized and the 
information was not properly inputted. 
There have been a couple of checks already 
and I think the initial inputting was done 
late last year. We also had an accounting 
firm double check that and I believe that 
the OAG also verified the information and 
the information should be corrected in TEA 
computer program that helps to monitor 
loans. So that has been proceeding.  
 
There is a loans officer that monitors the 
files, and I believe Mr. Ma can provide an 
update of their meeting in early January of 
the types of information that they received 
and what they will be requesting. Peter Ma, 
as the Deputy for Finance, is also assisting 
in the planning of the $23 million with the 
feds, so he can provide an update on that. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Ma, do you want to add more to that?  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think 
there were a number of components to the 
member’s question, so I’ll try to address 
each of them. As Ms. Keenainak has said, 
there has been extensive work that’s been 
done on TEA, The Exceptional Assistant, 
to get the appropriate information in, not 
only getting the appropriate information 
but make sure it’s correct. So that work has 
been underway and I think we have 
progressed in that respect.  

ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᓪᓗᒍ ᓂᕆᐅᓇᖅᑐᖅ, ᓂᕆᐅᓇᖅᓯᒻᒪᓐ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᖁᑎᒋᔭᐃᑦ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓄᑖᓐᖑᖅᑎᖅᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᑦᑎᑕᐅᓚᖓᒻᒪᑕ. ᑕᕝᕙᖓᖅᑲᐃ ᑖᓐᓇ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ 
Business Credit Corporation-ᖑᔪᖅ, NBCC, ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑲᑎᒪᓐᖓᔾᔪᑎᒌᓐᓇᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ. ᑕᕝᕙᖓᖅᑲᐃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᕐᒥᒃ ᓂᖏᖅᑎᑕᐅᒐᓛᓚᖓᕗᖅ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᔾᔪᑎᔅᓴᖏᓐᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᖁᑎᖏᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖃᓪᓗᓈᑎᑐᖅᑲᐃ ᑭᐅᒐᓛᓐᓂᐊᕐᕋᒃᑯᑦ. (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ) 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᐃᓚᖓᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᖃᕋᓴᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᑲᔫᑎᒃᑲᓐᓂᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᓯᒃᑭᓕᐅᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐃᓕᐅᖅᑲᑦᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᓈᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᖢᑎᒃ.  
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᑕᐅᒋᐊᖅᖢᑎᓪᓗ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓐ TEA-ᖑᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᓄᑖᓂᒃ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕌᕆᔭᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓂᐊᕐᒥᔪᑦ ᔮᓄᐊᓕᐅᓕᖅᐸᓐ.  
 
ᑖᓐᓇᓗ ᐲᑕ ᒫ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᕆᒻᒪᒍ, ᐃᑲᔪᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᔭᐅᒍᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ 
ᓄᑖᓐᖑᕆᐊᖅᑎᑎᔾᔪᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᓂᒃ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ ᐃᓚᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᕕᐅᒃ?  
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐅᕙᓪᓚᐃᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃᑯᐊ ᑖᒃᓱᒪ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔮ. ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓇᖅ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᕈᓘᔭᖅᓗᔭᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ TEA-ᖑᓂᕋᖅᑕᐅᔪᒥᒃ ᐊᑐᓕᖅᖢᑎᒃ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖃᑦᑎᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ.  
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The other thing I think the member was 
speaking to has to do with information 
technology services overall. As members 
are very well aware, NBCC made a 
decision, at some point, previously to go 
off the main GN system, and I believe 
because of that, we haven’t been able to 
support them because they have gone to a 
private provider. So one of the things, I 
think, we would like to do as we go 
forward here is to have the NBCC system 
be part of the overall GN system so that we 
can provide some of this information 
technology support through our CGS 
Department.  
 
With respect to the third component of the 
member’s question which has to do with 
the federal 2007 budget announcement on 
the $23 million for strength in financial 
management, we have had some 
discussions with the federal officials, and 
part of that fund will be used towards 
increasing our information technology 
infrastructure. I’m not really an IT 
specialist but what I understand is the kind 
of upgrades that we’re going to be doing 
will ensure that the speed of our system 
will be increased. So I think that’s a benefit 
not just to Finance but a benefit to all of 
government. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. 
(interpretation) Is that it, Mr. Alagalak? 
(interpretation ends) Before I go to Mr. 
Peterson, I just have a question for Mr. Ma. 
I’m sure, like many of us just after our last 
hearings here when it became public, that 
the former Acting CEO and comptroller 
was facing fraud and theft charges.  
 
Once that information became public, I 
believe, I don’t know if it was Mr. Ma, or 
the board, or whoever for whatever reason 
had indicated after that that they had put 

 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖓ ᐅᖃᐅᑎᒋᕙᓪᓚᐃᖅᑲᐅᔭᖓ 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᑉ ᐱᑦᔪᑎᓕᒃ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒪᑯᐊ 
ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᓕᕆᔩᑦ, ᖃᕋᐅᓴᔭᓂᒃ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᓕᕆᔩᓂᓛᒃ 
NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᖁᑎᖏᑦ ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᖃᑕᐅᓕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᓐ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᒻᒥᒃᑰᑉᐸᓪᓚᐃᒻᒪᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᒪ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦᑕ ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᑐᑉᐸᑕ 
ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᑦ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᑐᕐᓗᑎᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᑲᓇᑕᐅᑉ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦᑕ $23,000,000-
ᖑᓂᕋᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᑦ ᐅᖃᓪᓚᖃᑎᒋᓯᒪᓕᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᑲᓇᑕᐅᑉ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᓚᖓᓐ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᓐ ᓄᑖᓐᖑᕆᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᐃᓛᒃ 
ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᖏᑐᖅᔪᐊᕐᒪᕆᐊᓘᒐᒪ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑦᑕ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᖏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐱᑐᒃᓯᒪᖃᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᓕᕐᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᕐᓗᑎᒃ.  
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ, ᓂᓪᓕᓚᐅᖏᓐᓂᖓᓂᒃ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᖃᕈᒪᒻᒥᒐᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫᒧᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᓄᖅᑐᑎᒍᑦ 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᐅᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᓯᒪᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐱᕋᔭᓐᓂᕐᒧᑦ, ᑎᓪᓕᓂᕐᒧᓪᓗ 
ᐸᓯᔭᔅᓴᖑᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ. 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓᖅᑕᐅᒻᒪᓐ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨ 
ᓇᓕᐊᑭᐊᖅ ᑭᓱᒥᒃ ᐱᑦᔪᑎᖃᑦᖢᑎᒃ ᑭᖑᓐᖓᒍᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒪᒃᑕᐅᕗᓪ 
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Mr. McDowell on leave with pay pending 
the outcome of his court. I’m just 
wondering if you could give us an 
indication as to why you felt it was 
necessary, once learning that information, 
to put that individual on leave. Mr. Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Obviously, as members are aware, at that 
time, we had already suffered some blows 
to the corporation with respect to public 
confidence in the corporation.  
 
As interim chairperson, when I was 
informed by Mr. McDowell that he had 
these pending charges, I thought that it was 
in the best interest of the corporation, but 
also with respect to our clients and the 
public at large, that we place Mr. 
McDowell on leave with pay. The reason 
why he was placed on leave with pay is 
that, obviously, the charges had not gone to 
court, so we did not know, at that point, 
whether the verdict was going to be guilty 
or innocent.  
 
The other consideration in that respect is 
that he also was fulfilling the 
comptrollership function not just with the 
Acting CEO but he had the responsibility 
of the comptrollership side of it. 
Obviously, he would then have access to 
our funds by way of the bank account and 
some of the charges against Mr. 
McDowell, at that time, related to theft and 
fraud, in particular, with money and other 
assets.  
 
So I think it was in the best interest of the 
corporation to do that and also to ensure 
that we kept the public confidence in the 
corporation at a higher level than it was at 
that time. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. I can 
certainly understand the rationale behind 

ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᖁᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᓗᓂ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᑦᑐᐃᕕᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᓚᐅᖏᓐᓂᓕᒫᖓᓂ.  
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᕕᐅᒍᓐᓇᕐᐱᑖ ᓱᖕᒪᑦ ᐃᓛ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐸᓯᔭᒃᓴᐅᓂᖓᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᒐᓯ ᑭᓱᒥᒃ ᐱᔾᔪᓯᖃᕐᖢᓯ 
ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑎᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᐱᓯᐅ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᒃᓴᐅᕗᓯ ᑕᐃᓐᓇᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᖓ 
ᓇᓗᖅᑯᑎᒋᔭᐅᓕᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᖕᒪᑦ ᑕᖅᑲᒃᑯᓄᖓ. 
 
 
ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᓚᐅᕐᖢᖓ ᑕᐃᓐᓇᒎᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒥᒃᑕᐅᕗᓪ 
ᐸᓯᔭᒃᓴᐅᖕᒪᑦ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᓐᓇᐅᖅᑲᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᖅᑲᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑮᑦᑐᓖᑦ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᒎᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑎᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᒃᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᓲᖃᐃᒻᒪ 
ᐃᖅᑲᖅᑐᐃᕕᒃᑰᕐᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᓱᓕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᓇᓗᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒐᑦᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖓ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᖃᓯᐅᑎᓚᐅᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᖕᒪᑦ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖃᖅᑎᑕᐅ ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ 
ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖃᖃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂᓗ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐃᒪᒃᑑᖕᒪᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖁᑎᑦᑎᖕᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒻᒦᒃᑐᖁᑎᒃᑎᓐᓂᒡᓗ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒪᒃᑕᐅᕗᓪ 
ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ ᐸᓯᔭᒃᓴᙳᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ ᓯᒃᑭᓂᒃ 
ᑎᒡᓕᖕᓂᖓᓄ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᓛ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖅᑖᕐᓂᖓᒍᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᒃᑑᖕᒪᑦ ᑕᖅᑲᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᓗᖅᑯᑎᓕᖁᙱᓐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑎᑕᐅᓯᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᐄ, 
ᑐᑭᓯᒃᑎᐊᕐᖢᒋᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓂᓯᓐᓂ 
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that. I guess my next question is to Ms. 
Keenainak. It was mentioned here 
yesterday in our hearings by the chairman 
of the board that it was quite some time 
ago, long before it became public 
knowledge, that the government had been 
informed of Mr. McDowell’s legal 
situation. Maybe I’ll just ask why nothing 
was done at that time. They waited until 
after that information became public before 
doing anything about it. Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I found out when Mr. Ma found 
out in December. The previous deputy 
minister was advised. I was not advised of 
that. I was actually on leave and I spoke to 
Mr. Ma the day it happened, so that’s when 
I found out. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
The chairman of the board indicated 
yesterday that once he became aware of the 
situation, he immediately called the deputy 
minister at the time, and I believe at the 
time you were the assistant deputy minister 
with the department, and he had indicated 
that he wanted a response and he said that 
he received a response. As an assistant 
deputy minister, are saying you had no 
knowledge of that request coming from the 
board for seeking advice from the 
department on what to do? Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I don’t know what the actual 
timeline was. I know that I moved over to 
the Department of Finance on August 1, 
2006, so I don’t know when that actual 
event occurred. The NBCC and the NDC 
worked mainly directly through the deputy 
minister’s office and not through my office. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Would the department be willing to 

ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᓛ 
ᐃᒃᐸᒃᓴᖅ ᐅᖃᖅᑐᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᖓᓄᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᑯᑖᖑᓚᐅᕐᒫᑦ 
ᐃᒃᓱᕙᐳᑕᐅᑯᑖᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇᓗ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒥᒃᑕᐅᕗᓪ 
ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑎᑕᐅᓂᖓ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᔭᔪᖓ 
ᓱᖕᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᙱᒻᒪᖔᖓ. 
ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓᖅᑕᐅᖕᒪᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐱᕋᔭᓚᐅᕐᓂᖓ 
ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓕᑕᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᓕᔅᓯᓐᓄᑦ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ December-ᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᖁᕕᐊᓱᒡᕕᐊ ᑕᖅᑭᖓᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔨᒋᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔭ ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔭᐅᓪᓗᖓᓗ ᓄᖅᑲᖓᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖓ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫᒨᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂᓗ ᑕᐃᒡ)ᒪᓂ ᖃᐅᔨᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑲᑎᒪᔨ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒐᒥᒎ 
ᐱᕋᔭᒃᑐᖃᕐᓂᕐᒥᒃ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓄ 
ᐅᖃᓗᑲᐅᑎᒋᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐃᕕ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᑦᑕ 
ᑐᖏᓕᕆᓇᓱᖓᑎᓪᓗᓂᔾᔪ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᓱᓂᓗ 
ᑭᐅᔭᐅᑲᐅᑎᒋᔪᒪᓚᐅᕋᒥᒎᖅ ᑭᐅᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ ᑐᖏᓕᕆᓪᓗᓂᐅᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᒃᑲᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᓂᖓ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᕆᐊᒃᓴᖅ ᓇᓗᓕᐅᒪᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑐᓴᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᖏᑕᐃᑦ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᙱᑦᑐᖓ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᓄᒃᑎᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒐᒪ 
ᖃᖓᐅᓕᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖅ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᙱᑦᑐᖓ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓂ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᑯᖏᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᖅᑯᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐅᕙᒃᑰᖏᑦᑐᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓᓂ ᖃᖓ 
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provide the committee with the response 
that the government gave to the chairman 
of the board in what to do as the chairman 
didn’t recall what was in there? It would be 
interesting to see why nothing was done, or 
it wasn’t felt that anything should be done 
at the time.  
 
It seemed very odd, I would say, that the 
government was aware of the situation 
privately and not publicly, and didn’t do 
anything. As soon as it became public 
knowledge, to maintain the credibility of 
the corporation and the department, and 
everything else, they felt it was necessary 
to put that individual on leave without pay 
pending the outcome.  
 
So I would be very interested, and I’m sure 
a lot of people would, at finding out what 
kind of direction was given to the board by 
the government in that particular case. 
Would you be willing to provide that 
information to this committee? Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Yes, I will look into it and see if 
there was any documentation, and if there 
was, that will be provided. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Maybe if I can just ask you again why the 
government, and I know you weren’t the 
deputy then because you’re the deputy 
now, would feel that it is only important to 
put someone on leave without pay after the 
information about that individual becomes 
public. ‘It’s okay. It’s not a confidence 
issue if nobody knows about it but as soon 
as the people know about it, then we have 
to do something about it.’  
 
In my mind, I think the government failed 
there to act in the interest of preserving the 

ᐱᑎᑕᐅᒍᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᐸᑦ. ᖃᓄᖅᑑᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᖅ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐅᖄᓚᖕᒪᑦ ᑕᑯᔪᒥᓇᖅ ᐃᓛ 
ᑕᑯᖅᑯᔾᔭᐅᒍᒥᓈᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᒃᑐᖅ ᒥᒃᓵᓅᖓᔪᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᓪᓗᐊᕆᐊᖃᓚᐳᕐᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ, 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᖅᓴᑕᖃᕋᔪᙱᒻᒪᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓯᓐᓇᕐᓱᑎᐅᓐᓂᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᐃᒻᒥᒃᑰᖅᖢᑎᑦ 
ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓᖅᑎᓯᒪᓐᖏᖢᓂᔾᔪᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔮᕆᔭᒥᓂᒃ. 
ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓᖅᑕᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᑕᖅᑲᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᒻᒪᑕ 
ᒪᑭᒪᑦᑎᐊᖁᔨᒧᓪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᖓ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕ.  
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᓄᖅᑲᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᑲᓪᓚᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᕗᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒪᒃᑕᐅᐅᓪ ᐃᖅᑲᖅᑐᐃᕕᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓂᖓᓂ. ᐅᓄᖅᑐᑦ 
ᑕᖅᑲᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᑦ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ 
ᖃᐃᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᐹᑦ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᕐᓂᐊᖅᐸᕋ. ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅᑕᖃᕐᓂᖅᐸᑦ, ᐄ, 
ᐃᓕᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᖏᑦ ᑐᓂᖅᑯᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᒃᑲ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᕆᒍᒃᑭᖃᐃ, ᓱᒻᒪᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ, 
ᑐᖏᓕᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑎᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᑐᖏᓕᕆᔭᐅᓕᕋᕕᑦ. ᓱᒻᒪᓪᓕᑭᐊᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑎᑕᐅᓯᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᕙ ᑮᓇᐅᔾᔭᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓᖅᑕᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓ 
ᖃᐅᔨᔭᐅᒻᒪᑕ? ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᐅᓐᓂᖏᑉᐸᑦ 
ᖃᓄᐃᒐᔭᓐᖏᑦᑑᖅ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᖏᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑑᖅ? 
ᖃᐅᔨᔭᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᓄᖅᑲᖅᑎᑕᐅᓕᕐᓂᖅᑳ? 
 
 
 
ᐃᓱᒪᒃᑯᓪᓕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᒪᐅᓇ 
ᓴᐳᒻᒥᐅᓴᖅᓯᒪᖏᓇᓱᒋᔭᒃᑲ 
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confidence of the government. Do you 
have any rationale as to why the 
government waited until it became public 
knowledge before taking any action? Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. As I indicated, I only became 
aware in December and I have committed 
to find out from the previous deputy and to 
see if there’s documentation. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
My question... 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. 
Inuktitut is coming through on the English 
Channel. Just try again. Is that better? Is 
that working now? Is everyone hearing? 
Okay. Go ahead, Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
My question is for Mr. Ma, the Acting 
Chairperson of the Nunavut Business 
Credit Corporation. Mr. Ma, in the Auditor 
General’s Report on paragraph 29 through 
32, they spend quite a bit of time on 
commenting on loan applications and the 
evaluation methods, and basically, the title 
of the entire section states that, “Loan 
applications were not evaluated adequately 
before being recommended for approval.”  
 
We’ve heard from Mr. Orecklin, in 
particular, he had mentioned in his opening 
comments two days ago, and I’ll quote, “In 
my interview... I admitted to having no 
experience in the financial sector, so... it’s 
not surprising that I failed to uphold the 
standards necessary. I didn’t know what the 
standards were.” We also heard a testimony 
from various individuals that they didn’t 

ᓇᓗᖅᑯᑎᒋᔭᐅᓂᐊᓕᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑎᑭᐅᔾᔭᐅᒐᒥ. 
ᑭᓱᒥᑭᐊᖅ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᑕᖅᑭᓂᖅᐸᑦ 
ᑕᖅᑲᐅᖓᖅᑕᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓕᑕᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᓂ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓕᓵᓚᐅᕋᒃᑯ ᑏᓯᕝᕙᒥ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᓪᓗ ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᑎᒍᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑖᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅ. ᐊᑏ. ᑕᐃᒫ? ᐄ. ᑐᓴᖅᓴᐅᕚ? ᐊᑏ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ.  
 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ-ᒧᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒻᒥ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ, ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖏᑦ 29-32-
ᒦᑦᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᓚᐅᒻᒪᔾᔪᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓪᓗᑎᑦ. 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᑕᑕᑎᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒥᔅᓵᓄᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᑎᒍᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᒃᓕᓐ, ᐱᓗᐊᖅᑐᒥ, ᐅᒃᑯᐃᕈᑎᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᐃᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓚᑖᓚᐅᕋᒪ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᓱᓇ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᓲᖑᒻᒪᖔᑕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑑᑎᑦ ᑕᒫᓃᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓂᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᓂᑦ 
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use policies, guidelines and criteria to 
govern the review of the loans. In fact, in 
the Auditor General’s Report, the Auditor 
General says that it appears there have been 
no policies available and the policies that 
were available from the Northwest 
Territories Business Credit Corporation 
were not being used.  
 
I noted that Mr. Orecklin was CEO of the 
NBCC from July 12, 2004 until December 
6, 2006. I don’t know how many loans 
would have been received by him and his 
officials during that period of time. Have 
you had the opportunity, as the acting 
chairperson, to review all of the loan 
applications to establish how many loan 
applications that Mr. Orecklin reviewed 
and recommended for approval by the 
board of directors? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. No, I 
have not had the opportunity yet, at this 
point, to review the loans that were 
approved during the tenure of Mr. 
Orecklin.  
 
Having said that though, Mr. Bhagoutie 
and I have spoken about the loans that were 
approved during that era, so to speak, and 
between him and likely I, we would 
actually review each one of those loans.  
 
I think it’s important that not only the 
public have confidence with respect to the 
loans that were approved at that time but I 
think we, as a management team, need to 
feel comfortable that those loans have gone 
through the proper scrutiny, which is the 
due diligence part which you are referring 
to.  
 

ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔾᔪᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖅ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑯᒥᔪᖅᑕᖃᕐᒪᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖅᑕᖃᓐᖏᓐᓂᖏᓐᓂ 
ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᓂᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᓄᓇᑦᓯᐊᕐᒥ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐊᑐᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕋᒃᑭᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᒃᓕᓐ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᖅ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒻᒥ 2004 2006-ᒥ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ ᐅᑭᐅᖑᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐱᕕᖃᖅᓯᒪᕖᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓄᑦ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑏᑦ? ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕋᒃᓕᓐ 
ᐊᑐᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑖ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᖅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᓇᐅᒃ ᐱᕕᖃᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᑕᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᕕᓃᑦ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕋᒡᓕᓐᒧᓐ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐳᒎᑎ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓚᐅᕋᑦᑎᒍ, ᐅᕙᖓᓗ 
ᑖᓐᓇᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᓚᐅᕋᑦᑎᒍ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓪᓗᑎᒍ ᐊᑐᓂᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᑭᒃᑯᑐᐃᑦ, 
ᑕᑎᓂᕐᓱᕈᓐᓇᕐᓯᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐅᕙᒍᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᔨᐅᔪᒍᑦ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᓪᓗᑕ 
ᐃᒪᐃᓐᓇᐃᑦᓯᐊᕆᐊᖃᕋᓗᐊᕋᑦᑕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᑦᓯᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᑎᑦ 
ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
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The unfortunate thing is that, at this point 
in time, even if there are some difficulties 
with the loans, we are in a contractual 
arrangement with our borrowers, so we will 
have to work some things out, I think, if it 
comes to that. It is an area that we are 
going to concentrate on and it is an area 
that we have identified that we need to 
place a priority upon. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Thank you, Mr. Ma. Carrying along the 
line of questioning in that area, do you 
have any concerns whatsoever, or are you 
aware of any concerns with any of the 
loans that were recommended by the 
former CEO and subsequently approved by 
the Business Credit Corporation? Was 
there any indication that there are loans that 
are troublesome? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. No, 
I’m not aware, at this point, of any loans 
that are of concern, probably based upon 
what we have seen so far, I guess what I’ve 
seen far as interim chair, and also upon the 
loans reports that we have received to date. 
That said, it doesn’t mean that we 
shouldn’t do some due diligence, which is 
what I said earlier in my response to Mr. 
Peterson’s first question. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Ma. You mentioned that you and 

 
 
ᒫᓐᓇᓕ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔾᔪᑏᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᐊᖏᕈᑎᓂ.  
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑎᒍ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᑎᑭᓐᓂᕐᐸᑕ. ᑕᐃᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓗᑎᓂᐊᕐᑕᕗᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᐅᑎᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᑕᕗᓪᓗ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑮᑦ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ, ᑲᔪᓯᓪᓗᖓ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑏᑦ 
ᒪᓕᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᖢᒋᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓖ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᕐᐲᑦ 
ᖃᓄᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᓚᐅᕐᐱᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᐅᔾᔪᑎᒋᔭᐅᓯᒪᔭᖏᑦ ᓴᓇᓪᓗᓂᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᑦᓱᒪ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᑑᑉ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᒻᒥ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᓪᓗ ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕐᑐᑦ, 
ᐃᓱᐊᓐᖏᓐᓂᕋᕐᑐᑦ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᓈᒻᒪᓐᖏᓐᓂᖃᕐᓂᖅᐸᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑐᕐ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ, 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᒫᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ. 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑕᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᑎᓪᓗᖓ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᑐᑦ ᐅᑉᓗᒥ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᔾᔨᕐᑐᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒥᒐᑦᑎᒍ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥᒃ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᑰᑎᓗ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
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Mr. Bhagoutie will be doing some internal 
review. Would it not make more sense to 
commission an independent review of each 
of those loans that were handled by Mr. 
Orecklin? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
believe Mr. Peterson has a very good 
option that we could consider. I think in 
much of the time that we may go down the 
road on... whatever is the phrase. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. As long as 
it’s not the garden path. Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Ma for that answer. I personally 
think it would probably be a better choice 
as Mr. Bhagoutie is going to have his hands 
full as it is trying to get the NBCC back on 
track to implement the policies and 
programs at NBCC, and you, yourself, 
when you’re the interim chair but you also 
have another role as the Deputy Minister of 
Finance, so you’re pretty busy as it is, 
unless you’re saying that you’re not busy 
as the Deputy Minister of Finance.  
 
I think it could be beneficial to have an 
independent review because then, 
depending on who you hire, it can assist 
Mr. Bhagoutie and the other staff to 
develop some loan processes and 
procedures, and they can also, perhaps, 
assist in determining the status of the 
security on all the loans and how valid they 
are. So I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Ma 
could comment on that. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Ma.  

ᑖᑦᓱᒪ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᕕᒋᔭᖓᑕ ᑐᑭᓕᐅᕆᓂᕐᓴᐅᓂᐊᕋᑦᓯ 
ᐊᑐᓃᕐᑐᓂᖕ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᓯ. ᐊᑐᓂ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕋᒡᓕᓐ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑎᓪᓗᒎ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ, 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᓱᒪᒃᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᑦᓯᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᑕᕗᑦ ᐅᖃᖅᑕᖓ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓇ ᐊᑐᑐᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᖃᕐᑕᕗᑦ ᓯᕗᓂᒧᑦ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ  ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
ᐃᒡᕕᑦ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫᓗ ᑭᐅᒐᕕᑦ. ᓇᖕᒥᓂᕐᓕ ᐃᓱᒪᒐᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᒎᑎ, 
ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᐅᓂᖅᓴᐅᖅᑰᕐᒪᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
NBCCᑯᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓂᕐᓴᐅᓗᓂ 
ᐊᖅᑯᑎᒋᓂᐊᕐᑕᖓᓄᑦ ᓯᕗᒧᑦ. ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᓪᓗ 
ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᐃᓪᓗ NBCCᑯᑦ ᐃᒡᕕᓪᓗ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ, ᑐᖏᓕᕆᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐃᑲᔫᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ, ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ. ᑭᓇᒥ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑎᑖᕈᑦᓯᓗ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᒎᑎ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑎᑦᓴᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᑉᐸᑕ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᑎᑦᑎᓂᐅᑉ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ. ᐊᑐᐊᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᓂᒡᓗ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᐃᑲᔪᕐᑎᑖᕐᓗᓂ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓴᐳᒻᒥᔭᐅᑦᓯᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᑐᓐᖓᕕᖃᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ. ᐃᒻᒪᖃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ, ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᐳᖅ ᑕᒪᑦᓱᒧᖓ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
concur with the member’s statement. I 
believe he’s quite correct in saying that. 
Obviously, Mr. Bhagoutie has a plate full. 
We also are a little short of staff right now 
within NBCC, so I think Mr. Peterson is 
quite correct in saying that.  
 
I believe, at the last standing committee 
appearance, I was with, in terms of this 
standing committee anyways, in my other 
capacity, I believe that Mr. Peterson said 
that heads are rolling from files that I 
haven’t gotten to this far. I believe I am 
busy enough. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Ma for that answer. I know the 
standing committees and MLAs are 
understandably concerned of the extensive 
use of outside consultants. In this case, if 
you were here to engage a qualified 
accounting firm, I think that it would 
probably be justified. It’s very important to 
get the NBCC up and running again and 
restore their public confidence, and I think 
that would something that we would 
entertain.  
 
I wanted to turn my questioning to Ms. 
Keenainak and it concerns the process of 
handling loans over $500,000. Again, in 
paragraph 29, the Auditor General 
commented on those loans over $500,000 
approved by the minister. I have been 
asking the former CEO some questions 
about how the process worked and I got 
some correspondence in front me that was 
quite interesting when I was reading them. 
I quoted from it quite extensively in the last 
couple of days.  
 

 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓕᑕᕆᔭᒃᑲ ᐅᖃᖅᑕᑎᑦ, ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᓲᖃᐃᒻᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐸᒎᑎ, ᐃᑲᔫᑎᖃᑦᑎᐊᕐᒪᑦ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᓗᐊᖏᓐᓇᑦᑕ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓂ 
ᒫᓐᓇ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ ᐅᖃᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᖅᑐᓂᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᒃᓰᓛᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕋ ᐱᓪᓗᒍ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ ᑕᐃᒪ ᓂᐊᖁᐃᓐ 
ᓲᖃᐃᒻᒪ ᑲᔪᓯᓇᓱᒻᒪᑕ ᑕᐅᕗᖓ ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᒧᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᑎᓪᓗᖓᓗ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫᓗ ᑭᐅᒐᕕᓐ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᐅᒪᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖃᑦᖢᑎᒃ ᐊᑐᕐᓂᓗᒃᑕᐅᓂᖏᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᒃᑐᐊᖃᑎᖃᑦᑎᓪᓗᓯ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᑎᐊᖅᑐᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᑖᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᓱᓕᔪᓕᓂᓪᓗ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᒻᒪᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ NBCC-
ᑯᓐᓄᑦ. ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑎᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᓄᓕᒫᓄᑦ 
ᐅᑉᐱᕆᔭᐅᓕᕐᓗᓂ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᔪᓐᓇᕋᑦᑎᒍ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒐ ᑐᕌᖅᑎᓐᓂᐊᕐᕋᒃᑯ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ $500,000-ᒥᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᑎᑦᑎᓂᐅᔪᖅ 29-
ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ $500,000 
ᐅᖓᑖᓄᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᐱᕆᓚᐅᕋᒃᑯ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ. ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᓐ ᑲᔪᓯᓂᐊᓄᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᐊᒻᒪ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᒻᒥᒃ 
ᓵᖓᓃᑦᑐᖃᒻᒪᓐ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᓪᓘᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᐅᒐᑦᑎᒍ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ. 
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In the case of two loans over $500,000, Mr. 
Orecklin sent them to an individual in your 
department by the name of Verdun Noel, 
Senior Analyst at Economic Development 
and Transportation, and he says, “Attached 
is my letter of recommendation on those 
two loans. NBCC did not write a separate 
report of due diligence as the material in 
the applications is more than adequate 
substantiation. His analysis is complete, 
accurate, and wholly satisfactory to the 
Nunavut Business Credit Corporation.”  
 
I was wondering, when applications come 
in from Nunavut Business Credit 
Corporation into your department, what is 
the internal process to review those 
proposals to ensure that they’re compliant 
with the policies and the NBCC Act as they 
stand before they’re recommended or 
forwarded to the minister for his 
subsequent review and approval or 
rejection? Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The department, at that time, did 
not have an additional process to challenge 
some of the information presented by the 
applicant and the department relied on 
information provided by NBCC. So that is 
one area that we recognize needs to be 
worked on and a new process needs to be 
provided, and I believe the minister 
provided a couple of recommendations.  
 
We’ll be looking at providing additional 
resources, or changing our current position 
so that part of that due diligence or third 
party check is going to be part of that 
person’s role. One of the things that we’re 
going to be looking at is inviting 
expression of interests from private 
contractors qualified to provide an analysis 

 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑑᒃ $500,000-ᓂᒃ 
ᐊᖏᓂᖃᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᒥᖓᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᖅᑎᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᓐ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ. “ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐃᓚᓕᐅᑎᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᑐᓃᖅᑐᒥᒃ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖢᐊᖅᑐᓂᓪᓗ ᓈᒻᒪᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᓱᓕᔾᔪᑎᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ.” 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑏᓐ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᖃᐃᔭᕌᖓᑕ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᓕᖃᑦᑕᖅᐸᑦ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑏᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᒪᓕᒃᑎᐊᕐᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓂᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᒃᓴᓂᓪᓗ 
NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᖏᓐᓂ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᖏᓐᓂ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᐅᔾᔪᑎᓗ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖏᓐᓂ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ  
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐃᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐋᒡᒑᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᓐ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ 
ᐱᑕᖃᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᓵᑕᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᖅᑐᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᓴᕈᑏᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᓚᖓ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓕᑕᕆᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕐᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᑦᑎᒍ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᐃᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑕ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᐃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑏᓐᓂᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᖁᓪᓗᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᑦᑎᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᑦ ᐃᓂᒃᓴᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᓚᖓᓐ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓂᐊᕐᒥᔭᕗᑦ 
ᖃᐃᖁᔨᓗᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖅ ᑳᑦᑐᓛᑎᐅᔪᓂᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
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for the minister so that there will be check 
before it’s forwarded on to the ministers’ 
office. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak, 
and Mr. Chairman, thank you. Ms. 
Keenainak, basically what happened is the 
CEO just forwarded the applications as 
they were to Verdun Noel and he didn’t do 
any review or analysis. He just rubber 
stamped and sent them to you, and then 
you wrote a letter and sent them to the 
minister for approval. There was no check 
and no balance, and I’ll quote from your 
letter, at the time, that you sent, which I 
find interesting, is the letter dated June 13, 
2005 to the minister at the time, Minister 
Kilabuk, “Besides a careful review of the 
Board of Directors of the NBCC, who are 
recommending approval, I have also 
reviewed the application in concert with 
officials at HQ. Based on the review of the 
credit analysis, I am recommending your 
approval of the loan.” 
 
Now, if I was minister, when I see a 
paragraph like that that’s come from the 
NBCC, it’s come into the department and 
it’s reviewed by your officials, it’s 
reviewed by you and you’re putting your 
stamp of approval on it, and I’m the 
minister, I have to trust my officials.  
 
In this case, it has been established that 
there’s a breakdown at the NBCC level. 
The CEO didn’t do a proper analysis; he 
basically took the applicants’ proposal and 
forwarded it on. So I’m wondering: what 
were you and your officials thinking at the 
time when you received the applications 
from the CEO? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 

ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒨᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑎᓐᓇᒍ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒥᒃ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᑐᖏᓕᐊ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᖢᓂᒋᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐅ. 
ᐃᓕᓐᓄᓪᓗ ᐊᐅᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᐊᒻᒪ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᖢᑎᒃ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᑎᑕᐅᓕᖅᖢᑎᒃ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᐊᖏᓂᖏᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑎᑎᕋᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᐅᓚᖅᑎᓯᒪᔭᐃᓐ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ?  
ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᓪᓗᖓ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᔫᓐ 13, 2005 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᕿᓚᕝᕙᕐᒧᑦ, “ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ NBCC-
ᑯᓐᓃᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᓂᑦ ᐊᖏᖅᓯᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᓚᐅᕋᒃᑭᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑏᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓂᕆᔭᖏᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᕗᖓ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᖅ.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᒍᒪ ᑕᑯᒍᒃᑯ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓃᖔᖅᑐᓂ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓅᖅᖢᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᓯ ᐃᕝᕕᓪᓗ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓪᓗᒍ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᖢᑎᓪᓗ 
ᓇᕿᑎᕈᒻᒧᑦ ᓇᕿᖅᖢᒍ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᖓ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᒍᒪ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᑎᒋᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᒃᑭᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖁᑎᒃᑲ. 
 
 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓱᕐᓗ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᓯᖁᑉᑎᕈᑎᒋᕙᓪᓕᐊᓕᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᒥᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᑰᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᐱᑕᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑲᔪᓯᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ, 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᓯ ᐃᕝᕕᓪᓗ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᓵᓄᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᑕᐅᑐᖅᑰᖅᐱᓯᐅᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑏᑦ ᐱᔭᖔᕋᒃᓯᐅᒃ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᒥᑦ?  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
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Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Yes, there was a process lacking 
within the department. As I have indicated, 
this is an area that has been identified in the 
action plan that has been presented to 
standing committee. The resources we have 
in the department are limited and we 
recognize that there’s going to have to be 
more due diligence provided from the 
department before it’s recommended to the 
minister.  
 
I believe the staff, at that point, did make 
sure that we had a complete package to 
recommend to the minister, in terms in 
making sure that there’s an application file 
and the information in there, but I agree, 
yes, there should have been more due 
diligence provided. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Should have been more? I 
don’t think there was any by the looks of it. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Ms. Keenainak. Ms. Keenainak, are 
you aware of any other loans that were in 
the excess of $500,000, that came in during 
Mr. Orecklin’s tenure to your department, 
that were reviewed by your officials and 
then yourself, and then forwarded on to the 
minister for his approval or rejection? 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. No, I’m not aware of any other 
loans. At that point, I was acting for Mr. 
Campbell. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 

ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᓗᐊᓐᖏᑦᑑᒐᓗᐊᕐᒥᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒻᒥ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᑎᓐᓂ ᑮᓇᐃᔭᕗᑦ ᐊᒥᒐᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐃᓕᓴᖅᓯᓪᓗᑕᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᑦᑎᐊᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᑦᑎᐊᑲᓐᓂᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᕗᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᐊᖓᐅᔪᒥᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᐅᒃᐱᕈᓱᒃᑐᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ 
ᐃᓗᐃᑦᑑᓈᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᓂᑦ ᑐᓂᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᓂ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕋᖅᑐᐃᑦ ᒥᒃᓵᓅᖓᔪᓂᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓕᒫᑦᑎᐊᑦ 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑕᖃᕐᓗᓂ. ᐄ, 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᑦᑎᐊᑲᓐᓂᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᑐᕕᓂᐅᒐᓗᐊᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐱᑕᖃᖅᑰᓚᐅᖏᑦᑐᖅ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓂᕐᒥᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ.  
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ, 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᕖᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᑕᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐅᖓᑖᓃᑦᑐᓂᑦ $500,000 ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᑕᐅᔪᕕᓂᕐᓂᑦ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓕᓐ ᐊᓪᓚᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᔪᕕᓂᖅ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᑕᐅᔪᕕᓃᓪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐃᓕᓐᓄᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑎᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᐋᒃᑳᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᖅ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐋᒡᒐ, ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᖃᓐᖏᑎᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ 
ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑳᒻᐳᓪ-ᒥᑦ ᑎᓕᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕋᒪ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 



 101 

Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman 
and Ms. Keenainak. Perhaps, if I can ask 
Mr. Ma now, as you capacity as acting 
chairperson, what procedures is your 
organization putting in place to ensure that 
loans; it doesn’t have to be a loan in excess 
of $500,000, any loans; are received by the 
Business Credit Corporation before they’re 
reviewed by the Board of Directors of the 
Business Credit Corporation?  
 
I’m sure that it’s properly reviewed, 
analyzed, evaluated, and then a proper 
recommendation would be made to the 
board. When I say proper recommendation, 
it could mean it could be a rejection or a 
deferral. What have you instituted since all 
of this stuff came to light? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The 
question is appropriate in terms of timing. 
Mr. Bhagoutie and I actually had some 
conversations this week with respect to the 
loans due diligence process, and obviously, 
it needs some improvement and we have 
talked about a number of things.  
 
First of all, I guess as the interim chair, I 
would prefer that loans don’t even get to 
the board unless we have actually done a 
thorough review and actually challenged 
the application.... no, we have to recognize 
I guess, at this point in time, that we were 
trusting people and we have to rely upon 
outside contractors. Having said that, the 
quantity of the work that we’re getting, and 
I have to be brutally honest, from some of 
our consultants are not at the level that I 
would like to see or the standard that I 
would prefer to see.  

ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᐊᐱᕆᒍᒃᑯ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᖓ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ. ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᖃᖅᐸᑦ ᑎᒥᖁᑎᓯ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐅᖓᑖᓃᑦᑐᑦ 
$500,000? ᑭᓇᒧᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᓂᖅᐸᑕ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ?  
 
 
 
 
 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒍᓐᓇᖅᐹ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕈᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᕗᖓ 
ᐋᒃᑳᖅᑕᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᖃᕐᓗᓂ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓗᓂᓘᓐᓃᑦ?  
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᐃᓕᓯᓯᒪᓕᖅᐱᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊᕈᓘᔮᓗᐃᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎ 
ᐅᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᒐᑎ ᐅᕙᖓᓗ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒌᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᒋᔭᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᐅᑉ ᒥᔅᓵᓄᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᐅᓯᒋᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᐅᓄᑲᓪᓚᑦᑐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᑦᑕ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᓵᑦᑎᓐᓄᐊᖅᑕᐃᓕᑲᐃᓐᓇᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᑭᓴᖅᑐᕆᐊᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᐸᑕ  ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐃᓕᓴᖅᓯᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᑎᑭᔅᓴᕋᑦᑕ ᑳᓐᑐᕌᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦᓄ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔨᖃᑲᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᖢᑕ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓚᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᒫᓐᓇ ᓲᕐᓗ ᑕᑯᔪᒪᔭᒪ 
ᑐᖔᓃᒻᒪᑕ ᓱᓕ.  
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What I can share with you is that, at the last 
board meeting, there were some loans that 
were brought forward that, as we go 
forward here, I would rather not see come 
forward, and I know that’s not the kind of 
thing that our potential clients would like to 
hear, but I think when something has 
gotten to the board for approval or non-
approval, it needs to be complete and the 
proper analysis needs to be done.  
 
I think the previous witness that was here 
this morning, Mr. Junkin, provided some of 
those types of things that I would like to 
see, I have to admit, that currently are not 
there and that we need to improve upon 
them. I think we have to be brutally honest 
here in terms of what needs to happen.  
 
So we have some work to do in front of us 
but Mr. Bhagoutie and I have had a good 
conversation with respect to that. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Mr. Ma. Ms. Keenainak, in the action 
plan that was handed out to us earlier, 
there’s a comment, “Action would change 
the strength in the due diligence process for 
approvals for loans greater than $500,000.” 
 
It does establish a clear program at the 
Department Economic Development and 
Transportation, and then in green here it 
says, “Completed and ongoing,” and you 
just mentioned that you’re working on that 
stuff. Can you provide us with a bit more 
detail on what the department is working 
on internally to ensure that the due 
diligence process within the department 
and within the Nunavut Business Credit 
Corporation is upgraded to the highest 

 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᐹᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᔪᐃᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔪᑦ ᓵᑦᑎᓐᓄᐊᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. 
ᑕᑯᔪᒪᙱᑕᒃᑲ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᑦᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᒥᒃ 
ᐱᔪᒪᙱᑦᑑᒍᓗᐊᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔫᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᔪᒥᓂᐅᒃᐸᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐋᒃᑳᖅᑕᐅᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓂᐊᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒡᓗ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑭᖑᓂᑦᑎᓂ ᐅᓪᓛ ᑕᒫᓂ ᔭᓐᑲᓐ ᑕᒫᓃᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᖅᑲᐅᖕᒪᑦ ᐊᑐᕈᒪᔭᖕᓂ ᐃᓚᖏᓪᓗ 
ᐱᐅᓯᒋᐊᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᓱᓕᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᖓ ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᕐᓂᐊᕐᓂᑎᓐᓂ. 
 
 
 
ᐄ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᖃᖅᑐᒍ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᒐᐅᑎᓗ ᐅᕙᒍᑦ 
ᑖᔅᓱᒪ ᒥᒃᓵᓅᓕᖓᔪᒥᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᒍᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ.. ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᑕᕙᓂ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᒋᐊᕈᑎᓄᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓂ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖅᑕᖃᕐᒪᑦ, 
“ᑕᖅᑲᒪᓂ ᓴᙱᒋᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐱᐅᓯᒋᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
$500,000 ᐅᖓᑖᓃᑦᑐᑦ.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐱᓕᕆᒡᕕᖓ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓄᒃᑕᐅᓯᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓯᓯᒪᖕᒪᑕ ᑲᔪᓰᓐᓇᖅᑐᒥᒡᓗ 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᖕᒪᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕋᔅᓯᒎ ᑲᔪᓰᓐᓇᖅᑐᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐅᓂᑦᑳᒐᓛᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᕐᐲᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᔅᓯ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᔅᓯ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓᓂ 
ᐊᑐᖃᑦᑕᕿᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᔅᓯ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ 
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standards? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I guess following up with what 
Peter has indicated, there’s going to be 
greater due diligence provided at the 
NBCC and at our level, as the department, 
as indicated, we are in the process of 
reviewing the job description for one of our 
positions so that part of that person’s role is 
going to be devoted to more time to deal 
with our two Crown corporations like this 
and to be able to do some due diligence.  
 
One of the things that we haven’t done yet, 
and it’s in the action plan, is to get third 
party consultants outside the government to 
take a look at files and we have done this in 
other programs in the department where a 
proposal might have come in, let’s say, for 
the Strategic Investment Program, and it’s 
assessed externally for business viability 
and so forth. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. I just want to deal 
with some of the problem loans that were 
addressed by the Auditor General on 
paragraph 33, she gave an example, 5 out 
of 17 loans indicated 22 percent of them 
were “recorded a known problem of weak 
management skills,” and yet, her report 
indicated, “The loans were approved with 
no support to justify the recommendations 
for approval by the Board...”  
 
My question to Mr. Bhagoutie, if you can 
answer, I would like to know: have you 
figured out which particular loans, or 
which communities, or what type of 
ventures these were, these five loans that 

ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᑯᑦ ᓄᓇᕘᒻᒥ ᐱᐅᓯᒋᐊᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ, ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐲᑕᐅᑉ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᒡᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ. ᐱᖠᕆᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᕐᓴᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᓴᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᖓᑦ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓗ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᔪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᑭᓱᓕᕆᔨᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᓯᒪᔪᖏᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᖢᑎᒃ. ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓪᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᑦᑎᐊᑲᓐᓂᕐᓂᕐᓴᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ 
ᑲᑎᑕᐅᒃᐸᑎᒃ ᑎᒥᖁᑎᒋᔭᖏᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓗᑎᒃ. 
 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐱᓯᒪᙱᑕᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ ᓱᓕ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᒋᐊᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᓂᒃ ᐱᖓᔪᖓᓐᓂ ᑕᖅᑲᑯᓇᖔᖅᑐᒥᒃ 
ᑐᓴᕋᓱᐊᕐᓂᖃᕐᓗᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔨᑕᕐᒥᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᑏᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑐᖃᕐᓂᕐᐸ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑎᒥ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ 
ᐱᕈᕐᓴᐃᔪᒪᓗᑎᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑦᑕ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐱᔅᓂᔅᖓ ᐊᑭᓕᕐᓯᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕈᒪᓪᓗᖓ 
ᐃᓚᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᑲᐅᙱᓕᐅᕈᑎᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᑎᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ. 33-
ᒥᑦ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᖓᓄᑦ ᑕᓪᓕᒪᐃᒎᖅ 17-ᖑᔪᓂ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 29-ᐳᓴᓐᖏᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᙱᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᓴᙲᑦᑐᑯᓗᒻᒥᒎᖅ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ. ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕐᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒡᒎ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑐᐃᔾᔪᑎᖃᙱᑦᑎᐊᕐᖢᑎᒃ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᒪᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ.  
 
 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐸᑰᑎᒧᑦ, ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᕐᐲᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᔪᒪᔪᖓ. ᓇᓕᐊᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓯᒪᓕᕐᐲᑦ ᓇᓕᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᕕᓃᑦ 
ᓇᑭᙶᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᓄᓇᓕᖕᓂ ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
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appear to have been weak in management 
skills and so on, as she has clearly 
identified them as problem loans? Thank 
you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Bhagoutie.  
 
Mr. Bhagoutie: I don’t have the details 
with regards to those loans but I can speak 
a little bit about the process that we’re 
doing currently to be able to identify from 
the files we have; what are the high risk 
loans, the medium risk and the low risk.  
 
I just want to highlight the process with 
regards to the review of the loans and a 
new position actually has been developed 
with regards to the way the loans 
application is processed. There is a senior 
compliance officer that reviews the 
documentation to make sure that that 
document meets all of the regulatory 
requirements, and there is also the 
investment manager that looks at the 
application to see whether it makes good 
business sense.  
 
These, combined together, and once there 
is a complete document that identifies 
regulatory-wise, the application is 
sufficient, and if there’s a good business 
case, it then will be taken to the board.  
 
I don’t have the details, Mr. Chairman, 
with regards to the loans that were referred 
to in item 33 but I don’t know if the interim 
chair might have something else. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Bhagoutie. Mr. 
Ma, do you have anything to add to that?  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just a 
very quick comment; I believe the OAG 
has provided some of this information to 

ᐱᔅᓂᔅᖃᕐᓂᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᓪᓕᒪᐅᔪᐃᑦ 
ᓴᙲᑦᑐᑯᓗᒻᒥᒃ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᒧᑦ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᑲᐅᙱᓕᐅᕈᑎᐅᔪᒡᒎᖅ. 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᕕᓃᖅ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐸᑰᑎ. 
 
ᐸᑰᑎ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓗᓕᑯᓘᔭᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐱᓯᒪᙱᑦᑐᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᖓᓂ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖄᕐᔪᒍᓐᓇᕋᓗᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓇᖓᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᓯᒪᔪᖁᑎᑦᑎᓐᓂᒃ ᑭᓲᕙᑦ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓯᔾᔮᖏᑦᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑯᕐᓂᖅᓱᖅᑐᓪᓗ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓯᖏᑲᐃᓐᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᓖ. 
 
 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᖓᓂᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑲᐃᓐᓇᕐᓚᖓ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖃᑦᑕᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᓄᑖ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᔮᒃᓴᖅ 
ᓴᓇᔭᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᒥᔪᖅ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᒪᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᒪᓕᒐᕐᓂᑦ ᒪᓕᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓗᓂ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖑᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᒪᓕᒋᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᒪᓕᒐᕐᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᑦᑕᐅ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ 
ᐱᕈᖅᓴᐃᔨᑦ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓗᓂ 
ᐊᖑᒻᒪᑎᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᒪᓕᒐᕐᓄᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᓐᖓᒡᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖓ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᑦᑎᐊᖅᖢᓂ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑎᒍᑦ ᐊᑐᕐᓗᒍ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑎᖓ 
ᓈᒻᒪᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᒪᓕᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᖅ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅ business-ᖑᔪᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᓗᓂ.  
 
ᐃᓗᓕᑯᓘᔭᖏᓐᓂ ᐱᓯᒪᓐᖏᓐᓇᒪ. ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᖅᑲᐅᔭᑎᑦ ᓈᓴᐅᑎᑦ 23-ᖏᓐᓂ 
ᑎᑎᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖃᐃ 
ᑭᐅᒍᓐᓇᕈᓐᓇᖅᐹᑎᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐸᑰᑎ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᓇᐃᓐᓈᕐᓗᒍ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᑦᑐᖓ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᑐᓂᓯᒪᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐳᑯᑎ. ᓄᑖᖑᒐᒪ. ᓄᑖᖑᒐᒥ 



 105 

us. Mr. Bhagoutie, obviously, is new in his 
capacity as CEO, so as the Interim Chair, I 
will ensure that he gets this information 
and that it gets analyzed. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Personally, I can’t go back to 
why the loans were approved. I wouldn’t 
want to second guess the directors for 
approving them. What I’m getting at is the 
Auditor General indicated these were 
problem loans. They were behind in their 
loan payments and they may have gotten 
further in the loan payments and so on. 
These are actually what we should be 
dealing with.  
 
Other companies that are currently in 
question are paying their loans as we heard 
yesterday. The approvals may have been 
questioned because of the discretionary 
provision of the Loan Act that gives the 
minister that discretion to approve loans, 
whether we disagreed or agreed with him.  
 
Paragraph 33 indicated there were five 
major loans that are in problems. Can the 
NBCC and the CEO provide these 
particular files and identify them for us? As 
they are probably in the list, could they be 
identified and provided to the committee 
specifically for myself as well? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. You’re 
beating the hat. I thought we had arranged 
that in our last round of hearings to be 
provided that information. Mr. Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We 
will undertake to work with the OAG to 
provide this information to the standing 
committee. Thank you, Mr. Chairmna.  
 

ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑎᓪᓗᖓ 
ᑐᓂᓂᐊᖅᐸᕋ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᖅ ᑖᒃᓱᒧᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐅᑎᕈᓐᓇᖏᓐᓇᒪ ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᒥᔅᓴᐅᓴᒍᒪᒃᑲᔭᓐᖏᓐᓇᒪ 
ᐃᓛ ᓇᓚᐅᑦᑖᕈᒪᒐᔭᓐᖏᓐᓇᒪ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᑎᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᖅᑐᒡᒎ ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓯᖃᑦᑕᖏᒃᖢᑎᒡᓗ 
ᐊᑭᓕᕆᐊᖃᕋᓗᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᑦᑕᐅᑎᒋᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᐸᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᒻᐸᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᐸᒃᓴᒃ ᑐᓴᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᑦ ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᐃᒻᒪᑕ. ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᖏᑦ 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᖅᑐᒐᓗᐊᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᖅᓱᖅᑯᔨᓚᐅᕐᒪᖓ ᐃᓱᒪᖅᓲᖅᑕᐅᖅᑯᔨᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᖅ ᓲᕐᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᐃᓱᒪᖅᓱᖅᑯᔨᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᖏᖃᑎᖃᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᕈᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᔪᓐᓇᕐᓗᓂ ᓲᕐᓗ. 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ 33 ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᑕᓪᓕᒪᐃᒡᒎ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᒃᓴᒃ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑎᖓ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᐹᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᐅᕙᓂ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᓐᓃᑦᑐᒐᓗᐊᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᔪᓐᓇᖅᐲᑦ ᓇᓕᐊᖑᒻᒪᖔᑦᑕ ᑕᓪᓕᒪᐃᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ  ᐅᕙᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᓗᐊᓐᖑᐊᖅᑐᒥᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ.  
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᔪᒪᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒋᓂᐊᖅᐸᕗᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑏᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: In the same paragraph, the 
Auditor General also indicated and she 
gave an example. After saying, “the 
borrowers had problems and, at the time of 
our review, were significantly behind in 
their loan payments.” So it’s important that 
we understand exactly what we’re provided 
with here.  
 
In one case, “One owner had walked away 
from the business entirely, making only 
one payment after receiving the final 
disbursement of his loan.” Could that 
particular company be provided to us and 
identified? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Again, 
we will undertake to work with the OAG to 
provide that information to the standing 
committee. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: In terms of the Policy Act, I 
have a question to the Deputy Minister of 
ED&T, Ms. Keenainak. We understand 
that reviews of the operations of two 
Crown corporations were conducted to 
assess their effectiveness, particularly NDC 
and NBCC. Could the deputy minister 
provide the status of these reviews for us at 
this time? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The final report provided to the 
minister has been delayed due to other 

ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑕᒡᕙᓂᑦᓴᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐅᑦᑐᑎᖃᖅᖢᓂ. 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑏᒡᒎ ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᑭᖑᕙᖅᓯᒪᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑭᓕᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᕐᒥᓐᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑐᑭᓯᒪᑦᑎᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᑭᓱᓂᒃ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓐᓂᕐᒪᑕ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᓚᖓᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᒃ business-ᖑᔪᒥ 
ᕿᒪᐃᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᖢᓂ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᓚᐅᖅᖢᓂ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐊᓚᐅᖅᖢᓂ ᐊᑭᓖᓕᖅᖢᓂ. ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᑎᖏᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᖅ ᑭᓇᐅᒻᒪᖔᖅ 
ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᐱᑕ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ 
ᐱᓕᕆᓇᓱᓐᓂᐊᖅᓗᒍᑦ ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᖓ 
ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᖅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒋᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᓂᐊᕋᑦᑎᒍ ᑐᓴᕋᔅᓴᐃᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓕᕆᓂᖅ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑏᑦ ᑐᖏᓕᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᖓᑦᑕ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓄᑦᑕᐅᓯᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᕐᒧ. ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᕆᔭᖏᑦ 
ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑎᒥᖁᑎᒋᔭᖓ ᑲᑎᑦᑐᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᖃᐃᔨᓴᐃᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᐅᓪᓚᓐᓂᖃᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ NBCC-ᑯᒡᓗ. 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓕᕐᒪᖔᖅ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕈᓐᓇᖅᐹ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓐᓂᕆᔭᐅᓚᖅᑐᒧᑦ ᑖᒃᓱᒧᖓ 
ᒫᓐᓇ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
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things that are happening at the moment. 
However, my department and the 
Department of Finance have provided a 
report and that is before the minister’s 
consideration. The minister will present it 
to Cabinet hopefully at the next Cabinet 
meeting. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: During the presentation in 
November, the deputy minister indicated to 
us that the question with respect to 
operational reviews appear to have 
recommended some certain operational 
decisions to be made by the department, in 
particular, whether or not to amalgamate 
the two departments I believe was one.  
 
The deputy minister indicated to us that 
they were not fully satisfied with what was 
recommended and indicated to the 
committee that more work was required. 
What more work could you report to this 
committee? What more work, in detail, was 
asked for? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The department felt that the 
issue of amalgamation for NDC and NBCC 
was not fully explored. The department felt 
that it was a bit of a cursory review.  
 
In October of 2007, the department was 
provided direction by Cabinet to work with 
the Department of Finance on looking at 
this and part of that included a field trip by 
some of our officials from Finance and 
ED&T to Yellowknife to talk to some of 
their officials there to look at that option. I 
will also acknowledge that there were some 
other options brought forward during 

ᑭᖑᕙᕆᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ. ᒫᓐᓇ ᐱᓂᐊᕐᓂᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᖏᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓ ᑐᓂᓯᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓂᒃ ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᓪᓗ ᑐᓂᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᐅᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᓕᖅᐸᑕ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐄ, ᐅᓂᒃᑳᑎᓪᓗᒋᓐ ᓄᕕᐱᕆᒥ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ ᐅᖃᖅᖢᓂ, 
ᐊᐅᓚᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᖅᑐᕕᓂᐅᒻᒥᒻᒪᑕᒎᖅ. ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒻᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ ᑲᑎᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑎᒃ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ ᑎᒥᖁᑎᒋᔭᐅᔫᒃ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᓐᒨᖓᐅᑦᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
ᓈᒻᒪᔅᓴᓕᔾᔮᖏᒻᒪᑕᓱᓕᒎᖅ  ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᔪᒥᒃ 
ᓇᓗᓴᐃᖅᓯᓪᓗᓂ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓂᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᒻᒪᑕᓱᓕᒎᖅ. 
ᑭᓱᓕᕆᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᖃᐊᕋᑦᓯ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕈᓐᓇᖅᐱᓰ ᑭᓱᓕᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᒻᒪᖔᑦᓯ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒃ ᐃᑉᐱᒍᓱᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᑦᔪᑎᑦ ᑲᑎᑕᐅᑉᐸᑕ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᖃᕝᕕᒃ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪ ᓱᓕ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᖁᓪᓗᑎᒍ.  
 
ᐊᒃᑑᕙ 2007-ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒃ ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᓐᓂᒃ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᖃᖁᕙᐅᓪᓗᑎ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᑖᓐᓇ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᕗᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᐅᓚᑲᑕᑦᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᓄᓇᑦᑎᐊᕐᒧᓪᓗ, ᔨᐊᓗᓇᐃᕝᕗᑦ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᖃᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᒍᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᐊᓯᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
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standing committee that have been 
included in the final report provided to the 
minister. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. I also had 
personal inquiries with respect to the 
effectiveness or whatnot about the 
Yellowknife or the NWT experience. I 
understand from them that they’re not 
satisfied with the way in which it had 
evolved because one is taking a proactive 
development responsibility and the other is 
a whole slew of risks incorporated into it. 
To term it short, they say it’s a mess and 
it’s not something they would recommend.  
 
What I gathered from your presentation 
was, during the last time, that you were 
asking the consultant to do a policy 
decision for you. I know these individuals; 
they were not really willing to make that 
determination for you because it’s a policy 
issue.  
 
Why could you not say to the committee 
which one of them do you prefer as a 
deputy minister? Should it be an individual, 
a standalone company with a loan 
portfolio, or a lending business that it 
operates as it is, instead of incorporating it 
with another? There are enough problems 
with this institution. So it’s a policy matter. 
Are you asking the consultant to just apply 
what you want? Is that what it is? Thank 
you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The terms of reference that were 
provided when the consultant was hired 
clearly outlined that that was an area that 

ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒥᔪᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅᓯᐅᑎᓂ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐄ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᐱᖅᖁᑎᒋᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒥᔭᒃᑲ ᐃᒻᒥᑰᖅᑐᖓᓖ 
ᔨᐊᓗᓇᐃᕝᒥ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᐅᕙᓂ ᓄᓇᑦᓯᐊᕐᒥ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓕᕆᓂᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ. ᐃᓚᖓᓐ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᑎᑎᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᒥᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑎᒍᒥᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᖃᑎᖏᑦ 
ᐅᓗᕆᐊᓇᖅᓂᖅᓴᒦᑦᖢᑎᒃ. 
ᐱᐅᖏᑦᑐᐊᓘᓂᕋᐃᓚᐅᖅᑐᓂᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᐊᑐᖁᔭᐅᒐᔭᓐᖏᑦᖢᑎᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒋᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᓐ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖅᑎᒎᖅᑐᔅᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᔪᒪᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᓐ ᐃᓕᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᑐᕌᖓᒻᒪᓐ. 
 
 
 
ᓱᒻᒪᓪᓕᑭᐊᖅ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᖃᖏᓂᖅᐱᑦ ᓇᓪᓕᐊᒃ 
ᐊᑐᕈᑦᑎᒃᑯ ᐱᐅᓇᔭᒻᒪᖔᓐ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᓐᖑᖅᑎᑕᐅᓗᓂ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓂᑦ ᐃᒻᒥᒃᑰᓪᓗᑎᒃ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓱᕐᕋᖏᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖃᓪᓗᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑲᐅᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᒻᒪᓐ ᓱᒻᒪᓪᓕ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑎᐊᖅᑐᐊᓘᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᖃᑖ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᓐᖑᖅᑎᖃᓯᐅᑎᒍᒪᓇᔭᖅᐱᐅᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᖓᑦ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᓕᒐᐃᑦ ᖃᐃᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᔪᒪᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᑉᐳᑦ 
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had to be looked at, and when the report 
was provided to the department itself, it 
was not fully explored. 
 
The second part of the work was done 
internally; it was not using consultants. My 
role as the deputy is to provide options to 
the minister and then the minister will, in 
turn, go to Cabinet with the options. It is a 
policy decision that would have to be made 
by Cabinet. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, I 
personally thought that the minister would 
have had a strong justification for going 
one way or the other. It shouldn’t even be 
an option being considered in my opinion. 
There are enough difficulties at the moment 
with NBCC. Why waste some public funds 
in spending at least $80,000 on 
consultants?  
 
Why are we wasting time asking the 
consultant to do a policy work when it 
could easily be dealt with internally? This 
is what the department is supposed to do. 
The Policy and Planning Division could 
actually recommend that.  
 
In view of the fact that that is a possibility, 
if I were to say, would you consider then 
that if you were to incorporate with NDC; I 
believe NDC is the one that is being 
considered and being asked by your 
officials to asking a consultant to review 
that; if that were to occur, would you 
consider also relocating it from this region 
to where the successful company has been 
operated out of Rankin Inlet? Would that 
be one option? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak. 

ᐃᓱᒪᓚᐅᕐᒥᔪᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᖏᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᒫᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᒪ RT Consultants-ᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᕙᕗᑦ ᑳᑦᑐᓛᒃᑐᑎᒃᑯᓪᓗ 
ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎᑖᖅᑎᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑏᓐ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑎᒋᓗᑎᒃᑯ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᓇᔭᕐᒪᓪᓕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐄ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓱᕈᓐᓇᖅᕕᖃᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᓐ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᔭᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᖏᑦᑎᐊᒻᒪᕆᖅᑰᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕘᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐᖓᑦ ᒫᓐᓇ ᐱᐅᖏᑦᑐᒦᓗᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
$80,000-ᖏᓃᕋᔭᕐᖢᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐋᖅᑭᑦᑕᐅᓇᓱᒃᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᓱᖕᒪᓪᓕᑭᐊᖅ ᐊᐱᕆᓇᓱᒃᐱᑕ ᑕᐃᑦᓱᒥᖓ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔨᑕᕆᔭᐅᔪᒥᒃ ᑎᒥᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᒍᓐᓇᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ? ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᐅᑉ 
ᐱᔭᒃᓴᕆᖅᑰᔨᒐᓗᐊᕐᒪᒍ. ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐃᔭᐃᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓕᖁᔨᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ. 
 
 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᑎᓪᓗᒍ, ᐅᖃᖅᑐᒥᓂᐅᒍᒪ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒋᒐᔭᖅᐱᓯᐅᒃ ᑲᑎᑎᑕᐅᓐᓂᖅᐸᑕ  NDC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ; 
NDC-ᑯᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᐅᖅᑰᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᐱᕆᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖁᑎᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᒪᑐᒥᓐᖓ 
ᑕᑯᓇᒋᐊᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ; ᐊᓱᐃᓪᓛᖑᓐᓂᖅᐸᑦ, 
ᐃᓱᒪᒐᔭᖅᐱᓯᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᓄᑦᑎᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐃᓂᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᒧᑦ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᒧᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᑐᒧᑦ 
ᑲᖏᖅᖠᓂᕐᒥ? ᑖᓐᓇ ᓇᓕᕌᕈᑕᐅᖃᑕᐅᕙ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ, ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
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Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I believe Minister Netser has 
already indicated that would be an option. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. When the option 
whether or not to amalgamate the two is 
presented, would it be correct to assume 
that the policy recommendations, or the 
policy, if it had been considered and 
approved by Cabinet, will that be tabled in 
the House next sitting, either this month or 
early next month? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I believe the previous minister 
and also my current minister did commit to 
tabling both the initial report as well as the 
follow-up report at the next sitting. Once 
the options, then it is a decision is made by 
Cabinet. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. I think that 
statement should be very clear here as I 
think the MLAs should have a role 
debating that issue because one involves 
the lending business and one involves 
investing into sectors of the economy in 
Nunavut.  
 
In order to just focus on the fact that NBCC 
is not running as it should, to use that 
argument to formally incorporate it into 
something that is running successfully, 
sooner or later, some areas are going to 
have to be chopped away. One institution is 

 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓇᑦᑎᖅ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᒌᓚᐅᖅᑐ ᓇᓕᕌᕈᒻᒥᑦ 
ᑕᒪᑐᒥᖓ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᓐᖑᕐᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᐸᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᖓᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᒃᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑕᐅᓕᕐᐸᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓛᖅᐹ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᕕᒻᒧᑦ 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᕕᔾᔪᐊᕐᓂᖃᓕᕐᒥᒍᑦᑕ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ, ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒐ 
ᐊᖏᖅᓯᒪᓕᕇᕐᑑᖕ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕆᐊᓐᖓᕈᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᑑᖕ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᔪᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᕕᔾᔪᐊᓕᖅᐸᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᕌᓂᒃᐸᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᓕᕌᕈᑎᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᑦᓯᒪᑦᓯᐊᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᖅ, ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᑏᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔾᔪᑎᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᑕᒪᑦᑐᒪ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ. ᐊᑕᐅᓯᖅ 
ᐊᑮᑦᑐᖅᑖᕐᕕᖕ ᕿᑐᕐᖏᐅᑎᑦᑎᕙᓪᓗᐊᕗᖅ, ᔨᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
ᓄᓇᕘᒥ ᐱᕚᓪᓕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑖᓐᓇ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᖓᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑦᑎᐊᖏᑦᑎᓪᓗᒍ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑦᑎᐊᕐᑐᒧᑦ ᐃᓚᔭᐅᑉᐸᑦ ᓇᐅᒃᑯᒃᑭᐊᖅ, ᐃᓚᖏᑦ 
ᐲᔭᕐᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᔭᕐᑐᓐ. ᐃᓚᖓᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᒪᑐᓗᓂ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᓐᖑᕐᓂᐊᕈᓂ. ᐅᓄᕐᑐᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
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going to have to be closed down and 
amalgamated because you’re not going to 
have that many directors or CEOs for all 
that matter.  
 
In my view, I think what should be 
included in the review is not a narrow 
review of the operation. No operational 
review. It should also look at financial 
institutions. Should there be financial 
centres in Nunavut?  
 
There are financial institutions that are in 
place that you’re just funnelling money 
into, like Kitikmeot is one. The Auditor 
General reported huge amounts of funds 
that cannot be recovered, so therefore, 
NDC has had to lend some funds into it. I 
believe there should be a major financial 
lending institution. There’s a lending 
business review going on so that we have a 
clear set of ideas exactly what we mean 
by... I believe they need to be, in my 
opinion, at least reviewed so that they 
become effective financial services in 
Nunavut.  
 
Maybe centre them in one location because 
that would be something that I would like 
that the Deputy Minister of Finance, 
whether or not that’s something that should 
be looked at. I’m not going to ask for 
commitment on that but it’s something 
that’s worth looking at. Would you agree 
with that kind of an evaluation being done? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. 
Deputy Minister of Finance, in your 
capacity as the chair, if you want to go 
ahead, Mr. Ma. 
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That’s 
certainly the possibly that we could look at. 
I think the members’ comments have some 
merit.  

ᐅᓄᕐᑎᒋᔪᓂᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖃᕈᓐᓇᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖃᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐅᖏᑦᑐᓃᖕ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᓚᓕᐅᔾᔭᐅᖃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᔭᕆᐊᓕᒃ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓐᓂᐊᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔪᑏᑦ. ᐊᐅᓚᓂᖏᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ, ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕖᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ. ᖃᑦᓯᓂᒃ ᐱᑕᖃᕆᐊᖃᕐᐸ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ?  
 
 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᑦᑕᖃᐅᖅᑐᖕ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᓲᕐᓗ ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᑦ 
ᐃᓚᒋᔭᐅᖃᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ, ᑕᒻᒪᕐᓯᒪᔪᕐᓯᐅᕐᑎᐅᓪᓗ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖓᓂ ᐅᕝᕙᐅᕗᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᑦ 
ᐅᑎᖅᑎᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑑᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕆᐊᖃᖅᓯᒪᓕᔪᔪᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᕕᒻᒥᑦ. ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓪᓗᐊᕐᑐᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᐅᓚᐅᓯᖏᑦ. ᑐᑭᑖᑦᑎᐊᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ. 
ᐅᕙᖓᓕ ᐃᓱᒪᖓᒎᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ 
ᐊᑑᑎᖃᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᓂᐊ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄᓗ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᓕᓗᒋᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᔭᕋ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒃᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᖓ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᕈᔪᖕᒦᖕ ᑕᑯᔪᒪᓇᔭᖅᐲᑦ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖓᓕᖓ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᖃᓄᕐᑑᕈᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᑦᓯᐊᕐᑕᕗᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᑏᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᖏᑦ. 
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Obviously, just to pick on his community, 
Rankin Inlet would be a good choice. 
Previously, the Arctic College actually had 
a number of management and business 
management type of courses there. I think 
that was a very successful program. 
Certainly, there are a high number of 
accountants in Rankin Inlet because of that 
program. 
 
I’m almost certain that the member is 
thinking about what’s already in Rankin 
Inlet; there’s a Royal Bank, there’s a CIBC, 
Atuqtuarvik. So that would certainly be 
something that we could have a look at as a 
possibility. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Maybe at 
this time, Mr. Curley, I would like to 
recognize the clock. It is three o’clock and 
I know Mr. Ma has a meeting he has to go 
to right away. So we’ll take a break until 
3:30 and when we resume, you can have 
the floor back, Mr. Curley. We will break 
for half an hour. 
 
>>Committee recessed at 15:05 and 
resumed at 15:44 
 
Chairman: Thank you and welcome back. 
Mr. Ma, you want to have the floor? Please 
go ahead. 
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just 
wanted to thank you as the chair and the 
standing committee for breaking at the time 
that we did. I very much appreciate that 
because I had some of the commitments 
that I had to deal with. So I very much 
appreciate the standing committee’s 
acknowledgement for letting me do that. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Did you 
forget something, Mr. Ma? Go ahead.  

 
ᑲᖏᖅᖠᓂᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐱᐅᒐᔭᖅᑐᖅ, 
ᓯᓚᒃᑐᓴᕐᕕᒃᑯᓂᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ ᑐᑦᑕᕐᕕᖃᓚᐅᕐᒥᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂᓗ ᐅᓄᖅᑐᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑲᖏᖅᖠᓂᕐᒥ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐄ, ᑲᖏᖅᖠᓂᕐᒥ Royal Bank-ᑕᖃᑕᖅᐳᖅ, CIBC-
ᑕᖃᑕᖅᐳᖅ, ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᑦᑕᖃᑦᑕᖅᐳᖅ. ᐄ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᑎᐊᖅᑕᕗᑦ. ᐄ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
ᒫᓐᓇᖃᐃ 3-ᒧᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ ᑲᑎᒪᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᕐᖢᓂᓗ 
ᒫᓐᓇ ᐅᐸᕆᐊᖃᕐᑕᒥᓄᑦ. ᓄᖅᑲᖓᓚᐅᑲᓐᓂᐊᖅᐳᒍᑦ 
3:30-ᖑᕋᓱᓐᓂᖓᓂ. ᐃᑲᕐᕋᐅᑉ ᓇᑉᐸᖓᓂ. 
 
 
 
>>ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ 15:05ᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐱᒋᐊᒃᑲᓐᓂᖅᑐᑎᒃ 15:44ᒥ 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᑐᓐᖓᓱᒋᑦᑎ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᓇᑎᕐᒥ ᐅᖃᓕᕆᑦ. 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᕈᒪᕙᒋᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓂᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᓄᖅᑲᕌᖓᑦᑕ ᖁᕕᐊᒋᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᕋ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕆᐊᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᖁᕕᐊᒋᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᑯᕋ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᑕᒪᔅᓱᒥᖓ ᐱᕕᖃᕐᑎᑕᐅᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐳᐃᒍᖅᑲᐅᕖᑦ, 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ? ᐊᑏ. 
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
You’re correct. I also should let members 
know that the Comptroller General, Mr. 
O’Donnell, will be at the workshop that 
we’re hosting today as the Finance 
Department. So if there are any questions 
with respect to the comptroller general, I 
can take those questions. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. When we 
finished on the break, Mr. Curley had the 
floor. Go ahead, Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. Earlier I was 
asking questions about the major policy 
change that ED&T appears to be working 
on, whether or not to amalgamate or move. 
Obviously, it would have to involve 
moving the headquarters somewhere and 
that may be one of the arguments that you 
attempted to use. If you amalgamate, then 
it’s easier to move them obviously. 
Regardless what the situation is, I think 
relocating it is an option that should be 
looked at anyways.  
 
During the presentation in November, I 
indicated to you guys also that it was 
important to communicate with the 
regional chambers to broaden the public 
sharing of information with the particular 
situation that was happening with Nunavut 
Business Credit Corporation, whether it 
was business as usual, as it was suspended 
at that time for a while.  
 
So I would like to ask the deputy minister: 
does the minister or you consider 
contacting all of the regional chambers of 
commerce? For instance, why is the 
government considering amalgamating 
NDC, Nunavut Development Corporation, 
and NBCC into one? To leave it with just 
the consultants and the few officials or the 

 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᖁᔭᒃᑲ ᑮᓇᐃᔭᓕᕆᔩᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᕗᑦ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕆᐊᖃᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᕈᔅᓯ 
ᐅᕙᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑎᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ, ᐱᐊᓂᓐᖏᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᐅᖃᕈᒪᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ. ᐊᑏ.  
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑎᓪᓗᖓ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓂᑦ 
ᐊᖏᔪᓂᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔩᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᑦᑎᔪᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᓯᐊᓄᑦ ᓅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᓗᓂ NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐊᐃᕙᐅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᒐᓱᐊᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑲᑎᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᖏᓐᓂᕐᓴᐅᒐᔭᕐᒪᑦ 
ᓅᑕᐅᒐᔭᕐᓂᖓᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᓯᐊᓄᑦ ᓄᒃᑎᖅᑕᐅᒃᐸᑦ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔪᓐᓇᕐᒥᒐᔅᓯᐅᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᓄᕕᐱᕆᒥ ᐅᖃᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᓚᐅᕋᒪ 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᓂᖓᓂᒃ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᒥ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᓂ ᐊᕕᒃᑐᕐᓯᒪᔪᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑕᓄᑦ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᓄᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᒥᖅᑳᖃᑎᒋᓗᒋᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᕆᓯᒪᔭᖓᓐᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ, ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᓄᖅᑲᖅᑎᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᖕᒪᑕ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑦᑕᐅᑎᓂᖅ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ Deputy ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᑐᖏᓕᖅ ᐃᒡᕕᒡᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒃᓴᕐᓯᐅᕈᓐᓇᕐᐹ, ᐃᓱᒪᔪᓐᓇᕐᐹᑦ? ᑕᒪᐃᑕ 
ᐊᕕᑦᑐᕐᓯᒪᔪᒥ ᓄᓇᕗᒥ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌ ᐅᖃᕐᕕᐅᓗᒃᑖᕐᓗᑎ. ᓲ, ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑲᑎᑦᑎᔪᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ NDC-ᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 
NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᓚᖓᔪᓂᒃ Contract-ᑎᑕᐅᔪᓂᒃ 
ᑲᒪᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᐸᑕ ᐃᓱᖃ ᐃᓛ ᐃᓱᒪᖏᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
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working group in the government is too 
limited. It’s important that that policy 
change, if it’s going to come about or not, 
should be explored. Would that be 
something that you would be comfortable 
to do on behalf of the government? Thank 
you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Just to clarify, the working 
group has made a recommendation to the 
minister. As indicated, the deadline was 
supposed to be at the end of January. So we 
have made that recommendation. It will be 
up to the minister and I can bring forward 
your comments to the minister. He is 
travelling right now on the issue of 
consultation with chambers. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. I think those are 
fundamental questions. This government 
says that they’re doing a transparent job of 
anything, like major policies and things are 
happening. Not only should you be 
consulting with the consultants and asking 
them for advice, you should also be asking 
the Inuit organizations. Come on. It 
shouldn’t be just up to the minister whether 
he wants to or not. That’s just too narrow. 
It should be the departments’ strong 
recommendation.  
 
Something of this major change, 
consultations should be broadened because 
we will get to hear it from this Assembly. 
We may only get to find out a bit further on 
once the decision had been made but prior 
to the decision being made is normally a 
wide open exchange with the public. It’s 

ᖁᑦᑎᒃᑐᒨᕐᓂᕐᓴᐅᔪᓐᓇᔾᔮᖏᒻᒪᑕ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑰᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑐᙵᓱᒃᑎᑦᑎᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᑦᑕ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᓯᖏᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᔪᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ, ᑎᒥᐊᓛᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᓂᒃ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑐᓂᓯᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐅᖃᕐᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂᓗ ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᓱᓕᕝᕕᐊ 
ᐅᕝᓗᖓᑕ ᔮᓄᐊᓕᒥ ᐅᓱᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎ ᐃᓕᓚᐅᕋᑦᑎᒍ ᑕᐃᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᐃᓱᒪᕐᓲᑎᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᑎᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᖅᑕᒃᑲ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᕐᕕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᖑᔪᑦ ᐊᕕᒃᑐᕐᓯᒪᔪᓂ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᓱᓕ ᑐᑭᐊ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᑯᒃᓴᐅᓂᕋᕐᖢᑎ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᓪᓗ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒋᑐᐃᓐᓇᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᒋᔭᓯ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᑐᐊᖑᔭᕆᐊᖃᙱᒻᒪᑕ ᑭᓯᐊᓂᑦᑕᐅ 
ᐊᐱᕆᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒥᔭᑎ ᐃᓄᐃᑦ ᑲᑐᔾᔨᖃᑎᒌᒐᓚᖏᑦ. 
ᐊᑏ, ᐃᒪᓐᓇ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᐃᓱᒪᖅᓱᑐᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᖃᙱᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐱᔪᒪᔭᑐᐃᓐᓇᑯᓗᐊᓂᑦ. ᓇᐃᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᐅᓂᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᕕᑦᑐᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐊᕕᒃᑐᕐᓯᒪᔪᓪᓗ. 
 
 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᖏᔪᐊᓗ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒌᓐᓂᖅ ᐊᖏᓂᕐᓴᐅᔭᕆᐊᓕᒃ 
ᐅᒃᑯᐃᖓᓂᕐᓴᐅᓗᓂ. ᐅᕙᖓ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᕕᖕᒥᑦ ᐃᒻᒪᖃ 
ᖃᐅᔨᑐᐃᓐᓇᕋᔭᕐᒥᒐᑦᑎᒍ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᕌᓂᑦᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᓯᕗ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᓚᐅᙱᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐅᒃᑯᐃᖓᓂᕐᓴᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑦ ᑭᒃᑯᓕᒫᑦ ᑕᒪᑦᓱᒥᖓ 
ᓈᒻᒪᒃᓴᔾᔮᖏᓐᓂᖏᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᐅᓗᑎᒡᓗ ᑕᐃᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
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really quite critical. That’s the essence of 
Democracy. I suggest, deputy minister, that 
that’s part of your job. Will you do that for 
us? Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curly. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. As I indicated, I will discuss 
that option with the minister, who is 
travelling and should be back I believe 
tomorrow, and I will bring forward that 
recommendation. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
One question I have and it was kind of 
touched upon a little bit earlier, it has to 
deal with what we have heard from day one 
until now - the trouble that the corporation 
has had in attracting and retaining qualified 
individuals to work for the organization.  
 
As the former chairperson indicated to us 
yesterday about his own board and the 
board responsible for maintaining and 
operating the corporation, he actually made 
a motion recommending that the 
organization move from Cape Dorset, 
where they had recognized the challenges, 
they must have felt that it would be pretty 
tough for them to fulfill their duties in that 
location, and it was passed.  
 
They also indicated that the GN gave them 
no real clear rationale for rejecting it. My 
question to the deputy minister: if they 
received that request from the board of 
directors, is it something that the GN 
considered when they received that 
request? Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I don’t recall that letter but I’m 
sure it did come in and I can follow-up on 

ᑐᖏᓕᐊ ᐊᐱᕆᕙᕋ: ᑕᒡᕙ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᓚᖓ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕕᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᖅ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓂᐊᕐᐸᕋ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔭᖕᒪᑦ ᖃᐅᑉᐸᑦ ᐅᑎᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒃᓴᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑎᒋᓗᒍ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ, ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
ᐅᓇ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᐊᓛᖅ ᐊᑦᑐᖅᑕᐅᒐᓛᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᓕ ᐊᑦᑐᐊᓂᖃᕐᖢᓂ ᑐᓴᕐᓯᒪᔭᑦᑕ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᕐᐹᒥ ᐱᒋᐊᕐᓂᖓᓂᑦ ᒫᓐᓇᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᒃᖢᒍ 
ᐊᑲᐅᙱᓕᐅᕈᑏ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᕈᓪᓗᖕᓂᐅᔪᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᐊᕐᓂᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᐃᓐᓇᕋᓱᖕᓂᕐᓗ ᐱᓯᒪᐃᓐᓇᕐᓗᓂ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑐᓂᑦ. 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᔪᖅ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᑐᖃᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᕐᓗ 
ᐃᒃᐸᒃᓴᖅ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᐅᕙᒃᑎᖕᓄᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ 
ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑏᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑦᑏᓐᓇᕐᓂᕐᒧᓗ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒥᒃ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᐅᔪᒥᑦ 
ᐱᖁᔨᕗᖔᕈᓯᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᖅᑕᖃᕐᒪᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑭᙵᓂᑦ 
ᓅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒍ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓵᑕᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᖏᑦ ᐃᒃᐱᒍᓱᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᖏᔫᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᖢᓂᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐱᐊᓂᒐᓱᐊᖅᖢᑎᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᓐᓂ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᓂᐊᓂ. 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᖄᖏᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑐᓂᓯᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕᒎᖅ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᑐᑭᓂᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐋᒃᑳᖅᑕᐅᖓᔭᕐᓂᐊᓄᑦ. ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᐊᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᓗᒍ ᑖᔅᓱᒥᖓ ᐱᖁᔨᕗᖔᕈᑎᒥᑦ 
ᐱᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑕᕝᕙ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᖏᑕ 
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᐸᐅᒃ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᐸᐅᒃ? 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᒥ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒍᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒍᒪᔪᖓ 
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that. However, I would like to point out 
that the issue of moving is a policy 
decision made by Cabinet, and right now, 
the policy for NBCC is that it be located in 
Cape Dorset. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. I 
guess given everything that we have seen 
unfold over the last seven years 
culminating in the report that we are 
reviewing right now, other than it just 
being a policy decision, how can the 
government support that location if the 
board of directors that are responsible for 
ensuring that is operates properly doesn’t 
even support it? Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. What I can do as a deputy 
minister is bring forward issues like this to 
my minister and to Cabinet. However, the 
decision on decentralization is by Cabinet. 
I can bring forward issues of concern that 
have been brought forward and that’s all I 
can do. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. In 
our first round of hearings, the former 
minister was pretty adamant that there was 
no way that it was going to be moving 
anywhere, and since then, they seem to not 
be so rigid on other options. I think it’s 
imperative if we want this organization to 
succeed and fulfill the important role that it 
has, everything needs to be looked at. If 
you have the board of directors, the 
Auditor General, and a lot of former 
employees that worked there all saying the 
same thing, you know they tried, we can’t 
blame them. 
 
I see that a lot of what’s been going on here 
over the last few days is some people have 
been blaming other people or whatever. I 
think that the sole blame responsibility for 
this mess lies with the government for its 

ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᑎᒍ ᒪᓕᒋᐊᖃᕋᑦᑎᒍ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓅᑕᐅᒐᔭᖅᐸᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᐃᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑭᓐᖓᓂ ᓅᑕᐅᒐᔭᕐᒪᖔᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
ᑕᐅᑐᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᑯᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᐅᑭᐅᓄᑦ 7-ᓄᑦ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖑᓯᒪᔪᓪᓗ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᕗᑦ ᒫᓐᓇ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᑐᐃᓐᓇᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᒐᔭᖅᐸᑦ? ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑐᐃᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᐸᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓂᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᖓ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᕐᒥᑦ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᑐᖏᓕᕆᑎᓪᓗᓂᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᔾᔪᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᓗᒋᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᓄᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᒋᐊᖃᕋᔭᕐᒪᑦ ᓅᑕᐅᓂᖓᓴᖓᓄᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑕᐅᓗᑎᓪᓗ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑎᒋᓗᒋᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐱᔪᓐᓇᕋᒪ ᑕᐃᒪᑐᐊᖅ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐃᓱᒪᒐᒪ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥ 
ᑲᑎᒪᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᑎ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
ᓅᑕᐅᒐᔭᓐᖏᓪᓚᑦᑖᕐᓂᖓᓂ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᖓᓂᓪᓕ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓱᑲᖓᓗᐊᓐᖏᓂᖅᓴᐅᓕᕐᒪᑕ 
ᓂᕈᐊᖅᓯᒐᔭᕐᓂᖓᓂ ᐊᓯᐊᓅᖅᑕᐅᑉᐸᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔪᖅ ᑲᔪᓯᑦᑎᐊᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᓪᓗ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑕ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ.  
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑕᒻᒪᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅᓯᐅᑏᓪᓗ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑐᖃᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖃᑦᑕᖃᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓂᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓛ 
ᐸᓯᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᓐᓇᖏᓐᓇᑦᑎᒍ ᐱᑎᓐᓂᕋᕐᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑕᐅᔪᓂᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑐᓵᖃᑦᑕᖅᑲᐅᒐᑦᑕ ᐅᑉᓘᓐᓃᒃ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐸᓯᖃᑦᑕᐅᑎᔪᑦ ᐃᒻᒥᒃᑯᑦ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᖅ 
ᐱᔾᔪᑕᐅᔪᖅ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᓂᑦ ᑖᒃᓱᒧᖓ 
ᐱᑦᑎᐊᖏᓕᕈᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑰᕗᑦ. ᐅᓇ, 
ᐊᔪᕈᑎᖃᕐᑎᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᓱᑲᖓᓗᐊᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ 
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inability or inflexibility to taking a look at 
the realities. They have let down all of the 
individuals that were here over the last few 
days, and hopefully, not the ones that are 
going to be there as well.  
 
The board even said, “It won’t work. It’s 
not working here. We should move it 
somewhere.” They never said where but 
they just said, “Move it out of Cape 
Dorset.” We heard all of the former 
employees saying that was a serious 
challenge. It will be. I think the board, 
through the organization, did what they 
could to try and bring that forward but they 
were let down and left to sink by the 
government for refusing to even 
acknowledge that request or look at it.  
 
So I seriously hope that this 
recommendation is brought forward to the 
minister and to the Cabinet because there 
seems to be a little bit of flexibility now, 
they’re not as rigid as they were in their 
last hearings. Did they take a serious look 
at this? At what cost will we just leave 
things be? Will you bring that message to 
the minister? Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I will certainly provide a 
briefing to the minister based on the 
comments provided. Deputy Minister Ma 
will ensure that we brief our appropriate 
ministers based on the comments from 
today and also from the last couple days. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
would like to follow-up on your line of 
questioning and Mr. Curley’s line of 
questioning. She says in her report, Ms. 
Keenainak, that the working group has 

ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᓱᓕᓂᖏᓐᓂ ᑕᑯᔅᓴᐅᔪᓂᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᒧᒃᑎᑦᑎᕆᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᓱᕐᓗ ᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᐅᕙᓃᖅᑲᐅᔪᓂᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑖᓐᓇᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᓄᑖᖅ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑕᐅᕗᓐᖓᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐅᕙᓂ 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔪᓐᓇᔾᔮᖏᑦᑑᓚᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᔪᕐᒪᑦ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓂᑦ 
ᓅᑕᐅᑉᐸᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᕕᓂᓕᒫᑦ 
ᓵᑕᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᖃᖃᑦᑕᖃᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᓪᓗ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒧᑦ 
ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᕐᒥᑎᒍᑦ ᐱᔪᓐᓇᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐃᒪᓐᓇᓗ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᓐᖏᓗᐊᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᓱᑎᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᐃᓕᑕᕆᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖏᑦᑐᑎᓪᓗ ᐅᐱᒋᔭᐅᓕᕈᓐᓇᖏᑦᑐᖠᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓂᖓᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐊᔪᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᓂᕆᐅᑦᑐᖓᓕ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᑎᑕᐅ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᑉᐸᑕ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᔪᓄᑦ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᔪᓐᓇᖏᓐᓂᖅᓴᐅᕌᔾᔪᓂᐊᖅᑐᖅ ᑲᑦᑐᖓᓂᖅᓴᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᑐᓵᓂᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᖃᒻᒪᕆᑦᑐᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ. ᓱᓇ 
ᐱᑦᔪᑕᐅᔪᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᖓᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᐱᑎᒎ? 
ᓱᓇ ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑎᒋᓗᒍ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ? ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᐅᖃᕝᕕᒋᓗᒍ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᓯ ᒪᓕᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᑐᖏᓕᖓ ᒫ, 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᐅᖃᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᐅᓪᓗᒥ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂ ᐅᓪᓘᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ, ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᑉᐱᑦ ᓱᓖ?  
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑭᖑᕝᕕᕈᒪᒐᒃᑭᓐ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓐ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕᐅᑉ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᑦ. ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᓐ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᓐᓂ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒌᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖃᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂᒃ. ᑖᑯᐊ 



 118 

completed its report and made a number of 
recommendations. A recommendation in 
my mind is, to me, as a bureaucrat, 
recommend this and then the minister is 
going to agree or disagree. Are you 
providing the minister with any options? Is 
that what you mean, options, or are you 
saying recommendations? Can you clarify? 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I would like to thank Mr. 
Peterson for that. Yes, it is options that are 
provided to the minister. I think I have 
previously stated, even in the November 
session, that we would be looking at the 
amalgamation. We have been looking at 
things like maybe putting part of the 
Department of ED&T and another 
department, creating a new organization. 
So options have been provided. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Ms. Keenainak for that reply. Can 
you provide us with some details of the 
composition of the Interdepartmental 
Working Group that was put together in 
October 2007 that you reference in your 
report? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. From my department, we had 
our director of policy, planning and 
communications, as well as our senior 
advisor monitoring the evaluation, as well 
as from Department of Finance, the acting 

ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑏᓐ ᐃᓱᒪᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᒻᒪᑕ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᒐᕙᒪᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᖏᖃᑎᒋᑐᐃᓐᓇᓂᐊᖅᐸᖏᑦ ᐋᒡᒐᓘᓐᓃᑦ. 
ᐋᒡᒑᕐᓗᓂᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ ᓇᓪᓕᐊᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓇᔭᖅᐸ. 
ᓇᓪᓕᐊᓐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᐱᓯ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᓕᕈᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᐅᔪᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐊᓯᐊᒍᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ.  
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ ᑖᒃᓱᒧᖓ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓕᐊᓐᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᐊᑐᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᖓᓄᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᖓᔪᖅ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᕋᒪ ᓯᕗᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᓄᕖᕙᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᓚᐅᖅᑎᓪᓗᓯ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓂᐊᕐᓂᕋᖅᖢᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᑕᐅᒐᔭᕐᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᒐᑦᑎᒍ, ᕿᒥᕐᓇᕋᑦᑎᒍ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑦᑎᓐᓂ ED&T-ᑯᓐᓂ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓪᓕᐊᓐᓂᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᓯᒪᒐᑦᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᖅᐸᒋᑦ ᑭᐅᒐᕕᓐ. 
ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᐃᔪᓐᓇᖅᐲᓐ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓕᖓᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᖃᑎᒌᑦᑐᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑎᒥᐊᓛᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᒃᑑᕙ 2007-ᒥᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᔭᑏᓐ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᓐᓂ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᓗᒋᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖃᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᕋᑦᑎᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 



 119 

assistant deputy minister for financial 
management, as well as the acting manager 
for Crown agencies. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Ms. Keenainak for that information. 
I’m very curious and interested because I 
know that it’s a government function to put 
interdepartmental working groups together, 
but the Nunavut Business Credit 
Corporation is a very important 
organization in Nunavut with services, 
program services stretch right across 
Nunavut in 25 communities and three 
regions.  
 
So I’m wondering: what level of 
consultations, as my colleague, Mr. Curley 
was asking, do you have with the various 
industry sectors in helping you folks to 
formulate your options and 
recommendations to the minister? Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I believe the first part of the 
work that was done by the consultants 
included participation from both the NDC 
and NBCC. The second part of the work 
was more narrowly focused with officials 
from Economic Development and 
Transportation and Finance.  
 
As I indicated to Mr. Curley, I will be 
talking to the minister about broadening the 
consultation, but currently, that’s the 
involvement of the study so far. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 

ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᓐᓂ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓᓗ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑎᒥᖁᑎᖏᓐᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓴᔨᒃᑯᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᓪᓗ. ᑐᑭᓯᑎᑦᑎᒐᕕᓐ ᐃᓛᒃ ᐃᓱᒪᒐᒪᐃᓛᒃ 
ᑕᐸᐃᖅᑐᖓᓗ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐊᑦᔨᒌᖏᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓂᒃ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᔪᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᒻᒪ 
NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᐊᓯᖏᓪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᐅᔪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᓯᖏᑦ 25-ᖑᔪᑦ ᓄᓇᓖᓪᓗ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᓪᓗ ᐱᖓᓱᑦ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᐃᒪ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒌᓐᓂᐅᔪᖅ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐊᖏᑎᒋᕙᓐ. ᓇᒧᑦ ᓇᓕᒧᒃᓯᒪᕙᓐ? ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᑦᔨᒌᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᖢᑎᒃ ᐃᓕᒃᓯᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᓪᓗᓯ ᓇᓕᐊᓐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᓕᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᔾᔪᑎᓂᓪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑐᕌᓐᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓈᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᒃᑐᖓ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑖᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔨᑕᐅᔪᒧᑦ 
ᐱᖃᓯᐅᔾᔨᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐃᓚᐅᑎᑦᑎᓪᓗᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᖓᓂᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓂᑦ. ᐃᔨᒋᓂᖅᓴᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᓂᒃ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ 
ᓄᑦᑕᐅᓯᕆᔨᒃᑯᓃᖔᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓃᖔᖅᑐᓂᒃ. 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᖅᑲᐅᔪᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕᒧᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖃᑎᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᑕᒪᑐᒪ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑕᕝᕙ ᐃᓚᐅᓂᕆᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᑕᕝᕗᖓ ᑎᑭᒃᖢᒍ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman 
and Ms. Keenainak. I think you should 
strongly recommend to the minister that he 
should broaden it to include the private 
sectors in all regions.  
 
I have looked at the portfolio of loans for 
the Nunavut Business Credit Corporation 
and distribution, and I believe the 
Kitikmeot has been grossly under-serviced 
and it’s probably held back economic 
development in our region for far too long. 
So I think it would be very important to 
have some input from the private sector in 
the Kitikmeot with the few businesses that 
we have.  
 
I know most of the businessmen and 
businesswomen as well, and I’m sure they 
could fill your boots with information on 
suggestions and recommendations to 
improve the service delivery in the 
Kitikmeot. So I strongly urge and 
recommend that you do that with the 
minister. 
 
I want to follow-up. You seemed to be 
hesitant to tell the standing committee on 
what the recommendations were and I 
recognize that policy decisions are made by 
Cabinet. With that in mind though, you 
can’t prejudge what the minister will say as 
he may or may not agree with what you’re 
recommending. In terms of the location, 
structure and focus of the NBCC, what 
options did you recommend to the minister 
or to Cabinet? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Just to clarify, the second part of 

ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᓴᓐᖏᔪᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕆᐊᖃᕐᑐᑎᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓪᓗ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᐅᔪᓪᓗ.  
 
 
 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᓯᒪᒐᒃᑭᑦ ᐃᓗᓕᕆᔭᖏᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ NBCCᑯᑦ 
ᑐᓂᐅᖅᑲᖃᑦᑕᕐᑕᖏᑦ ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᑦ 
ᐱᔨᒃᓯᕐᑕᐅᓐᖏᓗᐊᕐᑐᒻᒪᕆᐊᓘᒻᒪᑕ. 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒥᑦ ᑭᒃᑭᑎᑦᑎᕙᓪᓚᐃᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐊᑯᓂᐊᓗᒃ. ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓂᒃ ᕿᓂᕋᓱᐊᕈᑦᓯ, 
ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᑦ ᐅᓄᓐᖏᑦᑐᕈᓘᒐᓗᐊᓂᒃ ᐱᔅᓂᔅᖃᕐᒪᑕ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖕ.  
 
 
 
ᐱᔅᓂᔅᓕᕆᔨᐅᒋᓪᓗᖓᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐅᕙᖓ, ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᑦᓯᐊᕋᔭᕐᑐᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᓂᒡᓗ ᐱᐅᓯᒋᐊᖁᔨᔪᓂᖕ. 
ᐱᔨᒃᓯᕐᑕᐅᔪᒪᓗᑎᒃ ᕿᑎᕐᒥᐅᓄᑦ. ᓴᓐᖏᔪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᓕᐅᖅᐳᖓ ᐃᓕᑦᓯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᖁᓪᓗᓯ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᓐ.  
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑕᐅᖅᑲᐅᔪᓄᑦ ᐊᐱᕆᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᒐᒪ. 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᐅᖃᑦᑎᐊᕈᒪᖅᑰᖅᑲᐅᔭᓐᖏᓐᓇᕕᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᔫᑉ ᒥᒃᓵᓄᑦ. 
ᐃᓕᓴᕐᓯᑦᓯᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᑐᖓ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕐᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᒪᑕ 
ᐊᑐᐊᒐᒃᓴᓄᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕐᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ.  ᐃᓛᒃ ᓯᕗᕐᖓᒍᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᖃᓄᖅ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᔪᓐᓇᓐᖏᓐᓇᑦᑕ 
ᐊᖏᖃᑎᖃᓐᖏᑐᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᖃᕐᑐᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᓐᓂᖕ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᓇᓃᓐᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᓯᒪᓂᖓᓗ NBCCᑯᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓗᑎᔭᕆᐊᖃᕐᑕᖏᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ. 
ᖃᓄᐃᑦᑐᓂᒡᓕ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔨᓕᐅᕋᔭᕐᐱᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ, ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖕ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᒃᑲᓐᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓗᒍ ᑐᒡᓕᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᔾᔪᑎᐅᔪᖅ 
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the study did include NDC and NBCC, and 
Phillip was involved. Just to add on to one 
of my previous comments, in terms of the 
option provided, the options will be status 
quo in Cape Dorset or outside of Cape 
Dorset. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Ms. Keenainak. Is that the two 
options that are there; Cape Dorset or out 
of Cape Dorset? Was there any sort of 
substantiation for the pros/cons of why it 
should stay in Cape Dorset versus being 
relocated out of Cape Dorset? Was that 
information provided to the minister and to 
Cabinet to help them with their decision 
making? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. There will be pros and cons 
provided. There have been pros and cons 
provided. So all of the options were 
provided on that one. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
thank Ms. Keenainak. Well, let me 
rephrase that another way. So you gave 
him two options. What if the standing 
committee comes along and gives you a 
third option? Which is, I think, what we’re 
leaning toward is move out of Cape Dorset. 
 
So you have the standing committee made 
up of elected officials from across Nunavut 
saying that there are problems with this 
entity and the problems originate with the 

NBCCᑯᑦ, NDCᑯᑦ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒧᐊᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ, 
ᐃᓚᒋᐊᕈᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᐅᖅᑲᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᕐᒧᓐ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᖅ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ, 
ᓇᓕᕌᕈᑏᑦ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᑐᓐ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓱᕐᕋᒃᑕᐅᓐᖏᓪᓗᓂᓘᓐᓃᑦ, ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓃᓪᓗᓂᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓯᓚᑖᓄᑦ ᐃᓕᔭᐅᓗᓂ ᑭᓐᖓᐃᓐ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖕ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ, 
ᒥᔅᑐ ᐲᑐᓴᓐ.  
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ  
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᒃᑕᐅᖅ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖕ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕈᐃᓐᓇᐅᓗᑏᖕ 
ᓇᓕᕌᕈᑏᖕ.  
ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓂ ᓯᓚᑖᓂᓘᓐᓃᓐ.  
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᔾᔪᑎᑕᖃᔾᔮᖏᓛᖅ ᐃᑲᔪᕐᓂᐊᕐᑐᖅ 
ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᑦ ᑭᓐᖓᕐᓃᓪᓗᓂ ᐃᑲᔪᔾᔮᖏᓚᖅ, ᑭᖓᐃᑦ 
ᓯᓚᑖᓃᒃᑯᓂ ᑭᓱ ᐃᑲᔫᑎᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᐸ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᐃᑦ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᑎᓐᓂᐊᕐᐱᒌᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ, 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᓪᓗ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐃᑲᔪᕈᑏᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᕈᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᑐᓐ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊᓕᒫᖕ ᓇᓕᕌᕈᑎᖏᑦ ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᕐᑕᐅᓗᑎᖕ 
ᑖᑦᓱᒧᖓ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ.  
 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᕐᓗ. ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᐊᓪᓚᓪᓚᖓ ᐃᒡᓗᐊᓄᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᖕ ᓇᓕᕌᕈᑎᖃᖅᑎᑦᖤᕈᕕᐅ. ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓪᓕ 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐱᖓᔪᖓᓐᓂᒃ ᓇᓕᕌᕈᒻᒥᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᑉᐸᑕ. 
ᑭᓐᖓᐃᑦ ᓯᓚᑖᓄᑦ ᓅᒡᓗᒍ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓐ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕐᓯᒪᓗᑎᒡᓗ. 
ᓂᕈᐊᕐᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂᓕᒫᑦᓯᐊᖅ.  
ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᖅ ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᓕᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᑕᐃᑲᓂ 
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current location, so it has to be moved. 
Would you recommend our 
recommendation or option to the minister? 
Would you do that for us? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. There are options provided in 
terms of the future of the organization. As I 
indicated, one option is status quo; another 
option is going within the government 
department, whether it is Economic 
Development or Finance; and the other is a 
new corporation.  
 
In terms of the location, again, it’s either 
status quo with the pros and cons, or not in 
Cape Dorset, whether it is in Iqaluit, or 
Rankin Inlet, or Cambridge Bay, or 
somewhere else. Pros and cons will be 
provided to the minister on that. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Before I go back to Mr. Peterson, I know in 
the last round of hearings, it was also 
suggested to look at other lending 
organizations operating in the territory 
already. Mr. Curley has mentioned that 
Atuqtuarvik. I think the only other one 
that’s doing any good other than a 
commercial bank right now is the Baffin 
Business Development Centre. A very well 
run organization, like I said, I understand 
Mr. Long was here last time, Mr. Rennie is 
here and he’s on that board.  
 
There are options of looking at a way 
where an organization like that may be able 
to provide that service for the government 
rather than creating another standalone 
organization. Ms. Keenainak. 
 

ᐃᓂᖃᕐᑎᓪᓗᒍ. ᓄᒃᑎᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓕᖕ. 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᖃᓯᐅᔾᔨᒐᔭᕐᐱᑦ ᐅᕙᒍᑦ ᓇᓕᕌᕈᑎᒃᓴᒥᒃ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑕᑦᑎᓐᓂᖕ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᕈᔾᔨᔪᓐᓇᕐᐱᑦ ᐅᕙᒃᑎᓐᓂᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖕ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓇᓕᕌᕈᑏᑦ ᑐᓂᐅᖅᑲᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓐ. 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪᐃᓛᖕ ᓇᓕᕌᕈᑦ ᐃᓚᖓᑦ 
ᓱᕐᕋᖏᓪᓗᒍᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐱᖃᑖ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓᑕ 
ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᖓᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓄᑦ; ᓇᓃᓐᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᓱᕐᕋᖏᓪᓗᒍᓘᓐᓃ ᐃᑲᔪᕈᑏᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᕈᑎᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᓐ. 
ᑭᓐᖓᐃᑦ ᓯᓚᑖᓃᒃᑯᓂ, ᐃᖃᓗᓐᓂ, 
ᑲᖏᖅᖠᓂᕐᒥᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐃᖃᓗᒃᑑᑦᑎᐊᕐᒥᓘᓐᓃᑦ. 
ᐃᑲᔪᕈᑎᖏᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᓐᖏᔾᔪᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑐᓂᐅᖅᑲᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
ᐅᑎᕆᐊᓚᐅᓐᖏᓂᓐᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐᒧᑦ. ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᒥ 
ᓈᓚᑦᑎᐅᓪᓗᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᑎᖃᑦᑕᑎᓪᓗᑕ 
ᑐᓵᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᐊᓯᖏᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᐅᕐᕕᐅᑉ ᓄᓇᕗᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕᐅᑉ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᖏᑦ. ᑕᐃᓐᓇᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕐᕕᒃ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᕿᑭᖅᑖᓗᒻᒥ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᑎᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔪᑦ ᓯᕗᒧᐊᓐᓂᖃᑦᑎᐊᒥᒻᒪᑕ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓛᖕ 
ᑕᒫᓃᖃᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒥᒻᒪᑦ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᕆᐊᓂ 
ᑕᒫᓂᒃᑭᓪᓗᓂᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᒐᒥ.  
 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑏᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᐹᑦ? ᑎᒥᐅᔪᖅ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᑐᖅ ᐱᔨᑦᑎᕋᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᖅ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑎᓐᖏᖔᕐᓗᑎᑦ ᐃᒻᒥᒃᑰᖅᑐᒥᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒥᑦ? ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
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Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Yes, I think as we indicated 
during the November hearing, that was one 
recommendation brought forward by the 
first report. So that is identified as an 
option. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Has the option been put 
forward to the minister to consider or just 
an option that was there and not put 
forward to the minister to consider? Ms. 
Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. It is one of the options. Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I’m having a hard time not to get up here 
and start laughing.  
 
There are options and recommendations 
but we know that the civil service has a lot 
of influence on ministers. Obviously, they 
do all the legwork, they do all the research, 
and they have an army of researchers and 
officials that can dig into the depths of the 
issue and summarize it all very succinctly 
for ministers to review. So I’m going to 
assume that all of those options or 
recommendations that you’re discussing or 
telling us about have been analyzed at great 
detail, and usually, an analysis of the 
various options, one very clearly stands 
out.  
 
Ms. Keenainak, can you tell us, in your 
analysis of all of these recommendations 
and options that you’re putting forward to 
the minister and Cabinet, what has your 
analysis concluded to date? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 

ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᐅᖃᖅᑰᖅᑲᐅᒐᑦᑕ ᓄᕕᑉᐱᕆᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᓯ ᐃᓚᖓ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᒥᔪᖅ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᒥ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᐃᓗᐊᓃᑦᑐᖅ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎᔅᓴᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒥᔪᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᐹ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᓂᐊᖅᐸ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓯᒪᓐᖏᒃᖢᓂ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎᔅᓴᒫᖑᓪᓗᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᒃᓱᕈᑦᑎᐊᓕᕋᒪ ᑎᔅᓯᒍᓱᒍᒪᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑐᖓ.  
 
 
 
ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑏᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᓪᓗ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᖃᐅᒪᔪᒍᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᐊᒃᓱᐋᓗᒃ ᐊᔭᐅᖅᑐᐃᒃᑲᐅᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᓪᓗ 
ᕿᓂᖅᑎᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᐅᓄᖅᑐᐋᓗᓐᓂ ᕿᓂᖅᑎᖃᕐᖢᑎᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᕿᓂᖅᑐᐋᓘᖃᑦᑕᖅᖢᑎᑦ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᐅᔪᐃᑦ ᐃᓗᐊᓄᑦ 
ᓇᐃᓈᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑎᓪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ. 
ᐃᓱᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᓕᖅᐳᖓᓕ ᑕᐃᒪ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑏᑦ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᔪᓪᓗ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᐃᓗᓕᑯᓘᔭᖏᑦ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᒃᖢᒋᑦ? ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓂᑦ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᑦ ᐃᓚᖓ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᓐᖏᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑦ ᓴᖅᑭᔮᕐᓂᖅᐹᖑᓪᓗᓂ.  
 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ, ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔨᔪᓐᓇᖅᐲᑦ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓂ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᓯᒪᔭᑎᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᕐᓂᕆᔭᐃᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒍ 
ᑭᓱᒧᑦ ᐃᓗᓕᖃᕐᐸᑦ ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᒃᖢᒋᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. Ms. 
Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. At this point, the options have 
been laid out. It’s been presented to the 
minister and once the minister indicates a 
preferred option that he would like to 
recommend to Cabinet, and that would be 
the next step. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Mr. Peterson. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I’m trying to come at this from different 
angles. It seems to be like the Great Wall of 
China. I was watching that on the History 
Channel the other day. It was quite an 
interesting mega project back in history but 
it was designed to keep the Mongols out. 
So you’re basically trying to keep the 
MLAs from finding out what your plan is 
for the NBCC, and that’s how we’re 
viewing it, as if it’s the Great Wall.  
 
I thought we had an open and transparent 
government. I have asked questions in such 
a way that you can answer me without 
getting into any difficulties or troubles with 
your bosses, but obviously, you’re a little 
more seasoned than I expected.  
 
With that, Mr. Chairman, I’ll just state that 
if any of the ministers are listening today 
and if they’re up in their offices, or if their 
officials are watching on TV, I think they 
have heard our standing committee clearly 
on our concerns about the location and the 
work that has been done on by consultants 
on amalgamation, and the consulting or 
lack of consultations. So I’ll just leave my 
questioning on the location of NBCC at 
that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you. I don’t think there 

ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᒫᓐᓇᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᒃᖢᒍ ᓇᓖᕌᕈᑏᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᑕᖅᐳᖅ ᓇᓕᐊᓐᓂ ᐊᑐᕈᒪᒻᒪᖔᕐᒥ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᓄᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᓗᑎᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ. 
 
 
ᐲᑕᓴᓐ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓐᖏᑦᑐᓃᓐᖔᕋᓱᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᖢᖓ ᓱᕐᓗ ᓴᐃᓃᓯᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑮᓐᓇᑯᑖᕌᓗᐊᓄᑦ ᑐᓗᖅᑕᓕᖅᑐᖓ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᑭᖑᓂᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐱᓂᐊᕐᓂᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑭᕋᖏᑦ 
ᐃᓯᖃᑦᑕᔾᔮᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᐊᑭᓐᓈᓗᒻᒥ ᐃᓕᓯᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐃᓯᖃᑦᑕᔾᔮᖏᒻᒪᑕᖃᐃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑐᓴᕋᓱᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑐᖓ ᑭᓱᓂᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖃᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑐᓗᖅᑕᑐᐃᓐᓇᓕᕋᑦᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᔮᑦᑎᐊᓂᐊᕐᓂᕋᕋᓗᐊᖅᑐᑎᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖏᒃᖢᑎᑦ ᐃᓗᓕᑯᓘᔭᖏᓐᓂ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᒥᖅᑲᐃ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᕈᒪᓐᖏᓐᓇᕕᑦ ᐃᓕᕋᓱᒧᓪᓗᑭᐊᖅ, 
ᐱᓕᕆᔪᒪᓂᖅᓴᐅᒐᕕᑦ ᓂᕆᐅᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᓐᓂ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, ᑕᕝᕗᖓ ᐃᓱᓕᓪᓗᒍ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ 
ᓈᓚᑦᑐᖃᕐᐸᑦ ᐊᓪᓚᕝᕕᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᓪᓗᒥ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᓪᓗ ᑕᑯᓐᓇᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᓚᕖᓴᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑐᓵᔪᒃᓴᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᐱᔪᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂ  
ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᓇᓃᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᕆᒐᔭᕐᑕᖓ ᑖᑦᓱᒪ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔫᑉ. ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᒻᒥᒻᒪᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔨᑕᕐᒧᑦ ᑲᑎᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑎᖕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓐ. 
ᓇᓃᓐᓂᖓᓗ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᕐᖢᒍ ᑎᒥᐅᔫᑉ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NBCCᑯᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): 
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was a question there. Instead, maybe I’ll 
just a quick question here on this. I believe 
in your opening comments, you had 
indicated that the whole report process was 
going through a second phase. I’m trying to 
find it in here. 
 
There was a letter that we got from you, 
actually from the minister, dated February 
6, I think it’s the same day we got this 
binder. We always get information at the 
last minute. It’s one of my pet peeves with 
the government that they don’t give you 
anything until the last minute. In there you 
had indicated that there was a contract in 
the amount of $86,988 awarded for 
services on the Crown Agency Assessment, 
and I would assume that that’s what this 
contract is what we’re talking about.  
 
In the letter it says, “Once the second phase 
of the work is completed and the direction 
provided by Cabinet, then the reports will 
be tabled,” and it was in your opening 
comments where you indicated that it was a 
final report. So I’m just wondering if I 
could get some clarification if there’s a 
report and they’re still waiting, as indicated 
in that letter on the sixth, that there was a 
phase two coming on that that would, to 
me, indicate that it’s not a final report. So 
maybe if I could just get some clarification 
there. Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The contract to RT and 
Associates was for the amount of $86,988. 
I do need to clarify that there was a second 
amount, I think, that was identified under 
the contracting report of $28,000 as an 
amount. The work to pay for this was cost 
shared between the three organizations: 
NDC, NBCC, and ED&T. The $86,988 is 
the total value of the contract and the actual 
amount the department paid was $28,000. 
My department did not pick up a 

ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᑕᖃᖅᑰᖅᑲᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ, ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑏᑦ 
ᓇᐃᓈᕐᓗᒍ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᖓ ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᒃᖢᖓᓗ 
ᒪᑐᐃᕆᐊᕈᑎᒋᔭᓐᓂ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓂ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᑦ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᖅᑲᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᒃ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᒡᓕᐊᒍᒡᒎᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᔭᐅᓕᕐᒪᓐ ᑐᒡᓕᐊᓂ.  
 
 
ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅ, ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓂᒃ ᐱᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒐᑦᑕ 
ᐃᓕᓐᓃᓐᖔᕐᑐᒥᒃ, ᐃᓛᖕ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒦᓐᖔᕐᑐᒥᓐ.  
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ ᐅᓪᓗᐊ ᕕᕝᕗᐊᕆ 6, ᐅᓪᓗᕐᒥ 
ᑕᕝᕙᓂᑦᑕᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐅᖃᓕᒫᒐᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᐱᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒐᒃᑭᑦ, ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᐱᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕋᑦᑕ, 
ᐊᑲᕆᖃᑦᑕᓐᖏᑕᕋᓗᐊᒃᑲ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᓂᓯᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᕕᒃᓴᐃᕈᑦᑎᐊᕐᑎᓪᓗᑕ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᒐᕕᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓂᒃ, 
ᑳᓐᑐᓛᕐᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᒡᒎᖅ $86,988 ᑐᓂᔭᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐱᔨᒃᑎᕋᕈᑎᒋᔭᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ, 
ᑖᑦᓱᒧᖓᖃᐅᓇᐃ ᑳᓐᑐᓛᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᖅ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᔭᕗᓪᓗ.  
 
 
 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᓯᒪᔪᓂᓪᓗ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᒡᓕᐊᓂ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᖓ ᐱᔭᕇᕐᑕᐅᑉᐸᑦ, ᑎᓕᓯᓂᐊᕐᑐᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓂᒡᓗ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓗᑎᖕ. 
ᑕᒡᕙᓂ ᒪᑐᐃᕆᐊᕈᑎᓐᓂ ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕉᖅ 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᓕᕐᒪᓐ. ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᑲᓐᓂᕈᓐᓇᕐᐲᓐ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᖅ ᐱᔭᕇᕐᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦ, 6ᓯᐅᓕᕐᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑐᒡᓕᐊᓂᒎᖅ ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᒥᒃ ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓂᐊᕋᑦᓯ. ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅᓯᐅᑎᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᖅᑲᐃ? 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᔪᓐᓇᖅᐲᑦ ᑭᓲᖕᒪᖔᑦ. ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑳᓐᑐᕌᒃ RT Associatesᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᑎᒋ, 
$86,988-ᖑᓪᓗᑎᒃ, ᑐᒡᓕᐊᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᐃᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑳᓐᑐᓛᕐᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᐃᑦ ᐊᑖᒍᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕐᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᑐᑦ. 
$28,000 ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᕆᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᑦ, ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᐊᑭᓕᐅᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᐱᖓᓲᔪᓄᑦ ᑎᒥᓄᑦ. NDCᑯᑦ NBCCᑯᑦ, 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓪᓗ, $86,988. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑭᖓ 
ᑳᓐᑐᓛᒃ, ᐊᑭᓪᓚᕆᖓ $28,000 ᐊᑭᓕᕐᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᖕ.  



 126 

distinction and that will have to be clarified 
in the contracting amount for that one.  
 
Phase one was associated to RT and 
Associates, the second phase that is 
referenced by the minister and in my 
opening comments is the Internal Working 
Group, and once the second phase is 
finalized and a decision is made I guess by 
Cabinet, I think the minister already 
committed to tabling that in the Legislative 
Assembly. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. I 
know this idea of amalgamating or 
combining NBCC and NDC together is 
being looked at, and I remember a while 
back when we took Department of 
Environment out of Economic 
Development, there were conflicting 
mandates within the same organization. I 
would venture to guess that if those two 
organizations are put together that you 
would run into the same problem. 
 
Both organizations have completely 
different mandates and sometimes 
conflicting where, as far as I know, the 
Nunavut Development Corporation is 
creating employment to businesses in areas 
where they can’t sustain themselves 
without a subsidy, and if, in any event, they 
do become self-sufficient, they would look 
at selling it off or getting rid of it. That’s 
not what they’re in business to do.  
 
The Business Credit Corporation is looking 
at putting businesses that will work into 
this, so it would be like very conflicting 
mandates for both organizations if they’re 
put together. I’m just wondering if an 
assessment of that was included to be 
looked at in the review that they paid 
$86,000 to get done. Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 

ᐱᓕᕆᕕᕗᑦ ᐊᑭᓖᖃᑦᑕᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᓇᓕᐊᓐᓂᐅᒻᒪᖔᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᐳᓐ.  
 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐱᒋᐊᕐᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ RT & 
Associates ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᖕ. ᑐᒡᓕᐊ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑕᐃᖅᑲᐅᔭᕋ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ, ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᑦᑕ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐱᔭᕆᐊᑭᓪᓕᑎᑦᓯᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ, ᑐᒡᓕᐊᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔭᐅᓂᐊᕐᑐᖅ. ᑭᖑᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅᓯᐅᑎᖓ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᖕ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᓐ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ. ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᐊᖏᖅᓯᒌᖅᑰᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᓛᕐᓂᕐᒥᓂᒃ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓂᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᑏᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᓕᕐᐸᑕ ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᐃᓚᒋᓪᓗᓂᐅᒃ ᑖᑦᓱᒧᖓ ᐃᖏᕐᕋᓂᖓ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᕐᒧᓐ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᖓ ᐃᓱᒪᒋᔭᐅᔪᖅ 
ᑲᑎᑎᖅᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᖓᑦ. ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᒐᒪ ᑭᖑᓂᒃᑎᓐᓂ 
ᐊᕙᑎᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᑦ ᐲᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ. ᐊᔾᔨᒌᖏᑦᑑᓐᓂᖕ 
ᐊᑭᕋᕐᑑᑎᔫᓐᓂᖕ ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᖃᕐᒪᑎᖕ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᒥᓐᖔᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᒻᒥ. ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕉᒃ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔫᒃ ᑲᑎᒃᐸᑎᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᓕᕈᒫᕐᒪᑎᖕ ᑐᓗᕐᑕᖃᑦᑕᐅᑎᓗᑎᖕ.  
 
ᑕᒪᕐᒥᖕ ᑎᒥᐅᔫᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᖕ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᖏᑦᑑᑦᑎᐊᓐᓂᖕ 
ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᖃᕐᒪᑕ. ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᖏᓪᓗ 
ᐊᑭᓴᕐᑐᖃᑦᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᑎᖕ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᖓ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᓐ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᑎᓇᓱᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᓐ ᐱᓯᓂᔅᓯᖑᔪᒥᒃ ᐃᒻᒥᓂᒃ 
ᒪᑭᑕᔪᓐᓇᖏᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᖏᓪᓗᑎᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
ᖃᖓᑐᐃᓐᓇᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᒻᒥᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᔪᕈᓐᓃᕈᑎᒃ 
ᒪᑭᑕᔪᓐᓇᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᓂᐅᕐᕈᑎᒋᓗᒍᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐱᓯᓂᔅᖑᔪᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕᓕ ᓂᐅᕐᕈᑎᖃᕈᒪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐱᓯᓂᔅᒥᒃ.  
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᕕᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᖓᓐ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑭᓴᖅᑐᖃᑦᑕᐅᑎᔪᒻᒪᕆᐊᓗᓐᓂᒃ 
ᑎᓕᔭᐅᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᖃᒻᒪᑎᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᖏᑎᒍᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑎᒥᐅᔫᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᕋᑖᖅᑐᖓ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᖔᓐ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᓐᓂᐊᕐᓂᕆᔭᑦᓯᓐᓂ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ. $89,000 
$86,000 ᐊᑭᓕᐅᑎᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᓯ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 



 127 

Chairman. When officials went over to the 
NWT, that was identified, that there needs 
to be clear mandates; there needs to be 
proper planning, in terms of implementing, 
if a new organization is going to be created 
to make sure that there’s no conflicting 
mandates for the corporation over there. 
That was their recommendation for 
Nunavut. If that is the road that Cabinet 
chooses to do, and that will be part of the 
work plan if that particular decision is 
made. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
The other thing I want to go back to is 
something that Mr. Peterson mentioned 
earlier, and it’s the information that was 
provided to the committee on Tuesday, the 
binder from the government.  
 
There is the letter dated May 24 from the 
CEO at the time, Mr. Orecklin, in relation 
to the two $1 million loans. It was actually 
sent to the attention of Minister Simailak. I 
note that there’s no other response to it. 
That was May 24 and then the one that my 
colleague, Mr. Peterson, was asking about 
earlier is for the same two loans sent from 
Mr. Orecklin on June 7 to Minister 
Kilabuk, they’re exactly the same thing.  
 
I’m just wondering on that first one: was 
that received by the department, and if it 
was, was any attention paid to the fact that 
it was addressed to Minister Simailak, who 
was actually a shareholder, or has private 
interest in both of the companies, that the 
loan approval was being sent to him to sign 
off? Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The actual documentation 
would have been received and I don’t know 
if it was on or shortly after that date. 
Shortly after that, there was a Cabinet 
shuffle from Minister Simailak to Minister 

ᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ ᓄᓇᑦᓯᐊᕐᒨᕋᒥᒃ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᖃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᒥᒃ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᑖᖅᑎᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᓯᐅᖅᑎᐊᖅᑕᐅᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑐᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᔾᔪᑎᔅᓴᖏᓐᓂᓪᓗ ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓱᐃᓗᑎᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᐳᖅᑕᐅᑎᖃᓂᐊᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᑲᑎᑎᑕᐅᒍᒪᔪᑦ.  
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᒥᒃ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᒃ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖑᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᖏᑉᐸᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐅᑎᖅᕕᒋᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᒪᒻᒥᔭᕋ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᔭᖓ ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅ. ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᐃᑉᐱᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᑦ.  
 
 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑦ ᐅᓪᓗᓕᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᒪᐃ 24, 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᒦᑦᖢᑎᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᖏᑦ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᓂᕆᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᓐ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
$1,000,000 ᑐᕌᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓯᒪᐃᓚᒻᒧᑦ. 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑭᐅᔭᐅᓚᐅᕋᓂ ᒪᐃ 24, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᖃᑎᒪ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒋᖅᑲᐅᔭᖓ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓᑦᓴᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓄᑦ $1,000,000-ᑐᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐᒥᒃ, ᔫᓐ 7-ᒥ ᐅᓪᓗᓕᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᕿᓚᕝᕙᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ.  
 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᔅᓯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐱᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᐹᓐ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓕᒃᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸᓐ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓯᒪᐃᓚᒃᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ 
ᑖᓐᓇᓗ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᖃᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑕᒪᒃᑮᓂᒃ 
ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ. ᐊᐅᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᓐᓂᖅᐹᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒧᖓ 
ᐊᑎᓕᐅᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓯᒪᐃᓚᕐᒧᑦ? ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑦ ᐱᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᑭᖑᓂᑦᑎᐊᖓᒍᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᖏᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑕ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᕿᓚᕝᕙᕐᒥᑦ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᓯᒪᐃᓚᒃᒧᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑐᒡᓕᐊ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
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Kilabuk, and that’s why the second letter 
from NBCC CEO was addressed to 
Minister Kilabuk. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Minister Kilabuk was appointed on June 6, 
and on his first full day on the job on the 
7th, he got the letter. I’m just a little 
concerned on the ones that were sent to the 
Department of ED&T for ministerial 
approval on those two loans, on May 24, 
were sent “Attention to Minister Simailak.” 
 
I know nothing was done to them before 
June 6 when Minister Simailak left there, 
I’m just wondering, in that time that the 
department had it while Minister Simailak 
was the minister, was the fact that this 
request was being sent to him, even though 
he was a shareholder in those companies, 
an issue was that brought up at all or 
caught at all? Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I don’t recall the timeline for 
that one and I can only base it on the 
material that we have been able to gather. 
There was something provided to the 
department. I don’t know if the minister 
was travelling, I don’t know, but once the 
ministerial portfolio was changed, revised 
documentation was received by the 
department and the correspondence then 
went to Minister Kilabuk on the 13th of 
June. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. Is 
there any protocol or anything in place to 
flag something like this as it came through 
in the department? Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. That is one of the action items 
that we identified in the work plan is a 
better process for challenging information 

ᑎᑎᖅᑲᐃᓐ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᕿᓚᕝᕙᕐᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᓕᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᓐ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᕿᓚᕝᕙᖅ ᑎᒃᑯᐊᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᔫᓐ 6-ᒥ. 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᓕᑕᐃᓐᓇᑎᓪᓗᒎ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑖᖅᑐᕕᓂᒃ 7-
ᐸᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ. ᐃᓱᒫᓘᑎᒋᒐᓚᒃᖢᒍ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᔪᑐᐊᖑᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ. 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᔪᒃᓴᐅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᒪᐃ 24 
ᑐᕋᖅᑎᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓴᒪᐃᓕᒧᑦ.  
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐃᓛ 
ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᔫᓐ 6-ᖑᓕᕐᒪᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓴᒪᐃᓚᒃ ᑕᐃᑲᓃᑦᑐᓐᓃᕐᒪᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓴᒪᐃᓚᒃ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᕆᔭᐅᓱᖓᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᐅᑏᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᓴᒪᐃᓚᒃᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᖃᑕᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅᑎᒡᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᒥᑦ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ.  
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᒪᐃᓐ ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᑦ 
ᑲᑎᖅᓱᕈᓐᓇᖅᑕᒃᑲ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᑎᒎᓇ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᑐᑭᓯᓇᓱᒍᓐᓇᖅᑕᕋ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᑕᐅᒻᒪᑕ 
ᐱᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐸᐃᑉᐹᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᖅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑦ ᔫᓐ 13-
ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᒃᖤᕆᕗᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑕᖃᐅᖅᐹᖅ? ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐅᔾᔨᖅᓱᖅᑎᐊᕆᐊᓕᓐᓂᒃ ᐃᓛ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᔭᕌᖓᔅᓯ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᐅᓪᓗᓂ 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐄ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᓕᕇᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᖅᑕ 
ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᑦᑕ ᐃᓗᓕᖏᑦᑎᒍᑦ ᒪᑯᐊᓗ ᐊᐳᖅᑕᐅᑏᑦ 
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and having possibly a third party analysis 
of proposals that are coming from NBCC 
so that we do have another set of eyes 
looking at proposals like this. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
I’m not looking at the analysis of it but I’m 
just saying, here I think that, potentially, 
had this gone to the minister, it would have 
put him in a conflict of interest if it would 
have been sent to him to recommend to 
sign off. It was handed off, the letter says, 
“Yes, everything looks good, please sign it 
off.”  
 
ED&T would be the main one but that 
should be in all the government 
departments as well; a way to flag potential 
incidences like this from happening and 
then inadvertently maybe putting the 
minister in a position where he could be in 
a conflict of interest.  
 
There’s got to be some mechanism in place 
to catch that before. Did anyone at the 
department realize that when that came in 
on May 24 “Attention to Minister 
Simailak” that that was something that 
Minister Simailak should not have been 
sent? Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. In terms of historical, I don’t 
know what happened between that two-
week period. However, I believe there was 
a process in place that if a minister is 
travelling, if they’ve assigned somebody 
acting, then the acting minister would be 
seeing the documentation, or it should have 
been referred to another minister. Thank 
you, Minister.  
 
Predicting the future am I, Hunter? Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 

ᐃᒻᒪᖄᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᓄᑦ ᐊᑦᑐᐊᖏᑦᑐᓄᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᐅᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᓵᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᑕᑯᓐᓇᕐᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒨᖅᑕᐅᓐᓂᖅᐸᑦ ᐃᒻᒥᒧᑦ ᐊᕝᕕᐊᕈᑎᖃᓕᕋᔭᕐᒫᑦ? 
ᐊᑎᓕᐅᖅᑕᐅᖁᔭᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐊᑎᓕᐅᖁᔭᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ. ᐄ ᐅᑯᐊ ᖃᓄᐃᖅᑯᔨᓐᖏᑦᑐᑦ ᐅᓇ 
ᐊᑎᓕᐅᓕᕉᓚᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓗᐊᓐᖑᐊᕐᓗᒋᑦ.   
 
 
 
ᐃᓕᔅᓯ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓗᐊᓐᖑᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᓕᒫᖑᒐᓗᐊᑦ. ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᓇᐅᑦᑎᖅᓱᖅᑕᐅᕈᑎᒃᓴᖃᑦᑎᐊᕆᐊᓖᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᑕᖃᕐᓂᐊᖏᒻᒪᑦ. ᐊᒻᒪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᐃᒻᒥᒧᑦ 
ᐊᒡᕕᐊᕈᑎᖃᓕᕐᓂᕐᒨᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᕆᐊᖃᕐᒪᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᕈᔪᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᖓᔪᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᔭᐅᑲᐅᑎᒋᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᕝᕕᔅᓴᖃᕆᐊᓕᐅᒐᓗᐊᑦ ᒪᐃ 24-ᒥ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᑕᒥᓂᖅ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓯᒪᐃᓚᒃᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑎᑕᐅᓐᓂᕐᒪᑕ 
ᑕᐃᑯᖓ ᓇᒃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑐᑎᑦ? ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ.  
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᓂᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓇᓗᒡᓗᒋᑦ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᔾᔪᓯᖅᑕᖃᖅᑐᖅ ᑭᓇᒥ ᑭᖑᕐᕕᑦᑎᔅᓴᒥᓂᒃ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᓯᒪᑉᐸᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᖏᕐᕋᔭᑦᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐊᓯᐊᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᓪᓗᐊᖅᑎᕕᓂᐅᒐᓗᐊᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 



 130 

Chairman: You won’t see it in the life of 
this Assembly, that’s for sure.  
 
>>Laughter 
 
Chairman: From that, there is no set 
process in place? Is there any type of 
protocol set up in place to be able to flag 
things like this? From a response like that, 
there isn’t. Is that correct? Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: All I can say is that the 
processes we are working on right now to 
make sure that due diligence is done also at 
the departmental level before it goes to the 
minister, this will be one of the things we 
will be looking at. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
It’s probably a good thing that there was a 
shuffle, otherwise Minister Simailak could 
have inadvertently got himself in trouble 
by signing off on something like this. 
Couldn’t blame him for that, it wasn’t his 
fault for... 
 
In that May 24 letter that was sent off to 
Minister Simailak and then a revised draft 
was sent June 7, and again, the was the day 
after Minister Kilabuk became the minister, 
it was sent to him, and that was June 7, and 
then your letter of June 13, again indicating 
that a careful review had been done. When 
you wrote this letter, as my colleague 
pointed out, it says right in here, it says, 
“Besides a careful review of the Board of 
Directors of the NBCC, who are 
recommending approval, I have also 
reviewed the application in concert with 
officials at HQ. Based on the review of the 
credit analysis, I am recommending your 
approval of the loan.” 
 
I guess I’m just wondering how you could 
say that, “Besides a careful review of the 

 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐅᕙᒍᑦ 
ᑕᒡᕙᓃᑎᓪᓗᑕᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ.  
 
>>ᐃᓪᓚᖅᑐᑦ 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑖᓐᓇᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔾᔪᑎᔅᓴᓂᒃ ᐱᑕᖃᓐᖏᓛᖅ ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑕᖃᖅᐹ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᑦ ᒪᑯᐊ ᐃᒻᒥᒧᑦ 
ᐊᕝᕕᐊᕈᑎᖃᓕᕐᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑎᑭᐅᑎᔾᔮᖏᒻᒪᑕ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑕᖅᑳ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᒪᐃᓪᓕᔪᓐᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ 
ᒫᓐᓇ ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᔭᐅᔪᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᓐᓂᖓᓐᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᐃᓛ ᓈᒻᒪᓈᖅᑯᓪᓗᐊᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐃᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᔭᔅᓴᖏᑦ ᐊᓯᔾᔨᒐᓚᒻᒪᑕ ᑭᐳᒃᑕᖅᑕᐅᒻᒪᑕᐃᓛ. ᐄ, 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᓵᑕᒃᓴᐅᙱᓚᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇᐅᖅᑲᐅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᒪᐃ 24-ᒥ ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᖤᕐᐳᖅ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓯᒪᐃᓚᖕᒧᑦ ᐋᖅᑭᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᖢᑎᒃ 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᕐᐹᕐᓯᐅᑏᑦ ᔫᓐ 7-ᒥ ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᓪᖤᕆᕗᖅ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᕿᓚᕝᕙᕐᒧᑦ, ᑕᐃᑯᖓ ᐃᓕᖕᒪᑦ ᔫᓐ 7-
ᖑᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᑎᑎᕋᓚᐅᖅᑕᑎᑦ ᔫᓐ 13-ᒥ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓯᒪᓕᕐᒪᒡᒎᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑐᒃᓯᕌᕆᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᐅᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕋᕕᒋᑦ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᖅᑲᐅᖕᒪᑦ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᖃᑎᒐ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᖢᑎᒃ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓄᑦ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᖏᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᓯᒪᓕᕐᒥᔭᒃᑲᐅᑯᐊ ᐅᑯᐊ 
ᐱᖃᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑐᒃᑕᕐᕕᖕᒦᖃᑕᐃᔪᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑲᒃᑭ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᕐᐳᖓ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒍ.  
 
 
 
 
ᖃᓄᐃᒻᒪᑭᐊ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᔪᓐᓇᕐᖤᕐᓂᐱᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᑯᓗᒋᓚᐅᕐᖢᒍᒎᖅ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᑦ 
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Board of Directors,” when the letter that 
went with it clearly indicated from Mr. 
Orecklin that the Business Credit 
Corporation did not, I said, did not do a 
separate due diligence report on it. Could I 
get an explanation for that? Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I guess we can do everything in 
hindsight. The assumption, and there were 
a lot assumptions made, is that due 
diligence was done, it wasn’t, and that the 
department had a process that was not 
adequate in terms of doing additional due 
diligence before things had gone to the 
minister’s office.  
 
In hindsight, we’ve got some accrual 
processes in place that are going to be 
happening with NBCC in terms of 
challenging information provided by 
clients, before it even goes to the board, 
and then from the board to the minister’s 
office, the department is going to be, as I 
indicated, looking at making sure that 
there’s more due diligence done before 
recommendations are made to the minister. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. So 
you’re saying nothing was really done, and 
it was just assumed that someone else did it 
and it was just sent forward like that? Is 
that basically what I’m hearing you say? 
Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The assumptions were made 
that certain things had happened. Yes, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: By everybody and yourself 
included, is that correct? Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The assumptions were made 

ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐅᐃᒍᓕᕐᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᐅᖃᕐᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐅᕋᓐᑲᓚᓐᒥᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᖓᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᙱᒪᑕᒎᖅ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓂᖓ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᓂᒃ ᑖᓐᓇᖃᐃ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᑲᐃᓐᓇᕈᒃ? 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᑕᐃᒫᒃ ᑭᖑᕐᖓᒍᑦ ᑭᖑᓂᖔᖓᒍᑦ ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓇᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ ᑲᖐᓱᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐱᑕᖃᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᖕᒪᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᕐᔪᓯᕐᒥᒃ 
ᓈᒻᒪᙱᑦᑐᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᖕᒪᑕ. 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᖅᑳᓚᐅᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒨᖅᑕᐅᓕᑕᐃᓐᓇᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᓪᓗᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ.  
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗ, ᑭᖑᓂᖔᖓᒍ ᑕᑯᓪᓗᒍ ᐄ, ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ 
ᒪᑯᐊᓗ ᐱᑐᐃᓐᓇᐅᖏ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᑐᔫᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓅᖅᑕᐅᖤᕐᐳᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅ 
ᑎᑎᕋᑉᕕᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖁᒧᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐋᖅᑭᒐᓱᒃᑕᕗᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᑐᓐᓂᖅᑯᑕᐅᓚᐅᖏᓐᓂᖏᓐᓂ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᐊᓯᖕᓄᖔᖅ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑑᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᕈᓗᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᓇᒃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᔪᕕᓃᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᕐᐲᑦ? 
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᑲᖐᓱᑐᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᐄ, ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᖅᐳᖓ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑭᒃᑯᓕᒫᓄᑦ ᐃᕝᕕᓪᓗ 
ᕼᐃᓛᒃ. ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ: ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
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that proper due diligence was done by the 
NBCC staff, as well as the board, before it 
came to the department and the 
assumptions were made there. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Was the assumption made too 
that the department had a careful look at it 
as well as you had indicated in here? Ms. 
Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The department did get an 
indication that NBCC wasn’t doing their 
due diligence. It’s been highlighted by the 
OAG and we acknowledge it. There are 
action plans in place now within the NBCC 
staff as well as within our department to 
make sure that this doesn’t happen again. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. I 
know that but I guess I’m just saying, did 
the department do its due diligence, or was 
it just assumed when you signed off this 
letter that that due diligence was done by 
the department as well? Apparently, it 
hadn’t. Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Again, I’ll indicate that the 
assumption was made that due diligence 
was done within NBCC. We recognized 
that an additional analysis was not done 
other than to make sure that we had the 
documentation on file and that the 
paperwork was in order based on what we 
got from NBCC. Since then, as indicated, 
we’ve got an action plan to make sure that 
both processes are more in depth and that 
information is challenged. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Basically, you’re saying the department 
just rubber stamped the information that 

ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕋᓱᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ NBCC-ᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓅᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᙱᓐᓂᖓᓂ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᖓᓇᓱᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᕕᓂᐅᓇᓱᒋᔭᐅᒋᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ? 
ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ.  
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᙱᑦᑐᕕᓂᐅᒻᒪᑕ ᐅᑯᐊ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᑯᑦ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᔪᑏ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂ ᐱᑕᖃᐅᓕᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᑦᑎᓐᓂ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓂ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᖏᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᒥ ᑕᑯᑲᓂᔾᔮᖏᓐᓇᑦᑕ ᐄ, 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔪᖓᐅᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐅᖃᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᕐᐸᑖ 
ᐅᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᑲᖐᓱᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᖢᑎᒃ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᓯᒪᔪᓄᑯᐊ ᓚᓯᒪᓚᐅᖅᐸᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᕋ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᐅᖃᕋᓱᒃᑐᖓᖓ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᑕᖏᐅᒪᕙᓚᐅᖅᐸᑕ, ᐃᒫᖃᐃ 
ᐱᔭᐅᔪᒥᓂᐅᓇᓱᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᑕᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᕆᔭᖓ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒻᒥ? ᓇᓗᓇᕈᓐᓃᖅᑐᖅ ᐱᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ. ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᕋᓱᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᓄᓇᕗᒥ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕖᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐᑯᖏᓐᓄᑦ. 
ᐅᔾᔨᕆᓕᕐᓱᑕᓗ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑕᐅᑲᓐᓂᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ. 
ᐸᐃᑉᐹᑦ ᐊᑐᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᐱᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᐊᑐᕆᐊᓖᑦ 
ᐋᖅᑭᓱᒃᑎᐊᖅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ ᑲᒪᒋᔭᐅᓪᓗᑎᑦ. ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᔾᔪᑏᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐋᖅᑭᔅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐃᓗᐃᒃᑲᐅᓂᖅᓴᓂᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᕐᓂᖃᑦᑎᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᓕᕐᒪᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐅᖃᖅᐲᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓱᕐᓗ 
ᐊᖏᖅᓯᕈᓗᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᕕᓃᑦ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ 
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was sent over from NBCC. Is that basically 
what you’re saying? Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Again, I’ll reiterate that the 
assumption was that the due diligence was 
done by NBCC. Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. In 
signing off as the deputy minister on that, 
or he states in there that “Besides a careful 
review of the board, who are 
recommending approval, I have also 
reviewed the application in concert with 
officials here at headquarters.” Was that 
due diligence done in the department is 
what I’m asking. They seemed to be just 
going on to saying, “Well, the assumptions 
were made that someone else did it.” Am I 
assuming that that was not done in the 
department as well? Is that correct? Mrs. 
Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. It’s Ms. Keenainak, thank you. 
Again, the assumption that’s made and I do 
acknowledge that the level of due diligence 
that is going to be required was not the 
level at which it was then. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Sorry about that. Maybe I was predicting 
the future too.  
 
>>Laughter 
 
Chairman: Did the department at least 
even look at the letter that Mr. Orecklin 
sent to the minister in relation to those two 
files; the June 7 letter to Minister Kilabuk 
regarding the loan approvals for those two 
organizations? Did the department even go 
over that letter? Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 

NBCC-ᑯᓐᓃᖔᖅᑐᓂᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓕᐅᖅᑮᑦ? ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᒃᑲᓐᓂᕈᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᖓ ᐃᓱᒪᖃᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᑦᑕ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᐅᓇᓱᒋᓚᐅᕋᑦᑎᒃᑯᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐄ, ᑖᒃᑯᐊᖑᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᑐᖏᓕᕆᔭᐅᑎᓪᓗᑎᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑕᐅᑦᑎᐊᓚᐅᖅᖢᑎᑦ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᖅᐳᒍᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᐅᑯᐊ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᓯᒪᒻᒥᔭᒃᑲ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖃᑎᖃᖅᖢᖓ ᑐᒃᑕᕐᕕᒻᒦᑦᑐᒥᑦ 
ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐹᑦ? ᑲᖐᓱᑐᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐊᓯᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑕ.  
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑐᖅᑕᖃᓚᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᖅ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᔪᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓂ 
ᐊᐃ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓱᒪᓚᐅᖅᑐᒍᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᖅᑕᐅᓇᓱᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑦᑕᕆᐊᖃᕐᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅ. ᓯᕗᓂᔅᓴᒥᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᓇᓚᐅᑦᑕᐃᖅᑲᐅᕗᖓᖃᐃ. 
 
>>ᐃᓪᓚᖅᑐᑦ 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᓯ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓚᐅᖅᐹᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᒥᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓕᓐ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓᓂᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐊᒃᑐᐋᔪᖅ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓄᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔫᓐᓂᑦ ᔫᓐ 7-ᒥ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᕿᓚᕝᕙᕐᒧᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᖅ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᒪᕐᕈᓐᓄᒃ ᑎᒥᐅᔫᓐᓄᒃ.  
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᐹᒃ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
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Chairman. I will assume so. Thank you.  
 
Chairman: Did you look at it at all? Ms. 
Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I would have done a review 
based on officials in the department. Thank 
you.  
 
Chairman: So even though you ‘inked off’ 
on the letter saying everything looked 
good, you’re saying that you didn’t review 
the two and a half page letter from the 
Business Credit Corporation to the 
minister. Am I correct in saying that you 
would just assume and let someone else 
read it over, that you wouldn’t have 
reviewed it? Ms. Keenainak.  
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I would have reviewed the letter 
and then relied on senior officials to take a 
look at some of the technical information 
because I don’t have the technical 
background on that. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. I 
find it hard to believe that anyone really 
looked at it. When I had a look at it, the 
very first thing that jumped out at me in the 
identical letter that was sent to Minister 
Simailak, it’s the same thing. The only 
thing that’s changed is it is attention to a 
different minister.  
 
In the initial letter to Minister Simailak, 
there is a paragraph on page two that says, 
and I’ll read it, “You were previously a 
Director of Ilagiittut Ltd. but resigned on 
March 15, 2004. The resignation was 
accepted at a special directors’ meeting on 
April 26, 2004, and your share is placed in 
a blind trust. Therefore, approval of this 
loan will not place you in conflict of 

ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓂᕆᐅᒃᑐᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓚᐅᖅᐱᐅᒃ? ᒥᔅ 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ?  
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᒐᔭᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓗᒍ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᑎᓐᓂ ᐃᓚᒋᓪᓗᒋ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᑕᑯᓯᒪᔭᕋᓗᐃᑦ 
ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ ᐱᐅᔫᔭᖅᑐᑦ ᐃᓗᓕᖏᑦ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᓚᐅᓐᖏᑕᑏᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ ᒪᒃᐱᒐᓕᒃ 
ᑎᑎᖅᑲ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᖅᑐᖅ? ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᖃᓕᒫᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕋᓱᒋᑐᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑕᐃᑦ? 
ᐅᖃᓕᒫᓚᐅᖅᐱᐅᒃ? ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕋᔭᓚᐅᖅᑕᕋ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ, ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓗᒍ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑲᐅᑏᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐃᑲᔪᕈᑎᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂ 
ᑭᖑᓂᐊᒍᑦ ᐱᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᑎᓪᓗᒍ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒪᓚᐅᖅᑐᖓ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈᖅ. 
ᓇᓗᓇᖅᓯᒻᒪᑦ ᐊᔪᕐᓇᕐᒪᑦ ᐅᒃᐱᕆᔭᕆᐊᒃᓴᖅ ᑭᓇᒧᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑦ. ᕿᒥᕐᕈᒐᒃᑯᓕ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᕐᐹᒥ 
ᐅᕙᓐᓄᑦ ᓱᕐᓗ ᒥᓯᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐃᓱᒪᒧᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᖅᑲ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓯᒪᐃᓚᒃᒧᑦ, ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᓯᔾᔨᖅᖢᓂᐅᒃ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ ᐊᓯᐋᓅᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅ ᒥᔅᑕ ᓯᒪᐃᓚᒧᑦ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᑑᖓᓂ ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᓂ 
ᐅᖃᓕᒫᕐᓂᐊᖅᐸᕋ, "ᑕᐃᒪ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᒐᕕᑦ 
ᐃᓚᒌᑦᑐᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᒫᑦᓯ 15, 2004-ᒥ ᓄᖅᑲᖅᖢᑎᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨ 
ᐊᐃᐳᕈᓪ 6, 2004-ᒥᑦ ᐊᒻᒪ ᐃᓚᓕᐅᑎᓯᒪᔾᔪᑎᑎᑦ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᑕᐃᒪ ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᓂᖓ ᑖᑦᓱᒪ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᓂᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐊᑲᐅᓐᖏᓕᐅᕈᑎᖃᔾᔮᖏᑦᑐᖕ.” ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ ᑕᒡᕙ 
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interest.” That was the letter to Minister 
Simailak.  
 
The same letter to Minister Kilabuk has 
that exact same wording in it. How that 
could have been missed if someone really 
looked at it just leaves me to believe that it 
wasn’t looked at. Maybe if anyone looked 
at it, they would have caught onto that. 
Maybe you can explain how that got 
overlooked.  
 
I mean that’s a totally inaccurate thing to 
be putting in a letter to Minister Kilabuk. I 
would have thought that if someone did 
look at it and see that, that they would have 
gotten back a hold of Mr. Orecklin and 
asked him to fix his letter because that was 
the previous minister and not the current 
minister. Do you have any explanation for 
that? Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Again, I acknowledge that past 
practice was not sufficient within the 
department. As indicated, we’re going to be 
making improvements on how things are 
happening in the future. At this point, that’s 
all I can say. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Keenainak. 
Hopefully, we won’t have anymore rubber 
stamping of million dollar loans for people 
without anyone, at all, having a look at any 
part of it because it seems pretty clear that 
maybe the NBCC officials scrutinized the 
information provided to them by the 
applicant but maybe they didn’t.  
 
It’s very clear, I think, in my mind that the 
department has a responsibility and the 
onus in there to do their own due diligence 
on these things. They couldn’t even be 
bothered to read the two and a half page 
letter to the minister requesting that those 
be approved. So that seems very bizarre to 

ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᓯᒪᐃᓚᒃᒧᑦ ᐊᐅᓪᓚᕐᑎᑕᐅᓂᑯ.  
 
 
 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᔅᑕ ᕿᓚᕝᕙᒧᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᓴᐃᓐᓇᖅ, 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖏᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑦᓯᐊᕐᑐᓐ. ᐋᒪᐃ 
ᑕᑯᔭᐅᓐᖏᓂᖅᐸᒃᑭᐊᖅ ᓇᓗᓇᕐᑐᖕ. ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᓕᕐᑐᖓ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓂᖏᓐᓂᖓᓂᑦ. ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓐᓂᖅᐸᓪᓕ 
ᐊᖑᓇᐅᔭᓇᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᓐ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕈᓐᓇᖅᐱᐅ 
ᖃᓄᖅ ᖄᖏᖅᑕᐅᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᓂᕐᒪᖔᑦ.  
 
 
 
ᐃᓛᖕ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᒥᒃ ᐃᓕᓯᔭᕆᐊᒃᓴᖅ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᕿᓚᕐᕙᕐᒧᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓈᒻᒪᖅᑰᔨᓐᖏᒻᒪᓐ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒥᓂᔅᑐᓗ 
ᐊᐅᓪᓚᕐᑎᑦᓯᕕᐅᓪᓗᓂ. ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓐᓂᖅᐸᓪᓗ 
ᑕᑯᓇᐅᔭᓇᕐᒪᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕋᒡᓕᓐ ᐊᐱᕆᔭᐅᓕᕆᓪᓗᓂ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᒧᑦ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᓂᖓᓂᖕ. 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᕈᑎᒋᔪᓐᓇᕐᐱᐅᒃ ᑖᓐᓇ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓈ.  
 
 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᐃᓕᑕᕐᓯᕗᖓ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᕐᑐᐃᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓂᒃᑎᓐᓂ. ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ ᑕᐃᒪ, ᐋᖅᑭᒃᓯᒋᐊᕐᓂᐊᓕᕋᑦᑕ ᓯᕗᒧᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᓴᐃᓐᓇᖅ ᐱᖁᓇᒍ ᐃᓕᖅᑯᓯᐅᓚᐅᕐᑐᖅ 
ᐱᕋᔭᒍᑎᓂ. ᒫᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᑐᐃᓐᓇᕐᑐᖓ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅ ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖕ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓇᕿᑦᑎᑐᐃᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᖁᔨᓐᖏᑦᑐᒍᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᓄᖕᓄᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᔭᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᑎᓪᓗᒍ. ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᖅᑰᕐᑐᖅ, 
ᐃᒻᒪᖃ NBCCᑯᑦ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᖏᑦ 
ᐅᔾᔨᖅᓱᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖃᑦᑕᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᑐᓴᕈᑏᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᕐᑐᒧᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᕐᓯᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᓱᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐅᕙᖓ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᑦ ᐱᔭᒃᓴᖃᕐᒪᑕ, ᐱᒋᐊᕐᓗᑎᒡᓗ 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᓯᐊᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ. ᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖃᓕᒫᕈᓐᓇᓚᐅᓐᖏᒻᒪᑕᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ 
ᒪᑉᐱᒐᓕᒻᒥᑦ. ᒥᓂᔅᑐᕐ ᑐᒃᓯᕋᕐᑎᓪᓗᒍ 
ᐊᖏᖅᑕᐅᖁᔭᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ. ᑕᐃᒪᓕ 
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me.  
 
I don’t know how you could have signed 
off on that letter stating that all of that stuff 
was done when it seems pretty clear that 
none of it was at the NBCC level, or even 
at the department HQ level, or even at the 
deputy level. Do you have any comments? 
Ms. Keenainak. 
 
Ms. Keenainak: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. I think it’s evident, through this 
whole process, that awareness and training 
is going to be needed in all levels, that 
includes board level, staff level, and also 
within my own department. I acknowledge 
that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: I wish I had put in an 
application back then. Mr. Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Before I go back to the 
department, I want to ask the comptroller 
general because he’s been patiently sitting, 
perhaps, hoping that we would get on with 
some areas that he’s expertised, so I have a 
question for him.  
 
In the view of the fact that the minister did 
indicate in this House when this House was 
sitting last October that the minister has 
asked your office, as the comptroller 
general, to refer the whole file of the 
NBCC’s activities to the RCMP. Could you 
indicate to the committee exactly what the 
status of the investigation, if any, 
happening to date? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
O’Donnell. 
 
Mr. O’Donnell: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. The current status is that the 
RCMP are investigating this matter and I 
think, as we mentioned before, it will take 
probably several months before it will be 

ᓂᕆᐅᓐᓇᕐᑐᖅ, ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᐊᔾᔨᐅᓐᖏᑦᑐᐊᓘᒻᒪᓐ, 
ᑕᑕᒥᓐᓂᐊᕐᓇᕐᒪᓐ.  
 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᓇᓗᓇᕐᓯᒻᒪᑦ ᖃᓄᖅ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᑎᓕᐅᕆᔪᖃᕋᔭᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᒥᑦ. ᐅᖃᖅᓯᒪᔪᒥᒃ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓯᓪᓗᑎᒡᓗ ᑐᑭᓯᓇᕐᓯᔫᔭᕐᑐᖅ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᑕᐅᓚᐅᓐᖏᓂᖓᓂᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒃ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᓐ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ? 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ. 
 
 
ᑮᓇᐃᓐᓇᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓇᓗᓇᕈᓐᓃᕐᑐᖅ ᓴᖅᑯᒥᔪᖅ ᑎᑎᖅᑲᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᕐᓂᐊᕐᑐᒍᑦ ᐃᓕᓐᓂᐊᕐᑎᑦᑎᓗᑕᓗ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᓂᖕ, ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᕐᑎᓂᖕ, ᐊᒻᒪᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᑎᓐᓂᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): 
ᑐᒃᓯᕋᖃᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᓂᕈᒪᓕᕋᐃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᑕᑕᑎᕆᓇᔭᓚᐅᕋᒪ 
ᑕᐃᑦᓱᒥᓂ ᑖᑦᓱᒧᖓ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᐅᑎᓚᐅᖏᓐᓂᕋᓂ, 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᑦᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᐱᕆᔪᒪᕙᕋ 
ᑲᔪᓯᓂᐊᕋᑦᑕ. ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᐊᔪᓐᖏᓐᓂᖓ ᐊᑐᕐᓗᒍ, 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖃᕐᕕᒋᒐᒃᑯ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓱᒍ. 
 
 
 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᒥᓂᔅᑐ ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᕐᕕᐅᑉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ 
ᐅᒃᑑᕝᕙᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᒥ ᒥᓂᔅᑐᕐ ᐊᐱᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ, 
ᐊᒡᓚᕝᕕᑦᓯᓐᓂ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᒃ ᐊᒡᓚᕝᕕᖓᑦ, 
ᐳᑭᖅᑕᓖᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᑐᖅᑯᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᓂ ᓄᓇᕗᒥ 
ᓇᖕᒥᓂᖃᕐᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᕕᒻᒥ ᑯᐊᐳᓖᓴᓐ. ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᕐᐲᑦ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐊᓛᓄᓐ ᖃᓄᖅ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕈᑕᐅᔪᑦ ᒫᓐᓇ ᓱᓕ 
ᑲᔪᓯᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᐅᑉᓗᒥᒧᓐ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐆᑖᓄᓪ. 
 
ᐆᑖᓄᓪ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓕᖓᓂᐊ, ᐳᑭᖅᑕᓕᕆᓂᖅ, ᒫᓐᓇ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᒪᑕᓱᓕ 
ᑖᑦᓱᒧᖓ ᐱᔾᔪᑕᐅᔪᒧᑦ. ᐅᖃᓚᐅᕋᒪ ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᒻᒪᖃ 
ᑕᖅᑭᓂᒃ ᐊᒥᓱᒐᓚᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᐊᓂᒃᑕᐅᒐᓱᓐᓂᐊᕐᒪᓐ. ᒫᓐᓇ 
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completed. So we’re not at liberty to 
provide any further information regarding 
the investigation. As soon as that report is 
provided by the RCMP, we will share that 
immediately and as we’re asked for 
information, we will provide that to the 
RCMP to help them in that investigation. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. O’Donnell. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. At the last sitting 
of the committee, it was reported that there 
was no formal acknowledgement that the 
investigation had started at that time. So it 
is now official that the investigation is 
actually proceeding with respect to the 
activities that occurred within NBCC. Am I 
correct in that? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
O’Donnell.  
 
Mr. O’Donnell: Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. Yes, the investigation is 
proceeding and we will update that when 
they have finished their investigation. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. O’Donnell. 
Mr. Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
have a question for the Chair of the NBCC 
Board. Recently, we heard in a press 
release that the former Acting CEO has 
resigned. Was he fired or did he resign 
voluntarily? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, 
the former comproller and Acting CEO 
resigned voluntarily. Thank you, Mr. 

ᐊᑐᐃᓐᓇᕈᐃᔪᓐᓇᓐᖏᑦᑐᒍᑦ ᑐᑭᓯᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᑲᓐᓂᕐᓂᒃ 
ᑐᓴᕈᑎᒃᓴᒃᑲᓐᓂᕐᓂᑦ ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐊᖑᔪᓄᑦ. ᑭᓯᐊᓂ 
ᐳᑭᑦᑕᓕᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᖃᐃᑕᐅᑉᐸᑕ 
ᐊᓂᑦᑐᓇᓐᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᕗᑦ ᐅᖃᐅᓯᖅᑕᖏᑦ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐃᓕᒃᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᐳᑭᑦᑕᓕᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᓂᔾᔪᑎᒋᓛᕋᑦᑎᒍ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᕆᔭᖓ ᖃᓄᖅ ᐃᓕᖓᓕᕐᒪᖔᓐ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑖᓄᓪ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪ ᐃᒃᓯᕚᖅᑎᓪᓗᑕ 
ᑭᖑᓪᓕᕐᒥ ᒪᓕᒐᓕᐅᖅᕕᒻᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᐃᓕᑕᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᓚᐅᖏᒻᒪᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐱᒋᐊᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᖔᓐ ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕐᓚᑦᑖᖅᐹ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᖅ ᑲᔪᓯᓕᕐᒪᑕ. ᐊᒃᑐᐊᔪᑦ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᓴᖅᑭᓚᐅᖅᑐᓄᑦ ᐱᑦᔪᑕᐅᔪᓂ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᒻᒧᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐃᓴᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᑉᐸ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐅᑖᓄᓪ. 
 
ᐅᑖᓄᓪ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕐᓂᖅ ᑲᔪᓯᔪᖅ. ᐊᒻᒪ ᐅᓪᓗᒥᒨᓕᖓᔪᓂᒃ 
ᐱᐊᓂᒃᐸᑕ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᓂᖏᓐᓂᒃ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ ᑐᓂᓛᖅᑕᕗᑦ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᑖᓄᓪ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᑦᑐᖓ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᖓᓄᑦ 
ᑯᐊᐳᕋᐅᓴᖓᓄᑦ ᑐᓴᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᑐᓴᕋᔅᓴᑎᒍᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᓯᕗᓪᓕᕐᓂ, ᓯᕗᓂᐊᓂ 
ᐊᕕᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐹ ᐃᒥᓂᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓄᖅᑲᓚᐅᖅᐸ? 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, ᑕᐃᓐᓇ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᐃᒻᒥᓂᒃ ᓄᖅᑲᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
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Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. So he resigned as 
the comptroller. I understand then that he 
was occupying two positions - as a 
comptroller as well as the Acting CEO - 
but obviously, he was on leave. Could you 
confirm to the committee whether or not 
he’s still working for the government? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. No, 
Mr. McDowell is no longer with the 
NBCC. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, I 
have a further question for him. Did the 
former comptroller actually have an 
agreement with you guys, similar to Mr. 
Orecklin, that there would be no 
defamatory kind of an agreement between 
the two agencies, or was it just a straight 
forward resignation? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s a 
straight forward resignation. He came up to 
my office to discuss what had happened in 
Arviat and he basically, at that point, 
tendered his resignation. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley.  
 

 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐄ, ᓄᖅᑲᓚᐅᖅᑑᖅ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᐅᓂᕐᒥᒃ, 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᐸᓱᓖ ᐃᓂᖃᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᐸ. 
ᑐᑭᓯᐅᒪᒐᒪ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ  ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᖃᓚᐅᕐᒪᓐ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓪᓗᓂ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᖢᓂᓗ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᕕᒻᒥ. ᓄᖅᑲᖓᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᐃᑲᓐᖓᑦ. 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᐲᑦ ᐅᕙᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ ᓱᓕ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᐸ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒪᒃᑕᐅᕗᓪ ᑖᒃᑯᓇᓃᒍᓐᓃᖅᑐᖅ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᑦᑐᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᒃᑯᕕᖓᓂ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ, 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᑦᑐᖓ ᓱᓕ ᑕᐃᑯᖓ. ᑕᐃᓐᓈ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ ᐊᖏᕈᑎᓂᒃ 
ᐊᔾᔨᖓᓂᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓚᓐ 
ᐊᖏᕈᓯᐊᕆᔭᐅᓯᒪᓂᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᐊᖏᕈᑎᓂ ᐊᑯᓐᓇᖏᓐᓂ 
ᐅᕝᕙᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᓄᖅᑲᑐᐃᓐᓇᓪᓚᕆᓚᐅᖅᐸ ᐃᒻᒥᓂᒃ? 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫ. 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐃᒻᒥᓂᒃ 
ᓄᖅᑲᑐᐃᓐᓇᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. ᐊᕐᕕᐊᓂ ᐱᔾᔪᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ 
ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᐃᒻᒥᓂᒃ ᓄᖅᑲᓚᐅᖅᑐᖅ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
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Mr. Curley: Thank you. I have another 
question that I believe requires a policy 
within NBCC as a board chairman and I 
would like to direct it to Mr. Peter Ma.  
 
In view of the fact that NBCC lends out 
quite a significant amount of money to 
large sectors of the economy; some involve 
from communication to local retailer to 
construction companies, as well as real 
estate companies and whatnot, which I 
think, in many respects, puts those 
companies, once approved for certain 
amount of loans that they’re asking for, in a 
better position to compete for government 
contracts or jobs; has there been any 
consideration at all that the NNI Policy 
should apply to NBCC? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. At this 
point, I have not thought about that. So I 
will make a note and give that some careful 
consideration. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley.  
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I’m asking that question because even the 
construction companies from all regions 
have asked for loans from the government. 
Many of them involve more than $500,000, 
occasionally, looking at the list here, and 
surely, it’s more than $500,000. All of 
these loans that are listed in there that are 
over $500,000, at least from the period 
from 2004 to the time that we have been in 
this government, had they gone to the 
minister’s offices as well for signatures? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Ma. 

ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᐊᒻᒪ 
ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᔅᓴᖃᑦᑐᖓ ᓱᓕ. ᐅᑉᐱᕆᔭᕋ ᑖᓐᓇ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᓂ 
ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓᓐᓄ, 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕ ᒫᒧᑦ ᑐᕌᕈᒪᔭᕋ. 
 
ᑕᐃᒪ ᐅᑉᐱᕈᓱᒃᑲᒪ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑐᒋᑦ NBCC-ᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᐊᖏᔪᓂᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ. 
ᐊᖏᔪᐊᓗᓐᓄᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔾᔪᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᐅᕈᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᑕᖅᑳᓂ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᔾᔪᑎᓄᑦ 
ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂᓗ ᓂᐅᕕᖅᕕᓄᑦ, ᓴᓇᔨᐅᔪᓄᓪᓗ 
ᐃᓪᓗᕐᔪᐊᓂᒃ, ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐃᓪᓗᕐᔪᐊᓕᕆᔨᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᑎᑦᑎᔨᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᓪᓗᕐᔪᐊᓂᒃ. ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑉᐸᓂᐅᔪᑦ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐃᓕᖓᓕᖅᑎᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐊᐱᕆᒑᖓᑕ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᐊᖏᑎᒋᔪᓂᒃ ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓪᓗ ᑳᑦᑐᓛᒋᔭᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᐱᔫᒥᓵᕈᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ.  
ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᕕᓰ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NNI-ᑯᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖏᑦ 
NBCC-ᑯᓐᓄᑦ ᑐᕌᕋᔭᕐᒪᖔᑕ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒋᓯᒪᖏᑕᕗᑦ ᒫᓐᓇ ᑭᓯᐊᓂ ᑎᑎᕐᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐃᓱᒪᔅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑕᐅᔪᓐᓇᓛᕐᒪᑕ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ.  ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐊᐱᖅᓱᕋᒪ, 
ᐊᐱᖅᓱᕈᑎᒋᔭᕋ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᓇᔩᑦ ᓇᓂᑐᐃᓐᓇᖅ 
ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒦᖔᖅᑐᓐ ᐊᕕᑦᑐᖅᓯᒪᔪᖏᓐᓂ ᒪᑯᐊᓗ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓂ ᐃᓚᖃᒻᒪᑕ 
$500,000-ᓴᓂᒃ ᐊᖏᓂᖃᖃᑦᑕᕐᒪᑕ ᑖᒃᑯᐊᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᔭᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ $500,000-ᖑᑉᐸᑕ. 
ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᑕᕝᕙᓂ ᑎᑎᖅᓯᒪᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑭᓇᒃᑰᒻᒪᖔᑕ. ᐅᖓᑖᓄᑦ $500,000 ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒪ 2004-ᒥ ᐱᒋᐊᖅᖢᒍ ᐅᑭᐅᖓᓂ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕆᓪᓗᑎᒍ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᓅᖃᑦᑕᖅᓯᒪᕙᑦ 
ᓯᕗᓂᒃᓴᒥᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫ. 
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I don’t 
know actually as I wasn’t the chairperson 
at the time. I would assume that, according 
to the Act, they would have gone to the 
minister. Anything over $500,000 is to go 
to the minister. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. The list that we 
have is quite significant; there are a number 
of them that are over $500,000 or more. So 
I’m asking the chairman of the board: had 
the due diligence been completed by the 
minister’s staff from the record that you 
may have to current? Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Ma. 
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In all 
honesty, I don’t know and that could be 
something I could follow-up and get back 
to the standing committee on. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The chairman of the board indicated earlier 
also that he will be providing the 
information on the loan that was provided 
to a company, but in the end, after making 
one payment just walked away. We need 
that information. Could the chairman of the 
board tell this committee exactly when he 
will be able to provide that information? 
Thank you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Ma. 
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I can’t 

 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᑕᐃᒃᓱᒪᓂ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᓐᖏᓐᓇᒪᓕ ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ 
ᐱᖁᔭᕐᔪᐊᑦ ᒪᓕᒃᖢᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ $500,000-ᒥᑦ 
ᐊᑭᖃᕐᓂᐊᖅᐸᑦ ᐅᖓᑖᓂᓘᓐᓃᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓᑦᑕ 
ᑐᓂᔭᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᖅᑕᖓ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐱᓯᒪᔭᕗᑦ ᐊᒃᓱᐊᓗᒃ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᑦ ᐅᓄᕐᒪᑕ 
ᐅᓄᑲᓪᓚᑦᑐᑎᓪᓗ $500,000 ᐅᖓᑖᓂ ᐊᑭᖃᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᒪᔪᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᖅᑕᕋ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᑦᑎᐊᕈᑎᖓ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᐸᑦ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦᑕ ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᔪᖁᑎᑎ ᐱᓯᒪᔭᑎᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒡᓗᒋᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᓱᓕᑦᑎᐊᕐᓗᖓ ᖃᐅᔨᒪᓐᖏᑦᑐᖓ 
ᖃᐅᔨᖏᐊᕈᓐᓇᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᕋ ᐅᑎᕐᕕᒋᓂᐊᕋᒃᑯ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ.. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᖅᑲᐅᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊ ᑐᓂᓯᓂᐊᕋᒥᒎᖅ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᑎᐅᖃᑦᑕᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᒥᑦ, ᑭᓯᐊᓂᓕ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᐊᖅᖢᓂ ᐊᑭᓖᓚᐅᖅᖢᓂ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᓂᑦ 
ᒪᑐᒡᓗᓂᐅᒃ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐅᖃᕈᓐᓇᖅᐹ ᖃᖓᒃᑯᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᒃ 
ᑐᓂᔪᓐᓇᕐᓂᐊᒪᕐᖔᕐᒥᐅᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᖃᖓ 
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give the member a specific timeline. As 
indicated earlier, I think that was this 
morning, I will follow that up with the 
Office of the Auditor General. As soon as I 
can provide the information to the standing 
committee and the member, I will do that. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley. 
 
Mr. Curley: Thank you. On the other 
question I referred to earlier with respect to 
the NNI Policy, the construction companies 
or whatnot that are provided with loans 
know they put themselves in a better 
advantage when bidding for government 
contracts.  
 
So I believe it’s really quite important that 
somehow the NBCC Board, as well as the 
minister’s office, should consider 
establishing clear guidelines on whether or 
not the sectors that are applying, the 
companies, is really preparing for 
government bids because they are buying a 
product from you, in this case, it’s Finance. 
 
What I’m saying is that the guidelines 
should somehow be instituted in order that 
you’re not giving one particular company a 
better position to compete against the local 
firms or whatnot. Is that something you 
indicated that you would be willing to do, 
and if so, could you, through your minister, 
maybe report that to the committee? Thank 
you. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Curley. Mr. 
Ma. 
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, 
as indicated, that is something we could 
examine as a corporation. That said, I 
would just like to remind the standing 
committee that the purpose of the 

ᑐᓂᓂᐊᕐᒪᖔᒃᑯᑦ ᓇᓗᓇᐃᕈᓐᓇᖏᑦᑕᕋ ᐅᒡᓛ 
ᐅᖃᖅᑯᖅᑕᐅᔪᖓ ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᕐᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᒻᒥ 
ᖃᐅᔨᒋᐊᕐᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ 
ᑐᓂᓂᐊᖅᐸᕋ ᐱᑐᐊᕈᒃᑯᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫᓐ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ. 
 
 
 
ᑰᓕ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᖃᐅᔨᒪᑦᑎᐊᖏᑦᑐᖓ 
ᐱᖃᑖ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᐅᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᒋᓪᓗᒍ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᓇᒻᒥᓂᖃᖅᑐᖅ ᐃᑲᔪᕈᑎᓄᑦ ᐊᑐᐊᒐᖅ. ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐃᒡᓗᓕᐅᖅᑎᐅᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᕈᑎᓂᒃ ᐃᒻᒥᓂᒃ ᐃᑲᔪᕋᓱᒃᖢᑎᒃ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑲᓐᓇᓛᒃᓴᒥᑦ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᓐᓃᓐᖔᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᑲᓐᑐᓛᒃᓴᒥᑦ. 
 
 
ᐱᓇᓱᖃᑕᐅᑎᓪᓗᒋᑦ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ NBCC-ᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᖏᑦ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᐅᑉ ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᖏᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓱᒪᖅᓴᖅᓯᐅᕈᑎᖃᕐᓗᑎᒃ ᒪᓕᒐᖅᑕᖃᕈᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᖅ 
ᓇᓗᓇᐃᖅᓯᒪᑦᑎᐊᖅᑐᓂ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᔪᒪᓇᓱᑦᑐᑦ 
ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᑦ ᐸᕐᓇᐃᒻᒪᖔᑕ ᒐᕙᒪᒃᑯᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᖅᑐᒫᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂ ᐱᔪᒪᓇᓱᒍᑎᓂᒃ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᓇᓐᖓᑦ 
ᐅᓪᓗᒥᐅᓕᖅᑐᖅ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᐱᔭᕆᐊᖃᓲᖑᒻᒪᑕ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᐅᖃᕋᓱᑦᑐᖓ ᒪᓕᒐᐃᑦ ᐱᖃᓯᐅᔾᔭᐅᓗᑎᒃ 
ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒧᑦ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᒥᑦ ᓲᕐᓗ ᐊᑭᓴᖅᑐᐃᓂᐊᓐᖏᒻᒪᑦ 
ᓄᓇᓕᓐᓂᑦ ᑲᒻᐸᓂᐅᔪᖅ. ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐅᖃᐅᓯᕆᖅᑲᐅᕕᐅᒃ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᕈᒪᓪᓗᑎ 
ᑕᐃᒪᐃᓐᓇᖅᐸᓪᓗ ᒥᓂᔅᑕ ᐊᖅᑯᑎᒋᓗᒍᖃᐃ 
ᐅᓂᒃᑳᓕᐅᕈᓐᓇᕋᔭᖅᐱᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᓄᑦ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᑰᓕ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᐅᖃᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪᐃᓛᒃ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕈᓐᓇᖅᑕᕗᑦ 
ᑎᒥᐅᓪᓗᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᐃᑎᑦᑎᒍᒪᔪᖓ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᑦ 
ᑖᓐᓇ ᐱᔾᔪᑎᐅᔪᖅ ᐱᕙᓪᓕᐊᑎᑦᑎᖁᓪᓗᒍ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᐅᕈᑎᔅᓴᓂᒃ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓗᑎᒃ 
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corporation, obviously, is to stimulate the 
economy and to provide loans, where 
appropriate, to start up companies that can 
compete in the market place. So we would 
have to bear that in mind. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Curley, are you finished? Mr. Alagalak, did 
you have some questions? 
 
Mr. Alagalak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
My first question is to the Chairman of the 
NBCC, Peter Ma. I have noted that you, as 
the Acting Chairman of NBCC, have one 
staff at present. Where are the rest? You’re 
supposed to have four and a half, Peter Ma. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak, Mr. 
Ma. 
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Currently, we’re trying to hire two of the 
positions and I may have the titles wrong, 
and I believe they have both been 
advertised and the competitions have 
closed - they are the investment officer and 
the compliance officer. However, in the 
short-term, and no doubt, you’re making 
reference to the fact that Mr. McDowell has 
left, the Department of Finance has 
provided us with what we call a senior 
fiscal advisor to assist us with at least the 
accounting part of it.  
 
As part of the Department of Finance’s 
Strength in Financial Management 
Initiative, they have what we call senior 
fiscal advisors that can go around and help 
departments or territorial corporations out 
on short notice. So we do have that.  
 
In my capacity as Deputy Minister of 
Finance, I have my Acting Manager of the 
Crown Agency Council also providing 

ᓴᖅᑭᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ ᐱᒋᐊᕈᑎᒃᓴᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᓂᐅᕐᕈᑎᔅᓴᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᒃ, ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᖅᑲᐅᒪᔭᕆᐊᖃᕋᑦᑎᒍ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ.. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᑰᓕ ᐱᔭᕇᖅᐲᑦ?. ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓛᒃ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᖃᖅᐲᑦ? 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᓯᕗᓪᓕᖅᐹᖅ ᐊᐱᖅᑯᑎᒃᓴᕆᓂᐊᖅᑕᕋ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᒧᑦ 
ᐲᑕ ᒫᒧᑦ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᑲᐃᓐᓇᖅᑐᒧᑦ. ᐅᔾᔨᕆᒐᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᐅᓪᓗᑎᒃ ᑖᒃᑯᓄᖓ NBCC-ᑯᓐᓂ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒥᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᒥᒃ ᐱᖃᑎᖃᕋᕕᑦ. ᓇᐅᒡᓕ ᑕᐃᒪ 
ᐃᓚᖓ ᐃᓛ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑎᑦᑕᐅᒃ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓛᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕋᓱᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᒪᕐᕉᓐᓂᒃ 
ᓴᖅᑭᔮᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᑦ ᑕᖅᑲᒃᑯᓄᖓ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓵᒃ. 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓂᒃ ᐱᕈᖅᓴᐃᔨ ᐊᒻᒪ ᒪᓕᑦᑎᐊᕋᐊᓗᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᔨ ᐃᓛᒃ ᑕᐃᓯᖅᑲᐅᒐᕕᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒪᒃᑕᐅᕗᓪ 
ᕿᒪᐃᓯᒪᓕᕐᒪᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᕝᕕᖓᑦ 
ᐅᖃᐅᔾᔨᒋᐊᖅᑎᑦᑎᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᖓᓐᓂ 
ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑲᐅᑎᖓᓐᓂᖔᖅᑐᓂ.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᖓᓐᓂᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᑦ ᓴᖏᑦᑎᒋᐊᕐᑎᔾᔪᑎ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᒋᐊᕈᑎ ᐊᕐᕌᒍᒧᑦ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑎᐅᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᓂᕐᒧᑦ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐱᓯᒪᖕᒥᔭᕗᑦ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᑐᖏᓕᕆᔭᐅᓪᓗᖓ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒃᑯᓐᓄᑦ 
ᒥᓂᔅᑕᖓᓐᓄᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᖃᑕᐃᒻᒥᔪᒥᒃ ᓯᕕᑭᑦᑐᒧᑦ 
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some assistance in the short-term. There is 
also an individual that’s, I think, on a short-
term contract, that’s getting some of the 
compliance work that needs to be done for 
the corporation. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I assume that the Office of NBCC has staff 
in Cape Dorset as of now. How many are 
there at this time? Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank 
you for reminding me. I did forget that we 
have a person in Kinngait and she’s the 
administration person. In addition, we have 
our new CEO, Phillip Bhagoutie. Sorry, I 
stand corrected. There are two people in 
Kinngait plus the CEO. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak: Thank you. Thanks for that 
answer, Peter. I guess one of them is 
invisible to you but is not invisible to the 
new CEO.  
 
>>Laughter 
 
Mr. Alagalak: I’m just wondering, Mr. 
Chairman of NBCC: is this costing much 
more than the anticipated expenditures on 
the wages for NBCC this time around? 
(interpretation) Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Ma.  
 

ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑐᐃᖃᑕᐃᒻᒥᔪᖅ. ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᓯᕕᑭᑦᑐᒧᑦ 
Contract-ᑕᐅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᒪᓕᑦᑎᐊᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᖔᑕ 
ᖃᐅᔨᓴᖅᑎᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ ᑯᐊᐳᕇᓴᒧᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᑕᐃᒪᓕ ᐃᓱᒪᓕᕐᐳᖓ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᑦ NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ 
ᑭᙵᕐᓂ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᕐᐹ ᒫᓐᓇ. ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᖃᔅᓯᐅᕙᓪᓗ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ 
ᐃᖅᑲᐃᑎᒐᕕ ᐳᐃᒍᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖃᖅᑐᒍ 
ᑭᙵᕐᓂ ᑕᐃᓐᓇ ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᓕᕆᔨᐅᔪᖅ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐊᒡᓚᒡᕕᖕᒥ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᓕᖅᑐᖅ ᑕᒫᓃᑦᑐᖅ, ᒪᒥᐊᓇᖅ 
ᒪᕐᕉᒎᖅ. ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖓᑦᑕ ᐊᖏᔪᖅᑳᖓ ᑖᓐᓇᓗ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ  ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᑭᐅᒐᕕᑦ ᐲᑕ. 
ᐃᓚᖏᑦ ᑕᑯᒃᓴᐅᖏᑦᑐᖃᐃ ᐃᓕᖕᓄᑦ 
ᑕᑯᒃᓴᐅᔫᒐᓗᐊᖅ ᑖᔅᓱᒧᖓ ᑕᑯᔪᓐᓇᖅᑕᕋᓗᐊᖓ 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖕᒥ 
 
>>ᐃᓪᓚᖅᑐᑦ 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᑉ ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ 
ᐃᓱᒪᑐᐃᓐᓇᓕᕋᑖᖅᑐᖓ ᐃᔅᓯᕙᐅᑕᖓᑦ NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ 
ᐊᑭᑐᓂᕐᓴᐅᓕᕐᐹ? ᓂᕆᐅᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓂᒃ 
ᐊᑭᒋᓂᐊᕐᓱᒋᔭᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᓂᑦ? (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒎᕈᓐᓃᖅᑐᖅ) 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ.  
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᓂᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To my 
knowledge, at this point in time, our 
salaries and benefits are probably below the 
budget given that we haven’t been able to 
hire, unfortunately. As I indicated earlier 
this morning, we’ve had to rely on 
consultants to provide some of the 
assistance that we need in the short-term. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I guess those are the ones out for a 
competition for the positions of the 
comptroller and the loans management 
officer or something. Is that correct, Peter 
Ma? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, 
we have two competitions that are closed in 
terms of advertisement - the compliance 
officer and the investment officer. Given 
what’s happened recently, I suspect we will 
be advertising for a comptroller as well. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Over the last couple of years, the CEOs 
who had been in charge of the corporation 
have somewhat needed more assistance to 
operate efficiently at the NBCC.  
 
I’m was just wondering if there have been 
any thoughts by the minister or the 
chairman that increasing the staff is 
necessary for the next few months or a year 
to standardize and update all of the records 
that have been misled or out of control and 

ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᖃᐅᔨᒪᔭᒃᑯᓪᓕ ᒫᓐᓇᐅᔪᖅ ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᐊᑐᕈᓛᖅᑕᖏᑦᑕ 
ᑐᖓᐅᑦᑎᐊᕐᔪᒃᑑᒐᓗᐊᖅ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᕈᓐᓇᖏᓐᓂᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᐅᓪᓛᖅ 
ᐱᓕᕆᕕᒃᑎᖕᓂᒃᖔᖅᑐᓂᒃ ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᖃᑦᑕᕐᓯᒪᒐᑦᑕ 
ᒫᓐᓇᐅᓃᓐᓇᖓᓄᑦ ᓯᕕᑭᑦᑐᒨᒐᓗᐊᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᑦᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᐃᒻᒪᖄ ᑕᕝᕙ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ ᐱᓇᓱᖃᑕᐅᓂᐊᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᒥᒃ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑕᐅᔪᓄ ᑲᒪᔨᐅᓂᐊᑐᒧᑦ. ᑕᕝᕙ ᑖᒃᑯᐊ 
ᐃᓂᒃᓴᐅᕚ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓵ ᐲᑕ ᒫ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓛ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᐄ, ᒪᕐᕉᔪᑦ 
ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᐊᑭᑦᑐᕋᐅᑎᔭᐅᔪᑦ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔮᒃᓴᐃᑦ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᔪᐃᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨ ᐊᒻᒪᓗ ᐊᑐᖅᑐᐊᖅᑐᓕᕆᔨ 
ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ ᐱᖃᑖ ᑖᓐᓇ ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓂᐊᓕᕐᒥᔪᑦ 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᒻᒪᕆᐅᔪᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓛᒃ. 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. ᐊᕐᕌᒎ 
ᒪᕐᕉ ᐃᓗᐊᓂ ᐊᓂᒍᕐᓯᒪᓕᖅᑐᑦ ᑮᓇᐅᔭ ᐋ, 
ᑎᑎᕋᕐᕕᖕᒥ ᐊᖓᔪᖅᑳᖑᔪᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑯᐊᐅᕇᓴᐅᔪᒧᑦ 
ᐃᑲᔪᖅᑕᐅᒃᑲᓐᓂᕆᐊᖃᓚᐅᕋᓗᐊᕐᒪᑦ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔾᔪᑎᒃᓴᖏᑎᒍᑦ ᐱᓕᕆᓂᐊᕐᒪᑦ NBCC-ᒃᑯᑦ. 
 
 
 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᒃᓴᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᖅᑲᐃ 
ᐃᓱᒪᒃᓴᕐᓯᐅᕈᑕᐅᓯᒪᓕᕐᐸ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᕐᒧᓪᓘᓐᓃᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᖏᑦ ᐱᔭᐅᔭᕆᐊᖃᖅᑐᑦ 
ᐊᑐᖅᑕᐅᔭᕆᐊᓖᑦ ᐊᔾᔨᒌᓕᖅᑎᑦᑎᔾᔪᑎᒋᒋᓪᓗᒋᑦ 
ᒪᓕᒐᖏᓐᓂᒃ ᑐᓴᐅᒪᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕ 
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stuff like that, Peter? (interpretation) Thank 
you, Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
believe I indicated earlier this morning that 
I had some good conversations with our 
new CEO, and that’s an area that we’re 
assessing. I believe Mr. Peterson also made 
a very good recommendation to us just this 
morning in terms of reviewing some of 
those loans files that were in the, I’ll call it, 
“The Orecklin Era,” so obviously, we will 
staff accordingly based upon the needs that 
we perceive to be there. Thank you, Mr. 
Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. 
Alagalak.  
 
Mr. Alagalak: Thank you, Itsivautaaq. I 
was just wondering about those three 
directors that didn’t attend your general 
meeting. Have they been updated or given 
information on a day-to-day basis on 
what’s going on? As some of the staff have 
been resigning over the last, I don’t know 
how long, they’re probably wondering 
what is left of that corporation, I mean if 
they are still a board member. To Peter Ma, 
Mr. Chairman.  
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Alagalak. Mr. 
Ma. 
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think 
my board actually hates me. As important 
matters have come up, I have tried to keep 
them informed. We have had somewhat 
regular teleconferences. Obviously, as you 
know, operating in Nunavut, we can’t have 
in-person meetings all of the time. So 
we’ve either had formal or informal 
teleconferences, as well I tried to send them 

ᐊᐅᓚᑦᑎᐊᕐᓂᐊᕐᒪᑕᓗ? ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
ᐅᖃᖅᑰᖅᑲᐅᒐᒪᐃᓛᒃ ᐅᖃᖃᑎᒋᓪᓗᒋ ᓄᑖᖃᐃ ᑖᓐᓇ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑎᑖᓵᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓴᒃᑕᕗᑦ 
ᐅᒃᐱᕈᓱᒃᑐᖓ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐲᑕᓴᓐ ᐊᑐᓕᖁᔭᓕᐅᖅᑲᐅᖕᒥᔪᖅ 
ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅ ᐃᓛ ᐅᓪᓛᖅ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᖁᔨᓪᓗᑎᒃ 
ᑕᒪᒃᑯᓂᖓ ᐅᕆᕋᒃᓚᓐ ᑲᒪᒋᖃᑦᑕᖅᑕᒥᓂᖏᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒃᑕᐅᖁᓗᓐᓂᒋᑦ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇᐃᓕᐅᕐᓂᐊᕐᖢᑕᓗ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ ᒥᔅᑕ 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
 
ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
ᐱᖓᓱᐃᑦ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᓯᒪᔪᑦ 
ᐅᐸᒍᑎᓚᐅᖏᑦᑐ ᔭᓐᓄᐊᓕᒥ ᑲᑎᒪᑎᓪᓗᓯ. 
ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᐹᑦ ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᒃ ᑐᓂᔭᐅᓚᐅᕐᐹ 
ᖃᐅᑕᒫᕐᓯᐅᑎᖏᓐᓂ ᖃᓄᐃᓕᐅᓕᕐᒪᖔᑕ. 
ᑐᓴᕈᒪᔪᒃᓴᐅᒍᓗᐊᕐᒥᖕᒪᑕ ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᖅᑏᑦ 
ᓄᖅᑲᖃᑦᑕᕐᓂᖏᓐᓄᑦ. ᖃᐅᔨᔪᒪᔪᒃᓴᐅᖕᒥᖕᒪᑕ 
ᖃᓄᐃᓕᖓᓕᕐᒪᖔᑦ ᑖᓐᓇ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᖅ 
ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᖕᒪᑕ ᓱᓕ? ᐲᑕ ᒫᒧᑦ ᐊᐱᕐᓱᖅᑐᖓ 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ. 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᐊᓚᕋᓚᒃ. 
ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
 
 
 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᔪᓄᑦ 
ᐱᐅᒋᔭᐅᖅᑰᖏᒃᑲᓗᐊᖅᖢᖓ. 
ᑐᓴᐅᒪᑏᓐᓇᕋᓱᒃᑲᑕᑦᑕᒃᑲ ᑲᑎᒪᔨᐅᖃᑕᐅᔪᑦ 
ᐅᖄᓚᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑕᐃᓐᓇᕋᑦᑕ ᓄᓇᕗᒻᒥ 
ᑕᑯᓐᓇᖃᑦᑕᐅᑎᓗᑕ ᑲᑎᒪᐃᓐᓇᕈᓐᓇᖏᓐᓇᑦᑕ, 
ᐅᖄᓚᐅᑎᒃᑯᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᖃᑦᑕᖅᑐᒍᑦ ᐊᒻᒪᓗᑦᑕᐅᖅ 
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emails, when I can, at least once a week 
just to update them in terms of what’s 
going on with respect to the operations. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Maybe 
before going back to Mr. Alagalak, I just 
want to recognize the clock. Before we 
finish off for the day, there’s one more 
question that I would like to ask Mr. Ma.  
 
You referred earlier to “The Orecklin Era,” 
and I guess in light of what’s happened 
now with the former comptroller having 
been convicted of fraud and resigned as a 
result of that, has the corporation initiated 
any type of review of any of the files or any 
of the work that that individual did 
considering the fact that that individual was 
convicted of fraud? Mr. Ma.  
 
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, I 
think it would only be prudent for the 
corporation, at this point, to review any of 
the files that Mr. McDowell was involved 
with.  
 
I think it was Mr. Junkin that mentioned 
earlier today in his testimony that the board 
that would get a checklist of the cheques 
that had been issued by the corporation. 
Obviously, at our January 17 meeting, we 
had that opportunity, as a board, to review 
those cheques that were issued and then 
question them.  
 
In my other hat, when the senior fiscal 
advisor from the Department Finance goes 
back to Kinngait next week, we will get an 
updated list and we will scrutinize that list 
of cheques as well carefully. Thank you, 
Mr. Chairman. 
 
Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. With that, 
I’ll recognize the clock and ask that we 
adjourn the meeting today and reconvene at 

ᖃᕋᓴᐅᔭᒃᑯᑦ ᐊᐅᓪᓚᖅᑎᑦᑎᕕᒋᓇᓱᖃᑦᑕᕐᒥᔭᒃᑲ 
ᑐᓴᒐᒃᓴᓂᑦ ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᖅᑕᒫᖅ ᐊᐅᓚᓂᕆᔭᖏᓐᓂ 
NBCC-ᑯᑦ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ. ᒫᓐᓇ 
ᓄᖅᑲᕐᕕᔅᓴᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᑎᑭᓕᕋᑦᑕ. 
ᐅᑎᕆᐊᓚᐅᓐᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ ᐱᔭᕇᓐᖏᓂᑦᑎᓐᓄᑦ 
ᐅᓪᓗᒥ ᐊᑕᐅᓯᕐᒥᑦ ᐊᐱᖅᓱᑲᓐᓂᐊᕐᔪᒍᒪᒐᒪ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫᒧᑦ.  
 
ᐅᐊᑦᑎᐊᖅ ᑕᐃᓯᖅᑲᐅᒐᔅᓯ ᒥᔅᑕ ᐅᕆᐊᒃᓕᓐ 
ᐱᓕᕆᐊᕕᓂᖏᓐᓂ, ᑕᒪᒃᑯᐊ ᓴᖅᑭᐸᓪᓕᐊᔪᑦ ᐱᓪᓗᒋᑦ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᒥᒃ, 
ᑮᓇᐅᔭᓕᕆᔨᐅᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔪᖅ ᐱᕋᔭᖅᓯᒪᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐸᓯᔭᒃᓴᓐᖑᖅᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪ ᐃᓛ, 
ᐸᓯᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᓯᑎᑕᐅᓚᐅᕐᒪᑦ. ᑎᒥᐅᔪᖅ ᑕᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐊᐅᓚᔾᔭᐃᒋᐊᖅᓯᒪᕚ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒍᓐᓇᕐᒪᖔᑕ ᑕᐃᔅᓱᒪ 
ᐃᖅᑲᓇᐃᔭᓚᐅᖅᓯᒪᔭᖏᓐᓂ? ᐱᕋᔭᒃᓯᒪᓂᖓᓄᑦ 
ᐸᓯᔭᒃᓴᐅᒻᒪᑦ ᐃᓛ, ᐸᓯᔭᐅᔪᓐᓇᖅᑎᑕᐅᓯᒪᒻᒪᑦ 
ᐃᖅᑲᖅᑐᐃᕕᒃᑯᑦ. ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
 
ᒫ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᐄ, 
ᐱᒻᒪᕆᐅᒐᔭᖅᑐᖅ ᑎᒥᐅᔪᒧᑦ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᕐᓗᑎᑦ 
ᐃᓗᐃᓐᓇᖏᓐᓄᑦ ᒥᔅᑕ ᒪᒃᑕᐅᓪ ᑲᒪᒋᓚᐅᖅᑕᖏᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒻᒪᖃ ᒥᔅᑕ ᔭᓐᑭᓐ ᐅᖃᖅᑰᖅᑲᐅᔪᖅ ᐅᖃᓪᓚᒃᖢᓂ 
ᐃᓕᒃᓯᓐᓄᑦ ᑲᑎᒪᔩᑦ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᐃᖃᑦᑕᓂᐊᖅᑕᖏᓐᓂ 
ᑎᑎᕋᖅᓯᒪᓗᑎᑦ ᔮᓐᓄᐊᕆ 17-ᒥ ᑕᐃᒪᓐᓇ 
ᐱᓕᕆᔪᓐᓇᓚᐅᕋᑦᑕ ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᒍᓐᓇᖅᑐᑎᒍᓪᓗ 
ᓴᖅᑭᑕᐅᓚᐅᖅᑐᑦ. ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᒐᒃᓴᐅᔪᑦ.  
 
 
 
 
ᐊᐃᑉᐸᖓᓂ ᑐᖏᓕᐅᑎᓗᒍ ᒥᓂᔅᑕᒧᑦ 
ᐱᓇᓱᐊᕈᓯᒋᓂᐊᖅᑕᑎᓐᓂ ᑐᓴᖅᑎᑕᐅᓂᐊᕐᒥᔪᒍᑦ 
ᕿᒥᕐᕈᓇᕐᓗᑎᒍᓪᓗ ᑕᐃᒃᑯᐊ ᖃᐅᔨᓴᕈᑎᐅᔪᑦ, 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑖᖅ. 
 
 
 
 
ᐃᒃᓯᕙᐅᑕᖅ (ᑐᓵᔨᑎᒍᑦ): ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ, ᒥᔅᑕ ᒫ. 
ᑕᕝᕗᖓ ᐃᓱᓕᓪᓗᒍ. ᓄᖅᑲᓂᐊᖅᐳᒍᑦ ᐅᓪᓗᒥ. 
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nine o’clock tomorrow morning. Thank 
you. 
 
>>Committee adjourned at 16:57 

ᖃᐅᑉᐸᑦ 9-ᒧᐊᖅᐸᑦ ᐅᓪᓛᒃᑯᑦ ᐱᒋᐊᕐᓂᐊᖅᐳᒍᑦ. 
ᖁᔭᓐᓇᒦᒃ.  
 
 
>>ᑲᑎᒪᔨᕋᓛᑦ ᓄᖅᑲᖅᑐᑦ 16:57ᒥ 

 


